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I. Letter to shareholders
1.1 Overview of Operating Performancein 2019

Looking back on 2019, due to the uncertainty of the trade war between China and the
United States has interfered with the overall investment environment, the annua trading
volume of domestic futures brokerage business of the Company was 39.53 million lots
which decreased by 7.9% from the previous year. Moreover, the Company has reached
7.58% market share which increased by 13.3% from the previous year. The annual trading
volume of overseas futures brokerage business of the Company was 7.74 million lots, the
market share was 20.3% which decreased by 9.8% from the previous year. In 2019, the
consolidated revenues and net income before tax of the Company were NT$1,916 million
and NT$746 million which decreased by 32.73% and 21.82% from the previous year
respectively. And the net income after tax of the Company was NT$599 million, which
decreased by 28.45% from the previous year, it represented the first decline after eight years
of continuous growth since 2010.

In 2019, the Company was awarded the top five best futures brokers in Asia by
Singapore Exchange, and obtained the Happiness Enterprise Award from 1111 Job Bank
which was an honor and recognition in terms of operation management and employee
satisfaction. As aleader in the field of Fintech development, the Company not only captures
market trends in an efficiency way, but also constructs a self-owned IT system actively with
taking innovation differences as the DNA; in addition, the Company has own professional
market making, proprietary spread trading and securities proprietary trading business team
could bring the profit contribution and distribute it steadily. On the other hand, the Capital
View is the exclusive live show program of the Company which could lead in analyzing
global investment products and opportunities through researching fundamental financial
information and market analysis to provide professional real-time investment suggestions.
Moreover, the Company built an innovation service model on internet through a legal
community platform for customers to subscribe futures advisory services via App, online
interaction program, etc. Furthermore, the Company aims to operate diversified business and
profit diversification for building a multi-engine profit model, and raise the overal
performance.

Additionally, the Company establishes 7 Board Directors (including 3 independent
Directors) who are all with professions of operating management, financial & accounting,
law professional, international market and leadership strategy. Through rich financia
experience and various operating expertise from Directors who are with diversified
background, the Company could implement the operation supervision and management for
pushing up the Company’s whole development strategy, business performance, business
operating improvement, and right protection of investors. The Company will continue to
implement the service entity economy, strengthen corporate governance, fully safeguard the
rights and interests of shareholders, and comply with the rigorous internal control system.
For pursuing long-term profit stability, the Company not only constructs a safe investment
environment, but also would fulfill the corporate social responsibility to become a financia
company which could do al the best to customers.



1.2 2019 income, expense, and profitability as summarized:
Unit: NTD thousand

ltem 2019 2018
Income 1,916,778 2,849,492
Expenses 1,739,116 2,321,961
Non-operating income and expenses 568,952 427,445
Net income before tax 746,614 954,976
Net income 599,676 838,110
Return on Equity (%) 11.87% 17.24%
Net profit margin (%) 31.29% 29.41%
Return on Asset (%) 1.47% 2.27%
Earnings per share after tax  dollar 34 4.73
1.3 The business plan of 2020

Looking ahead to 2020, the uncertainty events from market and the hedging demand
will increase as expected, since affected by the pandemic of Coronavirus Pneumonia (Covid
19), the continued conflict of the trade war between China and the United states, US election
year, etc. Although the external competition environment and the related regulatory
framework remains severe, such as the anti-money laundering provisions become more
rigorous, however, the overall operating environment of the futures industry will grow up
continuously due to the enhancement in price fluctuations of the financial market. The
operating plan and devel opment strategy of the Company in 2020 is as following:

1. Torichly cultivate and duplicate the overseas market business. The Company develop
the greater China market with the DMA advantages of overseas futures products, such as
CME Group HK SGX Euronext EUREX ICE, etc.

2. To enhance the trading performance of our futures and securities proprietary team
continuously and also recruit outstanding traders who are with the profession of spread
strategy, high-frequency trading, market making and operating ability for raising the profit
and distributing the market risk.

3. The Company expands the leveraged trading and derivative business to provide the
hedge solutions for listing companies, small and medium enterprises. Developing foreign
exchange hedging module and training foreign exchange trader talent pool and VIP
customers for creating new source of income.

4. To expand domestic ingtitutional customers and raise the trading volume and margin, the
Company would actively promote LME products and devel op its hedge module.

5. To develop the advantages of our real-time system with combining for expanding
domestic/ foreign institutional customers aggressively and focus on raising the trading
volume and customer margin.

6. To optimize the order software for maintaining the customers who usually place order
viaAPP.

7. Cross-industry integration of various financial platforms and expansion of community
channels, training institution, and media channels, the Company create a win-win
mechanism for mutual benefit and common prosperity through organizing marketing
activities.



8. Theinnovated live program “Capital View” mainly provides exclusive financia points
and also assists to set up hedging modules and trading strategy management mechanism
for increasing the loyalty of customers to the Company.

9. To set up the digital marketing team under Futures Advisory department for recruiting
professional talents and for creating the value of big data.

10. To represent information advantages, the HK subsidy of the Company develop its own
exclusive global futures trading platform in connecting global futures exchanges to provide
the B2C cross-market trading platform and customize services for the customers in greater
China

11. To complete the establishment of the Hong Kong official website and apply Hong Kong
Type 4 and 5 business licenses for actively promoting the consultant business, the
Company recruits consultants and promote professional fee-based coursesin Taiwan and
China.

12. The Company plans to establish the first Futures Company in China (joint venture
/solely-invested) which combine with the comprehensive effect of Shanghai and Chengdu
subsidiaries.

13. Continue to strengthen internal audit and internal control of the Company, carry out
education and training on information security, money laundering prevention, and strictly
abide by risk control and corporate governance. Also, the Company will keep going to

fight for constituting in TWSE Corporate Governance 100 index and take the regular
evaluation every year.

14. To carry out the corporate culture, young people are the future keep strengthen
industry-university cooperation in the campus and focus on the training of new talents for
promoting the balanced development of recruitment, education and retention.

15. To create a happy workplace, strengthen corporate responsibility (CSR) and integrate
core strategies—sustained financial innovation and sustai nable management.

Capital Futures Corp.
Sun, Tien-Shan
Chairman

Lee, Wen-Chu
President

Lin, Li-Juan
Accounting manager



1. Company Profile

2.1 Date of incorporation: February 26, 1997.

Head Office:
Address. 32F & B1, No. 97, Sec. 2, Dunhua S. Road. Daan Dist., Taipei City, R.O.C.
TEL :( 02)2700-2888

Taichung Branch:
Address: 3F.-6, N0.633, Sec. 2, Taiwan Blvd., Xitun Dist., Taichung City, R.O.C.
TEL:(04)2319-9909

2.2 Company history:

Year Major events

1997 The Capital futures Brokerage Crop.was established on February 26™.Became
a public company in November.

1998 Approved as a Genera Clearing Member of Taiwan Futures Exchange in
March and started to provide the clearing services for concurrent FCM and the
introducing Brokers.

2000 Taichung Brach of the Company was established in December

2003 Acquired the Futures Advisory License in February.

2003 Started the proprietary trading business in December and changed the name of
the Company to “Capital Futures Crop.” in December.

2004 Reinvested a subsidiary named Capital Managed Futures Business Corp. in
May, providing the discretionary services.

2006 Acquired the qualification of Taiwan Futures Exchange for Market Maker
businessin July.

2008 Thtﬁ stocks of the company traded on the emerging market, starting from May
15%,

2008 Approved to promote the futures advisory service and training in Mainland
Chinain September.

2009 The stocks of the Companx listed on the Gre Ta Securities Market
(over-the-counter) on April 27™.

2010 Approved to provide the service of securities introducing brokerage and to
operate concurrently managed futures business in August.

2011 The head office moved to current address “32F & B1, No. 97, Sec. 2, Dunhua
S. Road. Daan Dist., Taipei City” in July.

2012 Approved to reinvest the CSC Futures (Hong Kong) Ltd. in August.

2012 Acquired the certification of CG6007 corporate governance from Taiwan
Corporate governance association in September.

2013 Acquired the certification of BS10012 persona information protection from
British Standard Institution in February.

2014 Hong Kong subsidiary acquired the qualification of stock option market maker
of HKEX in April.

2014 Acquired the qualification of market maker of EUREX in 15" May.

2014 Approved the securities investment and consulting businessin August.



2014

2015
2015

2016

2016
2016

2016

2017

Approved to reinvest Capital International Technology Corp. and Capital True
Partner Technology (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. in November.
Approved the securities proprietary trading business in September.

Approved to invest Capital True Partner Advisor (HK) with acquiring its HK
Type 9 License for Asset Management Businessin July.

CSC Futures (HK) was approved to engage in securities and futures business in
Chinasince February.

Approved to concurrently operate a leverage transaction merchant in August.

The first leverage transaction merchant approved by the Central Bank to
conduct business of foreign exchange margin trading in December.

Capital International Technology Corp. was approved to establish Capital
Futures Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. in Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zonein
December.

The stocks of the company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation

(TWSE) on October 16th.

2.3 Capital Futures Awards

Date Award —-Approval Awards
Organization
1997.07 Securities & Futures Institute The 4™-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding Securities
of R.O.C. Industry Talent to Chairman Tim Sun.
2001.07 Securities & Futures Institute The 6™-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding Futures
of R.O.C. Industry Talent to Vice President Tsai Jen-Tsuen.
2005.07 Securities & Futures Institute The 8"-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding
of R.O.C. Entrepreneurial Leader to Chairman Tim Sun.
2005.11 General Chamber of The Golden Merchant Award to Chairman Tim Sun.
Commerce of R.O.C.
2009.03 Taiwan Futures Exchange Awarded for high trading volume FCM in Taiwan's futures
market in 2008.
2009.07 Securities & Futures Institute The 10™-term Golden Goblet Company Award for Outstanding
of R.O.C. Finance Innovation.
2009.07 Taiwan Futures Exchange The 4™-term Board of Directors--Chairman Tim Sun.
2009.08 Singapore Exchange The 1% FCM in Taiwan approved as a SGX-DT Trading Member
Derivatives Trading Limited  (Agency and Proprietary).
(SGX-DT)
2010.06 Chinese National Futures Convener of Standing Supervisors of CNFA--Chairman Tim Sun.
Association
2010.07 Taiwan Futures Exchange The 5"-term Board of Supervisors--Chairman Tim Sun.
2010.10 CME Group The 1% FCM in Taiwan certified by the CME group for Direct
Market Access (DMA).
2011.03 CME Group--CME The 1% FCM in Taiwan approved asa CME Rule 106.H. Trading
Member Firm.
2011.03 CME Group--CBOT The 13 FCM in Taiwan approve asa CBOT Rule 106.R. Trading
Member Firm (Transferred to Rule 106.H).
2011.06 CME Group--COMEX The 1% FCM in Taiwan approved asa COMEX Rule 106.J.
Member Firm.
2011.06 CME Group--NYMEX The 13 FCM in Taiwan approved asaNYMEX Rule 106.J.
Member Firm.
2011.07 Securities & Futures Ingtitute The 118-term Golden Goblet Award for Special Contribution to
of R.O.C. Independent Director Chao Chuan Chu.
2011.07 Securities & Futures Ingtitute The 11%-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding
of R.O.C. Entrepreneurial Leader to President Alex Chia.



2011.07

2011.10

2012.07

2012.07

2012.11

2012.12

2013.08

2013.08

2013.08

2014.05

2014.10
2014.11
2015.02

2015.03
201511

201511

2016.10

2016.11

2017.10

2017.11

2017.11

2018.10

NY SE Euronext--NY SE Liffe
Taiwan Futures Exchange

CME Group--Electronic
Transaction to Option
Commodities

Eurex

General Chamber of
Commerce of R.O.C.
ICE Futures US

Securities & Futures Institute
of R.O.C.

Securities & Futures Institute
of R.O.C.

Futures & Options World

Taiwan Futures Exchange

| CE Futures Europe
Taiwan Futures Exchange

Singapore Exchange
Derivatives Trading Limited
(SGX-DT)

SGX-DT

Securities & Futures Institute
of R.O.C.

Securities & Futures Institute
of R.O.C.
Taiwan Futures Exchange

HKEX 3rd Global Derivatives
Real-Trading Competition
Taiwan Futures Exchange

General Chamber of
Commerce of R.O.C.
Securities & Futures Institute
of R.O.C.

Taiwan Futures Exchange

The 1% FCM in Taiwan approved as a Member of NY SE
Euronext--NY SE Liffe in London and Paris Markets.

Award for the top trading volume (average branch volume) of the
stock futures competition in September.

The 1¥FCM in Asiaoffers B to C options E-trading of the CME
Group.

Approved as a Market Participant (NCM) of Eurex and devel oped
the Direct Market Access (DMA).
The Golden Merchant Award to President Chia, Chung-Tao.

Approved as an Energy Member Firm of ICE Futures US and set
up the Direct Market Access (DMA).

The 12"-term Golden Goblet Company Award for Outstanding
Finance Innovation.

The 12™-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding Futures
Industry. Talent to Executive Vice President Chen, Wen-Tsay.
FOW Awards for Asia2013--NON-BANK FCM OF THE
YEAR.

Eurex/TAIFEX Link Award for Market Making Price Quoting of
Loca FCMs.

Approved as a Market Participant and developed the DMA.

Promotional Sales Award of Eurex/TAIFEX Linked Products.
Taiwan FCM of Top-one trading volume in SGX-DT in 2014.

The 2014 Volume Growth Award for CSC Futures (HK).

The 1% Annual Diamond Award-4" place of the Annual Futures
Brokers Contribution Award

The 13 Annual Diamond Award-3" place of the Managed Futures
Enterprises Contribution Award.

The 13" Golden Goblet Company Award for Special Salary
Raise.

The 2 Annual Diamond Award- 3" place in trading volume of
futures brokers.

The 2 Annual Diamond Award- 1% place in Market Making of
RMB Currency Options.

The 2 Annual Diamond Award- 3" place of the Managed
Futures Enterprises Contribution Award.

Top-One Performance in Market Making of RMB Currency
Options. The Excellent FCM of HKEX.

The 3" Annual Diamond Award- 4™ place in trading volume of
futures brokers.

The 3 Annual Diamond Award- 3 place in Market Making of
RMB Currency Options.

The 39 Annual Diamond Award- 3 place in Market Making of
EUR/USD Futures.

The 39 Annual Diamond Award- 3 place in Market Making of
USD/JPY Futures.

The Golden Merchant Award to President Lee, Wen-Chu.

The 14"-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding Futures
Industry. Talent to Executive Vice President Mao, Jen-Hua

The 4™ Annual Diamond Award- 3" place in trading volume of
futures brokers.

The 4" Annual Diamond Award- 3™ place in institutional investor
trading volume of futures brokers.



2019.08
2019.11

2019.12
2019.12

1111 Job Bank
Singapore Exchange

Excellence Magazine
Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited

2019 The happiest enterprise- Financial industry classification.
Top 5 North Asia Futures Brokers (SGX China Equities Index
Derivatives)

The Best Futures Broker in trading stock futures.

The award of outstanding partner in Base metal business, precious
metal business, and Ferrous metal's business.



I11. Corporate Governance Report

3.1 Organization

3.1.1 Organization Chart
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Domestic Institutional Clients Dept.

Leverage Trading Depart ment

Legal Compliance

Department

Derivatives Department

Securities Proprietary Trading Dept.

Proprietary Trading Department

Introducing Broker Sales Department

Direct Sales Department

Taichung Branch




3.1.2 Mgor Corporate Functions

Department

Functions

Internal Auditing
Office

To identify deficienciesin theinternal control system, assess the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and provide appropriate
improvement suggestions.

Legal & Compliance
Office

Responsible for planning, managing and executing of legal compliance
affairs of the Company.

Risk Management
Office

Responsible for maintaining and monitoring the risk analysis,
identification, control and response of daily sales activities.

Administration
Department

Responsible for managing the relevant affairs of general matters,
administration of internet information system.

Finance Department

Responsible for finance and accounting of the Company.

Dedling & Settlement

Responsible for processing the request for clearing and settlement of

Department futures transaction by investors or commission futures merchants.
Research & Responsible for providing the foreign and domestic product information,
Development roduct strategy development and the research report
Department P i P eport.

. Responsible for processing the request for the foreign and domestic
Direct sdles o . . , . :
Department futures, securities trading business and other trading business which

approved by authorization.

Introducing Brokerage
Department

Responsible for planning, executing, recruiting and training business
which was approved by authorization for assisting introducing brokers.

Domestic I nstitutional
Clients Department

Responsible for the trading request which was approved by
authorization for domestic institutional clients, and also develop the
related service and maintain.

Foreign Institutional
Clients Department

Responsible for developing and providing the related market
information, research report and trading information for foreign
ingtitutional clients. Handling onshore and offshore futures trade orders
of foreign institutional clients which approved by authorization.

Proprietary Trading

Responsible for trading authorized financial products with equity fund.

Department.

Securities Proprietary | Execute orders for securities traded in the stock markets and the trading
Trading Department of authorized financial products.

Derivatives Responsible for trading in market making busi.nes_s which approvgd by
Department the competent authority and traded related derivatives products with

owned funds.

Leverage Transaction
Department

Execute the leverage transaction business which is approved by
authorities.

Futures Advisory

Hold the professional classes and the investment seminars for recruiting
the futures advisory membership and providing the professional

Department consulting and suggestions.
Securities Advisory Responsible for p_rowdl ng the _resga_rch result and p_redl cti on of
macro-economy, industry and individual company information base on
Department .
professional knowledge.
Managed Futures Handle all the discretionary transaction business related matters,
Department including research, executing, trading, deciding, and recruiting.

Taichung Branch

Execute trading orders of futures at domestic/foreign markets, securities
transaction, and other authorized business which follow the marketing
strategies of headquarter.
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Table 1: Mgjor Shareholders of the institutional shareholders

Mar.31%, 2020

Name of Institutional
Shareholders (Note 1)

Institutional Shareholders’ main shareholders (%) (Note 2)

Capital Securities Corp.

Hontai life insurance Co., Ltd. (4.13%)
Fu Ding Investment Co., Ltd. (3.52%)
Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd (3.50%)
Bao Sheng Investment Co., Ltd (3.33%)
Tai Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (3.29%)
Hong Chia Investment Co., Ltd. (2.98%)
Min Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd.  (2.82%)
Bao Qing Investment Co., Ltd. (2.78%)
The First Insurance Co., Ltd. (2.38%)
Hong Long Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.34%)

Hong Y e Investment Co., Ltd.

Chao Lung Investment Co., Ltd. (41.25%)

Ta Falnvestment Co., Ltd. (18.58%)

Ta Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (18.54%)

Ta He Investment Co., Ltd. (9.73%)

Hong Chia Investment Co., Ltd. (3.28%)

Ta He Construction Management Co., Ltd. (1.74%)
Tai Lian Investment Co., Ltd. (1.72%)

Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd (1.52%)

Fu Ding Investment Co., Ltd. (1.52%)

Ta Chun Investment Co., Ltd (0.93%)

Note 1: Where major shareholders listed in Table 1 are corporate entities, the names of the corporate entities are displayed.

Note 2: The above table shows the names and shareholding percentages of major shareholders (top 10 shareholders) in the respective
corporate entities. If major shareholders' major shareholders are institutional investor should be listed on table 2.

Note 3: If the corporate shareholder not belongs to an organization, the name of the shareholder and the shareholding ratio that should be
disclosed, and it represent to the name of the funder or donor and the contribution ratio.

Table 2: Major shareholders of mgjor institutional shareholderslisted in Table 1

Name of Corporate Shareholder
(Notel)

Institutional shareholders' main shareholders (%) (Note2)

Hontai life insurance Co., Ltd.

Lin, Chang-Lung (24.77%)

Wang, Wan-Ling (14.97%)

Kai DaEnterprise Co., Ltd. (9.96%)

Hong Sheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (8.77%)
Hong Long Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.38%)
Taiyo Life Insurance Company (3.44%)
Hong Chang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.23%)
Min Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.61%)
Everpro Insurance Brokers Co., Ltd. (2.56%)
Chen Huel Enterprise Co., Ltd.  (2.45%)

Fu Ding Investment Co., Ltd.

Chao Lung Investment Co., Ltd. (24.73%)
Ta Falnvestment Co., Ltd. (13.02%)

Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (9.76%)
Bao Qing Investment Co., Ltd. (6.51%)
Hong Chia lnvestment Co., Ltd. (6.51%)
Y u Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (6.03%)

Fu Ta Construction Corporation (5.80%)
Ta He Investment Co., Ltd. (5.21%)

Tai Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.28%)
Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.27%)

Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd

Chao Lung Investment Co., Ltd. (21.83%)
Chen Huel Enterprise Co., Ltd. (18.43%)
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Name of Corporate Shareholder
(Notel)

Institutional shareholders' main shareholders (%) (Note2)

Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (12.16%)
Ka DaEnterprise Co., Ltd. (10.55%)
Hong Long Enterprise Co., Ltd. (9.91%)
Tai Falnvestment Co., Ltd. (7.74%)

Tai Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (3.17%)
Tai Chien Investment Co., Ltd. (1.93%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (1.38%)

Bao Sheng Investment Co., Ltd (0.83%)

Bao Sheng Investment Co., Ltd.

Ta He Investment Co., Ltd. (56.09%)

Ta Falnvestment Co., Ltd. (11.48%)

Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (11.40%)
Chao Lung Investment Co., Ltd. (9.25%)
Tai Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.73%)
Chen Huel Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.99%)
Y u Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.91%)

Yin Feng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.82%
Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.74%)
Wang Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.58%)

Ta Sheng Investment Co., Ltd.

Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (23.93%)
Chao Lung Investment Co., Ltd. (19.86%)
Tai Falnvestment Co., Ltd. (11.01%)

Tal Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (10.29%)
Y u Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.98%)

Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.27%)
Chen Huel Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.42%)

Y u Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.40%)

Fu Tai Construction Corporation (3.77%)
Chuan Yi Construction Co., Ltd. (3.54%)

Hong Chia Investment Co., Ltd.

Chao Lung Investment Co., Ltd. (24.20%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (12.42%)
Hong Tai Construction Co., Ltd. (9.97%)
Fu Tai Construction Corporation (9.97%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (9.56%)
Tai Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (7.96%)
Ta Falnvestment Co., Ltd. (6.37%)

Lian Mao Investment Co., Ltd. (4.78%)
Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd (3.18%)
Zhonglong Technology Co., Ltd. (3.18%)

Min Huel Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Lian Mao Investment Co., Ltd. (16.54%)
Wei Wang Investment Co., Ltd. (14.75%)
Hong Chang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (13.66%)
Sheng Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (10.11%)
Tai Chun Investment Co., Ltd. (10.02%)
Tai Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (8.48%)

Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (8.47%)

Chen Huel Enterprise Co., Ltd. (6.42%)

Y u Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.80%)

Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.76%)

Bao Qing Investment Co., Ltd.

Tai Falnvestment Co., Ltd. (19.72%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (19.43%)
Chao Lung Investment Co., Ltd. (19.43%)
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Name of Corporate Shareholder
(Notel)

Institutional shareholders' main shareholders (%) (Note2)

Chuan Yi Construction Co., Ltd. (6.93%)
Fu Tal Construction Corporation (6.93%)
Hong Long Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.51%)
Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.51%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (4.93%)
Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd (4.35%)
Tai Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (4.35%)

The First Insurance Co., Ltd.

Jiancheng Development Co., Ltd. (6.24%)

Sheng Ching Investment Co., Ltd. (6.06%)

Da Feng Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (5.25%)
Chai Cheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.76%)

Bao Shan Construction Co., Ltd. (3.31%)

Jian Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.45%)

[-Chih Co., Ltd. (1.64%)

Chai Rui Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.49%)

Taian Insurance Co., Ltd. (1.39%)

Gan Lin Investment Co., Ltd. (1.34%)

Hong Long Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Quanyi Construction Co., Ltd. (14.64%)
Qarnet Enterprise Co, Ltd. (14.24%)

Hong Y uan Construction Co., Ltd. (12.84%)
Y u Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (12.71%)

Lian Mao Investment Co., Ltd. (11.92%)
Futai Construction Co., Ltd. (11.70%)

Chen Huel Enterprise Co., Ltd. (9.23%)
Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (7.19%)
Deye Apartment Building Management and Maintenance Co.,
Ltd. (3.18%)

Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.34%)

Chao Lung Investment Co., Ltd.

Y.L. Lin Hung Ta Education and Culture Charity Trust
(92.88%)

Futai Construction Co., Ltd. (2.77%)

Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.07%)

Bao Qing Investment Co., Ltd. (1.52%)

Taiye Enterprise Co., Ltd. (0.69%)

Quanyi investment Co., Ltd. (0.07%)

Tai Falnvestment Co., Ltd.

Y.L. Lin Hung Ta Education and Culture Charity Trust
(100.00%

Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd.

Y.L. Lin Hung Ta Education and Culture Charity Trust
(100.00%

Ta He Investment Co., Ltd.

Y.L. Lin Hung Ta Education and Culture Charity Trust
(89.96%

Yin Feng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.09%)

Y u Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.98%)

Taiye Enterprise Co., Ltd. (0.51%)

Hong Chia Investment Co., Ltd. (0.49%)

Bao Qing Investment Co., Ltd. (0.49%).

Tai Jian Investment Co., Ltd. (0.43%)

Quanyi investment Co., Ltd. (0.15%)

Ta He Construction
Management Co., Ltd.

Qarnet enterprise Co., Ltd. (19.61%)
Hong Long Enterprise Co., Ltd. (18.75%)
Min Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd. (18.75%)
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(Notel)

Name of Corporate Shareholder

Institutional shareholders' main shareholders (%) (Note2)

Sheng Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (15.14%)
Tsai Chiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (15.14%)
Chung Lung Technology Co., Ltd. (12.50%)

Tai Lian Investment Co., Ltd.

Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (43.02%)
Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (16.65%)
Tai Falnvestment Co., Ltd. (15.27%)

Ta He Investment Co., Ltd. (11.59%)
Yin Feng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.26%)
Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.26%)
Hong Sheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.26%)
Fu Ta Construction Corporation (3.23%)
Hong Ta Construction Co., Ltd. (0.44%)

Ta Chun Investment Co., Ltd.

Tai Falnvestment Co., Ltd. (30.63%)
Chao Lung Investment Co., Ltd. (19.71%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (18.91%)
Ta He Investment Co., Ltd. (15.98%)

Tai Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.91%)
Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.88%)
Yin Feng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.74%)
Ka DaEnterprise Co., Ltd. (2.49%)

Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.89%)
Hong Sheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.85%)

Note 1: Where major shareholderslisted in Table 1 are corporate entities, the names of the corporate entities are displayed.
Note 2: The above table shows the names and shareholding percentages of major shareholders (top 10 shareholders) in the respective

corporate entities.

Note 3: If the corporate shareholder not belongs to an organization, the name of the shareholder and the shareholding ratio that should be

disclosed, and it represent to the name of the funder or donor and the contribution ratio.

3.2.2 Professional qualifications and independence analysis of directors and

SUPErvIsors
Mar. 31%, 2020
Meet One of the Following Professional Qualification . Number of
) ) ) Independence Criteria Other
Requirements, Together with at Least Five Y ears Work Note 2 Public
Criteria Experience Companie
Annstructor or  |A Judge, Public  [Have Work sin Which
Higher Position in | Prosecutor, Experiencein the
aDepartment of | Attorney, Certified |the Areas of Individual
Commerce, Law, |Public Accountant,| Commerce, Is
Finance, or Other Law, Finance, Concurren
Accounting, or  |Professional or  |or Accounting, tly Serving
Other Academic |Technical or Otherwise asan
Department Specialist Who has| Necessary for Independe
Related to the Passed aNational  |the Business of 516|789 /(10]11|12]|ntDirector
Name Business Needs of | Examination and  |the Company
the Company in a |been Awarded a
(Notel) Public or Private |Certificatein a
Junior College, Profession
College or Necessary for the
University Business of the
Company
Capital Securities Corp.
& : P v viviviviv|v 0
Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan
Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Liu, Ching— v - V|V 0
Tsun
Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Wang, v - | V|V 0
Jiunn-Chih
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HungYehI.nvstment(.:o.,L.td v JAvlvivivivlivivivivivl - 0
Representative: Lee, Yi-Hui

Chuang, Chih-Chen v v VIiVIVIVIVIVIVIVIV|IV|IV|V 0
Chen, Kuo-Tay v v VIiVIVIVIVIVIVIVIVIVIVIV] 0

Notel: Adjust the number of columns as needed.
Note2: A "v" isplaced in the box if the Director or Supervisor met the following conditions during active duty and two years prior to the
date elected.

(1)Not employed by the Company or any of its affiliated companies.

(2)Not adirector or supervisor of any of the Company's related companies (this restriction does not apply to independent director
positions in the Company, its parent company or subsidiary, which have been appointed in accordance with local laws or laws of the
registered country).

(3)Does not hold more than 1% of the Company's outstanding shares in their own names or under the name of spouse, underage children,
or proxy shareholder; nor is atop-10 natural-person shareholder of the Company.

(4)Not a spouse, relative of second degree or closer, or direct blood relative of third degree or closer to any person listed in the three
preceding criteria.

(5)Not adirector, supervisor, or employee of any company that has 5% or higher ownership interest in the Company; nor a director,
supervisor, or employee of any of the top-5 corporate shareholders.

(6)A majority of the Company's director seats or voting shares and those of any other company are not controlled by the same person: a
director, supervisor, or employee of that other company.

(7) The chairperson, general manager, or person holding an equivalent position of the company and a person in any of those positions at
another company or institution is not the same person or are spouses:. a director (or governor), supervisor, or employee of that other
company or ingtitution.

(8)A director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding five percent or more of the shares, of a specified company or institution that
doesn’t have afinancial or business relationship with the company.

(9)A professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or
institution that, not provides auditing services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or that provides commercial, legal,
financial, accounting or related services to the company or any affiliate of the company for which the provider in the past 2 years has
received cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof; provided, this restriction does not apply to a member
of the remuneration committee, public tender offer review committee, or special committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition,
who exercises powers pursuant to the Act or to the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related laws or regulations.

(10) Not aspouse or relative of second degree or closer to any other directors.
(12) Does not meet any of the conditions stated in Article 30 of The Company Act.
(12) Not elected as a government or corporate representative, as described in Article 27 of The Company Act.
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3.2.7 Name of the managers received remuneration and the distribution of
remuneration in 2019

Unit: NTD thousand

Title Name As a percentage of
Stock amount | Cash amount | Total net profit after tax
Note 1 Note 1 (%)
Ch|§f Strategy Sun, Tien-Shan
Officer
President Lee, Wen-Chu
Senior Executive
Vice President Chen, Wen-Tszy
Senior Executive
Vice President Mao, Jen-Hua
Senior Executive . .
Vice President Lin, Chi-Cheng
Senior Executive . :
Vice President Xia, Huan-Ting,
Senior Executive
Vice President Ho, Yu-Wen
Executive Vice Yang,
president Rui-Ling
Executive Vice Huang,
president Wei-Ben
Senior Executive
Officer Yang, Yau-Yu
Senior Executive Hsu,
Officer Jhen-Zong
Senior Vice L
- Presi dent Lin, Li-Juan
) Senior Vice Kuo,
&  |President Shu-Zhen 0 4,357 4,357 0.73%
& [Senior Vice Jhuo,
President Zheng-Gang
Senior Vice Peng,
President Jian-Cheng
Senior Vice Hsu,
President Ji-Ching
Senior Vice Chen,
President Wei-Ting
Senior Vice Lin,
President Xiao-Chian
Senior Vice Fan,
President Jhen-Hong,
Senior Vice . .
President Li, Zong-Wei
Vice president Lian, Jing-Lian
Vice preS| dent Chung,
Cheng-Huang
Vice president Ho, Zhuo-Yi
Vice president Chen,
Tzung-Yu
Vice president Huang,
Pei-Luen
Vice president Ju, Shiu
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Vice president Lin,
Ching-Ming
Vice president Yang,
Shih-Chuang
Assistant Vice
President Lee, Tuan-Kang
Assistant Vice Huang,
President Guo-Rong
Senior Manager Lin, Chi-Pin
Senior Specialist Chang, Li-Jiao
Senior Specialist Lin, Shiou-Ju
Senior Specialist Tsao, Shu-Hui
Senior Specialist Liu, Bao-Hua
Senior Specialist Chang, Mu-Min
Senior Specialist Yu, Po-Liang

Note 1: The name and job title of each individual should be disclosed; however, the distribution of earnings can be disclosed aggregately.
Note 2: Please fill in the remuneration amount to the managers resolved in the board meeting in the most recent year (including stock and
cash).
If the remuneration amount cannot be estimated, the amount to be distributed this year is to be estimated proportionally to the actual
amount distributed last year. Corporate earnings shall be the net income after taxation. If IFRS has aready been adopted, corporate
earnings shall be the net income after taxation of individual entities or individual financial statements.

Note 3: According to Notice Tai-Tsai-Cheng-3-0920001301 dated 27 March 2003, the following managerial roles are required to reporting:
(2) President and equivalents (2) Vice President and equivalents (3) Junior V.P. and equivaents (4) Director of the Finance
Department (5) Director of the Accounting Department (6) Others who are responsible for business management and authorized to
sign document on behalf of the Company.

Note 4: If the Directors, President, and Vice President have received remuneration (including stock and cash), in addition to filling out

Attachment 1.2, this form must be filled out too.

3.2.8 Comparison of Remuneration for Directors, Supervisors, President and Vice
Presidents in the Most Recent Two Fiscal Y ears and Remuneration Policy for
Directors, Supervisors, President and Vice Presidents

A. The ratio of total remuneration paid by the Company and by all companies included in the
consolidated financial statements for the two most recent fiscal years to directors,
supervisors, President and vice presidents of the Company, to the after-tax net income.

Unit: NTD thousand; percentage

2019 2018
Companiesin Companiesin
Item The the The the
consolidated consolidated
Company | “financia | COMPAY | “financial
statements statements
Total remuneration | 0@ emuneraion | g 5o 22713 | 34,030 | 38,667
X X amount
paid to directors .
(Including the Theremuneration asa . ; . .
independent directors) perpentage of net 3.01% 3.79% 4.07% 4.61%
income (%)
Total remuneration
. 41,950 41,950 46,253 46,253
Total remuneration amount
paid to President and| The remuneration asa
vice president percentage of net 6.99% 6.99% 5.54% 5.52%
income (%)
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B. The policies, standards, and portfolios for the payment of remuneration, the procedures for
determining remuneration, and the correlation with risks and business performance.

1. The Directors remuneration policy was created in accordance with the Articles of
Association. The Board of Directors are authorized to determine remuneration levels
for each Director based on their involvements and contributions to the Company's
operations, in reference to peer standards. Travel subsidies can aso be made
depending on their actual attendances to the Board of Directors meetings.

2. Remuneration to the President and Vice Presidents are determined based on their job
responsibilities, the normal level of salary, and annua performance which are subject
to the Board of Directors approval.

3. Operating performance and potential risk in the future: The procedure of determine the
remuneration based on the genera operating performance of the Company, and
consider the participation and contribution of the department revenue to the whole
company, and also sets reasonable salary levels that are closely related to peer
standards which are subject to the Chairman’ approval.

In order to control potential risk in the future, the internal control system which
reviewed by Remuneration Committee is necessary. And also, the remuneration amount
would be disclosure in the annual report according to the rules and regulations for
preventing mistakes, therefore, potential risk should be limited. In summary, policy and
procedure for determining the remuneration of directors, President and vice president has
the positive correlation with the operating performance of the Company.
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3.3 Corporate Governance
3.3.1 Functionality of the Board of Directors

7 Board of Directors meetings were held in the latest year (2019); Directors and
Independent Directors ' attendance are listed below:

Percentage of
Actual
Title Name (Note 1) attendance Proxy actud Remark
) Attendance | attendance (%)
( 7 )(Note?2)
. Capital Securities Corp. 0
Chairman Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan ! 0 100%
. Capital Securities Corp. 0
Director Representative: Wang, Jiunn-Chih 6 0 86%
. Capital Securities Corp. o
Director Representative: Liu, Ching—Tsun 6 0 86%
V|.ce Hung Yeh | ny&s.tment Cp., chd 6 0 86%
President Representative: Lee, Yi-Hui
Independent Resigned on
cp Sheg, Jia-Dong 7 0 100% January 2",
director
2020.
Independent Chuang, Chih-Chen 7 0 100%
director
Independent Chen, Kuo-Tay 7 0 100%
director
Note 1: If Directors and Supervisors are corporate entities, then the names of corporate shareholders and their representatives must be
provided.

Note 2: (1) The date of resignation must be specified for Directors or Supervisors who had resigned prior to the close of the financial year.
The percentage of actual attendance (%) should be calculated based on the number of Board of Directors meeting held during active
duty and the number of actual attendances.

(2) If are-election of Directors or Supervisors had taken place prior to the close of the financial year, Directors/Supervisors of both
the previous and the current term must be listed; the remarks column must address the re-election date and whether the
Director/Supervisor was elected in the previous term, the new term, or both. The percentage of actual attendance (%) is calculated
based on the number of Board of Directors meetings held during active duty and the actual attendance.

Other remarks:

I. For the operation of the Board of Directorsin any of the following circumstances, please
specify the date, term, the contents of the proposals, the opinions of all independent
directors, and the process of the opinions proposed by the independent directors:

(a) The matters stated in Article 14-3 of the Securities Exchange Act: It was resolved to
have the Audit Committee setup in the board meeting.
(b) Except for the af orementioned matters, the resolutions reached by the Board of

Directors with the objections or reservations of the independent directors documented or

declared in writing: None.

I1. With respect to the avoidance of conflicting interest agendas, describe the names of
directors, details of the relevant agendas, reasons for avoiding conflicting interest, and
the voting decisions:

Board of
Directors Agenda content/Reason of avoidance due to conflict interest/V oting decision

Meeting
The 7" meeting |Agenda It isregarding the review of the 2018 year-end performance for employees
of the 8" board |of manager grade and above.
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(2019.01.28) e Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan is the related party in the case.
e After he was excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
Agenda Itisregarding the distribution of the 2018 year-end remuneration for
employees of manager grade and above.
e Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan isthe related party in the case.
e After he was excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
Agenda It isregarding the distribution of the 2018 festival remuneration for
employees of manager grade and above.
e Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan isthe related party in the case.
e After he was excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.

The 9" meeting |Agenda It isregarding the employees remuneration distribution in 2018.
of the 8" board e Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan isthe related party in the case.
(2019.05.13) e After he was excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
Agenda Itisregarding the directors’ remuneration distribution in 2018.
e Every director and independent director was excused from the meeting one by
one.
e Other directors present in the meeting passed without objection.

The 10th Agenda It is regarding the promotion cooperation for discretionary futures trading
meeting of the |business with Capital Securities Corp.

8th board e Director Wang, Jiunn-Chih, independent director Shea, Jia-Dong, and director
(2019.08.29) Liu, Ching-Y sun were excused from the discussion.

e Other directors present in the meeting passed without objection.
Agenda It is regarding the distribution of the festival remuneration for manager
grade and above in 2019.
e Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan isthe related party in the case.
e After he was excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.

The 12nd Agenda Itisregarding the proposal of distribution for the 2019 year-end
meeting of the |remuneration which would calculate as 2-month salary to the basis.

8th board e Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan is the related party in the case.

(2019.11.11) e After Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan was excused from the discussion, other directors

present in the meeting passed without objection.

[11. Listing companies should disclose information regarding the self-evaluation or peer
evaluation of the Board of Directors, including the evaluation cycle and evaluation periods,
scope and methods of evaluation, and contents...etc. and also fill out the attached table 2 (2):
The implementation of the board evaluation.. The Company is going to complete the
self-/peer evaluation before the end of 2019.

IV. Enhancements to the functionality of the Board of Directors in the current and the most
recent year (e.g. the establishment of an Audit Committee, improving information
transparency etc.), and the progress of such enhancements:

(8) The Company formulated the “ Rules for the Conduct of Directors Meetings’ in
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accordance with the Competent Authority’s regulation, which shall follow the rules. The
Company also formulated relevant measures of the corporate governance and disclosed
them on the Company’s website and the Market Observation Post System (MOPS).

(b) The Company shall establish the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee to
assist the Board of the Company to execute its responsibility, the detail description has
reported in the annual report, including the composition, duties, and operation.

(c) For enhancing the related corporate governance ability, the company would suggest
constantly the suitable courses for directors and supervisors as reference.

(d) The Company shall approve the promotion list which provided by each department
according to the annual evaluation and position of employees who with potential and
talent. The promotion list of managers (included and above) shall be approved by Board
of Directors.

(e) The Company has appointed designated personnel to disclose relevant information and
materiality as required by the competent authority in MOPS for announcement. In
addition, the Company has also disclosed the continuing education of the directors and
independent directors, their attendance to Board meetings, Audit Committees,
Remuneration Committee, and remunerations in MOPS.

3.3.2 The operation of the Auditing Committee:

The Auditing Committee consists of 3 independent directors which qualified by authorities
for their composition, duties and operation. Mr. Shea, Jia-Dong resigned on January 2,
2020, the Company will by-election one seat of independent director in the recent general
shareholder meeting.

The operation of the Auditing committee shall be mainly for the following purposes:
1.Supervision for financial Statements of the Company.

2.Supervision for the election of Certified Public Accountants and whose independence
and performance

3.The effective implementation of the Company'sinternal control system.
4.The relevant laws and regulations for compliance of the Company.

5.The supervision for the management and control of the Company's existing or potential
risks.

And the authority of Auditing committee shall be covered as following items:
1. Set or modify the internal control system and whose effectiveness evaluation.
2. Set or modify “Procedures for the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets’ of the
Company.
3. Matterswhich involved in Directors self-interest.

4. Matter which involved in major asset or derivatives transaction, significant loan,
endorsement or providing guarantee,

5. Publish/issue/private placement equity securities.

6. Authority for engagement, dismissal and remuneration of Certified Public
Accountants.

7. Authority for engagement and dismissal of financial and accounting managers and
internal auditing manager and approve annual financial report and semi-annual
financial report.
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The Auditing Committee has convened for 5 times (A) in the most recent year (2019).
The attendance of the independent directors is shown below:

Actual Proxy Actual attendance
Title Name attendance | Attendance | (%) ( / ) (Note) Remark
()

In((:ijgpendent Shea, Jia-Dong 5 0 100% Convener

irector
Independent Chuang, 0

director Chih-Chen 5 0 100%

In((jjgpendent Chen, Kuo-Tay 5 0 100%

irector

Note: (1) The date of resignation must be specified for Independent Directors who had resigned prior to the close of the financial year.
The percentage of actual attendance (%) should be calculated based on the number of Board of Directors meeting held during
active duty and the number of actual attendances.

(2) If are-election of Independent Directors had taken place prior to the close of the financial year, the previous and the current
term must be listed; the remarks column must address the re-election date and whether the Independent Director was elected
in the previous term, the new term, or both. The percentage of actual attendance (%) is calculated based on the number of
Board of Directors meetings held during active duty and the actual attendance.

Other remarks
I. For the operation of the Audit Committee in any of the following circumstances, please
specify the date, term, the contents of the proposals, the resolution of the Audit Committee,

and the process of the opinions proposed by the Audit Committee:

(a) On issues stated in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act: see below.

Board of Directors
Meeting

Details of the relevant agendas and the

Audit Committee

The Company’s
handling of the

Date and Terms subsequent resolution opinions of fche Audit
Committee
*The statement of Anti-Money Laundering and Resolution of Board:
Combating the Financing of Terrorism in 2018. It presented to the
* The effective implement declaration of 2018  |Approved with [Board of Directors for
Internal control system of the Company. the consent of theresolution and
The 8" meeting of thel* The 2018 business report and financial report. lcommittee approved by the
8" Board of Directors|s The proposal of 2018 earning distribution. members on consent of al the
Meeting « Amendment to the Company’s Internal control [2019.03.18. attending directors.
(2019.03.27) system. (The 4th meeting
« Amendment to partial regulations of of the 2™ Audit
“ Procedures for the Acquisition and Disposal of [Committee)
Assets’ of the Company.
,T]pproved wi;hh Resolution of Board:
I « Report the project of the difference analysis  [tN€ consent of theilt presented to the
;t?e; meeting of the} |+ veen the budget of labor serviceandits ~ [committee Board of Directors for
oard of Directors actual amount. and the members on resolution and
. , payment status of |abor
Meeting service over the past years. 2019'0?{ 13 lapproved by the
(2019.05.13) (The 5" meeting, ' of all the

of the 2@ Audit

attending directors.

Committee)
* The difference analysis report between the Resolution of Board:
budget amount of operating expense of the | proved with |* It Presented to the
Company and its actual amount. the consent of theBoard of Directorsfor
The 10" meeting of | The first-half of 2019 (Jan 1% to June 30™) committee resolution and
the 8" Board of Consolidated and Individual financial members on approved by the
Directors Meeting | statement. 2019.8.13. consent of al the
(2019.08.29)  [+The independence evaluation for the accountant|(The 6" meeting |attending directors.
of the Company in 2019 fiscal year. of the 2" Audit
Committee)

*Amendment to the “Internal Control System”

of the Company.
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Resolution of Board:
*\When the audit plan
is proposed in the
A o with coming year, the
roved wit
* The difference analysis report between the th'gréonsem of thebran.ch.&c.and .
th : . . subsidiaries will
The 12" meeting of | budget amount of operating expense of the committee
th ; strengthen the
the 8" Board of Company and its actual amount. members on Supplement of
Directors Megting |* The auditing budget for accountantsin the 2019.10.29. inppection .
(2019.11.11) | 2020 fiscal year. (The 7" meeting .prrmtgd th> o
* The 2020 auditing plan of the Company. of the 2@ Audit "' P .
Committee) Board of Directorsfor
resolution and
approved by the
consent of al the
attending directors.
Approved with  |Resolution of Board:
. In order to enrich the working capital of the  [tN€ consent of the |t presented to the
th ;
The 13m meeting of Company for meeting the long-term business  [cOMittee Board of Directors for
the 8" Board of . members on luti d
: . development needs, the Company would issue resolution an
Directors Meeting S . . 2019.11.18. ed by th
acapital increase by cash in the 2019 fiscal The gh . @pproved by the
(2019.11.28) (The 8" meeting f all th
year, of the 209 Augiit ConSent of al the
Committee) attending directors.

(b) Except for the af orementioned matters, the other matters that are not resolved by the
Audit Committee must be resolved with the consent of more than two thirds of the board

directors: None.

[1. With respect to the avoidance of conflicting interest agendas, describe the names of
independent directors, details of the relevant agendas, reasons for avoiding conflicting
interest, and the voting decisions. None.

[11. The communication among the independent directors and the chief internal auditor and
the certified public accounts (including the issues of the financial position and operation of
the Company for communication, the method of communications, and the result):

(a) Procedure for the Communications between Independent Directors and chief internal

auditor:

1.After reviewing internal audit report by managers, the copy of internal auditing report
will deliver to independent director for the second review.
2.Chief internal auditor would present the current situation of audit affair, violations, and
solutions in Audit Committee and Board of Directors meeting every season. In addition,
chief internal auditor also communicates with independent directors for resolutions and
the implement status of audit report.
3.Independent directors could communicate directly with internal auditors via phone calls,
If they have any questions and suggestions to audit report. Also, they could discuss or
change opinions from each other in Audit Committee and Board of Directors meeting

EvVery season

(b) Procedure for the Communications between Independent Directors and certified public
accountant (CPA):
1.The Company held regular Audit Committee meeting, Board of Directors meeting, the
review of half and annual financial report every half year, CFO and auditor would attend



the Audit Committee meeting for presenting the audit process of Financial Statements and
updating the related rules, and fully discuss with independent directors. The CPA also
attend the Board of Director meeting, discuss and describe the process with directors. In
2019, the CPA total attended 4 meetings of the Company, including 2 Audit Committee
meetings (Mar.18, 2019 and Aug.13, 2019) and 2 Board meetings (Mar.27, 2019 and
Aug.29, 2019), and audit according to the auditing standards for providing auditor’s
review report. The seminar on June 13", 2019 was attended by the CPA of the Company
“Chung, Tan-Tan” and “Lee, Feng-Hui” and 3 independent directors of the Company.

2. The independent directors could communicate directly with CFO via phone calls, if have
any guestions or suggestions to financial reports or any corporate finance questions, they
also have the chance to communicate in the meeting or change opinions in Audit
Committee meeting and Board of Directors meetings.

3.3.3 Composition, Responsihilities and Operations of the Remuneration
Committee
The Remuneration Committee has been established, the composition, responsibilities and
operations state as below:

A. The Company's Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members who are all meet the
authorized qualifications, responsible for the Board and provide suggestions for Board's
discussion.

B. Theduties of Remuneration Committee: The Remuneration Committee assists the
Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to form and review regularly the
Company’ s compensation and benefits policies, plans and programs, and the evaluation
of the directors and executives compensation.

C. When Remuneration Committee perform duties shall follow below principles:

1. The performance evaluation and remuneration of directors and managers shall refer the
standard remuneration of competitors and also concern about the related rationality of
personal performance, company operating performance and future risk.

2. Directors and managers of the Company should not be guided to engage in behaviors
beyond the risk tolerance for the sake of remuneration.

3. Thetiming payment shall be determined by the characteristics of industries and the
business nature of the company, especially for the proportion bonuses of short-term
performance which paid to directors and senior managers and partial variable
remuneration.
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(a) The information of Remuneration Committee members

Meets One of the Following Professional Independence Criteria
Qualification Requirements, Together with at Least Note 2
Five Years Work Experience
riteria |Aninstructoror  |A judge, public Has work Number of
higher position in a [prosecutor, attorney,  [experiencein Other Public | Remarks
department of Certified Public the areas of Companiesin Note 3
] commerce, law,  |Accountant, or other |commerce, law, \Which the (Note 3)
Title Ifinance, accounting,professional or finance, or Individual is
Note 1 lor other academic  ftechnical speciaist  |accounting, or Concurrently
department related \who has passed a otherwise 3la 61718 10 Serving as an
lto the business national examination |necessary for 5 Remuneration
needs of the land been awarded a  [the business of Committee
Name ICompany ina certificatein a the Company Member
public or private  [profession necessary
junior college, for the business of the
icollege or ICompany
university
Indgpendent Chuang, v v VI ivIivI ivI|vI v iv|vI|v|Vv 1 Convener
Director  [Chih-Chen
Newly-app|
ointed on
'nd?pendem Chen, v viviviiviviviviv|v]|v 0 "
Director Kuo-Tay Jan. 10",
2020.
Committee L, . v v VIivI|IvIvI v v ]|V vV 1
member Shen-Yi
Resigned
Independent | Shea, v v Jiviviviviv]y v v 0 on Jan. 2,
Director Jia-Dong 2020.

Note 1: Identity is known as director, independent director or others.
Note 2: place a"v" in the box below if the member met the following conditions during the time of active duty and two years prior to the
elected date.

(1) Not employed by the company or any of its affiliated companies.

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the Company or its affiliates Except for the independent directors that are appointed by the Company
or the parent company and subsidiaries in accordance with this Law or the local law.

(3) Does not hold more than 1% of the company’s outstanding shares in his’her own name or under the name of spouse, underage
children, or any other person; nor is any party listed herein one of the ten largest natural person shareholders of the company.

(4) Not a spouse, relative of second degree, or direct kin of third degree or closer to persons described in criteria 1~3.

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the total number of
issued shares of the company, or that ranks among the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its representative to serve as a
director or supervisor of the company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company Act. (Some conditions do not apply to
independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently
serving as such at, a public company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.)

(6) If amajority of the company's director seats or voting shares and those of any other company are not controlled by the same person:
a director, supervisor, or employee of that other company. (Some conditions do not apply to independent directors appointed in
accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, a public company and
its parent or subsidiary or asubsidiary of the same parent.)

(7) If the chairperson, general manager, or person holding an equivalent position of the company and a person in any of those positions
at another company or institution are not the same person or are spouses. a director (or governor), supervisor, or employee of that
other company or institution. (Some conditions do not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws
and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, a public company and its parent or subsidiary or a
subsidiary of the same parent.)

(8) Not a director, supervisor, manager, or shareholder with more than 5% ownership interest in any company or institution that has
financial or business relationship with the company. (Some conditions do not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance
with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, a public company and its parent
or subsidiary or asubsidiary of the same parent.)

(9) A professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or
institution that, provides auditing services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or that provides commercial, legal, financial,
accounting or related services to the company or any affiliate of the company for which the provider in the past 2 years has received
cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof; provided, this restriction does not apply to a member of the
remuneration committee, public tender offer review committee, or specia committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who
exercises powers pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act or to the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related laws or
regulations.

(10) Does not meet any descriptions stated in Article 30 of The Company Act.
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(b) Functionality of the Remuneration Committee
(1) The Company's Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members.

(2) Duration of service: from July 10", 2018 to May 23", 2021.
The Remuneration Committee held 7 meetings (A) in the last year (2019).
Details of members' eligibility and attendance are as follows:

Actual
Title Name attendlja\nce Proxy Actual attendance Remarks
B) Attendance | (%) (B/A) (Note)

I ndependent Shea, 6 0 86% Convener

Director Jia-Dong
I ndependent Chuang, . 0 100%

Director Chih-Chen

i Li,

Committee ' 7 0 100%

member Shen-Yi

Note:

(1) The date of resignation is specified for members of the Remuneration Committee who had resigned prior to the close of the financial year.
The percentage of actual attendance (%) is calculated based on the number of Remuneration Committee meetings held and the number of
meetings actually attended during active duty.
(2)If are-election of Remuneration Committee members had taken place prior to the close of the financial year, members of both the
previous and the current remuneration Committee are listed; in which case, the remarks column would specify whether the committee
member was elected in the previous board, the new board, or both. The percentage of actual attendance (%) is calculated based on the
number of Remuneration Committee meetings held and the number of meetings actually attended during active duty.

For the operation of the Remuneration Committee in the recent year, specify the date, term,
the contents of the proposals, the resolution of the Remuneration Committee, and the process
of the opinions proposed by the Remuneration Committee as following table:

Remuneration
Committee Meeting

Details of the relevant content/ resolution/ and the subsequent

Remuneration
committee member
in attendance

The 4" meeting of
the 4™ Remuneration
Committee
(2019.01.24)

1. Cause of Action: It is regarding the review of the 2018 year-end
performance for employees of manager grade and above.

* After the related managers were excused from the discussion, al other
members present in the meeting agree without objection.

2. Cause of Action: It isregarding the distribution of the 2018 year-end
remuneration for employees of manager grade and above.

* After the related managers were excused from the discussion, al other
members present in the meeting agree without objection.

3. Cause of Action: It isregarding the distribution of the 2018 festival
remuneration or employees of manager grade and above.

* After the related managers were excused from the discussion, all other
members present in the meeting agree without objection.

4. Cause of Action: It isregarding the appointment of the director of
Securities proprietary department.

* After the related managers were excused from the discussion, all other
members present in the meeting agree without objection and this case
will be submitted and reported on shareholder’ s meeting

Shea, Jia-Dong
Chuang, Chih-Chen
Li, Shen-Yi

The 5 meeting of
the 4" Remuneration
Committee
(2019.03.18)

1. Cause of Action: It isregarding the amendment of “Guidelines of
bonus distribution for the institutional clients department”.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

2. Cause of Action: It is regarding the promotion for the directors of
futures advisory and proprietary trading department respectively.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

Shea, Jia-Dong
Chuang, Chih-Chen
Li, Shen-Yi
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3. Cause of Action: It is regarding the promotion suggestion for
employees of manager grade and above in 2019.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

4. Cause of Action: It isregarding the employees and directors
remuneration distribution in 2018.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

The 6" meeting of
the 4™ Remuneration
Committee
(2019.04.26)

1. Cause of Action: It isregarding the amendment for “ Guidelines of
bonus distribution for Derivatives department”.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

2. Cause of Action: It isregarding the suggestion of remuneration
adjustment for employees of manager grade and above in 2019.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

3. Cause of Action: It isregarding the distribution of the employees
remuneration (cash) in 2018.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

4. Cause of Action: It isregarding the distribution of directors
remuneration in 2018.

*Regarding to the remuneration of independent director Chuang,

Chih-Chen, after Mr. Chuang executed from the discussion, all other

members present in the meeting are consulted by Chairman Shea,

Jia-Dong and all of them agree without objection.

*Asfor the remuneration of independent director Shea, Jia-Dong, after

Mr. Shea executed from the discussion, all members stay in the meeting

agree without objection.

Shea, Jia-Dong
Chuang, Chih-Chen
Li, Shen-Yi

The 7" meeting of
the 4" Remuneration
Committee
(2019.08.13)

1. Cause of Action: It is regarding the change of Dedicated supervisor
who is responsible for “ Anti-Money laundering and countering the
financing of terrorism.

*Approved with the consent of the committee members and this case will
be submitted to the Board of directors meeting and effected on Sep. 16™,
2019.

2. Cause of Action: It isregarding the project for selling Foreign
Currency Margin and the related bonus.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

3. Cause of Action: It is regarding the application from Proprietary
trading department would reduce the loss amount for calculating the
bonus basis.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

4. Cause of Action: It isregarding the festival bonus distribution for
employees of manager grade and above in 2019 first half year.

* All members present in the meeting agree without objection.

Shea, Jia-Dong
Chuang, Chih-Chen
Li, Shen-Yi

The 8" meeting of
the 4" Remuneration

Cause of Action: It is regarding to the engagement of vice manager for
Legal compliance department.

Shea, Jia-Dong
Chuang, Chih-Chen

Committee . . . N Li, Shen-Yi
(2019.09.18) All members present in the meeting agree without objection.
" . Cause of Action: It isregarding the proposal of distribution for the 2019 [Shea, Jia-Dong
The 9™ meeting of . . .
N . |year-end remuneration which would calculate as 2-month salary tothe  |Chuang, Chih-Chen
the 4" Remuneration| . . .
Committee basis. Li, Shen-Yi
(2019.10.29) *Approved with the consent of the committee members and submitted to

Board of directors.

The 10" meeting of
the 4" Remuneration
Committee
(2019.12.30)

1. Cause of Action: It is regarding to the engagement of manager and
director for Proprietary trading department.

*Approved with the consent of the committee members and submitted to
Board of directors.

Chuang, Chih-Chen
Li, Shen-Yi

Shea, Jia-Dong
(Take leave)
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2. Cause of Action: It is regarding to the amendment of “Guidelines of
bonus distribution for Direct sales department”.

*Approved with the consent of the committee members and submitted to
Board of directors.

3. Cause of Action: It isregarding the review result of the 2019 year-end
performance for employees of manager grade and above.
*After the related managers who present in the meeting were excused
from the discussion, all other members agree without objection.
4. Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of the 2019 year-end
bonus for employees of manager grade and above.
*After the related managers who present in the meeting were excused
from the discussion, all other members agree without objection.

Other mentionable items:
[. In the event where the Remuneration Committee's proposal is rejected or amended in a

board of directors meeting, please describe the date and session of the meeting, details of
the agenda, the board's resolution, and how the company had handled the Remuneration
Committee's proposals (describe the differences and reasons, if any, should the board of
directors approve a solution that was more favorable than the one proposed by the
Remuneration Committee: None.

. Should any member object or express qualified opinions to the resolution made by the

Remuneration Committee, whether on-record or in writing, please describe the date and
session of the meeting, details of the agenda, the entire members' opinions, and how their
opinions were addressed: None.

-39 -




'S91RIPISONS 01 103dSaJ Y1IM [011U0D S [210] Juswe [dwi

¢AINonuis aeewo [Buod
S} UIYHIM Woilshs [ema.iy

BUON 0] JopJo Ul 9ouUaR ) Ip WaISAS uoifewloul pue weisAs |emaliyayl Buiysiiges3 (g) A puUe Juswebeuew s 11 8y 81N09Xa
pue ysiicelse Auedwod ayysaoq (€)
(reys
'sJepjoypreys Jofew Jo uoirewloul as0U]] JO SJBUMO aTeW 1N ay) se
parepdn pue Ajyiuow sepjoysteys Jo JeisiBal ay) 01 Buipiodde sanlioyine [P\ Se sJep|oya.eys Jofew s11 Jo S|
BUON 0] UOoIfew.1juod uole e oap Buipjoysfeys ay) peindaxe Auedwo) ayl (2) A ay1 ssassod Auedwiod ayy seoq (2)
¢2INpao0.d ay) uo paseq Juswa |dwi
‘uoIebB 1| pue seINdsIp ‘signop ‘suosabbns Siep joys.feys pue ‘suoiebini| pue seindsip ‘signop
3puey 01 Jusweds [efid 13y} paus!|gerss osfe AuedwoD ay 1 91 sgem 'Suonsabbins sJepoypeys Yim
[101}JO JNO WOJJ pUNO} 8g PINOJ UOITRWLIO JUT 132IU02 38U ‘SI0IS9AUI puodsal feap 01a4npago.d Buireledo feusoiul
BUON 0] uos.Jadsayods Aindap pue uosiadsaxods pareubisap sey Auvedwo) ayl (T) A ue usi|gersa Auedwod ayy seoq (1)
SIybu skeploypreys
7 94njonJs Buipjoyp.leys 2
¢ S3edwo) parsITXad L/ASML
Jlojsadioulid 80119e.1d-1599
T=1X9GT=Ax¢ dse uo 1eziuebio/dno.b fe11ded /My wod sainin erided mmm//:sdny aoueUBAOS aelod.Io),,
d1ISgPM S AuedwioD ay1 pasoosIp Usaq Sey uoirewlojulay | - s iuedwo) uo paseq sa|dioulid 80119e.d-1s9g
paISIT X3d 1/ASM L 10} sa|dDulld 82119eid-1S9g 80UeURAOS arlodio) , Uo paseq 32URUBAOS) a1J0d 0D 8Y1 3505 Ip
BUON sa|d1DulLld 82119814 -1S9g 82UeUBAOS) alelod.io) ayl paysi|gelss sey Auedwo) ay A pue ysi|gese Auedwod aylseoq ‘T
suoseay pue
Soluedwo) po
m:xm_n_%mmik
Jojsadiould uolreuIsn||| 1eiisqv ON |SSA
80119eld-159g wel| uomen e
30URUBNAOD
ariodiod ayy,,

wiolj suoieinedg

(T @10N) Sh1eis uoireluswe | dw |

39110..14-1S9g 90URUBAOS) 81e40d 10D 8Uj],, WO} SUOIRIAS( pUe SNI.IS UO [IIUsWS |[du | 9oUeuRA0S) aiodio) #°'S'S

S91uedwo) pa1si X34 1/ASM.L Joyss(dioutid

-40-



"TT~0T 8bed uo pais1| S1010841Q JO UOIeWIOoU|
punoJbxoeq |epep ayl eAme| Bulpnoeld Juslnd e si uayd-yiyo ‘Bueny)d IN
1010811 Wepuadepu| pue ‘AlISBAIUN feuoileu Ueme ] Ul juswiliedap Buunoode
J0 Jossejoud © sem Aejl-ony ‘UsyD N 10108410 Juspuadepu| CeISIUIW
oUeU 1) pue ueg AU Jo Juepsald-aoiA sem Buoq-eir eaus I Jo1eaig
Wepuadepu| “Alsnpul Sai11INdss pue saininy ul ABeresis diysiepes| pue BXfew
[euolfeulolul ‘lruoissejoid 6| ‘Bununodde % eioueul) ‘ewebeuew bulkeedo
Jo uosssajoid 8yl YIm [[e 8k INH-IA ‘897 pue ‘YIyo-uunic ‘Buep ‘yiyo-uunie
‘Buepn o8I ‘Ueys-UBIL ‘UnS N Uewrey) Bunssw  sieploysfeys
JusdaJ 8y} uo uondep-Aq pnom Auedwod 8yl ‘0202 ‘mg Uer uo paubisal
Buog-eir ‘eays JoyelIp Juspusdepul feulblo Byl “JoldelIp Sews) T pue
SI010811p afew G Bulpnoul ‘preog ul SI01elIp 9 Ss Auedwo) 8yl 'SI0131Ip
s, Auedwod e Jo Jey ueyl alow Buowe s1Xe 1ou Aew diysuiy Jo saiBep puodss
Ul ulyyim diysuoiepl [eljiwe) e pue diysuoirepl fesnods ay ‘eroidde pojuelh
sey ALoyiny ueedwo) ay) aleym 1080x3 Bunfew uoisiosp pue diysiepes|
‘Yoo|IN0 [euoieueUl ‘BBpa|MOoUy Assnpul ‘uswebeuew SISII0 ‘uswebeuew
Buneledo ‘sisAfeue [eoueuly Jo Alljige sy ssassod pinouys AOd o Jequistu ay L
"UOIIRD1JISIBAIP Joquiswl Jo [eob sy} 188w 0} SaepIpuUed sssooyd ApAnaeiqo
pleog ayl ‘92IAJSS JO Swie) pue abpajmou ‘(Abojouyos] ‘Bunexe N ‘eoueulH
‘Bununoooy ‘meT sn yons) S|ivs adualedxe [euossajold ‘Bdel ‘punolboeq
euoeonNpPa ‘sainynd ‘efie ‘jepueb 0] paliwil] 10U B INg ‘Bpnjoul uNoJJe

¢Slequiswi s11 o uonsodwiod ay)
1o] Ao1jod palysieAlp e Juswe [dwii

SUON OlU Usjel 1010 'siequisll preod ayi Aq paJepsuod S| uoieolisionip Jeque N (T) A pue dojpnsp preogd ayrssoq (T)
SJ0)3941Q Jo pleog ay) Jo
Soli|iqisuodsay pue uoiiisodwo) g
'SUOIR|OIA Aue 1uaAa.d 0] Joplo Ul So N asayl paledoApe Ajbuoais
ose sey AuedwioD 8y "UoIRWIOUI PSOIOSIpUN Uo Bulpe.l Skepisul pigoy) 0l SUOITRWLIOJUI PSSO [0S IPpUN YlIM
Smpisu| Aq Buipel ] sainin4 pue BulusdO UN00Y 10} SauUlBPINS ,, 8Y1 PaUS||aeISe A PR Slepisul sukbe sani euselul
SUON sey Auedwod ay) ‘siepjoypleys a1 Ay puesiybll siepjoysreys 19910.d 0L (i) usiigesss Auedwioo sy ssoqd ()
suoseay pue
S9luedwoD pa
u_._xm_am_&.m_m>>._.
Jojsajdnuld uolreJsn||| 19esqy ON |S9A
2010211599 we1| uolenens
30URUIBAOSD
arlodioD ayy,,

Wi} suoirIne(

(T ©10N) Sn1eis uolruswo [duwi |

-41 -



SJep|oye.feys 8yl aUBAUOD buipnoulale Sainnp Ajutew ay | 'siuedwod bulie}jo
o1|gnd u1aous LBdXe WeWebeUew seak Oz anoge Sey ay osfe ‘Alsnpul saininyg
puUe Se111NJas Ul aousLedxe Yo1 sey ay aduls paljienb siuay) “IN 8oueusonob
aelodiod Joja|qsuodsal Aes | -Us\ ‘UsyD "IN Juswiredsp uoielisiuiwpe

10 BIYo ay1 ar doidde pue sire e pale p. aoueueAob arlodiod Bulioyuow

0} SI0SIARANS pue SI0J38.IP J0}
uoirew.ojul Buipinoid 01 paliwi| Jou
g Buipnjout) sieew aoueusNob
arJ0dlI0d 10} 3|qsuodsal puuocsied
wiodde .o 11un soueussnob arelodiod

3UON pue Bul|puey Joja|qsuodsal s1 AuedwoD syl Jo wswedsp uoielSIuIWpY A e dn 18s Auedwoo ay1 seo0q ¥
T=X®
6T=Ax¢;dse 1 ne pp/aueiunoade/dnolb ey ided /M1 wod saning elided mmmy/sdny
"JUNOJJe JO UOITeWIoUI |Ie1P 10} 31ISCeM MO B( 8y ool ases|d
'SJUNOJJe N0 8q 0] paljienb are el -ue| ‘Bunyd, pue .InH-Bued ‘897,
uemme] 9INd M Jo SvdD ‘panoidde s1030841Q Jo pleog 8 8y} Jo bunssw ,0T ¢SVdD Jo aouapuadapul ay) aen e
BUON BU} pUe 891 IO 1PNY/ p,g 8] JO Bulssw 9 8yl 1Y "PoIepIsuod aq os[e ||IM A ArenBal Auedwoo syl seoq (1)
SYdD Jo Ma1nal Xe) pue Bunipre jo Alifenb a21Akes ay) pue aouspuadapul JO SSO|
31 ‘Ilefe UOIR|0IA 38U} ‘puey JBYI0 8yl UQ ‘BnusAsl 83 IAJSS Juswiebebus juesuod Juonosp-al Jo
puUe ‘uelunodde Jo uoie1ol 8yl ‘wiily Bununoade Jo uoiendal pue aeds ayl Ylim UOITeU ILIOU pue SI0108.1P [enpIAIpUI
Alenuue syd) Jo Acueedwod pue souspuadepul ayl sarenens Auedwo)d ayl () JO UOIRBUNWSI 3} 10} aousie ol ayl
Se pue ‘Busew S1010811p JO pleoq
U 01 1|Nsa. uo1feneAs sy} 1wgns
Alenuue pnom Auedwod ayl puy ¢ A|enuue
11 S10NPU02 puUe S8sIN02 Buu ey aoueusA0b uoireIodiod pue sbuleaw si01el1d 11 uswe |dwi1 pue ‘preogd ay) Jo
JO pieog JO Snkeis aouepudle ayl Yim aeneAs Ing ‘eouewloyed s pleog aouew.Io1ed ay) ainsesw 01 prepuels
SUON BU1 Bu lINSeaw 10) Seunpad0.d pue so|ni pak el pak|nwlo) 1.usey Auedwoo ayl (£)| A e ysi|jgese Auedwiod ay1 seo (€)
2Inny £S9NIULIOD HpNY
B U1'SI0109.11Q JO pfeog ayl Joj SaNni|iqisuodsal ag |feus SS911ILUWIOD [euoiioun) 31 puUe 390 uoieeunwiey
9SO 1 'SeNIWWOY 1IpNY 8y} pue S8NIUWOD UoIfeeunwey ay) 0) uonippe ul 3y} 0} UO NP U S99} LUILIOD
P91 ILILIOD JusWwiSfeue A sIy pue UuoieulWoN ay) ys!|delss o) te|d s| Auedwio) feuonouny ,Byio ysljcelss
BUON BU1 “uewsfeuew Jo juBWBoJOJUBI pue uoisiAldns puncs ayl Jo) Jeplo ul (2)| A Ajejunjon Auedwoo ayi seoq (2)
suoseay pue
S9luedwoD pa
u:vm_a%m_m\,ﬁ
Jojsadnould uoleJsn||| 19ensqy ON |S9A
200211599 we1| uolenens
30URUIBAOD
arlodioD ayy,,

Wi} suoirIne(g

(T ©10N) Sn1eis uolruswo [duwi |

-42-



666€-20.2(0) - 131 1usbe uoiesiuiwpe feys

8/88-2T¥-20:13.L elusd 8d1ABS BWosn)d

MY Wod elded@ueyd Uep:|lew-S  8882-00/2(20): 1AL

(epsalid 821 A 8AINBXT J0IUBS) Aes | -UB A ‘UBy) Bueu uosiedsayods Aindeq
M) WO’ [e11ded'saInIn@ss plew : | ew-8

8882-00.2(20): T3 L (Wepisaid) NYD-Us/\\ ‘8977 Bleu Uosadssyods

:MO[RQ Se S| uoIfew.ojul 13euod ay | “Auedwo) sy}

Y1IM 8722 lUNWILLIOD 0] S pULRYD aARY SO 111ed pasaelul SNo LA Teyl Buinsus ‘11jsuaq
winwixewl sy} 8110 01 ealy JBp|oyeXels ,, U0 118S B PBUSI RIS OS[e 91SgeMm
3y} ‘uonippe u| 'suonsabbns apinoid 0] SI0ISBAUI J0) puLeyd e Bulis}jo 811S0eM
Auedwod Uo PasooSIp UsBQ Sey UO IFeWIOo Ul 192109 pa | eIsp 8y ‘Jeiusd 8d1AISS

¢S |Igsuodsal

[e100s arJ0d.I09 Jo sw.e)

u1 1o} a1ed Aayisenssiay |[e sjpuey
Se |pm se ‘(s.1|ddns pue ‘siewosno
‘ssofo|dwe ‘siepjoyseys 01 Pl
10U Ing Bulpnoul) sJep joysXels

10} 811SCPM S} UO U0 1308s pareulisap
B P|INg pUe puueyd uoI1ed lunuiwod

SUON JOWIoISNI puUe SUO IR B JUBLUISOAUI ‘UoSedsayods ayl paysi|gese Auedwo) ay A e usl|gess Auedwod ay) saoq g
"G9~0900ed 0)
Jplasea|d ‘souvewloied A1116a1UI JO SUO TR pPaTee. pue SNies uoireluawe [dwiiay |
‘6€~/cabed 01 Jo ol asea|d
‘89111LILWIOD UoIfekeunwiay Jo suoiesado pue sani|iqisuodsal ‘uonisodwod ay |
‘ye~egabed 0 Jofol asea|d ‘BanIWLod Bunipny Jo sniels uoireiuswe [dwiay
"Te~0gabed 01 ool asea|d ‘si0108.1p JO pleog JO Sniels uoireiuswe [dwiay L
:Buimo|joy
Se pTOZ Ul Sikelfe aoueuonob aelodiod pak . 1o} uoiriusws [dwi jo Aoy ayl
‘Ao110d 1pre euseiul s Auedwiod ay) Jo Juswe|dwii pue uoirendnis syl BusinLdns ¢ (sbunsew skeploysreys
loja|qsuodsal Ajutew s| uswiredsp Bunipre eussiul Jo JBIydayl 'ssind pue sbulsew pJeoq Jo SsInuiw
ay1 A5q0 01S1012041p BulsISSe pUe SI013941P 01 S3|NJ Ssauisng Bulresedo 1ser| ayl Buonpo.d pue sire)fe aouel|dwod
Buipinoid o) a|gisuodsal si Juswiredsp aouel|dwod b Jo BIYod ayl ‘uonippe u| [eba| bunssse ‘uolressifol Auedwod
'snpels ayl bunuode. 01 Sabueyd pue uoirsitol Auedwoo
pue ‘ssafo|dwe parp. Aue 1o ‘siklfe aoueuonob arlodiod 10) a|gisuodsal S1oym Bul|1y ‘sBueaw sep|oys.feys
19140 8y ‘SJ0138.1p 10} S35IN092 pare el Bulbuelly 'ssauisng 1Byl 8INJ9Xe 0] SI010911P 3] pue SI0138.1p JO pLeoq
lo]seleRW Arssalou ayl apiAoid pue ‘uoireullojul Jued i ub s syl asunouue a1 Jo sbulsaw 01 pae . YIom
039" *Bu 119 89]1 ILULIOD UO IfeBunwis. pue Buisaw S1030a11q Jo preog ‘Bulisaw Buljpuey ‘suonouny 1Y) Wioed
suoseay pue
S9luedwoD pa
u_._xm_am_.m_m>>._.
Jojsadnould uolreJsn||| 19esqy ON |S9A
200211599 we1| uolenens
30URUIBAOD
arlodioD ayy,,

Wi} suoirIne(g

(T ©10N) Sn1eis uolruswo [duwi |

-43-



"puURWIBP SoURUIBACD
9724001109 }89W 0] SIULIUNOIT. YIIM 8 NPaY3s 1Ipre auy JO Juswebue. ke sy} Bussnosip
ApAnge ||is AuedwoD sy} Inq ‘FeaA [e3s1) 8} JO PUS B} Jo}Je SUILOW OM] UILHM
1ods. eloueULy [enuue 8y 8.1e[38p pue adunouue 01 Saoideld Buiipre ulsennoiIp
Sey Auedwio) a1 0s ‘aouspine ayl %aeyd Ajledold 01awin USIDILNS SIURIUNOITR
9.1 01 padu 1] “Auedwio) ayl Jo 1iodal eIoURUI) PETEP1IOSUOI 8Y) 01 SuoIuIdo Buinss|
9109 pau e1go 8q 0] Aressadeu Si (salkeIpisgns ubvloy pue ansawop | Buipnoul)
SoIRIPISONS JO SO111IUS 1WSN1ISUOD |8 J0J 32USPINS UoIed 1) LoA ariidoidde pue

¢aul|pesp pa14109ds 8y} a10jeq

yuow yaes Jo) sniess buiresedo

Sl se |pm se sieLenb paiyl pue
pu02ss ‘15414 3y} Joj S1iodal eloueu )
S11 1odal pue ysiignd pue ‘reak [easiy
B JO pua 3y} Jo1fe SYuow OM] UIYIIM
1iodal el1oueul) enuue S 1odal

WS ID1JNS 8Y) ‘spodal [eloueu ) S, AuedwlioD syl Ma1AS pue 1ipne Ssjuelunodde Uaym (g) pue ysiignd Auedwoo sy seoq (£)
SUON
‘SO 10 811s0eM ¢(s90uB e u0D
Auedwiod Uo 8INsSOOSIP |8 S182UBeJU0d JO CBPIA pUR UoIeWIOUIBY ] P Jojsanul Bunseagem ‘Weishs
\ ‘91ISgeM Aueduwlod Uo uoIrewIoul uewsaxods e bureao ‘aInso(asip
1092]U02 3] BuISO [0S Ip pUe SUOIR U J0ISOAUI ‘UcsJadsaxods ayy Bulysijgesg o puUe U0 1199|020 UoIFewWIoul 3 [puey
‘KpAnsadsal Buso(asip pue Buioa|j0o 0} 9|doad pareubsep bunuiodde
uoIfewJojul Jo) a|qisuodsal a.fe sjuswiredsp sk lidoidde pareubisepayl 'q ‘1sgeM Usi|bu3 ue Bulp|ing
BUON xdse'sainininoge/seining// A Us/M1 W0’ e1ided mama//:sdny A |'6'8) Spuueyd 8Inso[3SIp UOIFRWIOUI
"91ISOe/M Us1Bu3 ue 11inq Apealfe sey AuedwoD ayl e Jay1o aney Auedwod ayrssoq (2)
'SAOIA 01 UoTewliojul patepl 8yl ainsoasip sey Auedwod ay L (c)
¢AoueuRNOD arlodiod
'SNIRIS 90uURUBAOD JO SnIeIs 8yl pue sBuipuess [eloueul)
amrelod.iod pue ssausng ‘seloueul) s, Auedwo) ayl bulprebal uoirwiojul 4loQ 8s00s1p 01 911SgeM aelod.iod
SUON 350[3SIp 01 (T=1X9T=Ax;dse1mejop/dnoib erideD/my wod'saning elided mmm//:sdny) A e aney Auedwod ayrseo( (1)
alsgeme dn s sey Avedwo)d ayl (T) aINso[0S1@ uolrewlou| /.
lBpjoyseys Yiim jeap o3 Aoushe
‘Sikejje ;eploysreys Uiim [esp O} 90IAIBS Jop|oypleys [euoissajoid
BUON 'd10D sennJes [elided Jo uebe uoiressiuiwpe afeys ay) sareubisap Auedwo) ay A e ulodde Auedwoo ayl seoq 9
suoseay pue
S9luedwoD pa
u_._xm_am_&.m_m>>._.
Jojsajdnuld uoieaisn||| 19e1sqy ON |S9A
2010211599 we1| uolenens
30URUIBAOSD
arlodioD ayy,,

Wi} suoirIne(

(T ©10N) Sn1eis uolruswo [duwi |




"P92.IN0S S1321IAKSS 10 19npoJd Yo Iym wod) A8 I100S 10 JUSLIUOIIAUS 8Y1

0] 13edwl | U2 1JIUB IS SBsned eyl uoIr|oIA Aue 1iuuwod seliddns J1awn Aue e
19211u09 S}I areulwel Aew Auedwo) ay ] Ajdwod 01 punog afe sailed omy ayl
eyl saill|igsuodsal e1ocs arlodiod ayl auljino seiddns Jofew pue Auedwo)
31 Usamiaq paubis s1aeuod || 'seoljod Aljigisuodsal 1oos s, Auedwo)
aY1 suelbe arsado reyr sieliddns yiim Bulesp spiore pue ‘diysuoire .
ssauisng Bulysi|gelss 01 Jolid 1oNpuodsiw [RI00S IO [RIUSLLILOIIAUS

JO SpJo2a. o) seijddns sy sessasse Auedwio) ay | suoiepl oiddns (1)
'SUONN|0S pue swe|goid BueAcSIp 10} S puueyd
UO 1722 IUNWILLIOD SSJBAIP pue uado Aulueiuew pue ‘Isaieiul Slepjoysers
Buiziwxew 0} patedipap a.te s\ B1ISgeM S, Auedwio a8y} Uo paso|osIp usa(q
Apeal e aney Spoyw 19eju0d pue SMOPU IM 13e1U0d SA0GE 8U] JO UOITeULIOU |
'SP [oysMeIS Wol) suoiuido Jayreh 0181ISgeM S} UOo U0 138s
SIBployeYeIS ., B puUe ‘B1ua) 801AISS JBWOoISND © 1321U00 SUO IR B J01SAUI ¢ (s1os1nsedns pue
‘uosedsaxods sey Auedwo) ay ] SiSeelul SJopoysMels pue suoirpl Jo1seAu|  (£) SJ0108.1p J0J doue.nsul Buseyaind
‘Auedwo) ay1 spremol A1jefo| seehojdwe asel pue ‘sa101j0d suoIe P4 JBWwosnd
0] paziuebio Bueg afe SSI1IAITe [eUOITRAIIOW JO SBLSS W ‘ple Aousbiewe pue JO uoeIUBWA |[dw 8y} ‘saunseaw
saIpIsgns aeuoissedwod/Buippam se [pmse ‘(-1 aoueinsul sbuines ‘@ouelnsul uoieneAs sl pue ssinijod
[e21PSW ‘8oURINSUI B41] ‘@oUe.InsuUl JUsp1aJe Se Yyons) winiweid pajunodsip Juswiebeuew »s1J Jo uoirejuews (duwi
Te safexoed aouelnsul Jo A 1LreA peoiq e Yiim ssafodwe sapinoid ose a1 ‘spJotal Buiuren siosinLdns
Auedwod ay) ‘souelnsul yieay [euoieu pue aouelnsul Joge| bulAdde pue SI0108.1p ‘slepoyses Jo siybu
pue aouasce Jo a/ea| Aloniels Bule)jo 01 uonippe u| areda3afoldwg  (2) ‘suolrepl llddns ‘suoirp. JoseAul
'SUOITR|OIA pUR SIoNPUO0ISIW IYBI|ybIy Jo ‘sa101jod 10 S8Insesw aA RIS U iwpe ‘ssou | fpMm aaAo [dwe ‘s)yb1l aako|dwe
‘soinpaoo.d Bulresedo ‘saniange ssausng s,Auedwo) ayy Buinoidwi Jo [nydpy 0] pa1iwi| J0u g Buipnoul
a.Je eyl suoiuido asel 01 pabeinoous ake ssafojdw3 ,,'xog uoluidO sa/fojdw3 ““B9) seonae.d aoueutonob ariodiod
JO 85N U0 SBI0N,, pUe ,saulpping Aruldiosiq pue ueljdwo) ‘uonuersid s . Auedwod ay) Jo Bulpuelsiepun
BwisseeH [enxas ade|d)Jopn,, Bulpnoul ‘ade(d ul sa|nJ Juswebeuew Jo1aq e ae1l|13e] 01 UOITRWIOUI
BUON 92In0sa. Lewny Jo 18s aAsusyp.adwod e sey Auedwo) ay ] siyblissholdwg () A wenodwi Jaylo Aue syl s| ‘g
suoseay pue
S9luedwoD pa
Bl ._xm_n_m_.m_m>>._.
Jojsajdnuld uolreJsn||| 19esqy ON |S9A
2010211599 we1| uolenens
30URUIBAOSD
arlodioD ayy,,

Wi} suoirIne(

(T ©10N) Sn1eis uolruswo [duwi |

-45-



“1eak Aiona sioyselIp

Jojaouelnsu| A1ljigel] s1019841Q 8yl aseyand |eys dnolo erided ayL
‘ApAnoadsal Auedwo) ay) Jo safes Buixew

e pue ‘uoleJSIuILpe pue eioueul) ‘uswdo pasp s s ayl busiaedns Jo
abfeyd Ul sjuapisaid 82IA BAIINIDXS JOIUSS 39141 3. aJay) ‘Juspisald Jo) 1deox3
'51010911Q J0 preog Aq pano.idde

aq ||Im eBeuew anoge M| asoym ssaAojdwe Jo 1s1| uonowoid ay) 1oy

Se ‘uonisod pue aouewlopiad 1Y) 01 Buipiodde uswiredsp yes Aq pepinoid
[[1M BBeuew Mo RQ PAS| asoym ssafo|dwse Jo 1s1| uonowo.d ay) ‘Aoijod
uonowo.d Jo sw.el u| *Alljice wewsbeuew pue Buew UosI0ap 1Byl aRARND
0} sJeffeuew JoIuss 10} sasInod Bulurel) feuoireaonps abuelre Auedwod ay L
‘wsifeuossajold ssa/oldwe safes pue ‘uonde1oid MO (g |ISIYM ‘Uoiresuadwod
pue aouew.o Jiad paoue feq ‘sonpoud ys1-ybiy xo|dwod Jo afes ‘8Inso|asIp

pue uoied11ou Jo AINp ‘A11jIgelins 891AJSS pue 10npoud ‘UoIre1In1|os Ssausnq
pue BusieApe ul uolrewaesald sedoid ‘Alelo| pue a1ed Jo Anp 13e1u00

Ire) Bulpnjoul sa AN Ssauisnq S1i Jo s1oadse Auew JBA0D eyl ,Seulpping
JusWIIeal | Jawosn) ied,, Jo Bse sey Auedwo) ay :Aoijod sewosn)
‘Agenbape [e11ded pue suiniel paisnlpe-ys1i uo wusweleuew ay) 0] slioda.
JenBa.l axew eyl siiun Jusweleuew s 11 sey Auedwo) ayl 'siseq Allerenb

e UO ppyY afe sbuisaw 891 1lwo) uswsabeue |\ ¥S1y 'Spfepuels Jusussasse
¥S11 pue L1104 uswebeue [N S1Y,, 1snqoJ paiuswe [dwii sey Auedwo) ay |
'SpJepuels JUBLUSSaSSe s pue so1011od Juswiefeuew »siy

'6T0Z U1'SIN0OY L€ Sem (S1019911p Juspusdspul Buipnjout)

SJ0122.1p / 10 Jnoy Buiuren ay ,'seiedwo) paisi X3d L pue paisi]ISML
JO SJoSIARANS puUe 10138117 J0) uoIreoNp3 BuiNuUo) JO uoiEeIuBWS [dw |

ay1 JoJsuonoaliq,, ul paress sinoy bulurell jo jequnu palinbal ayl

pa1e [dwoo aney s1010a.1p S,Auedwo) ay1 Jo ||V :uoireonps bulobuo s1010811Q

6)

(8)

(2)

)

(9)

suoseay pue
S9IUedwo) po
BITX3d1l/ASML
lojsa(diould
3011%eld-1s8g
90URUBNOD
arlodioD ayy,,
wioJj suoirineQg

uomesN||| 19elsqy

ON

SOA

(T ©10N) Sn1eis uolruswo [duwi |

wal| uoienens

- 46 -



'SJ010811p JUSpuBdapU | 3. SJBqUBLL 9911 ILULLIOD Lo [ejaunwial Z/T Ueylaio

*Rep awres ay) uo Wwieis/As uoiedljdde ay) 01SUOIN|0SaI JO SBW02INO0 |l Bulpeo|dn ‘ased Aq

3520 U0 1IN |03 ‘WISAS 1yb 11 BuOA 21U P ‘(B9MNILULICD UOIRBUNLIB. PUe 8811 ILULLIOI 1IpNe JO JBUSAUOI ‘SI0108.1p Juspuadapul Z Buipnout)
32UepUBIIE U1'SI01381IP € ‘UOISA Usi|Bu3 ul 1iodal [enuue pue oogpuey Busaw ‘Bulisew Jo aonoN buipeo|dn :Bunssw s, jepjoysreus 6T0Z 'S

's1yB 11 BunoA 21U04198 P Byl s1dope TOZ Ul Buneaw S, jepjoyeeus 2
"WRISAS UoITeuU ILLIOU BTep IpURD 0] U019 BS J013811p 10} poyw syl idope pue ‘Buisaw s, jspjoys.feys

e syb L BunoA ayl Joj Spuueyd 8yl Jo aUo Se WaISAS Bu oA 21u0.1109 p ayl eyl saels Auedwo) ayl JO UOIRIDoSSe Josapieayl T

(swelans

paen [eAs ayl Jo auo Jou S1 Auedwo) ayl Se a|gedtjdde 10N) ‘pa1inoal aq 01 BA ale eyl senssi Aue 10) Sainsesll Juswedueyud asodoud pue ‘eiuad
aoURUIBAOS) alelodio) IS L Ag paysiignd s1|nsal uoiren A adueussA0S) alelodio)) 1Sa1e| 8yl Uo paseq ‘9pewl sjuswsAoldwi ayl uke|dxe aseald ‘6

suoseay pue
S9IUedwo) po
BITX3d1l/ASML
lojsadiould
3011%eid-1s8g
90URUBAOD
arlodioD ayy,,
wioJj suoirineQg

uomesN||| 19elsqy

ON

SOA

(T ©10N) Sn1eis uolruswo [duwi |

wal| uoienens

-47 -



"pasn S82Jnosal
[fe Jo Aouaidiyje ayy Buinoidwi pateaipap s1 Auedwod ay | a|gedi|dde

10U SI TOOYTOS| pUe plos s1onpoad ay) oy seerew bulbexoed a[pAa. 01
paJinbai 11s110u pue ‘1oNnpoid Aue ainide jnuew jou saop 1| “Aisnpul uonnjjod

¢SOIS 1813 KRy SAIDUISIP

S11 UBAIB ‘weis/s Juswabeuew
[elusLIUOJ IAUS 9 lidoidde

ue padopnep Auedwo) ayr seH(T)

BUON MO| e ulsarelado pue Jepinoid adinses Bulpe saininje si Auedwo) ayl (T) A | uBWUOIIAUG B|qeuRISNS © BU1BISOH '
65~G5abed
01 BJaiasea|d ‘0202 ‘92 U N pUe 6TOZ ‘y/2Z Yoe N Uo sbuissw Jopjoysreys
pue sbulsaw pleoq Buunp ssalboid pue paliodal usag sey sueld SO ¢S1010211 Jo preog ay) 01 Sy nsal
3yl 'suodal ¥SD [enuue Jo uoleredald ayl 104 a|qsuodsal Os[e S| juswiliedop Buisseo0.d sy} 1odal pue sierew
uofelsiuiWpY ‘satotjod Ayljigisuodsal fe1oos axeiodiod Bulpusue/Bulus|icelss 9|puey 03slJo3R1IQ Jo preog ayl
0] UonIppe U] 'suonde eandeld Ul Ssse 01 S1Sa111|IgIsuodsal [e120s arelodiod Ag pazioyire usaq uswsbBeuew ayl
0] spefia. ul uswLedsp UOIRISIUIWPY 8Y) JO 3|0l 8yl 'Sanl|iqisuodsal aney ‘A11j1gisuodsal [e100s aelod.iod
[e100s arJod.09 1S1sse 01 AINp ay) paub Isse Sem Juswiedap UoIfe.s U iwpe ajowo.d 01 dn 18s 1un (Bw-14ed o)
3UON pue ‘2110 HUSD Jo 8j04 8y pajulodde sem Auedwo) ay) Jo JuspIsa.d A 214108ds e aney Auedwo) syl seoq 2
(€ 310N) ¢salbarenss
10 sa1jod usweleuew s
pare .l 3yl Usi|celss pue AlieLerw
‘9150eM S, Auedwio) ay) uo joa|dioulid sy1 03 Bulpioade
PasO0SIp Usaq 8/ey UYdIYM JO Y1og ‘uoireziueio ayl uiyiim sadnulid adndeld sonss| aoueuN0b aelodiod
1599 AlljIgsuodsay [e100S arlodio) , pue So|dnulld 82113eld 1599 90URUIBAOS) pue A19100S ‘JUBIUOJIAUS INOge
arlodio),, ‘ .sa|dould 80119eid 1S9g wewebeue |\ ariodio) eoIyg, uolrenens s ay) 0} uoieepsuod
SUON ‘ fijod Aljigsuodsal e1oos ae.odio) ., ay) pajuswe [duwi sey Auedwo) ay L A anp aAlb Avedwodayissoq T
saiuedwo) pa
SIT-NS1O/AEASML
Jojssidouiid
\mn_.__w%ﬁoww (z@10N) uonduosep Arewwns ON [S9A SUB) JUOUSSISY
[e100S
are.lodio) ay) wod)
UoIR1NSP JO Sased
pue uoirineg (T ®10N) @0URUIBACD N0V

So1UedWo) ParsI T NS LO/ASM L 10} S3|dDUTId 99198l
1599 Alljigisuodsay [e100S arelodioD Usemieq SSAeUR 90UBBLIP BU) pue SaNI|Iqsuodsal [eID0S JO UL S'E'E

-48-



"JUBLUUO.IAUS 01 suoiresedo Auedwod Jo 13edwl ay) 8onpal 018 saijod
u0119910.d [RIUBLULOIAUG BAOQ Y "S32JN0Sa1 SNOLIeA JO asn ay) Jo Aousiolye
ay1 anoidwii 01 Bu1[0A99.1821N0Sa4 pUe UOITRD1}ISSe [0 91seM Sjuawe [dul

pue ‘uoireARSU0d ABJus pue uoIRABSUOD JoTeM pue amod sajowoud 11
‘Anignd Ao1jod pue suonoadsul-jes ‘sanl|ige) Buines-ABisus snolLeA Jo asn
aY1 ybnouy L ‘ApAIssaaons pade|dal Bu g a.e uawudinbs Buiwnsuoo-ABieus
ay1 ‘Ao1jod uonoeioid IUBULOIIAUB UOITRAIBSUOD ABJous ayl Ylimaul|

¢Abueyd

aeWI |0 Uo suoiresedo ssausng vyl
10 13edw1 8y 8z WU iw pue ajowo.d
01 S11paJ0 uoged Bulueigo apnjoul
pnous saibarelis Yons 'sieak omy
1We%3. Buinp Alojuanul seb asnoyusa b
© JO }nsaJ 8y} pue suoiresedo 11yl
uodn paseq uoonpal seb asnoyusa b
puUe uog.ed pue uo IleABsuod

ABJous 10} saiborens Auedwiod
US!|ceIs pInoys pue suoijesedo

UOITRINSP JO SasIned
pue uoreINeQ

(T ®10N) @0oURUIBACD N0V

3UON U] 'SUOISSIWS uoged ou Sey pue Ansnpul eoueul)sbuopq Auedwo) ayl () A JiBY) uo abueyo arew o Jo 1edwi
ay1 Joliuow Auvedwo) ayr seod(y)
‘Buipuodsal 10} ¢asn ABJeus pue uossIwe
saifere.is uolesedo parpl dopAsp 01SUO TR BXe] ||IM pue Sabueyo atew [0 sef asnoyusa b aonpaJ pue anseal 01
wioJ} 1jnsal alem eyl sigedw 1 ensnun awios Jo akeme st Auedwo) ayl (€) uaXe] suoide Aue aJoyl a1y ¢sellIAge
SUON A ssausnq Sii 109} fe sebueyd arew o
"JuBWBBeueW [RIUBLUUIOIIAUL 10} 3| Isuodsal yoiym Moy Jo areme Auedwod ayis|(g)
1UN paTed1pap 8yl S1 Jusluedap UO IS IUIWPY "S82JN0sal Jo Alljigeueisns
ay1ainsue Ageseyl pue ‘afielsem aonpa. pue a)sem 10s 0} 100|) ydea
e pade|d usaq aney sulq BuljpAsey ‘uonn|jod ploAe 0] Joinidenuew reuiblio
ay1 Aq pa ool are sieuol Aidwe | pue ‘sieuol Ajpuail) A|RIUSWIUOIIAUS
saseyo.nd Auedwo) ay ] Jeded Jo asn ayy aonpal 01 saulydew buiAdoooloyd SIUBLUUOIIAUD
|fe Jeau pade|d usaq sey Aeuy BulpAal e pue ‘soidoooloyd paps-2|gnop axew ay1 uo 19edwii sse| aonpoud
0] pabieunoous a.1e seaAo|dw3 'sbulsaw Ul uoirussald 21U009 P Jo ash eyl seusew a|jgemsual Busn pue
pue ‘a2ineubis-9 ‘UlB|Ng-2 “UBBIRIS-D Sk Yons Sainseaw Mau Bu onpoul ‘S90JN0Sa. JO asn B 1o Buinayde
BUON Aq uswiuol AU ssa|-Jaded e Jo uonowoud ayl ulaAnde usaqsey 1| (2) A 0] paniwwod Auedwo) ayis| ()
saiuedwo) pa
BIT-NSLOAEASML
Jojssidouid
\mn_,___u‘%ﬁoWM_ (z@10N) uonduosep Arewwns ON [S9A SUB) JUOUSSISY
[eos
amre.lodio) ay) wod)

-49-



'ssafojdwse Jo
aouew.oLied ucssed pue ‘Xepuladud ‘suonipuod Bulresedo s, eah wueaind
s.Auedwod ay) 01 BuIpiodde ||IM Jeak yJes sesnuoq pua-Jeal pue SeAnse )

pue sjuawisnipe Aees enuue Jo)siseqay “uoireeunwal aaAodwe

10 AJ1Jeuo|el pue Sssul e} 8yl aken eAd 01 Buliselu 8911 1LUWIOD Uo Ifesunwie.
saziuebio Ajrenbal pue ‘Wes/As premal ajgeucseal e sies Auedwod ay |
'sgafo|dwe | Jo sybu [eba|ayl 19910.4d pue Juswe [dwii 01 JepJo ul weyl Aq

¢SIUBWBAB IYTR
10 aouewo jad ssauisng aeJod.od

ay1 109|jo) Aprudoidde pue (siey10
puUe ‘UoIIR20A ‘Uoieleunwal Bulpniou)

apIge 01 pasu senfiea (0o |fe ‘suoire|nbal pue sme| Joge| pate . ayl Aq apige A | senijodarejpmaaio|dws a|qeuoses.
BUON pue uo pased sisuolkenbal pue sajni s,Auedwo) ayl jo uoirinwliojayl (2) ayrar|ndns Auedwod ayrseH (2)
‘uoiBipJ Jo ‘AipIuye ‘abke ‘eousieoid
[enxas ‘Jopuab JO SWUB) Ul BYBYM ‘JBAS0STRYM UO ITeU I LSS IP INOYLIM
apew a.e uoresuadwod pue ‘Buiures) ‘uonowoud ‘jsreldde ‘quawub sse
‘ewAo|dwe ‘MaIABIUL JUBWIINIZBI SI9XJOM BUIUBIU0D SUOKSI09Q
‘Me| 01 BuIpiodde
Auedwo) ay1 Ag pazipsgns a.e afieoA0D aA0C0e 8y] J0) Sswniweid aoueinsu|
"90URINSU | Y1[eaH [euoleN pue aouelnsu| Joge Ag paianod afe ssekodwe
[fe Teu} ,S3INY Y40, SH Ul paljioads sey Auedwod ay L, uew/oldwg
ut Airfenb3 Jopue9 Jo 1DV, Yiim aoueljdwoo ul,Ad1jod Areulidiosiq
pue 80UeAS LIS) ‘U0 UBABIH JUBWISSeleH [enXaS ade [d)IoNN,, PausI|aeIss
Sey Auedwo) ay ] 'suolr pJ JuswebBeuew-loge| d1uow.ey Se |pMm
Se JuewLleuew puucsied Jedoud aell|ige) pue siyb ssako|dwse 109104d ¢Sybry vewnH
011510 A8y ' 10V sprepuess Joge ], Yim Jue|jdwod afe 03 Uoiesuaduiod JO ||1g [eUOIRURIU| PUR SMR| UIIM
pJezey [euoirednaoo ‘uoisuad ‘eoussae Jo anes| ‘Arefes se yons 90Uep.I0oJe Ul Sainpado.d pue sainijod
BUON ‘ssofodwe pue Auedwo) ay) usamieq paa.ibe JuswAodwe Joswel |1V (T) A sy padopnep Auedwo) ay) seH(T)
akejpMm alignd Jo JuswadIoug
saiuedwo) pa
SIT-INSLOAEASML
Jojssidouid
\mn_,___u‘%ﬁoWM_ (z@10N) uonduosep Arewwns ON [S9A SUB) JUOUSSISY
[e100S
amre.lodio) ay) wod)
uoIR1NaP JO SasNed
pue uoirineg (T ®10N) @0oURUIBACD N0V

-B50 -



'S110J o 1Byl 1oddns 01 seIpisgns 89 uoeISsIfol
Bulpnjoul saAnuadul Jo AB LA peoud e paonpoJiul sey Auedwo)
31 puUe ‘suoIed141180 [eI1oURUL) URICo 0} pafieinoous ake ssafo|dw3
‘aJloymALe ‘aw nAue molb pue uses| 0l 9|ge
ale ssa/fo|dwe ‘sueaw [e11b1p Buizijnn Ag 'sse20.d Buluiea|ay) JO SWOINO
oUeyus 0] paubIsap Usa( 0S e 9ARY SasIN02 Bulutea |0 Aue | 'S||IMS
pue saiienb feuoisssjo.id dopnsp wey) dpy 01 1Seapeo.q pue Bu ous e Juod
09pIA BpIM-UOITeu Buisn ApAISusIUI 8210} SO S S11 su ey Auedwo) ay L
‘1815 eLebeuew s Auedwo) ayl ainwnu 01 /00Z Ul papunoy
Sem abid||0D aoueuH [elided ‘uonippe u| “Auedwo) ayy Aq paziuebio
$85IN02 8y} JO awios snlate aoueuly Jo 91dol ay) Uuo Sejoyos pue suedxe
paumouss AQ paisoy Steulwss pue ‘Bulu ke yimolb jusweleuew ‘Buluen
AAJBSa. Jewabeuew ‘Buiurel] uoiezie1sads ‘uoirua IO ‘|PM Se Yyimolb
s,Auedwo) ayy spoddns 1ng ‘skeered seako|dwe Jo JoAe) ul Ajuo 10U SHJoMm
weIs/s wewdoprsp Juselayl “euuew Apwiie ul ukes| 01azl|in Aew
soako|dwe eyl spuueyd Jo ABLIA peolq e sl akeyl Juswdopsp Jeaked
1By Jo sebels snolleA ulspAd| | Jo ssafodwie suioddns Teyl welboud
Buiue aasusysIdwod e sieyjo Auedwo) ay - Bulures) Sie1seds
1o fed 1y oo s||xs buidopnap

¢ J9.1e0
1Byl A0 S||1xs dopnep ssekodwe
sdpy eyl welboid Buiute) oA e

UOITRINSP JO SasIned
pue uoreINeQ

(T ®10N) @0oURUIBACD N0V

3UON saakodwe dpy 01 swelboud Buimo|jo) ayl pawewe | dwisey Avedwo) ayl () A | ue pawews|dwi Auedwo) ayr seH (v)
‘GOT~c0Tebed 01 ;801 asea|d ‘siseq fe|nba. ¢SaNnss|
B U0 UOI1R1Nsuod Yieay ayl pue paziueblo ate sdnxoayo yieay sa/fodwe yieay pue Apfes uo Ajrenbal pautell
Sealoym ‘A|renbBol paroadsul Buieg SI JUBLUUOIIAUS YJoM a3y ‘Ylfeay pue SooA0|dwe a1V ¢,1UBLILOIIAUS YIOM
ABJes 1Yl ainsus 01 papasu juswid inba aAnoe10.4d 3yl Yy1im weyl sepinoid A Ayreay pue aes e Yi1im ssakodwe
BUON pue ‘Ul YJ0M 0] JUBLUUOJIAUS Uea |2 e saako|dwe s yjo Auedwod ayl () apinoud Auedwo) ayrssoq (£)
saiuedwo) pa
BIT-NSL1O/AEASML
Jojssidouid
\mn_,___u‘%ﬁoWM_ (z@10N) uonduosep Arewwns ON [S9A SUB) JUOUSSISY
[eos
amre.lodio) ay) wod)

-51-



"UOITRI 1} LIBA 10 douelnsse Aved-piiyl
B URe1qO 1,Uss0p 11 1Ng SaulppInb paziubodal Appim Ajeuoireusiul

¢S10da1 8y} Ul uoiewIoul 8y}

10 A11]I0e 14 8Y1 8oueyus 0] Sliodal
J0J UOIDI1}LIBA 10 3oueINsSe
Ared-piiyre umeiqo o1 9|gesinge
siose 1| “Ao1jod Ayijigsuodsal
[e100s arJodiod ay) Jo

uoeusWa [dwi 11U} Jo Sniels ay}
850|3sIp 01 ‘suodal AlljIgisuodsal
[e100s arJodiod buionpoud

usym saulppInb 1o sprepuels
paziubooal ApIm Ajeuoireueiul

UOITRINSP JO SasIned
pue uoreINeQ

(T ®10N) @0oURUIBACD N0V

QUON Bundope suodas Alljiqisuodsal [e100s arelod.loo ay) aonpoud Auedwo) ay | A 1dope Auedwod ay1 SeH g
‘diysuoie pJ Addns anunuoo 1o
uibaq pnoys Auedwo) ays Jeyeym auiweiep 01 JopJo ul ‘anssi 1yb Joge| ¢SNIess Wwawe [dwi ay) pue
pue yieay pue ApJes [euoi1ednado ‘ elusiuoliAue Jo AI0SIY J0) pameInal suoire|nBa. pare el Aqapige |jeys sanss|
SUON a( 01 pavU SuBWsBIBe UbIs 01 sasooyd Auedwo) ay) eyl seIddns |1V (9) loge| pue A1B100S ‘JUBLUUOIIAUG 83U} U0
A | 1wedwis eiddns e Jo piodal Aue siaeyl
Auedwo) ay) Jo S9014J0 Ssauisn( | e 8|ge|eAY :Jeuno) Jaypeym ssasse pue ‘Adijod Juswebeuew
MY WO R1Ides®@so :|rew3 Jo1ddns srjnwio) Auedwo) ayr seH (9)
(@11qow
Uym Buielp usym zo X1joid ppe) 8/88-2T BUI[I0Y IS JBWosn) ¢sainpaoold
‘Slue|dwod as el 0] asn Aew SBWO0ISNI T2yl UO IR IUNLUILWIoD JO S puueyd [eadde pue sad1jod uonseloid
aANe e sepinoid Auedwod sy ‘s1seeiul S,BW0ISNI Jo uoioslo.d ay) Jo+ JOLINSUOD JUeAS . 8yl 91 |NWLIO
*010 U0 IN|0saJ aNdsIp ‘suoirsedo plepuess ‘Ssisaseiul OS[e pue Sa0IAJSS pue s1onpo.d
SJewWoIsnd Jo uonaeiodd ‘DA Se yons selew uo sainljod pue sainpasoud Jo Bulpge| pue Buleyrew ‘Aw jes
snosewnu Aq papInb a.e siuawledap ssauisng o|Iym ‘ede|d ul ,Sased pue yieay Jewoisno ay 01 sprefo.
Buiiodal enusp1juod o) Sainpadold BuiriedQ,, pue,, ssulppIing uswiesl | YlIM Splepuels [euolfeuBIul pue SVe)|
BUON Bwosng Jked,, ‘,seulpping uoinjosay aindsig,, sey Avedwop syl  (9) A Yrim paijdwoo Auedwod ayiseH ()
saiuedwo) pa
BIT-NSLOAEASML
Jojssidouid
\mn_,___u‘%ﬁoWM_ (z@10N) uonduosep Arewwns ON [S9A SUB) JUOUSSISY
[e100S
amre.lodio) ay) wod)

-52 -



'SIep[oySeIS Jay10 pue sIo1saAul S, Auedwiod

ay1 uo 10edw uedubs © arey Tey) sanss| aoueudAob a1ei0diod pue [eI00S ‘IusIUOIIAUS JUedljIubis aney oym asoyl 01 siepl Alieuerew Jo aidiuud ayl g 810N
abied xopu1ay arealpul pue

uodal A11jigisuodsal [e100s arelodlod syl Bujoayd Aq pajuasa.dal pnod aoueusanob enide ay) ‘Uodel Alljigisuodsal [e100s arelodlod e patedaid sey Auedwo) ayl J| :Z 910N
'2Jn1NJ 8Y] Ul Sainseall pue saibiarelss ‘saiijod parep. 1dope 01 ue|d syl uke|dxe pue sucseal ay) ur|dxe asea|d ‘0N, Se PaXRYd

SI aoueusonob enide syl I ‘uoiresws|dwi pue sainsesw ‘saiferuis ‘saioijod juerniodwi paidope syl uke|dxe asea|d ‘SO A, Se PaXIayd SI adueuBAob [enide auyl }| T 910N

‘AlenpIAlpul saLienb yans 0] puodsal ||Im Auedwo)
DUl pue ‘W Jo ‘B1sgem ‘auoyd BIA salenb askel aige alke SiepjoyseIS ‘uodes ¥SD ayl Bulueouod uoiewIoul dlcelR) pue JueAspl Ss0[ISIp
0] 911SgOM S11 U0 UO0NI8s ¥{SD e pareald ose sey Auedwo) ayl ‘6TOZ aunc ul 1odal Alljigisuodsal [e1oos arlodiod 810z SiI pausiignd Auedwod ay L
'SaNnI|iqsuodsal [e100s arelodiod Jo Bulpueisiepun ay) 0} [njasn uoiewloul BYIO .

's9|d10uUlld 82119e.d 1599 8yl WoJ) uoirIAsp ou s aseyl ‘Auedwo) ayl 1noybnoayl pajuswie [dw i usag Sey 1oNpuod Jo 9pod ay L
'so|doulld 82119e.d 1599 8yl Wol) suoirInap Aue pue sadndeld 1us.aund sl aq11asap asea(d |, ‘saitedwo)
paIsi X3dL/ASML Joisajdioulid 8013e.d 1599 Alljiqisuodsay 100S a1elodioD,, Yiim 8ouep.loode ulssidiound ¥SD paysiigelss sey AuedwioD ayl §| 9

saiuedwo) pa

BIT-NSLOAEASML
Jojssidouid
3011%e.d 1seg

A0 sUo0saY (z@10N) uonduosep Arewwns ON |S9A SUB) 1o v

[eos

amre.lodio) ay) wod)
uoIR1NaP JO SasNed
pue uoirineg (T ®10N) @0oURUIBACD N0V

- B3 -



0] SJeIUBD X992 Yleay yiim sigenuod ubis Auedwo) ayl ‘syaeyd yieay saAojdwe fenbal 01 uonippe u|
“Ue|d ay 01 Buiploade Juswie [dwii pue * uonuanaid sasessip
ay1 b6 111 qol Bulpeo| pwouqy ,, pue uonuanaid uswebulijul |1 pue sprezey olwouobig,, Bunpes (g)
.S9INSEa N\ U0 UBASI PleZeH SINN
g Jo Buimayd pue Bunows , s,AuedwoD syl BuouNouU Y "USLUUOIIAUS 8011J0 saij-oMows e Bulp|ing (i)
"euenul s Auedwo) ayr uo pasod  Sem uoIrewIoUl [eaw paxog Ayleayayl ()
‘SSPIBXS |eqieXseq
Bunier ssefodwie 1oy 0£:02~0€:8T Aeplid Alens wnipess |feqexseq e Bunusy ssniAnde spods Bunowoid (2)
"u01721|NSU0D 8y} pa1daode Usaq aney seakodwe GE [e101 a1e 88U ‘6TOZ U|
'seafo|dwe 10J Sao1AkES Bulnsuod Yifeay apinoid o1 Jerenb Aens Auedwo) ayp o1 suenisAyd Buibebu (T)
'Sa11IAITR JO SO 1S ade|dyJom-AylesH '€
"TE Sluspnis
10 JBgquunu :0g JBquiBAON ~ 9 IsnNbny potied AlAoY “AlsieAluN eloueuld elideD yBnoiyy Buuren weel Z
£S30fko|dwe dppy ued siosinedns UM, ZT°6T0Z ® TT'6T0Z(TT)
" Slexs jpullUl JossAfeue leiereyoayl , 9'TT'6T0Z(0T)
‘Buoy-1g n17 1Q Aq peruesaud ,s||1s uoienobeN , 82°0T'6T0Z(6)
" punured yum Azei 09, /2'6'6T02(8)
" Swi 1y Bupew Bulinp pauaddey skeme yoiym siuens snotien Buireys , 6T°6'6T02(2)
" 8few jo uenifew ‘pIom , GT'8'6T0Z(9)
.'S211N0ss Buipe. ul spoyiew Busssooid pue ssini paleel 8yl Jo Bulutel) uoireonpe 8y L, TT°2'6T02(S)
‘2Jniny
ayp urabpajmou 1oy Aed ||1maidoad Teys yinsre nok |1 pinom Aejd ssaid Jo Jopunoy-00ay 1, £T'9'6T0Z(1)
ues ] Y1y Bueny “1|N eAve Aq peiuesaid Ansnpul uemee] Jo ulogelayl , €T°9'6T0Z(E)
‘UsH
Buos uayD *1a Aq pejuesald SaTeIS PRMILUN B L pue BUIYD UsSSMIB] Jem apel ayl Jo sisAeueay L, 2'G'6102(2)
‘uByS-nys BuenH "IN Aq pake|d sem feuiwss Butreys osn N GZ'Z2'6T0Z(T)
"Juawido jpAap Jeaked [euossad pue uswido pasp Jus el euoieziuello
1O S11jaUS( UIM-UIM 9/A31YyJe 01 Se 0s ‘sppuueyd Bulules| palisioAlp pue Apwii ylim sanfea (0o apinoid pue
ue|d Buiuren aasusypidwod e Ue|d osfe pue ‘spAd| | e puucsied Jo spsau juswidopasp feuoireziuebio

'soafo|dwe
J1ojs)28Y0 Yiesy feinbey v

SONIANde

o salies age |dylom-AyljeaH 'S
‘AisleAun feoueuly

1ided ybnouyy Buiuren we el g

‘Buiures euoieoNpPe
/Sfeuiwss Juswebeuew

pue safiels Jea.ked U8 ) Ip 8yl 01 Sp.Joade Auedwlo)d ayl ‘Siua el [euoissajo.ad SnoLIRA 81RAIIIND 0] JBpJo U| 'T [eloUeUl} pUR JUBWISSAU| ‘T soafo|dw3
suondalIp
e IYD Y pue swelboid pauue|d 6T0Z sepoyseIS

JUBWRAS IYO Y pue Welbold Alljigisuodssy [e100S aelodioD 6T0Z




[eob 8y} ‘21niny a3 U “Juliden|d sy se 8oushi|eIul BIDI4IE U}IM P|INg YOIYM J0god feloLeul) Juabi|piul
o11S8W0p 3841 8Y1 1 IJOOD -euled [epueul) uebijplul 8yl ag 01 100D, Bunowold (1)
‘weIsAs Buipel) 91U0.119 B BY) Bunowold '€

‘paredpired sjdosd OTZ'T JO I01e ‘6TOZ Ul SfeulWss JuswisaAul fepm olignd 7 BuUnsoH 'z
*Aasnpul ©G ul seifiele.is JuswisaAul Aox 8yl €2/2T/6T02 (¥T)

"XIA Ul Ajisea 1s9Aul -winioy feqo|6 8y 10T/2T/6T0Z PUeTT/TT/6T0Z (ET)

‘dweo Buiurel Buipen Arewpldoid €/TT/6T0Z~2/TT/6T0Z (2T)

'SigIsew 01 el 01 80Uy ae. 8y 1 #0/0T/6T0Z (TT)

oM e seuniny seasono Bunssaul ul Aex eyl /T/6/6T02 (0T)

‘8leJ 159.81U1 8y} Bumno sereIsS peliun 8yl Jo sisAfeue pue 10818y 0T/2./6T0C  (6)
sjble) JuswsaAul %o1d 01 moy noA yaea sieisew ABolens oyl v2/v/6T0C  (8)

“JoM el X001 pue(urew JO ||IMS JuswisaAulay L 9z/c/6T0Z (L)

"Jeu WS BUUIM ZT/E/6T0Z  (9)

'4.13 >00Is pue|UR A JO UoSSNoSIp pue sisAfeuy 9z/2/6T0Z  (S)

"uoiadwod Buipen qo|O 8Z/T/6T0Z  (¥)

‘Buipe. sbueyoxe ubeio) uiaidoad nuen|jul Mau 8y L 80/6T0Z~G0/6T0Z  (€)
"JeuIWSs JBUUIN [elIdeD TE/ZT/6T0Z~TOM0/6T0C  (2)

"Jeda A MON 9sauyD BuLinp paso|o Jou Sem sauning [edided 0T/20/6T0Z~0E/T0/6T0Z  (T)
'SMO||0} Se 6TOZ Ul Afe|nfal Sfeuiwss JUSWISSAUL PRH T

"wes/s buipen
21uoJ199 P ay) Bunowoid s
"Jeu ILUSS JUSWIISSAUI
asejpmalignd BuipjoH 2

SJeullwss JUsWISaAUI BUIP|OH T

SJOISoAU|
puUe sBwosn)

ueg qor TTTT Wol) premy asldieiug sssuiddeH ay) urelqo Auedwod ay L
"000'S$.LN :Apsgns Jo Junowre [e10} ‘uossed T :Apisgns [eseund ()
"000'0€$.LN :Ap1sgns Jo unowe [e101 8doad  :Apisgns uoiezielidsoH (1)
"000'ST$.LN :Apisans Jo unowe fe1o} 8|doad G :Apisans yuigpyd (€)
"000'9$.LN :Apsans Jo unowe felol 8jdoad g :Apssans afele N (2)
"2T9'2ry' T$LN Ap1sans Jo Junowe fejo} 9jdoad zege :Apisans pres (T)
:6TOZ Ul 32N1WW0D 3P 31 JO SaINseawl 8.8 pM SNOLR A ‘9
'siequisll AjILLe] 1Y) pue sseko|dwe
JoJ21e2 0] paJe1J0 Usa( aAeY Sa101jod 8oueINSUT Jeoued puUe ‘Juawileal) [edipaw ‘Ainful eiuspiode ‘a4l|
we "wniwaid paunodsip e aoueinsul dnolb ojul siequisw A|iwe) 1Byl apn|oul 01 payiaul afe ssafodw3 (g)
‘prezey [euoifednaoo 0] UBWIIeal] [eaIpSW [eluspIade ‘Ainful
[eluSpIoJe ‘9)1| WoJ) abesonod aoueinsul dnob Jo AR LeA peold e Ylim ssaAojdwe sepinoid Auedwo) ayl (T)
aouelnsul dnoib sahodw3 g
's9a/odws J0) sH/Y2 Yieay enuaee.d spinoid

‘SOIIWIWIOD 8l 3yl
JO S9INSeEsLU 9.8 JPM SNO LR A '9

‘goue.nsul dnoub safojdw3 '

-B5-



"1eak Alona aunr Jo pus ay) ulalsgem s Auedwio) ayl pue SO IN 01 papeo|dn
aq ||IM pUe Siseq [enuue Ue uo paysiignd are 1iodal Alljigisuodsal [e10os a1elod.iod pue uodal enuueayl g

'6T0Z ‘0€ A2\ U0 pjpy sem Buiisw sepjoys.eys feusbayl T

s,Auedwio) ay uo sepjoysreus
0} pasoosip Ape|dwiod
a.Je 1odal Alljiqisuodsal [e100s
a1el0d.02 pue 1odal enuue ay] g
1ok Alome ppy si
Bunsew siepjoysreys eeusb v T

s;ep[oypeyS

"u01199104d [RIUBLLILIOIIAUS JO
uoINQ111Uod B I0J LU0 1IoNPaJ U0 ed pue Uo reAssuod ABisus aiowolid pue ‘siejunod a|puey 0} S,eWoisnd
Jojawn palinbal pue 1500 UoITeIIodsUeR] BU1 80NPa. puUe 80ueApPe 01S| [eob ay | 'SoapIA Buiydes)
jpuURyD [eNp 8GN NOA PUe 81ISgeMm [e191440 ayi ybnolyl uonJesue] 91uo.1198 p a1 [dwod syl uizi s
Jojajowold pue azio1jgnd 01 pue dd Vv pue Gap BIA S1iodal 4o.easal ‘sfeMeIpylim pue S1sodap ‘siuncdde
‘suonJesue.] ‘s)unoade Buippe ‘s)unoade Buiuedo Jo suoiduUN) SNOLIBA UM SJawoisno apiaoid o1
"Buijrew Bulinp
uoreliodsuel) Ag pased sem Yo iym uoiinjjod pue Siso2 80npal 0S[e pue ‘s |cewnsucd Jaylo pue yul pue
Joded pejud aonpal ApAnds e ‘esn Jeded aonpal ‘saniAnde Bunsyrew ybnoiyl Sjuswisels 21U0130 P
SNO LA 3)0Wo.d 01 3NUNUOD ‘S9IIPOLULLOD |fe JO SIUBLLIBIRIS JIU0JI09 |8 YiIM SJawiolsnd apinoid o |
696 S! Buipe.) d1uoLB P
JO OI724 8y} ‘BU1|UO PBPe.] }I JO SIUNOIJe 8ST 2 PUe ‘Pape.) Sjunodde GGT'GE [el0) ey} ‘6TOC Ul
069 S! Buipe. oluoce R JO
olelay] "duljuo pauado a/em 1 JO SJUNCJIe 980°G pue ‘pausdo aem sUNodde £G/ ‘6T [e10188U1 ‘6TOZ U|

¥)

(©)
4]
(T)

'SJBWOISNI BUIyJea) 10 ) SOSPIA UOIIeINPS PI0Ja) pue suonouny uoiealdde g ‘dd Vv
snoLeA Ajsnonunuod apinoid Auedwod ay ‘suoiresedo ssajieded pue uoioeioid eluswUoIIAUS palioddns
'S901AKS JUsB 1| pIul

pue uononasuod 108oud ‘ubisep ade iUl ‘Bous LiBdXe JBWwoISNd Jo JuawdopAsp By} 01 paleisuel) aq 0}
$92.1n0sa. Uewuny snotdaud Buimo|fe ‘paonpa. usag sey suoirsedo enuew Jo Acuanbauy

3Y1 ‘SWsIUeyISW U0 1109dsul 991AJ8S-}[eS au I uo ga/\\ pue ddy sapinoid AuedwioD ay) 1)y 80IAes
wuoyte|d Buipel] 91u0.4199 B 8y} Bunowoid uo SNJ0J Y2 IyM Je1uad 8d1AISS JBWoIsnd ay) sies Auedwo) ay |
'0c0C

ul'sepJo ade|d 01 S/BWOISNI 1) BUUIAA JusbI|eIU| pue @ 3N | T Jo wiojre|d syl apinoid 01 peroadxe si 1|
1009 Yiim Bupifer ybnoau 03 ‘Bunes siepjoye.eys 'SpUSPIAIP-Xo JO UoITeuLojul 8y} ‘shode.
[eloueUl) ‘SMBU [e1oUeU L) 9ABIDI ARIRIpSWIWI PIN0I SBWOISND “jaulied [eloueu ) paIsn] ISoWw 8yl aq

[[IM 11 pUe “INOge UJeouod S JaWoisnd ke sBu sl Jopjoya.eys ‘Slualisiels [IoUeU ) ‘SMBU [e1oueUl) ay)]
Teym A|eairewolrne ues| pinod Igo09 ‘0s|Y "Bu el ybnoiyl s,ewoisnd 01 AUS 1014 SUOIN|OS 1991102
ay1apinoid ||1m 11 pue Buiyasess 1oy dnoloy felided JO SIUNCIJe JUBLWIISIAUI [ 8eifalul 01S1 IO Jo

()
@

Ainnoe Jusweres
dluoA1d P 2417 Ul ssaulddeH
pue ‘Yue3 ay) 10} 8A07 p

- 56 -



‘1no1 Buipeas A110e 1o} |leH [eHOWS N YUs- ey BuelyDd ay1 01 awed pue sumoewioy syl Jo 1o ob o}
payAulalem A1O ledie L MON Wy UaIp|Iyd jooyds Afew id papuny omy Inode Jo elole ‘610 |dv Ul (€)
‘wreJboud siy1 ybnouy) Jeyehol seale feini ayl ul UOIRINPS aYy)
noge Bulred 1o} A1B190S 8Y1 Y1Im 87eU0sal 0] pa10adX@ 11 ‘0S| “JeaA Siyl Uemee | JO 8|oym ayi 01 usyLiou
wo.} papuedxd aq ||Im uolreuop Jo adods ayl eyl Buounouue ‘AJuno) ue|i A Ul jooyas Aruaws |3 Buno A
Buy e ppy sem ,wrelibold Buipeay ano dnolis eride),, Jo Auowssd Buiyoure|ayl ‘6TOZ Yor N ul (2)
"Jooyos Aruewe 3 1Iysoes) Ajuno) Bumbuid
‘looyos Aruswia |3 Busjiny Ueure] ‘jooyds Arluswe |3 Bulpis AJuno) 142 1yD pue ‘Alunod nolueN
ul jooyas Arejuawe (3 Businix ‘Alunod 1joei N Ul jooyas Akeusws (3 1g Buels ‘Aunod nyouisH Ul [0oyds
Areyusws |3 yus w19 ‘Ao lede] MaN Ul |00YoS Areiuswe |3 Busydeq pue |00yoS Arjuswe |3 ueysing
‘Alunod ue |1 A Ul jooyas Ariuawa |3 Buno A Buly ‘pareucp alem sjooyss Arewld 6 Jo elole ‘6Toz Ul (T)
'S90JN0SaJ Ueqn pue [ein.
usamiag deb ay) 8soj0 pue Uemie] Ul uoieonps [eanu ajowold o] : ueibold buipesy ano dnoio prded, 2
000‘000°G$.LN :@INHISU| S2ININ pue S911LNJeS <«
"000°0GZ$.LN :A1100S 8oue!|dWoD MeT pue S0UeURA0D eloueul] <
"000°00T$.LN :pund a:ejM 21|0nd UO11eaNP3 SDIARS eloUeU <«
"000'00T$.LN :BIusD JuswdopAsq usbi|piu| 80 pue adoH ‘SNl L 8leAld Bunyore | <«
"000°00T$LN :uoirepunod Aeyd aleje/\ [B100S UOULBIN <«
'SMO||0} Se's| 6T Ul Suojeuop a|ceeyd (¢)
'6T0Z ‘LT AINC U0 Jayelo) Jeuuip axew pinom es siy utatediied
oym safojdwe ‘uolrepunod asnoH SPRUCADIN 8yl JO ,BWOH JNOA 01 By, UsAS a8yl 01 Josuods (T)
'SUoI1eUOp pue seiAde sfeleM [e100S T

weiboid
Buipesy ano dnoio ferded, g

'suoieuop
pue ssiliAlde afejjeMm [e1o0S T

801AIBS AlUNWIWOD
pue oS

"pfeoq ;8 8y Jo Bunssw 9T ay}
‘0202 ‘92 Uose |\ uo pariodal usaqg sey 1| “Auedwod ays Jo Aoijod A1Baiul ayl Inodge Jea|d mouy pinod ajdoad
pale R Jaylo pue ‘siewoisnd ‘sieljddns syl Bune| Jo) puseiul uo Aaijod A1beiul ay) 8sojasip ose pue ‘Adrjod
Aubajul Joj sbuiureny uoireonps pjoy 01 wuoe|d Buluses|e ybnodyl 'seniAnde ssauisng pue juswefeuew
feul Ul ApAissalbbe ,A1Baju| sseulsng Jo 8poD,, Y} Juswe (dwi SPAS| Juswebeuew pue s103oa41d ay.L

'SA1IANJe ssauisng pue
Wwewalbeuvew ueul Ul Ao1jod
AuBajul syl Jo sy ILIWIOoD ay)
JO uolreuBWwe |dwil Jo} ,,1oNpuo)
10JSaulppINg pue uawaleue A
[ed1y13 10} S9inpsd0.d .,

ay1 pue , A1ibeju | sssusng
Jo9po),, ay1 sey Auvedwo) ay |

AbBelu| sseusng

‘Buniodal

[e1oURUL pUE SWAISAS |041U0D feulUl ‘Sa1yIe a1eJodlod ‘Alljigisuodsal [e1oos arelodlod ‘Bununodde

‘sliejfe [efo| ‘90eWIW0D ‘ssauisng ‘JuslusBeuewL XS ‘9oueU 1) PRJBA0D S21d0) ay) pue ‘GTOZ Ul pa1onpuod
sem Bulutel) Jo sinoy /€ JO [e10} V *(S10108.1Q uspuadapu| € Buipn|oul) 1010410 2 Sey Auedwod 8yl “€

$85n00 Bulu el paredioned
Slo1%el1Q Josnessyl ‘g
3}ISCeM

-57-



'S30N0S3. JO a1sem pue uonn|jod ploAe 0} JBpPJo Ul Skainidenuew
[euoissajoid ay1 Aq pajoAdal ajom sabp1ilred Jeuol pasn (Builios 82IN0sal pue BuljoAda. S30IN0sal
euLiul s Auedwo) ayl pare nuesgns asem buljpuey Ajedoid pue BulpAdel aoinosal Bunowold '€
*Auoud yum BuLissuibue
UOI1eI029p 10} pasn aq pInoys saanixiy 1yb1 Buines-ABJeus pai}1ied pue SR LBTeW Uo11oNJIsuod Usals) Mew
uon29104d [RILBLULIOIIAUS UlIM SJIn]de jnuewl ay) Jo s1onpoJd syl Busn pue juswieanoold usalb Bulielpld ¢
"uoirewoul pawiud Jo uonnguIsip ayl
9ZIWuiw 01 aineubis-o Yyuim aineubis Jeded ay) pade|das pue auljuo paysiignd smau pey Auedwooayl  (g)
"asn Jaded anes 01 uolreiedo-o Bunowoid (8)
‘aw Aeplijoy 10 ANp 1O UBYM 8SO|D [|IM 11 ‘URIUNOY BTeM Ul jojuod awn Bunes (1)
'S90.IN0Sal JoTeM UsLisyd pue AjBuoiis seioijod Bulnes-ieremayl Buigsiignd  (9)
"aUIYJew sy Jo 841 991Aes 3y Bulueiuew pue Wood pjod Jo 10940
ayy Buinoidwi Jo) A nbal weisAs Buiuonipuod e 8yl uleluew pue Uea o 01 Jainidejnuew ayl s (G)
“fead- }Jo uaym auo abre| ay) ade|das 0] aulbus ,BUONIPUOD Ik [rwsay dnbumes  (v)
‘uondwnsuod ABJous Buionpal
JoJ A1enb e Joopulanoidwii pue spasu ainteledwial WooJ aAsIyJe 01 SWN|OA Je ayl anoidwil 01 Bul|id
31 U0 pa|elsul afe suej UoiR|Na4I0 e pue |04uod Buluonipuod-e yiim paddinbs ale sao1jo euolbey  (g)
‘Bunybi|
AJessaoauun JJo uiny usym dpy pinom 11 ‘8211J0 Ul SIDLISIP useJ1Ip Ag sjoauod weawdinba ybijayl  (2)
“Aousdiyge Bunyfi|
Joopui Bunowo.d 1o} JoAno| are|B-nue pue sdure| buines-ABieus 1dope a014Jo ul Juswdinbe Bunybiq (1)
‘|eny pue A11011109 o “JeIeM JO ash a1 90npa. 01 Sa101jod U0 110Npa. Uoged pue UoIeAssuod ABjsus palowold T

"a1sem
a|puey Ajedoid 01 s90I1N0sal

Jo Alenodalay) Bunowold €
"|pge| uo1199104d [RIUBLLILOIIAUS
a1 YlIM SeInide jnuew

Jo synpoud 01 Aioud Buinil -z

‘Aounoep

pue M JO asn au) aonpal

01sa01j0d UoIONPaJ Uoged pue
uoIreAlesuod Ableus bunowoid T

uon2910.d
[eISLILOIIAUT

‘6T0C
ut Aiande Jo [eob sy ybnoaypes.q Yoiym sfieq 00G'T JO [e101 @ pue ‘pesu Ul 8S0U) 01 8A0| puss pue poo|q
areuop 01 a1jgnd ay1 pue siequaw Ajiwe) ssafodwe ‘ssefojdwie s11 pa) dnolo elided ayl ‘uemie] ul
SPUISIP YINCS 0} YLou ay) BuLeAGd YoIym suoess £ 1o} papuedxe A1IANJe UOITeUOp Poo|q 8y} ‘UoITepunoS
poo|g 8y Yrim uoireledood ay Jo Jeak yipmi syl U| 'saniAnde akejjpm dijgnd - SS1IAITJe UOIfeUop poolg 'S

"9/ sewisLIyD uo A11D Bunyoe ] Ul wnesn A 90US10S pue Wnesn Al eJn1nd 1AniT

ayoeq 1SIA 0} pRHAULBJOM AUNOD NOIUEN Ul [00YdS Arewilid Businix Jo siuspnis pue sieydest |1V (v)
‘01010 Se
ons SuoITew IUe UMOUX-|[eM J0 $$900.d uo 112810 ay) 0iul dead aso (o dn pue ‘syiom 1d1iosnuew uo ifew ue
PUMOUB-P JIOM 8} 82U Liadxe UeJp|Iyd 177 “uoniqiyx3 1dLasnue i\ uofewiuy 1ig1yo ay Bunsia

Ainnde uoireuop poojq
dnoio feideD ¢

- B8 -



*Ad110d 821n0sa.4 tewiny o Me| 01 buipiodde [essIwsIp S@aAo|dwe ul
1nsaJ Rew Al1ienas yb1y Jo suoide ‘sioineyaq 1sauoysip 11giyold o1 ade(d ul swes/s
aouea 116 pue Areuldiosip A9 e pue ke sey Auedwo) ay] “Ad1jod 82inosal

pue suonde Areuldiosip ‘ssulppinb
[eloineyeq ‘sainpascold sedoud
Aq peuoddns seunseaw aseyl a1y

uvewiny ayl pue esreidde aouew.o jiad saako|duwe yiim uswebeuew A11i6aiul A | ¢S10npuod 1sauoysIp 1Suefe sainseaw
S9IRI00SSe pue ‘SIo1NeYa( 1SauoysIp Bulueouod Saunpadoid pue sa|n. Sauljino Aue aney Auedwod ayy seoq (£)
SUON .SaulppIng RloINeyeg puUe Sainpadold A1beiu| sseusng,, s,Auedwo) ayl (£) ¢SBivedwo)
pISITXAdL/ASML Jojss(diound
0117eld 1599 usweleue |\ arlodio)
[OIY13,, JO 2 3oV ‘2 ydeibered ay)
A|Buip.ioade surelboid uonuanaid
US1|cfeise pue ‘1onpuod [ediyeun
u1 panjoAul Buieq Jo »su eybiye
Te 8. yo1ym adods ssauisng syl Uiyiim
*Auedwiod ay) 01S8ss0| eloueu ) Ul Bunnsal yoiym side [njve|un Byio AIANe ssausng siseq fenfese uo
10 ‘uBWi [zzaguwd ‘pried) 1oyl ‘Buiyoreus ‘se1eqgo. ko dwe sepnjoul abieenod SSasse pue azAeue 10npuod [ealyeun
aoue.nsulay | 'ssekojdwe Aq pe|puey sadAl ssauisng ayj 01 Buipiodde saunsul SUeBe WSIUeYIBW JUSLLSSSSe
BUON pue ‘woais/As aoue.nsul aa)ue.enbd seuoy aa/ojdwe ue suswe [dwi Auedwiooayl ()| |A| dsue usigess Auedwod ayy seoq (2)
IUBLIHILULIOD S1Y} Bul| 14N}
‘ynm sbuleap ssausng Ul penIWWOoD PAS| Juswisbeuew
Sey 11 solred Aue pue siewosnd ‘seljddns 01 Ajreap sonl pue Aydoso|iyd AiBeul 3} pue SI0138.Ip JO preoq aylaly
S11 fBAuod 01 a|ge sI Auedwo) ayr ‘@1sgem uo Aoljod AibBaul syl Busopsip ¢Abaul
Ag "'senAnTe elojeWWOod pue Juswelbeuew feuseiul Inoybnoiyy Adtjod Aubeiul ayl SsauIsng ukeluew o) sey 11ssonoe.d
Buioiojue 01 panIWWOD ale Jusweleuew ayl pue SIoldalIp JO pleoq ayl yiog ‘6T0Z pue Sa101jod 8y} 1Noge 82UspuUodsa .0l
‘w62 BNV UO 11 pusle pue /T0Z ‘y/Z YoJeN Uo ade(d ul saulipping felolreypg pue [eu.elxe Jo wnpuelows
BUON S2INPa00.d A11iBeiu| ssausng,, pue ,1onpuo) Jo apo) Aubau|, sey Avedwo) ayl (T)| |[A sy ul paress Avedwo) ayr seH (T)
suoN|os pue
seljod AjBeul Jo JuBWysI|qeIsT T
S9IUedwo) paIs! T
X3AdL/ASML
Jojseidpuld
a0 _\Mwm% H,ch_om_ uonduosag Arewwns . RIBIID LOUSSIESY
wiol} uolieinap o|3
JO Sasned N A
pue uoirIneg (T @10N) @2ueueN0b [enOY

aouew.oied Qubelu| 9'€'e

- 59 -



‘9a/o0|dwe

ay1 0120uepinb Jodoud JoJo ||1m Juswikedap JO peay ayl ‘uolreniis ayl Jo Bulures|
uodn 'sannp Buiwioped ajiym sueb ariidoiddeul anpal 01 AP 1| Slop|oysdeIS

10 SaASWBY] puly Asy] ,BAsUBYM 11un 3|qsuodsal ay) pue Juswilredap Jo peay ayl

01 1oda. 01 pareb1|qo afe seako|dw3 “Bulisew JUS.1IND 3Y) JO SBINUIW BY] U PapIodal
aq ||IM sared useouU0d Aq 1S9J81U1 BuoI1|Juod JO 3duepIoAe pue ‘ssado.id Bulon
‘uoIssnasip ayl Buipnjoul s|ePp Uers Rl ||V S1saJelul s, Auedwo) ay) asiwoidwod 0}
A 1] S1 eyl 1L1Xe ay) 01 Juasaldal Aay Saue aelodlod sy Jo SISeelul Jo S1saeul
UMO 1Y} 1suefie 101)Juod e sjuesald Tey) epusle Aue uo 310/ pue UoISSNasIp 8yl Ul
ardnied 0] pamo|fe 1ou ale INg salienb Jemsue pue suoluido ssaudxe Aew si01e11q
‘9%e|d Ul ,SoAITRIUSSaIdeY SBES 0} SBUIPPINS 80UBPIOAY 101U Bunoijjuo),,

¢S1saJe1ul Budijuod Jo 1odal
BU1 87e11 |13} Jeyl s puueyd pue ‘Ise.eul

10 191]Juod suena.d eyl Aoijod
Aue aney Auedwo) syl ssoq (£)

pue uoeIRe(

BUON pue ,saulppIng JoiINeyeg pue Sainpadold A1ubeiu| sseuisng,, sey Auedwo) ayl (£) ¢, (;eak yoea awy auo 1odal
1Sea| 1v) Siseq enbas e uo Bulsew
Joalip Jo preog eyl 01 ssalboud
Sl uodal llun SIyl Seoq ¢sSnkes
'Siseq Jenbid. e uo S1018.1 JO pleog 01 pariodal uonejuswe|dw! 8yl Jojuow  pue
9(Q p|nom sniess A11I6a1ul Ssausng 8y 'S8sIn0d Bulu el ueAs i 8yl 81Ndexe pue ‘sajn. ‘sioineyeq Sssaule) puepp ‘AllbBaiul
pue 1020u02 A1iBejul ssauisng 8yl Bulounouue JoJ a|qisuodsal ake uswedep Alere SsouIsng Ul (POAJ0AUI SI J0) Sazie1oads
pue wewredop aoueldwod rbha| ayl uepsald Aq pasiniedns sey Auedwo) ayl (2)| |A [Tyl 1une aney Auedwo) ayl seoq (2)
3UON
"JONPUOI 1SBUOLSIp
Aue u1 paAjoAul aAey 0] punoj st Alkedelunod ayl Jiawi Aue e 13e11u0d ayl aeu i) ¢ssouLred ssausng Yyrim subis 11
Aleuonipuooun 0] Ared eyl o1 uswsabe Allfenuepjuod pue uolrereoap Adljod SiueWaBe ay) ul sasre o Allibaul Aue
uonoao.ad uoirewIoul feucsied ‘AP fes uoirewlo Jul SaInue eyl asre o Allibaul ue oyl aly SYlim sdiysuole pa ssauisng
SU RIUOD 13211U0D Y] Teyl a4ns axew pue ‘Aledieiunod ayl Jo A1ubaiul ayl aebnsaAul Sey 11 saledeiunod | jo A1ubeul
BUON Alybnouoyl pjnom Auedwo) ays ‘Arred Jeyioue yiim 1oenuode bulubis o1 loud(T)| (A ayraenens Auedwo) syl ssoq (T)
Jewebeuew paIy®p Buiougg
¢SweIsAs ue|dwoo
Souedwio) porsiT
X3AdL/ASML
Jojseidpuld
%) _\Mwm% H,ch_om_ uonduosseq Arewwnsg . LB 1O v
WwioJ} uoireIrap 0|3
JO SasMed N|A

(T @10N) @2ueuoA0b [enY

- 60 -



72 (yt) Alireq siuelD el L

0] Sa111SNpu | 821ABS RIdUeU I Joja|douLd Jo Juswsounouue Ad1j0d

(yT) '6TOC JO Jo1enb €

292 3yl ul wsLo.L) Jo Buoueul) syl Buleiunoo/bulispune| Asuo N-Nu Yy

10} 1S9] pue 8s1n02 Bulu el uoireonpa adue||dwod ebd]

(yT) '6TOZ Ul WSLIoLB |

€e Jo Buoueu 4 ay BuLiBuNo2 pue Bu Lispurne] Asuo |N- Uy Buiuenos

JGz (1ug) 6TOC J0 Jo1enb i sy Ul Bulpes wisl-Loys pue buipes)

JopIsu| 10} 1591 pue asIn0d Bulurel ] uoireonps aduel|dwod ehe]

(IYT) 6TOZ Ul Bulpel) JopISul pue UoIfewIojul apsul

8e [elielew Jo) sainpado.d ay) Jo suoir Nl pakpd 0} uoirr|0a(

212 (UT) 6TOZ UI Wewabeuew ALBB1U| Jo suoire|nbal Joj uoireoeq
mHme%n_mh_w_ﬂa 8s5In0D Jo aWeN

:BuIMO||0) Se SI 6TOZ Ul 8sIn0d Bulutesy A1ibajul Jo sneis ay L
'85Jn02 8y} pae |[dwod Buiney JO paepIsuod a( 01 Wexd asIn0d-1sod e ssed 01 palinbol

¢Aubaul

SseusNg UkelueW 01 Sseq fejnbal
B uo Bulutel) eukeixe o euselul
aziueblo Auedwo) ayrseoq (q)

pue uoeIRe(

(T @10N) @2ueuoA0b [enY

BUON ale seafo|dw3 'siseq fenbale uo buluren Ajubeiul sazivebilo Auedwo) ayl (G)
¢ued 1pre
"JuBWIredap Bunipre ayy Aq peuodal aq Wwens Pl BuisiAsp 10Npuod [eaIyPeun ul
[[1M 6TOZ Ul %S1I8Y) JO JUBWISSSSSe JO S)nsal 8y L “uswiredap Bunipre Aq peuswe [dwi JUSWIBA|OAUI JO XS11 8U} JO JuBLUSSasSe
SeM pue ‘gT0Z ‘nugT “AON UO 1033911 JO pleog 8 8y} Jo Bunsaw G auyl Aq 10 S}INSaJ 8y} UO paseq pue siseq
panoidde Apealfe sey ue|d Bunipre ueiul 6TOZ 'Siseq fenbal e uo juswiredsp 1ipre Je|nfale uo sioyIpre feusslxe/leueiul
feueiul ayl Ag paroadsul Arenbal a1e sWweisAs Yiog |, 'S A SeininH pue Sa1indes Aq peme1na. swilsAs asayl
Ul sas1ideIug 901ARS AQ SWOISAS [01U0D [eusdlu| JO JUBWIYSIgRIST 8yl BulueA0D) aly ¢ A1Baul ssauisng Bulueuew
suolr|nBay,, pue ,swiiH4 Sanindes Aq suoday [eloueulH Jo uolkedald ayl Bulueao Jo asod.nd ay1 J0J SWRISAS [011U0D
SuoIr|nBay,, uo paseq ,WBISAS [011U0D [eUBIU|, LR pUe ,WBISAS Bununodoy [euselul pue BununodJe A e
SUON Ue paub isap sey Auedwio) ayl ‘uswiebeuew A116a1ul aolojue 0 ;epio ul ()| |A pauswie [dwi1 Auedwo) syl seH (1)
S9IUedwo) paIs| T
X3AdL/ASML
Jojseidpuld
20 _\Mwm%u,w_om_ uonduosseq Arewwnsg . LB 1O v
WO} U0 IASP ol3
JO Sasned N A

-061-



JWBWILedap bunipne feuselulayl :BARRY

ssousng Jo ade|d s,Auedwo)d ay ssalppe Buljre A

"X0q |lews pue aul| 10y [eadde Buipn|oul ‘s1onpuod sl

10 110da.1 8k INoous 0] pue ssalboid pue Aousfedsuel) ‘A1116a1ul Jo 81Ny Nd a1elodiod
e 1oddns 01 8|ge|eAe SpuLRYD JOMO|CR [ISIYM Jo abuel apime sey Auedwod ay |
'6T0Z Ul ased [eadde ou sialyL "JuBwWiLedap Bunipre

[eUJBIU| ST JUSWLILIRAP PBIR0INSP SY L 'Siseq A|fep e Uo jusLuledsp paredipsp e Jo peay
a1 Ag peas si ,xoq|rew uoluido saAo|dwe,, ayl "s1onpuodsiw Bulodal pue ‘sainpado.d
Buiresedo Buinoidw i ‘uswebeuew s 11 Spremo) ssauseme saako|dwe astel

¢S1oNpuUoss W
pa1iodal ay) arebsaAul 0}

puuos.ed pareaipap ubisse Auedwo)d
31 S80(J ¢S1oNpuUods W Jodal

01 s99/0|dwse 10} SUesw pue SSAUBdUI

pue uoeIRe(

(T @10N) @2ueuoA0b [enY

SUON 0] .SaulppInS abiesn xoq|e A uoluldo safojdw3,, peluswe |dwi pue ‘ssefojdwe || | A apinoid Auedwo) ayrseoq (1)
01 Uedo S| Ty} 800Z '/ T "JeIN UO XOgjfew uoiu1do ue peust|gerss sey Auedwiod 8y.L () WeIS/S BuImo|ge ISIUM "€
06T (ayt) “Auedwod 8y} Jo ssausNg W0y 3iNdsIp 8y} JO SaulPPINY
(ug) "wershs
JMO|gB IS IyM pue ‘wewebeuew A116a1u| ‘sieuonndeld saining Ag
€92 uonIqIyo.d 10} 1591 pue 8snod Bulu el ] uoieanps aoue||dwod ebo
102 (JyT)sseuonnaed sann1unNdss Ag uonigiyold 1o} uswessunouue Ad1jod
(yt)
S6T '6T0C JO Jeak jfey 1511} 33 Ul SUO e [nBa. SB131INJSS JO UO (e [0aQ
(JyT) "BUIBII BYL UO
8T Bu e .few pue safes 10} SfeLslew BusieApe JO 1S9] pue uoier (38
61T (4yT) "BuBUIBUS [B100S |fewse JO 8SIN0J Bulutel) uoieanp3
GI2 (YT) 6TOZ Ul A Jes uoiewojul Joj bulutel} uoireonpg
orT (yT) A Jes WeisAs uolewLoul JO Uoire[ed
ce (ut) PV
uo119910.d eEp eUOSJEd JO 85IN02 Bulurel) UoIIRINPS Uik R0
(Iug) 6TOCZ J0 Jo1enb 1sT ayy ul Ansnpul
44 letoueul} ul Ao1jod Buieaq Jre4 pue 10 Uonosiold elep feuosed
10V U0119910.1d JSWNSU0) [eloueuld Jo}) 1s9] pue uolkere0a(
S9IUedwo) paIs| T
X3AdL/ASML
Jojseidpuld
%) _\Mwm% H,ch_om_ uonduosseq Arewwnsg . LB 1O v
wiol} uolieinap o |3
JO SS9 N|A

- 62 -



Oo=1X

GT=Ax¢dse uoiuido Jexiom/dnolb elide/my wodsaining erided mmm//sdny a1isgem

s,Auedwo) ay) uo

PpasO|os Ip Usaq sey uswefeuew AUl Jo ssa1601d "WaISAS 150d UoRASSTO e N
uo pue ‘feyod [euelxe 8y} ‘IBueliul 8y} Uo pasojosip usag aney ,Saulpping [eJoineyed

¢SdOIN pue a1isgeMm s
0juo ssaJbo.d pue sedipulid A1iBajul

pue uoleined

(T @10N) @2ueuoA0b [enY

SUON pue sa1npado.d AlliBaiu| sssusng,, ¢, 10npuo) Jo apod Alube|, s.Auedwo) ayl (T)| |A S11 paso|asip Auedwo) ayl seH(T)
9INSO[3SIP UOIfewIoul paouveyud
'Sa.Inseawl
3|CeJoneun Aue 8l Jou J8XJoM e Yons JO WLIoU IO 1J3e1ju0d ‘Me| 8yl Ylim aoueplodde| (A
u1s1jeuaq pue s1ybLl ay) wirey Jo ‘o safflem ayl aonpal ‘lBjsuel) ‘feu i) Jou Aew
pue ‘pa1e10.d aq ||1M Joindssold ay | "Alifenuep1juod Uk eW 0] punog a.fe Xod |rew ¢uo1o104d SMO|0PISIYM
uoiuido sa/fo|dwe ayi eI paJonlpp safiessow o Jpuey oym siefeuew pue 1ess |1V (€) Jadoud papinoid Auedwo) ay seH(g)
SUON
S9N HIOM
8y} 01 BuIPp.J0dJe JUBLITES]} PUR 891} ILULLIOD MBIASI puucsed syl Ag meinal
0}309[gns aq |[Imadiould Ayifeusp1juod 8y} Jo UoIe[OIA palelueIsans Auy <«
“Juewojul ay} Ajnuspl 01 pasn aq Ued Jey) o fewiojul
Aue Bunfes| WoJ) utreljel pue A1nuepI S UeWIo Ul 8y BAO AlleNUSpUOD <
‘SjuewIoul
J10J uonodlo.d Buimo|jo) ayl apinoid 01 punog si Auedwo) ay | ‘sesed paliodal
aebnsaAul pue a[puey 03 A11|iqsuodsal sy paufiisse usaq sey uswiedsq Buiipny
3l "Me| JO UOIR|0IA R 3]N1IISU0I 0] AjBX1] 92UB1IN220 Aue JO pried) ‘Bwild Bpnpul| (A ¢S3Se2 U0 11esnade JOo uoiehnsanul
uo 1odal Aew saaAo|dwie eyl sesed Jo sadA1ay] ‘M| JO UOIR[OIA B 3IN11ISU0D 0] A || pue Buniodal [enuapIjuod
S1 eyl Auedwod ayl uIylim adua1unda20 Aue Jo prel) ‘awl 1o 1odal 018 |ge ke ssafo|dwe 10] sainpado.d Buieedo prepuels
BUON [le .'SSulppIng uoireusWws [dw | WesAS Jemo|geisIyM,, s.Auedwo) ayi Jepun (2) usi|gerss Aueduwioo sy ssod(z)
S9IUedwo) paIs| T
X3AdL/ASML
Jojseidpuld
%) _\Mwm% H,ch_om_ uonduosseq Arewwnsg . LB 1O v
wiol} uolieinap o|3
JO SasMed N|A

-63-



‘Adljod A1ubeiul s, Auedwo) ayj 1nodge bulpueisiepun aep-01-dn Ue ssaAo|dwe pue SI0ISBAUI BAID 0] WBISAS 1S0d U0 IRAIBSAO 1B N

pue ‘Buenul ‘feuod s,Auedwo) syl eIA paso|osIp a.e Y2 IYyM Saseq pa Npayasun uo papusLe pue paMmeinal afe sai1oljod pue san Juswebeuew A1ubaiu|

(sodpund Alibeiul ssauisng Jono smainal Ba) A1ubalul ssauisng s,Aueduwio) ayl Bulpuelsiepun 01 JUeAs pJ U ITeWo Ul BYIO'9

wS2IUedwo) paisi X3d L/ASML 104 sa|didulid 801Jeld 1599 uaweleue |\ arlodio) eaIy3,

yrim ueldwod Ajnjake ,saulpping eioineyeg pue sainpadold A11ibeiu| sssusng,, pue ,10npuo) Jo apo) Alibeiu|,, ‘suoiesedo s,Auedwo) ay

:uoreBWS |dwi 1y} pue sa|d ouid syi Usemisd s31oueda.osIp Aue aq 1iosap * s itedwo) pais! | X3d1/ASML Jojsa(dioulid

90119eld 1599 Jewefeue \ arelodiod [ed1Y1F., 84} Yim 80Ueplodde U sa|dpulid Juawefeue \ atelodioD [ed1yig pausi|gelss sey Auedwod auy) §I'g

S91uedwo) pasi
X3ad1/ASML
Jojseidpuld
3011%e.d-1seg
ALBaul
W04} uoie1nap
JO Sasrned
pue uoieined

uondusseq Arewwns

z 0
> W n

(T @10N) @2ueuoAOb [Ny

©LB1D 1UBWISS3SS Y




3.3.7 If the Company has established corporate governance principles or other
relevant guidelines, references to such principles must be disclosed:

The Company's corporate governance policies have been disclosed at:

The Market Observation Post System, under Corporate Governance section.
https.//www.capital futures.com.tw/Capital group/organi zation.asp?xy=15& xt=1

3.3.8 Other important information material to the understanding of corporate
governance within the Company: None.

3.3.9 Internal Control System
A. Statement of Internal Control System, please refer to Page 67.

B. If the interna control system was reviewed by an external CPA, the result of such
review must be disclosed: None.

3.3.10 Penalties imposed against the Company for regulatory violation, or
penalties against employees for violation of internal control policy in the most
recent year up till the publication date of this annual report; describe areas of
weakness and any corrective actions taken:

(1) Decision letter issued by Chinese National Futures Association on Jan. 29, 2019: The
Company's specialist was found to provide investment analysis of futuresto unspecified
person who is not the appointed person in media. And the Company was issued a
warning.

Improvement: The Company has required all sales cannot be interviewed by any social
media before obtain the qualification of the Futures trading Analyst. And the violator has
already resigned on November 2018.

(2) The Company did not report the budget difference analysis regarding to the payment
for the consulting service to True Partner Advisor Limited in 2018, and also did not take
any effective management actions to the substantial increase of budget amount.
Otherwise, the sales bonus and consulting expenses should be accurately estimated based
on relevant budget. And the Company was found to violate Paragraph 21, Article 3 of
Operating Rules of Taiwan Futures Exchange Corporation on April 29t 2019 and
imposed a penalty of NT$60,000.

I mprovement:

(1) The Company intends to adopt improvement measures, and report to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors meeting on the status of the contract with the
True Partner Group and the payment of expenses over the years.

(2) For the budget management and cost estimation operations from June to December of
108, the difference analysis report has been prepared if the case whose difference
between the single project operating cost amount and the estimated budget is more
than 20% and exceeds NT $ 5 million, and cooperated with the quarterly report to the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors meeting; in addition, the top five
estimated costs of the changes during above period is in line with company
specifications and no abnormalities have been found
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Capital Futures Corp.
Statement of Internal Control System
Date: March 26, 2020

The following statement has been made based on a self-assessment of the Company’ sinternal control

system in 2019:

1. The Company isawarethat creation, implementation, and maintenance of internal control system are
the responsibilities of its board of directors and management, and has duly established such a system.
The purpose of internal control system isto provide reasonable assurances concerning the outcome
and efficiency of the Company’s operations (including profitability, business performance, and asset
security), the reliability, timeliness, and transparency of reported information, and compliance and
accomplishment of relevant regulations and goals.

2. There areinherent limitations to even the most well-designed internal control system. Assuch, an
effective internal control system can only reasonably assure the achievement of the three goals
mentioned above. Furthermore, changes in the environment and circumstances may all affect the
effectiveness of theinternal control system. However, the interna control system of the Company
features a self-monitoring mechanism that rectifies any deficienciesimmediately upon discovery.

3. The Company evaluates the effectiveness of itsinternal control system design and execution based
on the criteria specified in ““Regulations Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems
by Service Enterprisesin Securities and Futures Markets”” (hereinafter referred to asthe
““Regulations™”). The criteriaintroduced by the ““Regulations®” consists of five magjor elements,
each representing adifferent stage of internal control: 1. Control environment, 2. Risk assessment, 3.
Control activities, 4. Information and communication, and 5. Monitoring activities. Each major
element is further broken down into several sub-elements. Please refer to the ““Regulations™” for
more details.

4. The Company has adopted the abovementioned criteriato validate the effectiveness of itsinternal
control system design and execution.

5. Based on the assessments described above, the Company considers the design and execution of its
internal control system to be effective as at December 31, 2019%. This system (including the
supervision and management of subsidiaries) has provided assurance concerning the Company's
business results, target accomplishments, reliability, timeliness, and transparency of reported
information, and its compliance with relevant laws.

6. Thisstatement constitutes part of the Company’s annual report and prospectus, and shall be disclosed
to the public. Any illegal misrepresentation or non-disclosure in the public statement above are
subject to legal consequences described in Articles 115 of the Futures Trading Act and Articles 20,
32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

7. This statement was passed during the board of directors meeting held on March 26, 2020 by al 6
attending directors without objection.

Capital Futures Corp.

Chairman Sun, Tien-Shan

President Lee, Wen-Chu

! The statement date is the end day of fiscal year.
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Areas of Improvement and Rectification of the Internal Control System

Expected time
Areas of improvement required Improvements of
rectification

The Company did not report the (1) The company intends to adopt I mprovements
budget difference analysisregarding | improvement measures, and report to | have been
to the payment for the consulting the Audit Committee and the Board completed
service to True Partner Advisor of Directors meeting on the status of
Limited in 2018, and also did not the contract with the True Partner
take any effective management Group and the payment of expenses
actions to the substantial increase of | over the years.
budget amount. Otherwise, the sales | (2)For the budget management and
bonus and consulting expenses cost estimation operations from June
should be accurately estimated based | to December of 108, the difference
on relevant budget. analysis report has been prepared if

the case whose difference between the

single project operating cost amount

and the estimated budget is more than

20% and exceeds NT $ 5 million, and

cooperated with the quarterly report

to the Audit Committee and the Board

of Directors meeting.
The Company's specialist wasfound | The Company hasrequired all sales Improvements
to provide investment analysis of cannot be interviewed by any social have been
futures to unspecified person in media before obtain the qualification | completed
media, who is not the appointed of the Futures trading Analyst.
person.
The Company's specialists post the | The specialists have been asked to Improvements
processing fee and undeclared improve. have been
advertising material on PPT. completed
The Company's specialist post the The specialists have been asked to Improvements
Inappropriate words on his blog Improve. have been
which violates the rules. completed
The specialist in Taichung branch The registration record has been Improvements
was mistakenly registered in the already corrected. have been
head office. completed
The Company uploaded the After the Administration department | Improvements
post-information of the insider's received the notification of the stock | have been
equity change on April 2019. There | agency on May 14, 2019 has E-mail completed

are threeinsiders minor children's
information delay in the declaration.

to reminded the supervisors (in
accordance with the insider
regulations) to comply with the
insider declaration requirements.
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3.3.11 Magjor resolutions of the General Meeting of shareholders and the
Board in the most recent year to the date this report was printed:

Important resolutions and the implementation of the 2019 general shareholder meeting:
A. Date and Time: May 30", 2019 (Thursday) AM10:30
B. Location: B2, No. 97, Sec. 2, Dunhua S. Road. Da'an Dist., Taipei City

C. Implement status and resolutions:

Subject

Resolution

Implementation

Approval of the
Company’s 2018
business report and

This case was voted with 112,799,155 voting rightsin
favor (including 108,999,041 electronic voting rights),
accounting for 97.73 % of the total voting rights of the
presenting shareholders. There were 2,422,510 voting
right not in favor of the case (including 2,955,352
electronic voting rights). There were 832,480

To proceed as
resolved during the
shareholders meeting

individual financia electronic voting rights forfeited and O voting right and announce
statements invalid. accordingly.
This caseis passed according to the revolution reached
by voting in the board meeting.
A cash dividend of
This case was voted with 112,944,992 voting rightsin (NTD 3.4 per share
favor (including 109,054,878 electronic voting rights), |was distributed based
accounting for 97.85 % of the total voting rights of the |on the resolution
Approval of presenting shareholders. There were 225,028 voting  |reached in the
the Company's right not in favor of the case (including 225,028 shareholders
2018 earnings electronic voting rights). There were 2,245,989 voting |meeting.
appropriation rights forfeited (including 655,959 electronic voting  |(ex-dividend date

rights) and O voting right invalid.
This caseis passed according to the revolution reached
by voting in the board meeting.

was June 30", 2018
and cash dividend
were distributed on
July 26", 2018)

D. The execution progress and resolutions of shareholder’s meeting

Subject Resolution Implementation
This case was voted with 112,957,177 voting rightsin
favor (including 109,067,063 electronic voting rights),
accounting for 97.86 % of the total voting rights of the :
écr)nn?;grr]r;/egt tothe p_resenti ng shareholders. Ther(_a were 278,101 voting Tgr%ggdrnf ;n %/ of the
«Procedures for the right not in favor of the case (including 278,101 Acquisition and

Acquisition and
Disposal of Assets’.

electronic voting rights). There were 2,180,731voting
rights forfeited (including 590,701 electronic voting
rights) and O voting right invalid.

This case is passed according to the revolution reached
by voting in the board meeting.

Disposal of Assets’
has already amended
as resol uted.

Major resolutions of the General Meeting of shareholders and the Board in the most recent
year to the date this report was printed:
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Attendance

Item The summary of important items Init:;(lig;nt
Director
e Confirmation of the date, place and agendafor 2019 general |Director:
shareholder meeting. Sun, Tien-Shan,
The7h  |e Amendments of the Company’s 2019 “ Sales approval Wang,

; - " Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
meeting of | authority table”. Ching—Tsun
the 8" term |e Reporting of the transfer for Senior Executive Officer Lee, Yi-Hui ’

Board Wen-Jun Tseng to Futures Managed department. Independent
(2019.01.28) |e Appointment of the head of Proprietary department. Director:
e Discussion of 2018 performance review results for the Shea, Jia-Dong
Company’s managers (including) and above. Chen, Kuo-Tay,
e Discussion of 2018 bonus distribution for the Company’s  [Chuang,
managers (including) and above. Chih-Chen
eDiscussion of 2018 festival bonus distribution for the
Company’s managers (including) and above.
©2018 Statement on the overall implementation status of Director:
information security of the Company. Sun, Tien-Shan,
#2018 statement on the effective implementation of Wang,
Anti-Money L aundering/Countering Financing Terrorism g:'ﬁ.””‘CTh'h’ Liw,
internal control of the Company. m&gpg;nd?nr:’
2018 statement on the effective of design and Director:
implementation for internal control system of the Company. |shea, Jia-Dong
e The proposal of 2018 earning distribution of the Company. |Chen, Kuo-Tay,
e Amendment to internal control system of the Company. Chuang,
The8"  |e Amendment to partial regulations of “Procedures for the Chih-Chen
meeting of | Acquisition and Disposal of Assets’ of the Company. _
the 8 term | Amendment to “ Procedures for the L everage contract Director Lee,
Board transaction business and KY C rules’ of the Company. Yi-Hui appointed
. pany Director Sun,
(2019.03.27) oAmgno!ment tq “Rules for bonus distribution for the Tien-Shan to
institutional client department”. attend meeting.
e Report to “Corporate Social Responsibility Plan” of the
Company.
e Amendment to “ Corporate governance best practice” of the
Company.
e Report for the promotion of managers of futures advisory
futures department and proprietary department.
e Suggestion for the 2019 promotion list of managers
(included and above)
e Stipulation of the Company’s “ Standard operational protocol |Director:
for responding to requests from Directors’. Sun, Tien-Shan,
The 9"  |e Amendments of the Company’s “Guidelines of bonus Wang,
meeting of | distribution for Derivative department”. $:"|1_r|1uf:h'h Lee,
the 8" term |#2019 salary adjustment suggestions for the Company’s Independ
: : ependent
Board managers (including and above). Director:
(2019.05.13) |#2018 Remuneration distribution of the Company’s directors. |shea, Jia-Dong
¢2018 Remuneration distribution (cash) of the Company’s Chen, Kuo-Tay,
employee. Chuang,
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Attendance

Item The summary of important items Init:;(lig;nt
Director
Chih-Chen
Mr. Jiunn-Chih,
Liu
commissioned
Mr. Wang,
Jiunn-Chih for
attending the
meeting.
eTheindividual and consolidated financial report of the Director:
Company for thefirst half year of 2019 (1/1~6/30). Sun, Tien-Shan,
e The 2019 independence assessment of the Company’s \Wang,
accountant. Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
e Amendment to the Company’s “Articles of Association”. Ching—Tsun,
e Amendment to the Company’s “The Ethical Corporate Lee, Yi-Hui
Management Best Practice Principles’. Independent
e Amendment to the Company’s “Remuneration Committee  [Director:
The 10" Charter”. Shea, Jia-Dong
i e Amendments of the Company’s “Authorization Chart”. Chen, Kuo-Tay,
meeting of dments of the Company’sinterna control system Chuan
the 8" term e Amendments of tf pany s ol Sysiem. uang,
Board e Promotion activities of Dlscrgtl onary tr.a.n%\ctlon bug ness |Chih-Chen
(2019.08.29) for futures products with Capital Securities Corporation.
e e Change of the manager who is responsible for the project of
“Directions Governing Anti-Money Laundering and
Countering the Financing of Terrorism”.
e Confirmation of the project for foreign currency margin
transaction business and referral bonus.
e Adjustment of the calculation basis of annual bonus for
Securities proprietary trading department.
e The Company’s festive bonus distribution for managers
(including and above) in the first half year of 2019.
Director:
Sun, Tien-Shan,
Wang,
The 11th Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
: Ching—Tsun,
trk?eeetélf‘n'[ger ?I] * Appointment of the assistant vice president of L egal Lee, g(_i-H ui
Board compliance department. | ndependent
(2019.10.01) Director:
Shea, Jia-Dong
Chen,Kuo-Tay,
Chuang,Chih-C
hen
The 129  |eThe auditing expense for the accountant in the 2020 fiscal ~ |Director:
meeting of | year of the Company. Sun, Tien-Shan,
the 8" term |e The internal auditing plan in the 2020 fiscal year of the Wang,
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Item

The summary of important items

Attendance
Status of
Independent
Director

Board
(2019.11.11)

Company.
e Suggestion of the 2019 year-end remuneration which would
calculate as 2-month salary to the basis.

Jiunn-Chih, Leg,
Yi-Hui
Independent
Director:

Shea, Jia-Dong
Chen,Kuo-Tay,
Chuang,Chih-Ch
en

Mr. Wang,
Jiunn-Chih,
commissioned
Mr. Sun,
Tien-Shan for
attending the
meeting.

The 13t
meeting of
the 8™ term

Board
(2019.11.28)

e Approval of the Company’s 2019 cash injection project
which is mainly for replenishing operating capital.

e Amendments to the Company’s “Directions Governing
Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of
Terrorism for Futures Managed Business’ and related items.

Director:

Sun, Tien-Shan,
Wang,
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
Ching—Tsun,
Lee, Yi-Hui
Independent
Director:

Shea, Jia-Dong
Chen,Kuo-Tay,
Chuang,Chih-C
hen

The 14t
meeting of
the 8" term

Board
(2020.01.10)

e Confirmation for 2020 operating plan and budget of the
Company.

e Amendment to the “ Guidelines of bonus distribution for
direct sales department”.

e Appointment of the head of proprietary department.

Director:

Sun, Tien-Shan,
Wang,
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
Ching—Tsun,
Lee, Yi-Hui
Independent
Director:

Chen, Kuo-Tay,
Chuang,
Chih-Chen

The 15t
meeting of
the 8" term

Board
(2020.02.17)

e Decision of the date of capital increase and relevant affairs.
e Regarding to the 2019 capital increase project of the
Company.

Director:

Sun, Tien-Shan,
Wang,
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
Ching—Tsun
Independent
Director:
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Attendance

Item The summary of important items Init:;(lig;nt
Director
Chen, Kuo-Tay,
Chuang,
Chih-Chen
Lee, Yi-Hui
commissioned
Chairman Sun,
Tien-Shan.
e The directors and employees remuneration distribution of |Director:
the Company in 20109. Sun, Tien-Shan,
e Reporting the business report and financial statement in Wang,
20109. Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
e Bonus distribution in 2019. Ching—Tsun,
e Amendment to the “ Guidelines of bonus distribution for Lee, Yi-Hui
proprietary department.” Independent
e Amendment to “ Regulations Governing Leverage Director:
Transaction Merchants” of the Company. Chen,Kuo-Tay,
e To apply for aleveraged dealer CFD contract of goldand ~ {Chuang,Chih-C
crude oil business. hen
e Amendment to “organizational rules’ of the Company.
e Amendment to the Company’s “ Sales approval authority
table”.
e Amendment to the Company’s “Rules of Procedure for
Board of Directors Meetings“.
The 16" |e Amendment to the Company’s “Audit Committee Charter”.
meeting of |e Amendment to the Company’s “ Remuneration Committee
the 8" term | Charter”.
Board e Amendment to the Company’s “Article of Association”.
(2020.03.26) | Amendment to the Company’s “Rules of Procedure for

Shareholders Meetings’.

e By-election of one seat independent director.

e Confirmation the date, location and agenda of 2020 general
sharehol ders meeting.

e 2019 statement on the overall implementation status of
information security of the Company.

e 2019 statement on the effective implementation of
Anti-money Laundering/Countering Financing Terrorism
internal control of the Company.

e 2019 statement on the effective of design and
implementation for internal control system of the Company.

e Report to “Corporate social Responsibility Plan” of the
Company.

e Suggestion for the 2020 promotion list for employees of
manager grade and above.
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3.3.12 Documented opinions or declarations made by Directors or Supervisors
against Board of Directors resolutions in the most recent year, up until
the publishing date of this annual report: None.

3.3.13 Resignation or discharge of persons related to financial reporting
(including the Chairman, President, Chief Accounting Officer, Chief
Financia Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, and Chief F&D Officer) in the
most recent year to the date this report was printed: None.

3.3.14 The status of managers and directors participated corporate governance
training courses in recent years.

Titl , C
e Organizer Course Name ourse Hour
Name Date
. Taiwan Securities Countermeasures for Enterprises under the trend of
Chglurman Association global anti-tax avoidance. 20194.15 3
nl .
. T k Exch
Tien-Shan | 2" Stoc chenge 2019 Board Functions Enhancement Seminars 2019.116 | 3
Corporation
Taiwan Listed Oriental leader’ s lecture-Urban governance & 2019.9.18 5
Corporation Association |Corporate governance e
Director [Taiwan Listed Oriental leader’ s lecture- Industry trends under the 20191015 2
Wang, [Corporation Association [U.S.-Chinatrade war e
Jiunn-Chih SecUrities & FUtLres Discusﬁ on the responsibility of di -rgctors and
. supervisors from the case of securities market 2019.11.21( 3
Institute
malfeasance
i iti Ent i is t strat d
Director Talwa'n Secuntms n erp_nse crisis management strategy and case 2019.9.4 3
Liu Association analysis
Ching—Tsun Talwa_n secuntm Discussion thefrauq of financial statements from 2019.10.8 3
Association the problem enterprises
Taiwan Corporate The last defensing line of Corporate Governance - 2019.4.12 3
Independent [Governance Association |Directors liability insurance o
Director The influence of the internal control of corporate
Shea,  |Taiwan Corporate governance and the responsibilities of directors and
Jia-Don - : - . . 2019.4.26 | 3
9 |Governance Association |supervisorsis discussed in the latest revision of
Company law
Independent [ Taiwan Securities Key points and interpretation analysis of the 2019.3.20 3
Director |Association preparation of corporate financial statements e
Chuang, i iti ' . . .
. 9 Talwa-n Securmes Financial crime and fraud risk management 2019919 | 3
Chih-Chen |Association
Ind(-.:tpendent Taiwan S_tOCk Exchange 2019 Board Functions Enhancement Seminars 2019.11.21( 3
Director |Corporation
Chen, i iti The practice of “Forensic Accounting” in the
TawapSecunU% p. { unting” i 2019.12.18| 3
Kuo-Tay [Association detection of corporate fraud
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Course

Title/Name Organizer Course Name Date Hour
Chinese  [Seminar of analysis and case study for anti-money
_ ) national laundering and countering financing terrorism.
Executive Vice futures  |-From the risk assessment to see the STR suspicious | 2019/3/27 | 3
prﬁa%ent association |transaction declaration.
Jen-Hl,Ja Securities& [On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
Futures  |countering financing terrorism for specialized 2019/8/5 | 12
Ingtitute  [supervisors.
Executive Vice ! . .
prescnt | acaupess | B e e | 2019127 | 7
Yang, Rui-Ling gp o ¥
Executive Vice Taiwan On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
. o o . . 3 2019/9/7
president Securities  [countering financing terrorism for specialized 12
Huang, Wei-Ben Association |supervisors. 2019/12/12
Executive Vice Taiwan  |On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
. - o . . 3 2019/10/19
President Securities  [countering financing terrorism for specialized 12
Jhuo, Zheng-Gang Association |supervisors. 2019/12/16
Senior Vice President Tawgn On+j ob-_tral ?I ng of antl—mopey Ifaunderl na?ar;g 228)%9//15/59 o
Peng, Jian-Cheng Secu.r|t|.e3 counte_rl ng financing terrorism for specializ 19/10/19( 1
' Association |[supervisors. 2019/12/14
Senior Vice President | Securities& [On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
Lee, Futures  |countering financing terrorism for specialized 2019/9/9 | 12
Chung-Wei Institute  [supervisors.
Assistant Vice Taiwan  |On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
. I o . . 2 2019/7/25
President Securities  [countering financing terrorism for specialized 12
o . 2019/8/12
Huang, Guo-Rong Association  [supervisors.
Chinese
Senior Vice President national  [Seminar of analysis and case study for Emerging 2019515 | 3
Chen, Chi-Hau futures  |Technology Information Security Law.
association
Chinese
national  [Seminar of analysis and case study for Emerging
futures  |Technology Information Security Law. 2019/5/15| 3
Vice President association
Lian, Jing-Lian Securities & |On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
Futures  |countering financing terrorism for specialized 2019/9/9 | 12
Institute  [supervisors.
Accounting
R chand In-service training course for accounting manager 2019/8/8 | 12
. . . Development
Senior Vice President .
Lin Li-Juan Foundation
' Securities &
Futures  [Annual continuous training of accounting manager. |2019/12/12| 6
Institute
Vice President Taiwan
. Securities  |On-job-training of information safety officers. 2019/4/17 | 15
Ho, Zhuo-Yi o
Association
Chinese
Manager national  [Seminar of analysis and case study for anti-money
. . . S . . 2019/8/29| 3
Liu, Bai-Shan futures laundering and countering financing terrorism.
association
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3.4 Disclosure of CPAS remuneration

Unit: NTD thousand

Non-audit remuneration

Auditor's Name of Audit - - CPA

- ) Policy | License | Human | Others | Subtotal - . Remarks

firm CPA remuneration design | registration | resource | (Note2) auditing period

Lee, Feng-Hui
KPMG e?’csng u 1,940 59 59 2019.01.01~
Taiwan b ' 2019.12.31
Tan-Tan

Note 1: If thereisany CPA or CPA Firm being replaced in current year, the auditing period should be indicated separately and the
reason for such replacement should be detailed in the remark column; aso, the information regarding the audit and non-audit fee paid

should be disclosed.

Note 2: non-audit remuneration should be listed separately by service category. If the "Other" category amounts to 25% of total
non-audit remuneration, then services must be detailed in the remarks column.

A. Remuneration of non-audit services to CPAs, CPAsS firm and its affiliated
companies that exceed one quarter of audit remuneration: None.

B.

If a change in accounting firm resulted in a lower audit remuneration for that year

compared to the previous year, the amount, percentage, and reason of the reduction

must be disclosed: None.

C. If the audit remuneration was reduced by more than 10% from the previous year, the
amount, percentage, and reasons for the reduction must be disclosed: none.

3.5 Change of CPA: If the company has replaced its certified public accountant
within the last 2 fiscal years or any subsequent interim period: None.

3.6 Disclosure of any of the Company’s Chairman, President, or managers
involved in financia or accounting affairs being employed by the auditor’s
firm or any of its affiliated company: None.

3.7 Transfer and pledge of shares by Directors, Supervisors, Managers and
Magjor Shareholders

3.7.1 Directors, Supervisors, Managers and Mgjor Shareholder
transfers and changes in shares collateralized

Unit: shares
2019 2020 (Up till 3/31)
Increase Increase
: Increase (decrease) in Increase (decrease) in
Title (Note 1) Name (decrease) in (decrease) in
sharesheld | ¥ gareshed | S
collateralized collateralized
Director and major ) o
shareholder Capital Securities Corp. 0 020,187,169 0
Chairman, director, .
representative and CEO Sun, Tien-Shan -1,000 0 525,000 0
Director representative Liu, Ching-Tsun 0 0 0 0
Director representative Wang, Jiunn-Chih 0 0 0 0
. Hung Y eh Investment
Corporate Director Co., Ltd 0 0 0 0
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2019 2020 (Up till 3/31)
Increase Increase Increase Increase
Title (Note 1) Name (decrease) in (decSL?z) n (decrease) in (deggi) n
sharesheld | o 1ateralized| &SN | oojlateralized
Director representative Lee, Yi-Hui 0 0 0 0
. Shea, Jia-Dong ) )
Independent Director (Reassigned on 2020.1.2) 0 0
Independent Director Chen, Kuo-Tay 0 0 0 0
Independent Director Chuang, Chih-Chen 0 0 0 0
President Lee, Wen-Chu -756 0| 142,690 0
Senior executive vice Chen, Wen-Tsay, 0 0 20,000 0
president
Senior executive vice Mao, Jen-Hua -16,000 0 80,000 0
president
Senior executive vice Lin, Chi-Cheng 0 0| 60,000 0
president
Senior executive officer Hsu, Jhen-Zong 0 0 0 0
Senior executive officer Yang, Yau-Yu 0 0 0 0
Senior executive officer T;eng, Wen-Jun 0 0 - -
(Retired on 2019.04.01)
Senior vice president Xia, Huan-Ting -33,000 0 0 0
Senior vice president Ho, Yu-Wen 0 0 0 0
Executive vice president Yang, Rui-Ling -5,000 0 55,000 0
Executive vice president Huang, Wei-Ben -5,000 0 60,000 0
Senior vice president Lin, Li-Juan 0 0 0 0
Senior vice president Hsu, Ji-Ching 0 0 30,000 0
Senior vice president Zong-We, Li 0 0 23,000 0
Senior vice president Kuo, Shu-Zhen 0 0 0 0
Senior vice preg dent Lin, Xiao-Chian 0 0 45,129 0
Senior vice president Peng, Jian-Cheng -2,000 0 0 0
Senior vice president Cherp Chi-Hau
(Unpaid leave from 0 0 -
2019.09.16)
Senior vice president Chen, Wei-Ting 0 0 72,765 0
Senior vice president Chang, Lin-Chung 0 0 - -
(Resigned on 2019. 03.01)
Senior vice president Fan, Jhen-Hong 0 0 0 0
Senior vice president Jhuo, Zheng-Gang 0 0 0 0
Vice president Ho, Zhuo-Yi 0 0 42,543 0
Vice president Chen, Tsung-Yu 0 0 35,000 0
Vice president Chung, Cheng-Huang 0 0 6,000 0
Vice president Chu, Hsu 0 0 0 0
Vice president Y ang, Shih-Chuang 0 0 0 0
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2019 2020 (Up till 3/31)
Increase Increase
- Increase (decrease) in Increase (decrease) in
Title (Note 1) Name (decrease) in (decrease) in
sharesheld | TS gharesheld | e

collateralized collateralized

Vice president Lin, Ching-Ming 0 0 0 0
Vice president Huang, Pei-Lun 0 0 0 0
Vice president Lian, Jing-Lian 0 0 0 0
Assistant vice president Lee, Tuan-Kang 0 0 0 0

(Appointed on 2019. 10.21)
Assistant vice president Huang, Guo-Rong 0 0 3,000 0
. Lin, Chi-Pin
Senior M anager (Appointed on 2019. 04.01) 0 0 0 0
Senior Specialist Lin, Shiou-Ju 0 0 -2,000 0
Senior Specialist Liu, Bao-Hua 0 0 0 0
Senior Specialist Chang, Li-Jiao 3,000 0 0 0
Senior Specidlist Tsa0, Shu-Hui 0 0] -15,000 0
Senior Specialist Chang, Mu-Min 0 0 0 0
Assistant vice president You, Bo-Liang 0 0 0 0
(Appointed on 2019. 09.16)

Note 1: Shareholders holding >10% of the Company's outstanding shares should be specifically marked as major shareholders.
Note 2: If the counterparty for equity transfer or equity pledgeis arelated party, pleasefill out the form referred to below: None.

3.7.2 If the counterparty for equity transfer or equity pledge is arelated party:

None.

3.8 Relationships among the Company’s top 10 shareholders including spouses,
second degree relatives or closer

Date of information: April 21th, 2020 Unit: Share

RELATIONSHIP
CHARACTERIZED
AS
SPOUSE OR
SHARESHELD BY RELATIVE
SELF SHAREHOLDING SPOUSE AND UNDERAGE S'l:j‘il\RAEESSZIIE:LC?'I'llTETRiE OF SECOND
CHILDREN DEGREE OR
NAME (NOTE 1) CL%S'ER;SQA%NG REMARKS
SHAREHOLDERS.
(NOTE 3)
Shares Shareholding | Shares [Shareholding | Shares [Shareholding Relation-s
held percentage held percentage held percentage Name hip
Capital Securities Corp. None | None
Representative: Wang, 119,370,014 56.72% - - -
Jiunn-Chih
Hontai lifeinsurance Co., Ltd.
. 4,836,434 2.30% - - -| None | None -
Representative: Lu, Huan-I
Feng Y ang Investment Co., Ltd
Representative: Wang, 3,795,343 1.80% - - -| None | None -
Hui-Chin
Tseng Mao Investment Co., Ltd
g Meo , 3793311  1.80% - - -| Nore | None | -
Representative: Tung, Ta-Nien
Gains Investment Corp.
_ P 2,003,000 0.95% - - -| None | None -
Representative: Huang,
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RELATIONSHIP
CHARACTERIZED
AS
SPOUSE OR
SHARESHELD BY RELATIVE
SELF SHAREHOLDING SPOUSE AND UNDERAGE | SHARESHELD IN THE OF SECOND
CHILDREN NAMES OF OTHERS DEGREE OR
NAME (NOTE 1) CLOSERAMONG | REMARKS
THE TOP-10
SHAREHOLDERS.
(NOTE 3)
Shares Shareholding | Shares [Shareholding | Shares [Shareholding Relation-s
held percentage held percentage held percentage Name hip
Pai-Chien
Sun, Tien-Shan 1,231,162|  0.59%| 631,550  0.30% -| None | None -
DFA found-Emerging market 838,895 0.40%
Huang, Chin-Mi ng 837,000 0.40% - - - -| None | None -
Chang, Chia-Chin 795,000 0.38% - - - -| None | None -
Ho, Shou-Chuan 722,000 0.34% - - -l None | None -

Note 1: All top-10 shareholders have been listed. For corporate shareholders, the name of the corporate entity and the name of the

representative are shown separately.

Note 2: The percentages of shares held under own name, spouse's name, underage children's names, or in the names of others are cal culated

separately.

Note 3: Relations among the abovementioned shareholders (including corporate and natural -person shareholders) have been disclosed in
accordance with the relationships defined in Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities | ssuers.

3.9 Investments jointly held by the Company, the Company's directors,
managers, and enterprises directly or indirectly controlled by the Company.
Calculate shareholding in aggregate of the above parties:

Date: March 31%, 2020 Unit: shares; %

Held by Directors,
Supe_rvisors managers, Aggregate ownership
Invested Business Held by the Company | and directly or indirectly interest
(Note 1) controlled enterprises
Shares | Shareholding Shares held Shareholding [ Shares | Shareholding
held percentage percentage held percentage
CSC Futures (H.K.) Ltd. 214,000 97.27% - - 214,000 97.27%
gz;r);)tal International Technology 5,000 100% ) i 5,000 100%
True Partner Capita Advisor o ) i o
HK. Ltd. 245 49% 245 49%
Capital True Partner Technology o ) i o
(Chengal) Co., Ltd, 510 51% 510 51%
Capital Futures  Technology o ) i o
(Shanghai) Co,, Ltd. 4,000 100% 4,000 100%

Note 1: Invested business which is recognized as long-term investments under equity method.
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IV. Funding Status

4.1 Capital and outstanding shares

4.1.1 Source of capital and share category:
A. Source of capita

Unit Shares
Authorizes capital
Share categor - Remarks
egory Outstanding shares | Treasury Stock Tota
Registered Listed
_eg 210,437,584 39,562,416 250,000,000 .
ordinary shares securities
B. Share capital composition
Unit: NT dollars
Authorized capital Paid-up capital Remarks
vear | Isue Source of Paidit_n
. roperties
Month | Price| Shares Amount Shares Amount ure prop Others
capital other than
cash
1997.02| 10 | 20,000,000 200,000,000/ 20,000,000/ 200,000,000 |Share capital initiation| None -
1997.11| 10 | 120,000,000| 1,200,000000| 45,000,000 450,000,000 gﬁg’dm'\m None | Notel
Privete placement toting
2003.11| 10 | 120,000,000| 1,200,000,000| 61,500,000| 615,000,000 \TD 165000000 None | Note2
PO capital increasing
2009.03 | 27.5 | 120,000000| 1200000000 67,650,000 676500000| 61,500,000 None | Note3
Increasing capital by
2009.07| 10 | 120,000,000| 1,200,000,000| 75226,800| 752,268,000 |NTD75, 768,0000ut | NOne | Noted
of earnings.
Increasing capital by
2010.06 | 10 | 120,000,000| 1,200,000,000| 84,630,150| 846,301,500 |NTD94, 0335000ut | None | Note5
of earnings.
Increasing capital by
2011.07| 10 | 120,000,000| 1,200,000,000| 92,246,863 922,468,630|NTD76,167,1300ut | None | Note6
of earnings.
Increasing capital by
2013.08 | 10 | 120,000,000 1,200,000,000| 100,087,847 | 1,000,878,470|NTD78, 409,8400ut | NOne | Note7
of earnings.
Increasing capital by
2014.06 | 233 | 120,000,000| 1,200,000,000| 119,997,847 | 1,199,978,470 [INTD199, 100,000 out | NOne | Note8
of earnings.
Increasing capital by
2015.07 | 10 | 250,000,000| 2,500,000,000| 122,397,804 | 1,223,978,040 [NTD23,999,570 None | Note9
out of earnings
2017.02 | 3138 | 250000,000| 2,500,000,000| 160,397,804 1,603,978,040 |~ SHetdiIng None | NotelO
' : e i e h PP INTD 380,000,000 ote
Capitd surplustrendferred
2018.08 | 10 | 250,000,000| 2,500,000,000| 176,437,584| 1,764,375,840 |to capitd None | Notell
NTD 160,397,800
2020.03 | 344 | 250,000000| 25500,000000| 210437584| 2,104375,840 | = ISULOENY Notel2
. y ,000, ,500,000, 437, ,104,375, NTD 340,000,000 None ote
Note 1. Approved under Notice(86) Tai-Tsai-Cheng-84102 dated 1997.11.27.

2. Approved under Notice Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(7)- 0920154585 dated 2003.11.27.
3. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-(7) - 0980012451 dated 98.03.31.
4. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-0980032927 dated 2009.07.02 .
5. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-0990032848 dated 2010.06.25.
6. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1000033210 dated 2011.07.18.
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7. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1020028556 dated 2013.07.22.
8. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1030014783 dated 2014.05.07.
9. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1040025089 dated 2015.07.03.
10. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1050044467 dated 2016.11.15.
11. Approved at 2018.07.04.

12. Approved at 2020.01.30.

4.1.2 Shareholder Structure:
Asof April 21", 2020
Shareholder Other Foreign
Structure| Government| Financial L Domestic Institutions
. . I nstitutional Total
Agencies | Institutions Natural Persons &
. Investors .
Quantity Individuals
Number of
shareholders 0 3 82 11,007 59 11,151
Shares held 0 5,521,966 | 133,669,962 | 66,289,238 | 4,956,418 | 210,437,584
Percentage 0% 2.62% 63.52% 31.50% 2.36% 100.00%

Note: Primary exchange (or OTC) listed companies and emerging stock companies are required to disclose the shareholding ratio of
mainland Chinese investors. According to the Article 3 of Measures Governing Investment Permit to the People of Mainland Area, mainland
Chinese investorsinclude the individuals, juristic persons, organizations, other institutions from Mainland and the companies they invest into
inathird area

4.1.3 Shareholding Distribution Status:

A. Ordinary shares: Face value at ten dollars per share.
As of April, 21%, 2020

Swary | N | Mg | Seted
1t0 999 2,103 504,347 0.24%
1,000 to 5,000 6,507 13,442,495 6.39%
5,001 to 10,000 1,237 9,125,803 4.34%
10,001 to 15,000 434 5,349,145 2.54%
15,001 to 20,000 215 3,850,654 1.83%
20,001 to 30,000 247 6,114,638 2.91%
30,001 to 40,000 120 4,203,364 2.00%
40,001 to 50,000 73 3,273,313 1.56%
50,001 to 100,000 121 8,452,427 4.02%
100,001 to 200,000 60 8,404,856 3.99%
200,001 to 400,000 15 3,914,613 1.86%
400,001 to 600,000 3 1,539,832 0.73%
600,001 to 800,000 8 5,556,938 2.64%
800,001 to 1,000,000 2 1,675,895 0.80%
1,000,001and above 6 135,029,264 64.17%
Total 11,151 210,437,584 100.00%

B. Preference shares; None.
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4.1.4 List of mgjor shareholders
As of April, 21%, 2020

Shareholdin Number of shares | Shareholding

Name of major shareholder ’ held (shares) per((:oe/g)t age

Capital Securities Corp. 119,370,014 56.72%
Hontai life insurance Co., Ltd. 4,836,434 2.3%
Feng Y ang Investment Co., Ltd 3,795,343 1.8%
Tseng Mao Investment Co., Ltd 3,793,311 1.8%
Gains Investment Corp. 2,003,000 0.95%
Sun, Tien-Shan 1,231,162 0.59%
DFA found-Emerging market 838,895 0.4%
Huang,Chin-Ming 837,000 0.4%
Chang,Chia-Chin 795,000 0.38%
Ho,Shou-Chuan 722,000 0.34%

4.1.5 Market price, net worth, earnings, and dividends per share, and other
relevant information for the last two years

YVear Y ear-to —date
ltem 2018 2019 March 31%, 2020
(Note8)
Market price Highest 68.80 48.90 44.85
rzg fﬂalr;e Lowest 39.40 41.35 31.70
ote
Average 55.87 45.57 39.04
Net gorth Before dividend distribution 28.52 28.41 -
er share
?Note 2) |After dividend distribution 25.12 Not distribute yet -
yyadhedaverageoutstending | 176,437,584 | 176,437,584 ;
ar% 1 ) ) L
Earninas per |E&rings per share
shagr]e P (Before adjustment) (Note 3) 4.73 340 )
Earnings per share -
(After adjustment) (Note 3) 473 Not distribute yet -
Cash dividend 3.40 1.90 -
Dividends | oK 0.00 - -
per share dividend 0.00 - -
Cumulative undistributed
dividends (Note 4) 0.00 0.00 )
P/E ratio (Note 5) 11.81 13.40 -
ROI analysis|Price to dividend ratio (Note 6) 16.43 23.98 -
Cash dividend yield (Note 7) 6.09% 4.17% -

*Where stock dividends were paid from earnings or capital surplus, market price and cash dividends per share are adjusted retrospectively
for the number of new shares issued.
Note 1: The table shows the highest and lowest market price of common shares in each year; average market priceis calculated by weighing
transacted prices against transacted volumes in the respective years.
Note 2: Calculated based on the number of outstanding shares at year-end; amount of distribution resolved in next year's shareholders
meeting is presented in the table.
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Note 3: Where stock dividends were issued, EPS are disclosed in amounts before and after retrospective adjustments.

Note 4: If equity securities are issued with terms that allow dividends to be accrued and accumulated until the year the Company makes
profit, the amount of cumulative undistributed dividends up till the current year is disclosed separately.

Note 5: P/E ratio = average closing price per share for the year / earnings per share.

Note 6: Price to dividend ratio = average closing price per share for the year / cash dividends per share.

Note 7: Cash dividend yield = Cash dividend per share / average closing price per share for the current year.

Note 8: Net worth per share and earnings per share are based on audited (auditor-reviewed) data as at the latest quarter before the publication
date of this annual report. For all other fields, calculations are based on data as at the end of their respective years.

4.1.6 Dividend Policy and execution

A. Dividend policy stated in the Company's Articles of Incorporation:
The dividend policies stated in The Company’s Articles of Association is to ensure long-
term financial stability and business development while satisfying the needs for future
growth, and thereby maximizing shareholders' interests. According to the Company's
articles of Association, any profits concluded from year-end closure are first subject to
taxation and reimbursement of previous losses, followed by a 10% provision for legal
reserve, a 20% provision for special reserve, and other provisions required by law.
Distribution of annual earnings, including accumulated retained earnings are distributed
for the purpose of reserving capital required for operation; other dividends can be
distributed in cash, and cash dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total distributed
dividend. According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, after-tax earnings
should first offset accumulated deficit, and then 10% of the remainder should be
appropriated as legal reserve.

B. Dividends distribution proposed in the shareholders' meeting:

The net profit after-tax of the Company in 2019 is NT$600,008,826 plus (1)

Accumulated undistributed earnings NT$ 558,897, and then subtracts (2) Actuarial loss

on defined benefit plan included in Retained Earnings of this year NT$ 664,244, to

calculate the distributable net profit in 2019 is NT$599,903,479 which according to the

Article of Association of the Company can be distributed as following:

1. The amount of legal reserve is NT$59,990,348.

2. The amount of special reserve is NT$119,980,696.

3. The amount of Special reserve appropriated due to reduction of shareholders’ equity
occurred is NT$18,553,248.

4. Cash dividend will amount to NT$399,831,410 at NT$1.9/share on the basis of
210,437,584 outstanding shares round to the nearest NTD. The fraction falling below
this amount shall be recognized as other incomes of the Company, as for the
unappropriated retained earnings in the end of term is NT$1,547,777. The Chairman
shall set the dividend day and related issues upon the finalization of the General
Meeting of shareholders.

5. If the Company is affected the number of outstanding shares as a result of changes in
share capital, so that the shareholders of the interest rate changes, intends to authorize
the Chairman to adjust.

4.1.7 Impacts of proposed stock dividends on the Company's business
performance and earnings per share: Not applicable.

4.1.8 Employees'/Directors'/Supervisors' remuneration
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A. According to the article 27 stated on Articles of Association, the Company should
distribute 0.6% to 2% of the profit of the current year distributable as employees
compensation, and 3% or less of its profit of the current year distributable as
Directors remuneration. However, the Company's accumul ated losses shall have been
covered first. The Company’ s profit of the current year distributable mentioned above
is the earnings before tax deducting employees’ compensation and Directors
remuneration.

B. The Company’s profit in 2019 is NT$ 764,374,141 (It hasn’t |ess before-tax income
that is subject to the estimation of employee’ and directors' remuneration yet).
According to Articles of Association, the board of directors concluded to distribute
2019 employees' remuneration totaling NT$ 8,713,865 which percentage to profit of
current fiscal year is 1.14% and directors remuneration totaling NT$ 8,713,865 in
cash. And it is no difference with the amount which was resoluted by Board meeting.

C. The estimated amounts of remuneration to employee and director and supervisors
distributed by the Company for 2018 were both NT$ 12,082,826. There was no
difference between resolution which approved by Board meeting and actual
distribution.

D. The Directors remuneration policy and standard was created in accordance with the
Articles of Association. The Board of Directors is authorized to determine remuneration
levels for each Director based on their involvements and contributions to the Company's
operations, in reference to peer standards. Travel subsidies can also be made depending on
their actual attendances to the Board of Directors meetings. Remuneration to the Chairman
and Vice Chairman are determined based on their job responsibilities, the normal level of
salary, and annual performance, and are subject to the Board of Directors approval.

In order to ensure congruency between employees goals and shareholders' interests while
being able to retain quality talents, the Company has established the “ Principles of
Employee Performance”, “ Guidelines of Employee year-end awards’ ....etc. The
Company would report the performance appraisal results, salary and bonus to the
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors every year regularly.

The company has set "Guidelines of employees’ performance evaluation ", "Guidelines of
employees' year-end bonus distribution” and" Guidelines of festival bonus distribution "
and the “ Guidelines of sales’ bonus distribution” as the performance evaluation and
remuneration system for the executives and employees of the Company to share the
operating results together. In 2019, the earnings per share of the Company was NT$3.4
per share, the average employee benefit expense was NT$1,280 thousand dollars per
person, and the average employee salary expense was NT$1,137 thousand dollars per
person. The average salary of full-time employees not holding supervisory positions was
NT$1,078 thousand dollars per person, and the median salary expense was NT$813
thousand dollars per person.

4.1.9 Shares repurchased by the Company in the most recent years: None

4.2 Disclosure relating to corporate bonds, preference shares, depository receipts,
employee stock warrants. None

4.3 Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions:
None.
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4.4 Financing plan and Implementation status:
(1) Plan:

Cash increase issue of 34,000,000 shares, each at the denomination of $10 and funds raised
in the amount of NT$ 340,000,000. The approval date and document number were Jan. 30,
2020 and Jin-Guan-Zheng-Chi-Zi No. 1090300222. And Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation has already approved the share payment voucher of the Company could trade
on the market on Mar. 31, 2020 as the regulations.

(1) Execution:

Cash increase issue of 34,000,000 shares, each share issued at NT$ 34.4 per share and
funds in the amount of NT$ 1,169,600 thousand dollars and paid-in capital of the Company
would raise to NT$ 2,104,375,840. The mainly purpose of cash issue project is to
supplement operating funds for long-term investment, and to raise the net value, capital and
ANC ratio of the Company aswell. The fund raising is used as the capital reserve for future
new business applications and investment layout in the future which is predict to strengthen
the Company's sustainable and stable operation, and strengthen the financial structure to
reduce the debt ratio, increase the current ratio and quick ratio, and thus strengthen the
Company's long-term competitive advantage in the industry.

Unit: NT$ thousand

Scheduled Capital Use Situation
Plan ) Total fundsrequired
completion date 2020 Q1
Replenishing
_ 2020 Q1 NT$ 1,169,600 NT$ 1,169,600
Operating fund




V.Operating Highlights

5.1 Content of Business

5.1.1 Business Scope

The mainly business of the Company is including futures clearing and settlement, and
clearing and settlement service, futures brokerage, proprietary futures and securities
trading, futures consulting business, leverage trading business, derivative financia
products development....etc. Except for Taiwan's Futures clearing and settlement
market, the Company also focus on global futures market, including the exchanges of
the U.S., Singapore, Hong Kong, Europe and Japan, and develop an online trading
system providing clients to place orders with Direct Market Access to those
exchanges. In genera speaking, the Company is the second largest futures dealer for
overseas futures and option products in Taiwan.

The Company’s subsidiary CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. has acquired memberships as
Clearing Members or Trading Membersin twelve international futures exchanges, and
it is also the first FCM in Taiwan which acquired brokerage and proprietary trading
dual memberships of Singapore Derivatives Exchange, as well as the first company
approved for exchange memberships of the CME Group such as CME, CBOT,
NYMEX, and COMEX. Also, the Company is a trading member of EURONEXT,
|CE Futures Europe, ICE Futures U.S., and a TPH of CBOE Futures Exchange, Hong
Kong Futures Exchange and Clearing House.

The Company always actively explores and cultivates every opportunity of further
developments in the finance industry. Clients of the Company may learn its ambition
by contacting salespersons, trading on the well-designed IT system, and experiencing
the professional risk management system.

A. Principle Business Activities:

B

1

2
3
4,
5.
6
7
.B

Futures brokerage. (Business approved by Financial Supervisory Commission R.O.C.)
Futures consultation services.
Futures managed business.
Futures clearing and settlement, and clearing and settlement service.
Securities investment consulting business.
Proprietary trading.
Leverage Transaction.
usiness weightage
Unit: NTD Thousand; %
Year 2018 2019

Item Revenue Ratio (%) | Revenue | Ratio (%)
Brokerage commission 1,858,391 65 1,577,235 82
Futures commission 453,195 16 209,879 11
Net gains in the derivative 538128| 19 20,408 1
financial instruments
Consultancy fee income 29,057 1 15,076 1
Others (29,279) (1) 94,180 5

Total 2,849,492 100 1,916,778 100

Source from: consolidated audited financial statements
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C. Current products and services
1. Futures brokerage
® Consigned trading of futures contracts over Taiwan Futures Exchange.
® Consigned of options contracts trading over Taiwan Futures Exchange.
® The clearing and settlement service to global futures and options contracts, such as
the U.S., Singapore, Japan, Hong Kong and Europe.
2. Proprietary futures trading
® Proprietary trading of domestic and overseas futures and options products.
® Market-making for futures and options to create liquidity.
3. Futures consultation
® Engaged for providing analyses, opinions, or recommendations on futures trading.
® Published books which relate to futures products.
® Organized futures related seminars and campaigns.
4. Futures introducing broker
® Commissioned by securities firmsto solicit investors into securities trading.
® Accepted investors account opening applications on behalf of securities firms.
® Accepted securities trade orders from investors and forwards them to securities firms
for execution.
® |nformed investors of settlement matters on behalf of securities firms.
5. Futures managed business
® Accepted investor’s appointment of fully authorized futures trading business.
® Other business that approved by authorities.
6. Proprietary securities trading
® Proprietary trading of securities listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange.
® Proprietary trading of securities within business premise.
7. Leverage Transaction Merchants.
® | everage transaction margin business

D. The new products/services
1. Toinvest high-speed connecting IT system
(&) With the progress of globalization, investors are encouraged to arrange their

investments globally with various strategies. As a pioneer in the futures industry,
Capital Futures had launched a global research platform targeting both domestic
products and international main products. This research platform offers multiple
trade information including index futures, foreign exchange futures, commodity and
raw material futuresto fulfill different needs of clients. Through connecting theories
and practices to provide the compl ete data charts and high-quality information
service to traders. In addition, the Company has been the first Taiwanese FCM
providing electronic trading of CME options and directly obtaining the DMA quotes.
Therefore, the Company not only launched “ Capital Leopard App” which could
provide real-time global information in 2015, but launched “The king of winner
strategy” which obtain the DMA quotes of options products such as EUR, gold, mini
S& Pindex...etc. and accelerate substantially the trading process.

(b) Hong Kong is continuously as the trading center for developing the global futures
and securities platform.

The subsidiary, CSC Futures (H.K.) Ltd., isthe global business center of the
Company, has acquired 11 exchange memberships worldwide, also successfully
made its name known in Hong Kong's among the world’s leading FCMs by
leveraging its headquarters' direct market access (DMA) arrangement in most major
futures exchange globally. CSC Futures (H.K.) Ltd. is servicing mainland China and
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global clients by its stable financia status, outstanding I T support, and fruitful
product line in Hong Kong. The Company has own exclusive trading platform in the
Greater Chinaregion. And Hong Kong subsidy provides one-stop integrated services
and customized solutions to attract new customers trading global market with stable
finance, excellent information system, and rich product content.

(c) Development of subscription economy and membership management

The Company’sinnovated live program “ Capital View” is mainly provide exclusive
financia points and investment analysis would satisfy the hedging needs from
high-asset customers. Combining with social medium to develop platform
subscription economy and also providing global financial information and
professional research suggestions for operating membership community program and
transaction. The Company expects to develop online payment services and online
audiovisual teaching services, so that customers will not restrict by time, space and
region on the platform of the Company. If the customers found the interested courses,
they can pay online and watch audiovisual teaching immediately that could improve
their investment professionalism. Capital view is to establish a self-media consultant
group (cultivating online celebrities), and provide additional value-added services
through one-on-one (Line @) exclusive services to maintain a professional brand
image in the market.

2. Industry Overview
(&) Current industry conditions
(1) Existing market participants
As of the end of 2019, the Taiwan futures industry included 16 enterprises engaged
in the futures brokerage business, which operated a total of 31 locations; 15
concurrently operated futures commission merchants at 102 locations; 47 introducing
brokers at 773 locations. In the area of proprietary trade, there are 12 futures firms
and 20 financia institutions running proprietary futures trade. In the area of clearing
and settlement, there are 9 genera clearing members, 8 individual clearing members,
and 9 clearing banks. The official statistics of the Taiwan Futures Exchange reveal ed
in late 2019, there were 1,859,742 natural person (individual) accounts accumulated
and 10,554 juristic person accounts.

Among the above classifications, The Company is a specialized futures commission
merchant, a specialized proprietary trader, an ordinary clearing member, a composite
futures consultation firm, a composite futures management firm, securities
introducing broker, a composite securities proprietary trader and leverage transaction
merchants.
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(2) Customer structure
The structure chart for trading volume of domestic futures market is as below:

Sr=
20.74%

HEaES
29.93%

—RCEAN
0.74%

0.03%

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

EIaE

0.21%

B2

48.07%

0.28%

Highlights of market participants:

Unit: account; %

Total number of trading accounts Percentage of trading volume
in market
Year I r_lstituti onal
Individuals | Percentage Iqstltutlonal Percentage | Individuals .|nveﬂors
investors Foreign
Total
Investors
2013 | 1,500,489 99.39% 9,165 0.61%| 51.54%| 10.85%| 48.46%
2014 | 1,551,700 99.39% 9,460 0.61%| 50.03%| 9.49%| 49.97%
2015| 1,613,705 99.40% 9,694 0.60%| 47.19%| 12.02%| 52.81%
2016| 1,673,599 99.41% 9,867 0.59%| 50.00%| 16.13%| 50.00%
2017 1,739,050 99.41% 10,282 0.59%| 54.41%| 15.56%| 45.59%
2018 | 1,802,391 99.43% 10,311 0.57%| 48.30%| 20.26%| 51.70%
2019 | 1,859,742 99.43% 10,554 0.57%| 48.07%| 20.74%| 51.93%

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Since the liquidity and turnover of stock market became more mature, hedging
demand and speculation channels from traders was increased gradually. Therefore,
the number of accounts which opened for trading futures was increased by years.
As of the end of 2019, there were a cumulative 1,870,296 trading accounts,
1,859,742 (99.43%) of which wereindividual investors and 10,554 (0.57%) were
ingtitutional investors. Obviously, the main traders in futures market are individual
investorsin Taiwan. The below table reveaed trading statistics and structure
which classified by market participant:
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Unit: thousand contracts

ltem 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Pf?gﬁg y Buy 524 782 1,086 1,006 710
Securities Firms Sell 515 749 1,173 1,096 756
Futures Buy 103,934 | 78227 | 84767| 91531 77324
Proprietary traders | g 105935| 79,610| 85204 | 94113| 78771
Securities Buy 173 641 667 623 567
Investment
Trust Companies Sell 177 673 658 609 537
s 1 Buy 32,699 | 30943| 39500 03149 S4BLY
Institutional
Investors Sell 30,894 | 38042| 36967 | 61680 53324
Menaged Futures | g, 241 184 116 135 70
Enterprises and
Futures Trust Sl 236 181 111 118 76
Funds
Other Ingtitutional | Buy 1,928 1,340 1,513 2,236 1,946
Investors Sell 2,092 1,318 1,493 2,230 1,928
Individual Buy 124,998 | 120563 | 137,958 | 149,402 125331
Investors Sell 124,646 | 121,005| 140,098 | 1487234 125374

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Intermsof traders' structure, individual investors and futures proprietary traders
are still the main market participants, the proportion of market transactionsin 2019
was 48.07% and 29.93% respectively. It is worth mentioning that the proportion
of foreign investor transactions is 20.7% which grew 0.4% from the previous year
and that is above 20% for two consecutive years, which can be attributed to
Taiwan Futures Exchange (Abbreviation: TAIFEX) pursue strategic alliances with
international and related organizations to strengthen international cooperation;
continue to organize international marketing campaigns; and visit overseas futures
firmsto better understand their needs and increase foreign participation in our
market. TAIFEX will also continue to actively participate in avariety of
international organizations and conferences to share with and learn from other
market. Furthermore, TAIFEX will introduce additional futures and options on
major foreign equity indices to enrich the product line and enhance the
international competitiveness. In addition, it continues to arrange promotional
events for institutional investorsin 2019, including the fifth annual Diamond
award which will recognize outstanding institutions, futures firms, and securities
firmsfor their contributions to the market. TAIFEX also visit institutional
investors to exchange views, promote businesses, and jointly plan eventsto
increase institutional participation in market.
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5.1.2 Industry development
A. Market participants' trends

Due to the global economy grew slowly in 2019 and the trade conflict between the US
and China continued, hedging demand would expect increased, which has resulted in
the continued growth in trading volume of Taiwan stock market and index futures
market under the influence of uncertain market events. Additionally, TAIFEX study and
introduce several new measures in 2019 aimed at building a healthier market
environment. These include implementing Dynamic Price Banding Mechanism
(Abbreviation: DPBM) on TAIFEX Options, amending block trading rules by lowering
the ceiling on the number of contracts in market-price orders, adjusting options
position-limit standards for individual investors, planning improvements to the futures
market’s risk management mechanisms via measures such as establishing risk
management measures for clearing members based on the liquidity of options
series...etc. To plan the establishment of the centralized clearing for domestic OTC
derivatives to improve the safety, efficiency, and transparency of the trading of
domestic OTC derivatives and amend the default waterfall scheme to encourage more
foreign institutional participation and further the development of the market.

B. Trend in customer structure

Institutional traders still accounted alow percentage, in the current customer structure.
For this reason, TAIFEX has always sought to expand institutional participation in the
futures market, and took a number of actions to achieve that objective in 2018. Also,
TAIFEX was an active participant in international organizations and events for
attracting institutional and foreign investors.

Asfor individual investors, due to the continuing development of new productsin the
futures market, promoting new systems, lifting relevant trading qualifications laws, as
well asthe industry’ s striving to propose a positive and effective marketing program,
the number of new accounts has been growing stably in recent two years.

. Association between upstream, midstream, and downstream industry participants

The primary function of a futures commission merchant is to supply derivative
instruments into the market, whether the underlying assets are shares, foreign currencies,
interest rates, agricultural commodities, precious metal, or energy. These instruments
allow commodity suppliers or buyersto lock in their prices during volatile times, so that
can transfer price risks within the futures market and run their businesses with more
certainty. Therefore, the futures market is where hedgers, speculators, and arbitragers
transact for their own causes, and is necessary to achieving free market economy. In
futures market does not have upstream, mid-stream, or downstream connections as does
manufacture.

D. The development trends for each product

Instruments traded over the market consisted mainly of domestic futures, domestic
options, and U.S., Japanese, Singaporean, Hong Kong, and European instruments.
Domestic futures mainly consisted of index futures, while trading for domestic options
was mainly concentrated in options on index futures. U.S. instruments consisted mainly
of foreign currency futures, stock index futures, interest rate futures, gold futures,
agricultural commodity futures, and energy futures. European instruments consisted
mainly of stock index futures and commodity futures. The stock index futures, gasoline
futures, rubber futures and agricultural futures are the main commodities traded at
Japanese Futures Exchange. Singaporean instruments consisted mainly of MSCI Taiwan
index futures, A50 and Nikkei 225 futures. Hong Kong instruments consisted mainly of
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Heng Seng and H Stock Index futures. The figures below represent the trading volume
statistics for major products in exchanges at home and abroad over the past seven (7)
years:

Unit: Contract
Item Taiwan Taiwan
Futures products Options products Total
Y ear (unilateral) (unilateral)

2013 43,389,650 109,835,588 153,225,238

2014 50,057,345 152,353,748 202,411,093

2015 72,052,902 192,442,758 264,495,660

2016 73,102,459 168,576,097 241,678,556

2017 78,408,549 187,297,120 265,705,669

2018 112,731,243 195,352,333 308,083,576

2019 90,042,348 170,723,134 260,765,482

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange
Unit: Contract
Year Item u.s. Singapore |Hong Kong| Japan Others Total
2013 6,641,148| 5,320,795| 443,054| 172,358 279,220/ 12,856,575
2014 6,431,440| 6,084,166 495,635| 332,244 722,566 14,066,051
2015 8,968,438 | 16,038,782 680,263 590,129| 1,272,488 27,550,100
2016 11,219,762 | 18,696,637 982,455 75,522| 1,614,864 33,289,240
2017 12,709,462 17,702,462 1,075,054 520,921 874,618 32,882,517
2018 15,355,474 24,912,780 1,388,343] 756,310 525,202 42,938,109
2019 15,433,305 17,922,573| 1,055,648 683,994 514,620 35,610,140
Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

The Taiwan futures market recorded total trading volume of 260,765,482

contracts and average daily trading volume of 1,077,543 contracts in 2019, of which the
trading volume in after-hours session reached 54.81 million and 1,987 contracts. It is
observed that the overall market amplitude and volatility was 82 points and 10.9%
respectively which decreased by 20 points and 6.1% from the previous year, that
resulted in trading volume of 2019 decreased by 15.36% from last year. In general,
there is a significant positive correlation between the level of market volatility and the
level of trading volume. The reason is that the increase in volatility usually comes from
the special market events and bullish/bearish news. When the aforementioned situation
occurs, the risk aversion and trading demand will increase simultaneously. In other
words, the decline of volatility will cause the transaction demand declines, and then the
trading volume naturally declines. Furthermore, due to the national holidays and
typhoon holidays of last year, the number of trading days was only 242 days, which was
also one of the reasons for the decline in trading volume. However, under the attention
from investors increased and continuous trading, the after-hours session grew up whose
trading volume accounted for daily trading of the same commodity is nearly 30% which
increased by 6.50% from last year.
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E. Competition

The Company is a futures commission merchant. The profitability of the major

competitors in 2019 was as follows:

Name of futures | Number of shares Cumulative Cumul_anve pre-tax
Rank merchant (thousand share) | pre-tax profit/loss profit/loss EPS
(dollar)(note)
1 KGI 86,080 552,063 6.41
2 Y uanta 232,276 1,410,012 6.07
3 Sinopac 93,830 420,699 4.48
4 Capita 176,438 746,946 4.23
5 JP Morgan 89,500 282,822 3.16
6 Optiver 60,000 178,695 2.98
7 President 66,000 192,020 291
8 Masterlink 70,000 147,268 2.10
Credit Suisse
9 Group AG 65,000 124,186 191
10 Fubon 140,000 253,830 1.81

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

5.1.3 Technological research and devel opment

The Company set up the research devel opment which configures several financial
professionals, its main responsibility is for devel oping the new products and
providing information. Over the years, it successfully cooperates with
domestic/foreign institutional investors and contributes to promote institutional
sales business. In terms of product development, it was the first futures merchant to
develop the product which combine with stock and futures for balancing the risk
and return of futures and changing the stereotype successfully.

The research development also developed the trading module program successfully
and introduced it into the cloud platform in 2010. Moreover, through the
Consulting department introduced high quality customers to provide the complete
customer service via signing the consulting contract for diversification and
international strategy. Recently, the unique options analysis model has been
developed successfully, which could analyze the volatility, the Open Interest, the
international market fluctuation....etc. precisely.

A. The main business of research development and technology is as below:

1. Developing the capital guarantee products which combine with futures and options
for ingtitutional clients.

2. Developing the balanced products which combine o and 3 with futures and options.

3. Developing global portfolio futures products and event trading module.

4. Constructing the research platform for providing one-stop service.

5. Establishing Capital Leopard App to provide mobile platform services.

6. Constructing big data analysis to provide customization, differentiation and personal
services.

Technology and products had developed by Capital Futures:
1. Balanced products which link Securities and Futures products These products
mainly rely on Futures products supplemented by Securities products with low risk
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and stable return which meeting ingtitutional investors' preference.

2. Option Greeks Evaluation Model: Evaluating options implied volatility with the
distribution of open interest in market and the reasonableness of other Greeks.

3. The program trading portfolio model of Foreign/Domestic Futures products:
Developing computer program trading portfolio model through connecting cloud
platform for providing more effective investment solutions, which has higher risk
and 20% above annual volatility. This product mainly meets certain investors
preference, who held more money than genera investors.

4. Hedge model with the strategy of Options products copying Securities products: This
product is mainly rely on Futures products supplemented by Securities products
which combining different assets portfolio and obtaining profit from different
markets. The characters of this product are low risk and stable return which could
extend to other overseas markets with the same concept.

5. Spread model in different products/ markets: Constructing the spread model which
balancing convergence and divergence, with market characters such as strong/weak
structure, periodic cycles, fundamental changes, price induction...etc. factors.

6. Securities/Futures arbitrage and tax avoidance model: Successfully developing
non-risk or low-risk arbitrage and tax avoidance model, including Securities to
futures, futures to futures, futures to options...etc.

The research plan in the future and budget

The current configuration of develop department is around 20~30 research
professionals, and it expected to expand in the future. In the next years, the Company will
take 1%~2% of consolidated sales to continuously recruit related professionas. The
predicted research expense is around NT$30~45 million dollars.
The company actively develops the domestic/foreign financial products that would relate
to futures and options with high-gross profit, high-adding value and overall solutions
ability. The future research plan is including overseas futures market analysis, trading
strategy development, and the risk management for derivative products, for constructing
the research integrated platform and cloud strategy platform.

Academic/ career backgrounds of the R& D personnel are as below:

Unit: Person
Q 2018 2019 Up till March 2020
tem
Head Head Head
count Percentage count Percentage count Percentage
Postgraduate 0 0 0
study and sbove 7 35% 5 20% 5 19%
University 13 65% 20 80% 21 81%
Total 20 100% 25 100% 26 100%
Average research
experience 2.60 2.05 2.25

The research and development expense for last 3 years:
Unit: NTD Thousand

I[tem

2017

2018

2019

Research and Development expense

30,834

35,702

43,985
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5.1.4 Long-term and Short-term Devel opment
A. Plan of Short-term Development

1.Torichly cultivate and duplicate the overseas market business. The Company develop
the greater China market with the DMA advantages of overseas futures products, such as
CME Group HK SGX Euronext EUREX ICE, etc.

2.To enhance the trading performance of our futures and securities proprietary team
continuously and also recruit outstanding traders who are with the profession of spread
strategy, high-frequency trading, market making and operating ability for raising the profit
and distributing the market risk.

3.The Company expands the leveraged trading and derivative business to provide the
hedge solutions for listing companies, small and medium enterprises. Developing foreign
exchange hedging module and training foreign exchange trader talent pool and VIP
customers for creating new source of income.

4.To expand domestic institutional customers and raise the trading volume and margin, the
Company would actively promote LME products and devel op its hedge module.

5.To develop the advantages of our real-time system with combining for expanding
domestic/ foreign institutional customers aggressively and focus on raising the trading
volume and customer margin.

6.To optimize the order software for maintaining the customers who usually place order
viaAPP.

7.Cross-industry integration of various financial platforms and expansion of community
channels, training institution, and media channels, the Company create a win-win
mechanism for mutual benefit and common prosperity through organizing marketing
activities.

8.Theinnovated live program “ Capital View” mainly provides exclusive financia points
and also assists to set up hedging modules and trading strategy management mechanism
for increasing the loyalty of customers to the Company.

9.To set up the digital marketing team under Futures Advisory department for recruiting
professional talents and for creating the value of big data.

10. To represent information advantages, the HK subsidy of the Company develop its own
exclusive global futures trading platform in connecting global futures exchanges to provide
the B2C cross-market trading platform and customize services for the customers in greater
China.

11. To complete the establishment of the Hong Kong official website and apply Hong
Kong Type 4 and 5 business licenses for actively promoting the consultant business, the
Company recruits consultants and promote professional fee-based coursesin Taiwan and
China.

12. The Company plans to establish the first Futures Company in China (joint venture
/solely-invested) which combine with the comprehensive effect of Shanghai and Chengdu
subsidiaries.

13. Continue to strengthen internal audit and internal control of the Company, carry out
education and training on information security, money laundering prevention, and strictly
abide by risk control and corporate governance. Also, the Company will keep going to
fight for constituting in TWSE Corporate Governance 100 index and take the regular
evaluation every year.
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14. To carry out the corporate culture, young people are the future keep strengthen
industry-university cooperation in the campus and focus on the training of new talents for
promoting the balanced devel opment of recruitment, education and retention.

15. To create a happy workplace, strengthen corporate responsibility (CSR) and integrate
core strategies—sustained financial innovation and sustai nable management.

B. Plan of Long-term Devel opment

1. Getting the largest market share of overseas brokerage business, the second largest
market share of domestic brokerage business, the largest profit of domestic proprietary
business and the largest profit of leverage transaction.

2. Getting the first one in trading volume of market making trading business.

3. To become the preferred foreign exchange dealer for professional customers and general
Investors-implementation of servicesfor listing companies, SMEs and investors.

4. To serve the rea economy-actively promote domestic institutional legal persons
providing LME commodities for hedging raw materials transaction and physical delivery
of spot traders, and develop strively bank and bond customer groups to create products
that meets market demand with exclusive view.

5. To invest high-speed connecting IT system and be the leading FCM in the speed and
differentiation. Industry-leading customization attracting professional institutional
customersto enter the market, lead to provide the best solutions for securities continuous
trading.

6. Complete the new order system in PC version and Happy Trade App which was used for
foreign mobile version.

7. Develop a futures ecosystem platform—establish new business models and expand new
business channels and brokerage business.

8. Gathering the strengths of the financial advisor, research department and chief
economist to provide an exclusive perspective for allowing hedgers to avoid risks and
creating profits for speculators.

9. Develop subscription economy, train internet celebrities, and create new business
models.

10. Continue to develop our Hong Kong subsidy as a global trading center for providing
the turnkey trading system in the global market, combines the information advantage for
supporting the trading platform which is highly relied on trading companies and Chinese
Private Equity fund.

11. Build the officia website for Hong Kong Subsidy to develop financial business and
apply Hong Kong Type 4 and 5 business license.

12. The Company plans to establish a Futures Company in China (joint venture
/solely-invested) which be the first Taiwanese FCM in China.

13. Strengthen corporate governance and become the leading brand in the market.

14. Maintain the brand image as a happy corporation, contribute to positive socia impact
and implement corporate responsibility (CSR) sustainable management

-05.-



5.2 Market and Sales Overview

5.2.1 Macro-economy environment analysis for Futures market

A. Market analysis

1. Locations where products, services, are primarily sold, provided, and market share
information

As a clearing-trading dual member of Taiwan Futures Exchange, the Company roots
in Taiwan and activity connects to the world. Including our subsidy in HK, the Company
has acquired memberships as clearing members or trading members in twelve
international futures exchanges. The Company has developed on online trading system
providing clients to place orders with Direct Market Access (DMA) to those exchanges.
With the advantages of speedy, stable, and low latency services, the Company
overwhelmed the trading environment and usages in the futures industry; thus, the
Company became the most famous FCM in Taiwan. To date, the Company goes on
retaining its striking reputation and pioneer status.

The Company’s market share in overseas futures product business was 20.3% in 2019
which was the second largest FCM in Talwan. Besides, we aso construct Hong Kong
subsidy as the global trading center for providing the turnkey trading system. Moreover,
the Company’s market share in futures brokerage business, futures products and options
products was 7.58%, 10.28% and 6.16% respectively which all to be the third largest in
Taiwan. The detail information regarding to the market share is as below table:

Table 3: The Market share information of Top 10 FCMs in brokerage futures business for

consecutive 3 years—Total products:
Unit: thousand |ots

2017 2018 2019

Trading Market Trading Market Trading Market

Name of | volume of Name of | volume of Name of | volume of
Rank Share Share Share

FCM brokerage FCM brokerage FCM brokerage
: (%) - (%) - (%)

business business business
1 Y uanta 88787 16.71 | Yuanta 119,575 1940 | Yuanta 94,836 18.18
2 KGlI 53022 9.98 KGI 67,470 10.95 KGlI 57,137 10.96
3 | Sinopac 35511 6.68 | Capital 42,930 6.97 | Capital 39,531 7.58
4 Capital 33489 6.30 | Sinopac | 37,490 6.08 | Sinopac | 26,953 5.17
5 | Concords | 26028 4.89 |President| 23,323 3.79 | President| 18,740 3.59
6 | President | 21470 4.04 |Concords| 20,838 3.38 | Concords| 18,637 3.57
7 Jih-Sun 14869 2.79 Fubon 16,522 268 |Masterlink| 14,182 2.72
8 Fubon 14071 2.65 | Jh-Sun 15,438 251 Fubon 14,139 2.71
9 | Masterlink | 13472 254 | HuaNan 14,133 2.29 Jih-Sun 14,044 2.69
10 | HuaNan 9864 1.86 [Masterlink| 14,003 227 | HuaNan 13,105 251

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange
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Table 4. The Market share information of Top 10 FCMs in brokerage futures business for
consecutive 3 years—Futures products:

Unit: thousand lots

2017 2018 2019
Trading Market Market
Name of |volume of Name of Name of
Rank Rank Share Rank Share Rank
FCM  |brokerage FCM FCM
busi (%) (%)
usiness
1 Y uanta 34,050 21.71 Y uanta 54,071 23.98 Y uanta 41,862 23.25
2 KGI 26,246 16.74 KGI 42,537 18.87 KGI 31,794 17.66
3 Sinopac 10,243 6.53 Capital 18,793 8.34 Capital 18,515 10.28
4 Capital 11,925 7.60 | Sinopac 13,845 6.14 | Sinopac 9,813 5.45
5 | Concords 5,807 3.70 | President 8,690 3.85 | President 6,894 3.83
6 President 5,912 3.77 | Concords 8,420 3.73 | Concords 6,163 3.42
7 Jih-Sun 5,071 3.23 Fubon 7,464 3.31 [Masterlink 4,702 2.61
8 Fubon 4,912 3.13 Jih-Sun 6,552 2.91 Fubon 5,946 3.30
9 | Masterlink 4,409 281 HuaNan 4,559 2.02 Jih-Sun 5,178 2.88
10 | HuaNan 2,701 1.72 [Masterlink 5,494 2.43 HuaNan 4,356 2.42

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Table 5. The Market share information of Top 10 FCMs in brokerage futures business for
consecutive 3 years—Options products:

Unit: thousand |ots

2017 2018 2019
Trading |\ et Market
Nameof |volume of Name of Name of
Rank Rank Share Rank Share Rank
FCM  |brokerage FCM FCM
buS (%) (%)
usiness
1 Y uanta 54,736 14.61 Y uanta 65,503 16.77 Y uanta 52,975 15.51
2 KGI 26,776 7.14 KGI 24,932 6.38 KGI 25,343 7.42
3 Sinopac 25,267 6.75 Capital 24,136 6.18 Capital 21,016 6.16
4 Capital 21,563 5.76 Sinopac 23,645 6.05 Sinopac 17,139 5.02
5 | Concords | 20,220 5.40 | President 14,633 3.75 | President 11,847 3.47
6 President 15,558 415 |[Concords| 12,417 3.18 | Concords 12,474 3.65
7 Jih-Sun 9,798 2.62 Fubon 9,058 2.32 |Masterlink 9,481 2.78
8 Fubon 9,159 2.45 Jih-Sun 8,886 2.27 Fubon 8,193 2.40
9 [ Masterlink 9,062 242 | HuaNan 9,573 2.45 Jih-Sun 8,866 2.60
10 | HuaNan 7,162 191 [Masterlink 8,509 2.18 | HuaNan 8,748 2.56

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Table 6: The trading volume information of Top 10 FCMs in overseas futures business in 2019:
Unit: thousand lots

By product Japan Market
Rank CMEG SGX HKEx |EUREX| ICE |(OSE,TC| Others Totd | Share
FCM M.TGE) (%)

1 Y uanta 3,650,365| 6,192,706 238,325 59,537| 107,850 78,087| 38,544 10,365,414 27.2
2 Capital 3,721,179| 3,539,494 151,105| 94,664 115195| 111,038 4,758| 7,737,433 20.3
3 KGlI 1,951,674| 2,868,371| 187,646| 24,298 79,696 139,674| 173,966| 5,425,325 14.2
4 Sinopac 1,188,121 2,021,946| 219,662| 18,514 39,666 80,802 1,146| 3,569,857 9.4
5 Fubon 900,751 1,321,093| 40,723| 13,024 35,820 76,409 711| 2,388,531 6.3
6 Concords | 1,706,951 451,062 80,051 14,180 13,249 68,897 1,185 2,335,575 6.1
7 President 934,777 806,914 | 143,869| 13,220 44 567 33,898 777 1,978,022 5.2
8 Jih-Sun 625,982 362,661 11,825| 7,738 27,284 39,828 25| 1,075,343 2.8
9 Masterlink 438,965 325,542| 15,665 4,884 10,077 19,405 0 814,538 2.1
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Cathay 260,460 273,765| 20,648| 1,584 13,499 31,817 61 601,834 1.6

Total 16,161,878 | 19,059,870(1,133,710| 259,515| 564,794| 736,904 222,434| 38,139,105 100

Source from: The Company summarized the information from TAIFEX and Chinese National Futures Association.

2. Future market supply/demand and growth potentials

Total trading volume on Taiwan's futures market amounted to 260,765,482 contracts
in 2019 decreased by 15.36% from the previous year, although it dightly recovered
but remained stable over 260 million contracts. In 2019, TAIFEX actively promotes
new commodities with diversification and internationalization, such as the Nasdag-100
and TPEx 200 which issue in the fourth quarter could satisfy the investors who want to
trade US technology stocks and domestic technology stocks. The average daily trading
volume of these two commodities in 2019 was 1,185 and 649 contracts respectively,
both of which reached the initial target of IPO. In addition, TAIFEX issue three
Tawan stock and futures strategy index commodities with Taiwan Index Plus
Corporation were “TIP TAIFEX TAIEX Futures Index”, “TIP TAIFEX Covered Call
OTM 5% Total Return Index” and “TIP TAIFEX Smart Multi-factor 30 Market
Neutral Index”. Aforementioned three index commodities could index the strategy
performance of institutional investors or hedge funds and spotted the futures and
options products through index, which is expected to further, inject trading volume
and promote the growth of the Taiwan futures market.

In the reform of the trading system, TAIFEX built DBPM and apply it to Taiwan
index options and foreign equity index futures. To lower the upper limit of the number
of contracts in market-price orders to reduce the impact of the lack of liquidity of the
transaction contracts or the instantaneous imbalance of the transaction volume which
resulted in the market price deviated significantly from expectations. The inclusion of
gold futures and options in the block trading system would expect to attract market
participants such as foreign investors, life insurance institutional investors and
investment trust investors. Looking forward to 2020, Brexit issue, the US presidential
election and the trade conflict between China and the US still need to be concerned. In
addition, the stock market in the US and Taiwan are still at historical high-end levels,
therefore, market volatility and trading volume will increase as expected. TAIFEX
continue to inject momentum into the futures market and provide diversified products,
such “FTSE4AGOOD” and “TIP Taiwan BIO Index futures’ for traders to meet their
different needs. It continues to optimize the DBPM of the futures market, and promote
the centralized settlement mechanism of domestic store-derived derivatives to create a
highly efficient, low-cost, fair, just, and open trading environment to attract various
traders to participate in Taiwan futures market.

3. Favorable and unfavorable factors in the Long Term and the strategies:

(a) Favorable factors:

® TAIFEX will continue to launch new products and systems to make the product
line of the domestic futures market complete and provide the traders a greater
variety of choices for hedging.

® The e-commerce and on-line trading would benefit to the Company’ s diversified
business development.
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® The Company who showed the strong operating ability, not only has a
user-friendly E-trading platform and strong innovation in futures and options
products, but acquired membershipsin twelve international futures exchanges.

(b) Unfavorable factors:
The competition in futures market for price cuts is still flourishing and affects the
Company's profitability; as the Securities Companies merged and tend to become
enlargement, the competition between futures introducing broker business of
Securities Companies will become more intensely.

(c) Strategies.

® To promote overseas futures product actively which the Company has relative
market advantages, and stabilize the revenue.

® To enhance the service quality to customers, including IT trading platform,
customize service, market analysis suggestions...would let customers could feel
the difference between other competitors for resisting the price cut competition.

® Marketing strategies: Through holding marketing activities of trading platforms
consecutively for raising the brand recognition and expanding market scale.

5.2.2 Production Procedures of Main Products. Not applicable.
5.2.3 Supply Status of Main Materials: Not applicable.

5.2.4 Mgor Suppliers and Clientsin the last 2 years: Not applicable.
5.2.5 Production in the last 2 Y ears: Not applicable.

5.2.6 Shipments and Salesin the Last 2 Y ears: Not applicable.

5.3 Human Resources

The number of employees, average years of service, average age, and academic background
in the last 2 years up till the publication date of this annual report:

2020
vear 2018 2019 (Uptill March 31%)
Number of employees 248 266 263
Average age 36.7 374 37.8
Average years of service 5.83 5.99 6.21
o § | Doctoral Degree 1.2% 0.8% 0.8%
& 8B | Master's Degree 21.4% 22.9% 22.4%
§ % Bachelor’s Degree 71.4% 70.3% 70.7%
c High school 6.0% 6.0% 6.1%

5.4 Contribution to Environmental Protection: The Company is a financial
service provider and is not prone to pollution risk.

-99-



5.5 Employer and employee relationships:

The centripetal force of Employeesto an enterprise is the foundation of competitiveness,
the company has been held in the spirit that employees are the most important assets.
Therefore, the Company insist that executes the fair human resources policy, optimize
welfare system, taking care to the staff properly, and through various pipelines for
recruiting more talents to join, would let employees creating value in company, and also
get the balance between life and workplace

Furthermore, the Company sets the formulation of rules and regulationsis based on
relevant laws and regulations, and implements the protection of the legitimate rights and
interests of all employees. The salary payment policy would not lower than the statutory
minimum basic wage, and not differentiated by gender, sexual orientation, age, race,
religion. For any personnel operations such as appointment, dismissal, transfer, and
salary adjustment, the Company would subject to the provisions of Article 5 of the
Employment Service Law, and would not discriminate employees by race, class,
language, thought, religion, partisanship, place of origin, place of birth, gender, sexual
orientation, age, marriage, appearance, facial features, and physical and mental
disabilities. The Company aso has a reasonable reward system and holds Remuneration
Committee meeting regularly to evaluate the fairness of employee rewards. The
evaluation combines the annual operating status, price index, peer level and other
indicators with the individual performance of employees each year and as the basis for
annual salary adjustment and festival bonus.

Besides, |abor-management meetings are held regularly according to law. The scope of
the meeting includes employee dynamics, operational plans and business overview,
coordination of labor relations, promotion of |abor-management cooperation, labor
conditions, and planning of labor welfare, improvement of work efficiency and labor
proposals. In addition, the Company sets up "Employee Suggestion Box™ in order to
encourage al colleagues to provide opinions actively, strengthen the work rights of all
colleagues, improve the operation process, and make profits and benefits.

5.5.1 Details regarding availability and execution of employee welfare,
education, training and retirement policies, agreements made between
employers and employees, and protection of employees rights are
explained below:

A. The Company has formulated various bonus policies to appropriately reflect on the
employee's salary and compensation policy which based on the Company's business
performance for ensuring the recruitment, retention and encouragement of human
resources. To enhance the remuneration package of grassroots employees, promote a
win-win situation for labor and capital and implement corporate social responsibility, the
Company would achieve the goal of sustainable management.

B. Employee welfare: The Company registered the establishment of Employee Welfare
Committee with the authority in order to provide benefits such as wedding/funeral
subsidies, club activity subsidies, and group trips. Overall, the Employee Welfare
Committee operates with adequate budget and has been able to carry out its plans.
Various welfare measures of the Welfare Committee:
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Travel subsidy: 222 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$1,442,612.
Marriage subsidy: 2 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$6,000.
Childbirth subsidy: 5 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$15,000.
Hospitalization subsidy: 4 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$30,000.
Funeral subsidy: 1 person; total amount of subsidy: NT$5,000

S S

C. Employee education and training:

In an attempt to build a strong talent base and improve management performance, the

Company has been organizing a broad variety of training including: orientation,

specialization training, management reserve training, management growth training, and

seminars hosted by renowned experts and scholars on the topic of finance. Many

e-learning courses have also been designed to enhance outcome of the learning process,

which held during 2019/08/06~2019/11/20, atotal 31 people participated. By utilizing

digital means, employees are able to learn and grow anytime, anywhere.

In order to cultivate various professional talents, the Company accords to the different

career stages and organizationa development needs of personnel at all levels, and also

plan a comprehensive training plan and provide colleagues with timely and diversified

learning channels, so as to achieve win-win benefits of organizational talent

development and personal career development.

In 2018, the Company invited external external professional lecturersto hold training

courses as follow items:

1. 2019.2.25 Music sharing seminar was played by Mr. Huang Shu-Shen.

2. 2019.5.2 “ The analysis of the trade war between Chinaand The United States’
presented by Dr. Chen Song Hsin.

3. 2019.6.13 “The reborn of Taiwan industry” presented by Lawyer Mr. Huang Rih-
Tsan.

4. 2019.6.13 “ The co-founder of Press play would tell you atruth that people will pay
for knowledge in the future.

5. 2019.7.11 “The education training of the related rules and processing methodsin
trading securities.”

6. 2019.8.15 “Word, magician of image”.

7. 2019.9.19 “ Sharing various events which always happened during making films”.

8. 2019.9.27 “Go crazy with painting”.

9. 2019.10.28 “Negotiation skills” presented by Dr. Liu Bi-Rong.

10. 2019.11.6 “The character analysis of internet stars’.

11. 2019.11 & 2019.12 “What supervisors can help employees?’

D. Pension System:
The Company established its Employee Pension Fund Supervisory Committee whose
responsibilities are to implement pension guidelines for the security of employees
lifestyle after retirement, and thereby maintain a sustainable and harmonic relationship
between employees and the employer. The pension fund has been contributed maximum
2% from employees” salaries for retirement preparation monthly; and funded pension
according to related regulations of financial accounting standards No.18.and
Financial Supervisory Commission. Since the enactment of Labor Standards Act in
April 1998, the Company has been making pension fund contributions into a dedicated
account held with Bank of Taiwan under the committee's name. All employees who
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meet the criteria specified in the pension policy are eligible to participate. Following the
enactment of Labor Pension Act in July 2005, employees are given the choice to opt for
the new pension system or stay with the old plan. For those who opted for the new
system, the Company has been contributing an amount equal to 6% of employees
monthly salaries into their personal pension fund accounts.

E. Employee insurance:
Apart from mandatory insurance coverage such as Labor Insurance and National Health
Insurance, the Company also provides employees with a broad variety of group
insurance coverage from life, accidental injury, accidental medical treatment, to
occupational hazard. Employees are invited to include their family members into group
insurance at discounted premium. Term life, accidental injury, medical treatment, and
cancer insurance policies have been offered to care for employees and their family
members.

F. The Company has been maintaining harmonic interactions with its employees. Apart
from complying with labor regulations, the Company strives to resolve
labor-management affairs to the benefit of both parties.

G. Protection of employees rights:
In addition to protect employees legal rights, any affair that concerns employees
interests is openly announced on the intranet, while matters that pertain to the interests
of individual employees are advised through active means.

5.5.2 The losses resulted from labor disputes in the last two years and up to
the annual report published date; disclosure of the current and noncurrent
estimated |osses and the responsive measures; if such loss amount cannot
be reasonably estimated, please state the reason why: None.

5.5.3 The Company’ s Workplace Environment and Employee Safety Measures:

The Company pays close attention to employee’' s safety and well-beings. The Company is
devoted to offering a nice workplace environment, and the implementations of related
protections and benefits are asfollows:

Item Content
Insuranceand [1. The Company provides employees with abroad variety of group
benefit insurance coverage from life, accidental injury, accidental medical

treatment, to occupational hazard.

2. Employees areinvited to include their family membersinto group
insurance at discounted premium. Term life, accidental injury,
medical treatment, and cancer insurance policies have been
offered to care for employees and their family members.

3. Established the website for employee exclusive section, providing
the discussion area and training announcement.

4. Established the "Regulations for Establishing Measures of
Prevention, Correction, Complaint and Punishment of Sexual
Harassment at Workplace".

5.  The Company sign contracts with health check centersto provide

- 102 -



Item

Content

preferential health checks for employees every 3 year.

6. Hiredoctorson-siteto perform avariety of consultation tasks,
such as providing consulting services one by one, promoting
health awareness and promoting hygiene inspection, at
headquarters on aregular basis.

7. Employees are entitled to the coverage of group insurances, such
as group life insurance, group accident insurance, group
accidental medical insurance, group occupationa hazards
insurance, etc.

8. Formulating the "Entertainment & charity club establishment and
subsidy management regulations” to encourage the Company's
employees fostering the habit of participating sports activities and
charity events.

9. Holding the "Healthy mountain hiking" activity; the Company’s
employees may enjoy hiking on the mountains with their families
after working busily; in addition, employees may inhale
phytoncide in the forest to strengthen their bodies and minds.

10. Publishing the demonstration figure card for how to stretch on the
Company’ sintranet. Holding the seminar with the issue “How
office workers deal with shoulder and neck acid” in Aug. 23, a
total of 65 people participated. Asfor the Physical fitnhess testing,
atotal of 79 people participated.

Environmenta
health

1. Established “Tobacco Hazards Prevention Measure”.

2. Published "Tobacco Hazards Prevention Act" and "Ways to quit
smoking".

3. Held healthy seminar, CPR training, and cleaning and disinfecting
office environment regularly.

Safety
certification

British Standards Institution (BSI) granted the I SO 22301 verification
to the Company as a certification of business continuity management.
The purposes of BSI are as follows:

(a) the Company is capable of minimizing the damage when facing
accidental events;

(b) employee safety; law-compliance; clients' benefits, the Company's
business reputation; security of the Company's assets;

(c) The Company's important businesses are capable of resuming
businesses gradually within the targeted time to sustain operations.

Persond
information
verification

Ahead of its peers, the Company isthe first financial company in
Taiwan that obtained international personal information verifications of
securities, futures and insurance brokerage/agency. The Company's
internal Personal Information Management System (PIMS) ensures
safety and protection of personal information. The Company follows
personal information laws relevant requirements and actively protected
rights of the involved parties. The Company lowers the impacts derived
from any infringement of personal information. Moreover, the
Company continues to operate and improve the personal information
management system.

Labor safety

1. Adopting access control system.
2. Setting up the office security management monitoring system.
3. Connecting with police station for keeping workplace safety.
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Item Content

4. The office environment is regularly cleaned and disinfected and
checked on April and October every year.

5. Theoffice environmenta testing report has been submitted on
April 7" and October 6" in 2017.

6. Set up aspecialize manager and emergency care person according
to the occupational safety and health Act. and arrange related
training courses.

7. Maintainese and inspection of electronic equipment, elevators, air
conditioners, vehicles, firefighting instruments regularly.

Fire Safety 1. Conduct firedrillson aregular basis.

2. Regulated by National Fire Agency, Ministry of the Interior’s
regulations for fire prevent manager and professional institution
setup, afire prevent manager shall receive an updated training at
least once every three years.

Insurance The Company's places of business and subsidiaries are entitled to the
safety insurance coverage of:

1. Commercial fire insurance.
2. Electronic equipment insurance.
3. Public liability insurance.

5.5.4 Employee’ s behaviors and moral principles:

The Company requires all employees to sign acommitment to " Capital Financial Group
Employee Behavior Policy" and integrity principles when carrying out business activities.
Below are the key points of this policy:

A. We offer high value-adding products and services. We establish and maintain
long-term rel ationships with customers and help them achieve their goals.

B. We uphold the highest moral and safety standardsin all our interactions and dealings
with customers. We provide rigorous protection for customers' information, and make
sure that information is used only to the extent permitted by law. All customers
explored during our employment are owned by the Company, and shall not be referred
to another company during or after employment.

C. We never put ourselves in situations where personal interests may work in conflict to
those of the Company or the customers.

D. Wedo not reveal to others any news or information gained in relation to our job role.
We shall refrain from holding or trading securities using own name or hame of proxy.

E. Whether during or after our employment with the Company, we shall never: (1) revedl
any business secret gained during employment (including but not limited to
technologies, system programs, customers' information, trade strategies, business
information, personnel or organization records, accounting records, strategic plans and
any other information) for own use or use by others, or make illegal use of non-public
information (also referred to as "inside information™); and (2) exploit our vested
authoritiesfor illicit gains for self or any other party.

F.  We shall incorporate risk management and compliance practices into our business
procedures, and follow accordingly.

G. Wereport performance information and facts in atimely and accurate manner, and
strive to maximize the Company's interests.

H. We are aware of the fact that we are working with shareholders assets. We shall

- 104 -



handle the Company's properties carefully as we do our own.

I.  Wedo not use the Company's network and email systems for non business-related
purpose such as: browsing, distribution and storage of disturbing literature, pictures or
offensive articles. Neither shall the Company's network system be used for political
discussions or propaganda, personal entertainment or any non business-related
purpose.

J. Weshall comply strictly with regulations and refrain from using email, e-bulletin or
the Internet system (including but not limited to personal blog or online forums) to
conduct inappropriate sales activities, improper competition (without commission), or
make forecasts and recommendations regarding future transaction price of specific
contracts or trade strategies.

K. We shall maintain the accuracy and completeness of all information, reports, records
and data owned, used and managed by Capital Financial Group. We shall also refrain
from removing or transmitting them in any inappropriate manner.

L. Tocomply with the "Personal Information Protection Act,” we shall refrain from
inquiring internal information and data that we do not have access to. All documents
of the Company are to be used solely for internal management, and cannot be
reproduced or used outside the scope mentioned above. We shall be solely responsible
for any civil and criminal liabilities that arise as aresult of our violation.

M. We shall refrain from communicating with the public on our own. Only the
spokesperson may address the media on behalf of the Company.

N. We shall never accept or permit relatives or family members to accept any gift, service,
loan or specia treatment offered by any party (including customers, suppliers or any
other party) for the purpose of gaining immediate or future relationship with the
Company.

O. We shall notify the line manager, the human resource department, the internal audit
department or any appropriate personnel whenever we discover a possible violation
against laws or the Company's work rules.

5.6 Mgjor Contracts
Agreement Counterparty Period Major Content  |Restrictiong
Commissioned the
porement G
assume President Futures Corp. 1998.06.23~till now , None
obligations can't carry out .
related transaction
Obligations.
Retainer Appointed those
g;ﬁfgem o |capita Securities Corp. 2003.10,08~1ill now ;?Lnsgﬂ: ;3 tb:e
Introducing Lgnd b.ank of quan 2007.10.12~ t!II now Company for futures None
Primasia Securities 2018.09.03~ till now |. ;
Broker introducing broker
business business.
CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. 1999.10.22~ till now
CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. 2012.05.28~ till now
Custodian Hua Nan Commercia Bank 1998.07.14~ till now [Customer Margin None
Contract EnTie Commercial Bank 2003.05.28~ till now |Deposit
EnTie Commercial Bank 2004.10.06~ till now
Taishin International Bank 2004.03.05~ till now

- 105 -



Agreement

Counterparty

Period

Major Content

Restrictions

Standard Chartered Bank
Far Eastern International Bank
Chang Hwa Commercial Bank

Jih Sun International Bank, Ltd.

Cathay United Bank Co., Ltd.
Cathay United Bank Co., Ltd.
Taiwan Business Bank
Tachong Bank

ANZ Bank-Taipei Branch
Yuanta Commercial Bank
First Commercial Bank

First Commercial Bank
Taichung Commercial Bank
Sunny Bank Ltd.

Cathay United Bank Co., Ltd.
O-Bank

Taishin International Bank
CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.

The Shanghai Commercial &
Saving Bank

Cathay United Bank Co., Ltd.
O-Bank

2004.05.03~ till now
2004.05.21~ till now
2004.07.29~ till now
2004.09.24~ till now
2006.02.21~ till now
2004.10.08~ till now
1999.10.22~ till now
2011.09.27~ till now
2011.04.08~ till now
2011.10.20~ till now
2011.12.27~ till now
2012.02.24~ till now
2013.11.21~ till now
2016.08.08~ till now
2016.09.19~ till now
2017.05.09~ till now
2017.06.27~ till now
2017.11.01~ till now
2017.11.17~ till now
2018.06.21~ till now
2018.11.21~ till now

Information
Contract

Outsourcing contract

None
Capital Securities Corp. 2013.01.02~ till now |for computer
information system
. . Reuters inf i
Thomson Reuters Corporation  |2009.07.15~ till now euters In ormation None
quotation system
Authorized Eurex to None
Eurex E_xchange coptract for 2014.10.01~ till now use TRIC!E system
transaction declaration for declaring
transactions.
Eurex authorized N
one
Eurex Exchange contract for 1,414 01,01~ ill now [information
quotation .
guotation
Eurex E_xchange contract for 2012.02.07~ till now Electronic trading None
electronic trading connection contract
ICE Eurppe cqntract for 2014.03.24~ till now Electronic trading None
electronic trading contract
ICE_US contract for electronic 2013.01.07~ till now Electronic trading None
trading contract
SGX Co - location contract 2.4 2016.03.01~ till now Electronic trading None
version contract
For SGX
. information source
SGX quotation contract 2010.01.01~ till no .
a ! W Quotation None
authorization
CME contract for electronic . Electronic tradin
2010.07.06~ till now g None

trading

contract
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Agreement Counterparty Period Major Content  |Restrictions
For CME
. . information source
CME quotation contract 2012.02.23~ till now Quotation None
authorization
CFE exchange contract for . For CFE mformaﬂon
. 2016.10.19~ till now |Source Quotation None
quotation L
authorization
. For MT5 system
MT5 system contract 2016.09.01~ till now authorization None
1. ADM Investor Services, Inc
2. UOB Futures Managed 1997.04.16~ till now
Corporation 1997.04.01~ till now
. 3. CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 2004.06.15~ till now .
Re-consigned . o . Re-consigned
contract 4., les_an Securities 2011.05.04~ till now brokerage business None
5. Societe Generale 2014.01.22~ till now
International Ltd. 2016.12.21~ till now
6. NH Futures Ltd 2019.07.01~ till now
7. Phillip Futures
Settlement  |1. Societe Generale Settlement service
Contract for International Ltd. 2011.01.20~ till now for foreign
Foreign 2. Phillip Future Corporation 2013.12.06~ till now futures products and None
Futures 3. Societe Generale 2018.01.16~ till now leveraged transaction
Products International Ltd.
Securities Commissioned the
Introducing Company for
Broker Capital Securities Corp. 2010.04.30~ till now |Securities None
commissioned Introducing
contract Broker service
Consultancy C_mc!a International Futures 2012.06.01~ till now Futu_res advisory None
contract Limited service
1. Taiwan Stock Exchange 2015.02.03~ till now
Corporation Contract for
Computer Connection.
2. Criteria Governing Handling [2015.07.22~ till now
of Stock Affairs by Public
Companies
3. Participant Agreement of 2015.07.28~ till now
Taiwan Depository &
Clearing Corporation
Contract with [4. Gre-Tai securities market 2015.02.02~ till now |Domestic transaction None

Authority

trading contract for
Computer Connection.
(Proprietary business)
Gre-Tai securities market
trading contract for
Computer Connection.
Taipei Exchange
Administrative Contract for
the Financial Derivative
Trade Database.

2015.08.03~ till now

2016.11.21~ till now

related business
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Agreement

Counterparty

Period

Major Content

Restrictions

Taiwan Futures Exchange
Corporation Trading
Information Use Contract
Taiwan Futures Exchange
Corporation Contract for
Computer Connection to the
Centralized Futures
Exchange Market

Taiwan Futures Exchange
Corporation Futures Market
Usage Contract

2003.12.26~ till now

2003.12.30~ till now

2003.12.30~ till now
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V1. Financial Summary

6.1 Summary balance sheet and comprehensive income statement for the last 5

years

6.1.1 Summary balance sheet (consolidated)- Based on IFRS

NTD: Thousand
Y ear Financial information for the latest 5 years Notel, 2
Item 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Current assets 19.965,045| 26383263 32.815403| 39,895947| 40602721
Property and equipment 29,888 43,168 48172 48,452 66,829
Intangible assets 76,455 79,629 83.939 78,032 82,235
Other assets 407,195 434,212 374,667 363,587 409,125
Total assets 20478583 26,940272| 33322181 40,386,018 41,160,910
Before 17,484,613| 23,731,512 28,642,738 35307278 36,092,258
Current distribution
liabilities |After 17.786,935| 24.085991| 29103080 35907.166| Note?2
distribution
Non-current liabilities 14.982 15,966 16,216 17,468 27.368
Before
Totl darboion| 17:499.595| 23747,478| 28,658,954 35324746| 36,119,626
ligbilities After | 12001 917 | 24100.057| 20119206 | 35924634|  Note2
distribution
Equity attributable
to parent company 2051029| 3167389 4637,732| 5032092 501299
shareholders
Capital stocks 1223979 1223979 1603979 1,764376| 1,764,376
Capital surplus 380,185 381,180| 1,207,735 1,047,338| 1,047,338
Before
metained  |diarioution | 1289998 1496995 1872755  2247.246| 2,246,703
eanings  (After 987676 1142516| 1412413| 1647358 Note2
distribution
Other equity interest 57,767 65,235 (46,737) (26,369) (45,421)
Treasury stocks - - - - -
Non-controlling 27,059 25,405 25,495 29,180 28,288
Interests
Before 2078.988| 3192794 4663227| 5061272 5041,284
Total distribution 10, 9%, /003, 004, O
equity  |After 2676666| 2838315 4202885 4461384 Note2
distribution

Note 1: All financial information in the last 5 years has been audited.
Note 2: Appropriation of 2019 earnings had yet to be resolved in a shareholders meeting.
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6.1.2 Summary balance sheet (standalone)- Based on IFRS

Unit: NTD Thousand

Y ear Financial information for the latest 5 years Notel, 2
Item 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Current assets 18,986,411 24,406,882 30,719,057| 38,113,857 38,683,882
Property and equipment 25,269 37,908 43,566 44,122 57,721
Intangible assets 49,711 51,330 56,292 52,405 56,982
Other assets 897,830| 1,387,126 1,320,860| 1,406,680| 1,356,566
Total assets 19,959,221| 25883.246| 32,139,775| 39,617,064| 40,155,151
Before 16,992,310| 22,699,801 27,485,827| 34,567,504| 35,119,902
Current distribution
liabilities |After 17.294632| 23.054370| 27.946169| 35167.392| Note?2
distribution
Non-current liabilities 14,982 15,966 16,216 17,468 22,253
Before
Total digribution | 17:007.292|  22,715857| 27,502,043 34584,972| 35,142,155
liabilities |After 17,300,614| 23,070,336| 27.962,385| 35,184,860 Note2
distribution
Equity attributable
to parent company 2,951,929 3,167,389 4,637,732 5,032,092 5,012,996
shareholders
Capital stocks 1,223979| 1223979 1,603979| 1764376 1,764,376
Capital surplus 380,185 381,180 1,207,735| 1,047,338 1,047,338
Before
Retained  |didribution | 1289:998| 1496995 1872755\ 2,247,246 2,246,703
earnings |After 087676 1142516| 1412413| 1647,358| Note2
distribution
Other equity interest 57,767 65,235 (46,737) (26,868) (45,421)
Treasury stocks - - - - -
Non-controlling i i i i i
interests
Before 2051029 3167389 4637732| 5032092 501299
Total distribution e D e e N
equity  |After 2649607| 2812910 4177.390| 4432204|  Note?2
distribution

Note 1: All financial information in the last 5 years has been audited.
Note 2: Appropriation of 2019 earnings had yet to be resolved in a shareholders meeting.
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6.1.3 Summary statement of comprehensive income (consolidated)- Based

on IFRS
Unit: NTD Thousand
Year Financial information for the latest 5 years Note 1,2,3

Item 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Operating revenues 1,551,837 2,251,362 2,676,371 2,849,492 1,916,778
Gross profit 847,805 1,187,415 1,358,708 1,642,337 1,047,967
Operating profit 172,286 420,487 512,085 527,531 177,662
Non-operating revenues 330,138 183,220 317,442 427,445 568,952
and expenses
Income before tax 502,424 603,707 829,527 954,976 746,614
Net income from 434,501 511,759 733,431 838,110 599,676
continuing operations
Loss from discontinued i i i ) )
operations
Net income (Loss) 434,501 511,759 733,431 838,110 599,676
Other comprehensive
income/loss for the 5,642 4369  (115,074) 19,382 (19,776)
current period (net,
after-tax)
Total comprehensive 440,143 516,128 618,357 857,492 579,900
income
Net income attributable
to parent company 432,927 511,809 731,015 835,205 600,009
shareholders
Net income attributable
to non-controlling 1,574 (50) 2,416 2,905 (333)
interest
Comprehensive income
attributable to parent 437,018 516,787 618,267 853,807 580,792
company shareholders
Comprehensive income
attributable to 3,125 (659) 90 3,685 (892)
non-controlling interest
Earnings per share
(NTD) 3.22 3.8 4.25 4.73 34

Note 1: The Company has prepared individual financial statement; therefore, the below condensed separate balance sheets within five

years are provided otherwise.

Note 2 All financial information for the last 5 years has been audited.

Note 3  Earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. Retrospective
calculations are made for any shares issued against capitalized earnings and reserves.
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6.1.4 Summary statement of comprehensive income (standalone)- Based on

IFRS

Unit: NTD Thousand

Year Financial information for the latest 5 years Note 1,2,3
Item 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Operating revenues 1,561,286 1,673,875 1,904,683 2,373,305 1,735,635
Gross profit 897,716 935,438 1,130,735 1,439,465 954,017
Operating profit 329,550 330,247 454,307 512,276 238,920
Non-operating revenues 171,276 273,535 372,582 437,980 508,027
and expenses
Income before tax 500,826 603,782 826,889 950,256 746,947
Net income from 432,927 511,809 731,015 835,205 600,009
continuing operations
Loss from discontinued i i i i i
operations
Net income (Loss) 432,927 511,809 731,015 835,205 600,009
Other comprehensive
income/loss for the 4,091 4978  (112,748) 18,602 (19,217)
current period (net,
after-tax)
Total comprehensive 437,018 516,787 618,267 853,807 580,792
income
Net income attributable
to parent company 3.22 3.8 4.25 4.73 34
shareholders

Note 1: The Company has prepared individual financial statement; therefore, the below condensed separate balance sheets within five

years are provided otherwise.

Note 2 All financial information for the last 5 years has been audited.

Note 3  Earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. Retrospective
calculations are made for any shares issued against capitalized earnings and reserves.

6.1.5 Names of financial statement auditors in the last 5 years, and their audit

opinions
Year CPA firm Name of CPA Audit opinion
2019 KPMG Taiwan Lee, Feng-Hui, Chung, Tan-Tan Ungqualified opinion
2018 KPMG Taiwan Lee, Feng-Hui, Chung, Tan-Tan Unqualified opinion
2017 KPMG Taiwan Lee, Feng-Hui, Chung, Tan-Tan Unqualified opinion
2016 KPMG Taiwan Lee, Feng-Hui, Chung, Tan-Tan Ungqualified opinion
2015 KPMG Taiwan Lee, Feng-Hui Chen, Fu-Wei Unqualified opinion
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6.2 Financial analysis for the previous 5 years

6.2.1 Financial analysis

A. Financial analysis (consolidated)--Based on IFRS

ar (Note 1
Financial analysis for the latest 5 years
Analysis  Note 3
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Financial Debt to assets ratio 85.45 88.15 86.01 87.47 87.75
structure ] i
. Long-term capital to property | g 967 17| 743319| 9,714.03| 10,482.00| 7,584.51
(%) and equipment
Solvency Current ratio 114.19 111.17 114.57 113.00 112.50
(%) Quick ratio 1414 | 11110 114.54| 11295 112.47
Return on assets (%) 2.42 2.16 2.43 2.27 1.47
Return on equity (%) 15.32 16.58 18.67 17.24 11.87
Profitability |As a percentage of paid-in
%) capital (%) (Note 7) 41.05 49.32 51.72 54.13 42.32
Net profit margin (%) 28.00 22.73 27.40 29.41 31.29
Earnings per share  dollar 3.22 3.8 4.25 4.73 3.40
Cash flow ratio (%) 1.71 2.54 2.23 2.68 2.45
Cash flow .
(%) Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 101.00 75.67 105.77 131.70 132.08
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 3.91 9.24 6.03 9.45 5.49
Shareholders' equity to adjusted
total liabilities ratio (%) 911 1161 764 1034 768
Special Shareholders' equity to
Purpose minimum paid-up capital ratio 264.75 284.07 415.94 451.31 449.60
Ratio (%)
(%) Adjusted net capital to required
margins on futures traders' 88.31 51.95 57.62 57.92 55.49
outstanding position ()

Please describe the reasons for the changes in the financial ratios over the last two years (If the increase or decrease
is less than 20%, an analysis is exempted)

1. The ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment of 2019 has decreased from the previous period

since the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standard No. 16 "Leases" first time which would increase
non-current liabilities.

The return on assets, return on equity, and percentage of paid-in capital and EPS in 2019 has decreased from the
previous period since the revenue from proprietary business of the Company decreased.

The Company has prepared individual financial statement; therefore, the below financial ratios analysis is provided otherwise.
The financial information adopting International Financial Reporting Standards has already over 5 years; therefore, the

financial information adopting Taiwan financial reporting standards won’t be prepared.

Note 1: All financial information for the last 5 years has been audited.

Note 2: Earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. Where there is any
capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share should be adjusted retroactively to the additional
capitalization.

Note 3: Calculations for earnings per share must take into account the following:

(1) Use weighted average outstanding ordinary shares instead of year-end outstanding shares.

(2) The weighted average outstanding shares must take into account all cash issues or treasury stock transactions, and the length of time
shares were in circulation.

(3) Where there is any capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share annually or semi-annually
should be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the additional capitalization, but with no need to consider the issuing period
of the capitalization.
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The formulas of the various analyses are defined below:
1. Financia structure

(1) Theratio of total liabilitiesto total assets  total liabilities/total assets

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment (Total equities noncurrent liabilities) /property,
plant and equipment.

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets/ current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (current assets  inventories prepaid expense) /current liabilities

(3) Interest coverage ratio = net profit before interest and tax / interest expenses for the current period.

3. Operating ability
(1) Account receivable turnover (including accounts receivable and notes receivabl e resulted from business

operation) = net sales/average balance of account receivable (including accounts receivable and notes
receivable resulted from business operation)

(2) Days salesin account receivable=365/account receivable turnover
(3) Inventory turnover=cost of goods sold/average inventory

(4) Account payable turnover (including accounts payable and notes payable resulted from business operation) =
operating costs/average balance of account payable (including accounts payable and notes payable resulted
from business operation)

(5) Average days in sales=365/inventory turnover
(6) Fixed property and equipment turnover=net sales/net fixed assets
(7) Total assets turnover=net sales/average total assets

4. Profitability

(1) Ratio or return on total assets = [post-tax profit or loss+(1-Tax)]/average total assets

(2) Return on shareholders equity = after tax net profit/ total average equity.

(3) Profitratio net income/net sales

(4) Earnings per share = (profits or loss attributable to owners of the parent company preferred stock dividend)
/weighted average stock sharesissued (Note 4)

5. Cash flow

(2) Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operating activities / current liabilities.

(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio net cash flow from operating activities within five years/ (capital expenditure
inventory increase  cash dividend) within five years

(3) Cash re-investment ratio = (net cash flow from operating activity cash dividend) / (gross property, plant,
and equipment long-term investment other noncurrent assets working capital) (Note 5)

6.Balance
(1) Operation balance = (net operating income-operating variable cost and expense)/operating income (Note 6)
(2) Financial balance= operating income/ (operating income-interest expense)

Note 4: Calculations for earnings per share must take into account the following:
1. Use weighted average outstanding ordinary shares instead of year-end outstanding shares.
2. The weighted average outstanding shares must take into account all cash issues or treasury stock transactions, and the length of
time shares werein circulation.
3. Where there is any capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share annually or semi-annually
should be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the additional capitalization, but with no need to consider the issuing period
of the capitalization.
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4. If the preferred stock is unconvertible cumulative, the current dividend (no matter distribute or not) should be deducted from after-
tax earnings or increase the after-tax loss. Besides, if the preferred stock is non-cumulative, and after-tax earnings is positive, the
dividend should be deducted from after-tax earnings; otherwise, if it is loss, there is no necessary to adjust.

Note 5: The cash flow analysis must take into account the following:
1. Net cash flow from operating activities is taken from the net cash flow from operating activities presented in the cash flow
statement.

2. Capital expenditure refers to the amount of annual cash outflow for capital investments.

3. The increasing number of inventories shall be calculated if the ending balance is larger than beginning balance, otherwise,
calculated in 0.

4. The cash dividend is including ordinary and preference shares.

5. The gross amount of property, plant, and equipment is the total amount of property, plant, and equipment before deducting
accumulated depreciation.

Note 6

judgement should be maintained consistency.

Note 7

company shareholders into balance sheet.

—_

- default loss provision.

W N

amount of futures trader’s necessary margin for open interest.

B. Financial analysis (standalone)--Based on IFRS

. Ratio of owner's equity to minimum paid-up capital= owner's equity / minimum paid-up capital.
. Ratio of adjusted net capital to the total amount of futures trader’s necessary margin for open interest= adjusted net capital/ total

The issuer should identify the operating cost and expense into fixable and variable, if the identification is subjective, the evaluation
The par value of share is 0 or not NTD 10, regarding to paid-up capital calculation will use the ratio attributable to parent

. Ratio of owner's equity to adjusted total debt = owner's equity / (total liabilities - futures trader's equity - transaction loss provision

car (Note 1 Financial analysis for the latest 5 years
Item Note 3 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Financial  |Debt to assets ratio 85.21 87.76 85.57 87.30 87.52
structure ) ;
%) znlif;? capital to property and 4y 741 31| 8397.58| 10,682.52 11.444.54| 8,723.43
u
Solvency  |Current ratio 111.74 107.52 111.76 110.26 110.15
(%) Quick ratio 111.70 107.46 111.74 110.23|  110.14
Return on assets (%) 2.50 2.23 2.52 2.33 1.50
Return on equity (%) 15.34 16.73 18.73 17.27 11.95
Profitability |As a percentage of paid-in capital
40.92 49.33 51.55 53.86 42.33
(%) (%0) (Note 7)
Net profit margin (%) 27.73 30.58 38.38 35.19 34.57
Earnings per share  dollar 3.22 3.80 4.25 4.73 3.40
Cash flow ratio (%) 0.94 2.40 2.18 2.50 2.05
Cash flow .
(%) Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 87.53 69.27 90.99 112.41 115.20
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 0.00 7.53 5.21 7.88 2.37
Shareholders' equity to adjusted
total liabilities ratio (%) 911 1,161 764 1,034 768
Special ' ; ini
Pumpose | rehotders” equity fo minimum| 04 95\ ag407)  415.94]  45131]  449.60
Ratio paid-up capital ratio (%)
(%) Adjusted net capital to required
margins on futures traders' 88.31 51.95 57.62 57.92 55.49

outstanding position ()
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Please describe the reasons for the changes in the financial ratios over the last two years (If the increase or decreasg
isless than 20%, an analysis is exempted)
1.

The ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment of 2019 has decreased from the previous period
since the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standard No. 16 "Leases' first time which would
increase non-current liabilities.

The return on assets, return on equity, and percentage of paid-in capital and EPS in 2019 has decreased from the
previous period since the revenue from proprietary business of the Company decreased.

The Company has prepared individual financial statement; therefore, the below financia ratios analysis is provided
otherwise.

The financial information adopting International Financial Reporting Standards has already over 5 years; therefore, the
financial information adopting Taiwan financial reporting standards won't be prepared.

Note 1: All financia information for the last 5 years has been audited.

Note 2: Earnings per share is caculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. Where there is any
capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share should be adjusted retroactively to the
additional capitalization.

Note 3: Calculations for earnings per share must take into account the following:

1. Use weighted average outstanding ordinary shares instead of year-end outstanding shares.

2. The weighted average outstanding shares must take into account all cash issues or treasury stock transactions, and the length of
time shares werein circulation.

3.Where thereis any capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share annually or semi-annually
should be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the additional capitalization, but with no need to consider the issuing period
of the capitalization.

The formula of the various analyses is defined below:

1. Financial structure

(1) Theratio of total liabilitiesto total assets  total liabilities/total assets

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment (Total equities noncurrent liabilities) /property,
plant and equipment.

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets/ current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio  (current assets inventories prepaid expense) /current liabilities

(3) Interest coverage ratio = net profit before interest and tax / interest expenses for the current period.

3. Operating ability

(1) Account receivable turnover (including accounts receivable and notes receivable resulted from business
operation) = net sales/average balance of account receivable (including accounts receivable and notes
receivable resulted from business operation)

(2) Days salesin account receivable=365/account receivable turnover
(3) Inventory turnover=cost of goods sold/average inventory

(4) Account payable turnover (including accounts payable and notes payable resulted from business operation) =
operating costs/average balance of account payable (including accounts payable and notes payable resulted
from business operation)

(5) Average days in sales=365/inventory turnover
(6) Fixed property and equipment turnover=net sales/net fixed assets
(7) Total assets turnover=net sales/average total assets

4. Profitability

(1) Ratio or return on total assets  [post-tax profit or loss+(1-Tax)]/average total assets
(2) Return on shareholders equity = after tax net profit/ total average equity.

(3) Profit ratio  net income/net sales
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(4) Earnings per share (profits or loss attributable to owners of the parent company preferred stock dividend)
/weighted average stock sharesissued (Note 4)

5. Cash flow
(1) Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operating activities/ current liabilities.
(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio net cash flow from operating activities within five years/(capital expenditure

inventory increase  cash dividend) within five years
(3) Cash re-investment ratio  (net cash flow from operating activity cash dividend) /(gross property , plant,
and equipment long-term investment other noncurrent assets working capital) (Note 5)

6.Balance
(1) Operation balance = (net operating income-operating variable cost and expense)/operating income (Note 6)
(2) Financial balance= operating income/ (operating income-interest expense)

Note 4: Calculations for earnings per share must take into account the following:

1. Useweighted average outstanding ordinary sharesinstead of year-end outstanding shares.

2. The weighted average outstanding shares must take into account all cash issues or treasury stock transactions, and the length of time
shares were in circulation.

3. Wherethereisany capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share annually or semi-annually
should be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the additional capitalization, but with no need to consider the issuing period of
the capitalization.

4. If the preferred stock is unconvertible cumulative, the current dividend (no matter distribute or not) should be deducted from after-tax
earnings or increase the after-tax loss. Besides, if the preferred stock is non-cumulative, and after-tax earningsis positive, the
dividend should be deducted from after-tax earnings; otherwise, if it isloss, there is no necessary to adjust.

Note 5: The cash flow analysis must take into account the following:

1. Net cash flow from operating activities is taken from the net cash flow from operating activities presented in the cash flow statement.

2. Capital expenditure refersto the amount of annual cash outflow for capital investments.

3. Theincreasing number of inventories shall be calculated if the ending balance is larger than beginning balance, otherwise, calculated
in0.

4. The cash dividend isincluding ordinary and preference shares.

5. Thegross amount of property, plant, and equipment is the total amount of property, plant, and equipment before deducting
accumulated depreciation.

Note 6 The issuer should identify the operating cost and expense into fixable and variable, if the identification is subjective, the evaluation

judgement should be maintained consistency.

Note 7 The par value of shareis 0 or not NTD 10, regarding to paid-up capital calculation will use the ratio attributable to parent company

shareholders into balance sheet.

1. Ratio of owner's equity to adjusted total debt = owner's equity / (total liabilities - futures trader's equity - transaction loss
provision - default loss provision.

2. Ratio of owner's equity to minimum paid-up capital= owner's equity / minimum paid-up capital.

3. Ratio of adjusted net capital to the total amount of futures trader’s necessary margin for open interest= adjusted net capital/ total
amount of futures trader’s necessary margin for open interest.

6.2.2 Other significant information with regards to enhance the understanding of
financial status, operating result and changing tendency: None.

6.3 Audit report on the most recent year financia statements by the audit
committee: Please refer to page 118 of this annual report.

6.4 Latest financial statements. Please refer to pagell19~190 of this annual
report.

6.5 Standalone financial statements audited & certified by Accountants in the
most recent years: Please refer to page 191~258 of this annual report.

6.6 Financial insolvency incidents encountered by the Company and affiliates
in the last year, up till the publication date of this annual report: None.
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Capital Futures Corp.

Audit Committees' Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the 2019 fiscal year Financia
Statements (including the Consolidated Financial Statements) of the Company,
among which the financial statements were audited by the CPAs of KPMG
Taiwan, “Lee, Feng-Hui” and “Chung, Tan-Tan”, with an unqualified opinion
issued in the Independent Auditor’ s Report. We, as the Audit Committee of the
Company, has reviewed the Financial Statements (including the Consolidated
Financial Statements) that were present fairly with the reports prepared in
accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article

219 of the Company Law that are hereby presented for your approval.

Capital Futures Corp.
Chairman of Audit Committee

Chuang, Chih-Chen

March 26, 2020
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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Capital Futures Corporation
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are
the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, "Consolidated
Financial Statements." In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements
is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Capital Futures Corporation and Subsidiaries
do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Company name: Capital Futures Corporation
Chairman: Sun, Tien-Shan
Date: March 26, 2020
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Independent Auditors Report

To the Board of Directors of Capital Futures Corporation
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Capital Futures Corporation and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018 and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, the related rules of
Preparing Financial Reports of Futures Enterprises, the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Firms and with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International
Accounting Standards (“ IASs” ), Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and
issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (*“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Key audit matters of the Group’s financial statements are stated as
follows:

Commission income — brokerage recognized:

Related accounting policies of commission income — brokerage recognized, please refer to the consolidated
financial report note 4(o) revenue recognized. Explaination of commission income — brokerage, please refer to
the consolidated financial report note 6(o)(i). Comprehensive income statement commission income —
brokerage.
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Explaination of key audit matters:

The Group’s main income is commission income — brokerage from entrusted futures dealing. The existence and
accuracy of commission income — brokerage have major affect on the financial report. Therefore, commission
income — brokerage recognized is one of the important evaluation matters of the Group’s financial report.

Audit procedures in response:

According to the key audit matters main audit procedures, we perform the sampling test on brokerage business
dealing internal control and commission income — brokerage recorded amount, then compare with the entrusted
data from brokerage business and evaluate the revenue recognized policies are managed by the related bulletin.

Other Matter

Capital Futures Corporation has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission
Merchants, the related rules of Preparing Financial Reports of Futures Enterprises, the Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms and with the IFRSs, IASs, IFRIC, SIC endorsed and
issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are LEE, FENG HUI and
CHUNG, TAN TAN.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 26, 2020

Notesto Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position,
financial performance and its cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are
those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version prepared

and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English and Chinese
language auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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401000
410000
421300
421500
421600
421610

424100
424200
424400
424500
424800
424900
428000

501000
502000
521200
521640
425300
524100
524300
528000
531000
532000
533000

601000

602000

902001
701000

805000
805500
805510
805540
805599

805600
805610
805699

805000
902006
913100
913200

914100
914200

975000
985000

(English Trandlation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the yearsended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Income:

Commission income - brokerage (Note 6(0))

Net gains (losses) on sale of trading securities

Dividend revenue

Net gains (losses) on measurement of trading securities at fair value through profit or loss

Losses on covering of borrowed securities and bonds with resale agreements-short sales

Net losses on borrowed securities and bonds with resale agreements-short sales at fair value
through profit or loss

Futures commission revenue (Note 6(0))

Securities commission revenue

Net gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments (Note 6(0))

Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments - Taipei Exchange (Note 6(0))

Management fee revenue

Consulting fee revenue

Other operating revenue

Expenses:
Brokerage fees
Brokerage fees - proprietary trading
Financial costs
Loss from securities borrowing transactions
(Reversal of) expected credit impairment loss (Note 6(p))
Futures commission expenses (Note 6(0))
Clearing and settlement expenses
Other operating expenditure
Employee benefit expenses (Note 6(0))
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 6(0))
Other operating expenses (Note 6(0))

Non-oper ating income and expenses:
Share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures under equity method (Note
6(¢))
Other gains and losses (Note 6(0))

Net income befor e income tax
Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(1))
Net income
Other comprehensive income:
Componentsthat may not be reclassified to profit or lossin subsequent periods:
Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit plans (Note 6(k))
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Subtotal of componentsthat may not be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss
Componentsthat may bereclassified to profit or lossin subsequent periods:
Foreign exchange difference from translating financial reports of foreign operations
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss (Note 6(1))
Subtotal of componentsthat may be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss
Other comprehensiveincome
Total comprehensiveincome
Net income attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Basic earnings per share (Dollar) (Note 6(n))
Diluted earnings per share (Dollar) (Note 6(n))

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
$ 1,577,235 82 1,858,391 65
54,758 3 (68,276)  (2)
1,101 - 5,853 -
14,751 1 (2,554) -
(1,144) - - -
(1,108) - - -
209,879 11 453,195 16
4,622 - 7,102 -
(16,016) (1) 465,785 16
36,424 2 72,343 3
204 - 1,379 -
15,076 1 29,057 1
20,996 1 27,217 1
1,916,778 100 2.849.492 100
266,476 14 342,926 12
1,325 - 4,919 -
19,791 1 10,225 1
193 - - -
(2,237) - 35,328 1
432,079 22 634,575 22
149,055 8 173,218 6
2,129 - 5,964 -
457,346 24 483,456 17
67,600 4 30,558 1
345359 18 600,792 21
1,739,116 91 2,321,961 81
2,469 - 3,818 -
566,483 30 423,627 15
568,952 30 427,445 15
746,614 39 954,976 34
146,938 8 116,866 5
599,676 31 838,110 _ 29
(664) (372) -
320 - 41 -
(344) __ - (331) __-
(19,498) (1) 28,935 1
(66) __- 9,222 -
(19.432) _ (1) 19,713 1
(19.776) __ (1) 19,382 1
$ 579,900 30 857,492 30
$ 600,009 31 835,205 29
(333) __- 2,905 -
$ 599,676 31 838,110 29
$ 580,792 30 853,807 30
(892) _ - 3,685 -
$ 579,900 30 857,492 30
$ 3.40 4.73
$ 3.40 4.73
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(English Trandation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the yearsended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2019 2018
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Net income befor e income tax $ 746,614 954,976
Adjustments:
Adjustmentsto reconcile:
Depreciation expense 59,246 22,605
Amortization expense 8,354 7,953
Expected credit loss (gain) (2,237) 35,328
Net gains on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (21,723) (9,253)
Interest expense 19,791 10,225
Interest income (including financial income) (541,224) (379,425)
Dividend income (1,457) (5,902)
Share of loss (profit) of associates and joint ventures under equity method (2,469) (3.818)
Total adjustmentsto reconcile (481,719) (322,287)
Changesin operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5,854 589,933
Decrease (increase) in bond purchased under resale agreements 152,000 (186,499)
Increase in customer margin accounts (588,119) (6,883,182)
Decrease (increase) in receivable-futures margin 2,388 (33,370)
Increase in leverage contract trading - customer's margin accounts (79,979) (77,024)
Increase in security borrowing margin (3,874) -
Decrease in accounts receivable 308 15,469
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable to related parties (388) 767
Decrease (increase) in prepayments 7,542 (6,799)
Increase in other receivable (22,239) (7,927)
Decrease (increase) in other receivable to related parties 15,762 (19,777)
Increase in other current assets - (1)
(Increase) decrease in clearing and settlement fund (2,835) 893
(Increase) decrease in refundable deposits (695) 6,085
Decrease in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (3,172) (106,552)
Increase in futures traders' equity 648,735 6,800,864
Increase in leverage contract trading - customer's equity 82,691 73,059
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 6,894 (59,528)
Decrease in accounts payable to related parties (8) (3,766)
Decrease in advance receipts (7,753) (14,981)
Decrease in receipts under custody (129) (434)
Decrease in other payable (14,322) (28,687)
Increase in other payable to related parties 349 179
Increase in provisions for liabilities 5,952 -
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 2,182 (4,315)
(Decrease) increase in non-current liabilities (1,857) 4,784
Total changesin operating assets and liabilities 205,287 59,191
Total adjustments (276.432) (263.096)
Cash inflow generated from operations 470,182 691,880
Interest received 544,377 372,469
Dividends received 1,349 5,902
Interest paid (19,071) (10,220)
Income taxes paid (113,773) (112,074)
Income taxes refund - 3
Net Cash flows from (used in) operating activities 883,064 947,960
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (47,513) (22,746)
Acquisition of intangible assets (12,646) (3,912)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets - 1,932
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (60,159) (24,726)
Cash flowsfrom (used in) financing activities:
Payment of lease liabilities (29,890) -
Cash dividends paid (599.888) (460.342)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (629.,778) (460,342)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (19,113) 28,369
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 174,014 491,261
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3.957.955 3.466.694
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 4,131,969 3,957,955

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notesto the Consolidated Financial Statements
For theyearsended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

Capital Futures Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated on February 26, 1997 and registered under
the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. The address of the Company’s registered office is 32nd and B1
FlL. No. 97, Tun Hwa South Rd., Sec. 2, Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C. The Company established the Taichung
branch. The Company’s common shares were listed at Taipei Exchange (TPEx) officially on April 27,
2009, then transferred to Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE) on October 16, 2017. The composition of the
consolidated financial statements includes the Company and the subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Group is
authorized to conduct the following businesses:

(2)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(H
(2)
(h)

Futures business

Futures advisory business

Securities introducing brokerage

Futures management business

Management consulting and information software service
Securities business on a proprietary basis

Securities investment consulting

Lever Exchange Agency

(2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on March
26, 2020.

(3) New standards, amendments and inter pretations adopted:

(a)

The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (“FSC”) which have already been adopted.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and I nter pretations per IASB
IFRS 16 “Leases” January 1, 2019
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment features with negative compensation” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures” January 1, 2019
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019
(Continued)
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CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto the Consolidated Financial Statements

Except for the following items, the Group believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would not
have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows:

(i) IFRS 16“Leases”

IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The Group applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the
cumulative effect of initial application is recognized in opening balance on January 1, 2019.
The details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below.

1)  Definition of a lease

Previously, the Group determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or
contains a lease under IFRIC 4. Under IFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition of a lease, as explained in Note 4(m).

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the practical expedient to
grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. The Group applied IFRS 16
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not
identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a
lease. Therefore, the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 was applied only to contracts
entered into or changed on or after January 1, 2019.

2) Asalessee

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based
on its assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the
Group recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on balance sheet.

The Group decided to apply recognition exemptions to short-term leases of office
equipment, etc.

e  Leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted at the Group’s incremental borrowing rate as at January
1, 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at either:

—  their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the
commencement date, discounted using the lessee’ s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application — the Group applied this approach to its
largest property leases; or
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an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments — the Group applied this approach to all other
lease.

In addition, the Group used the following practical expedients when applying [FRS
16 to leases.

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of IAS 37 onerous contract
provision immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative
to an impairment review.

Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for
leases with less than 12 months of lease term.

Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application.

Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

Impacts on financial statements

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group recognised additional $41,065 thousands of right-of-

use assets and $41,065 thousands of lease liabilities. When measuring lease liabilities, the
Group discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at January 1,

2019. The weighted-average rate applied is 1.61%.

The explanation of differences between operating lease commitments disclosed at the
end of the annual reporting period immediately preceding the date of initial application,
and lease liabilities recognized in the statement of financial position at the date of initial
application disclosed as follows:

January 1, 2019

Operating lease commitment at December 31, 2018 as disclosed in $ 43,581
the Group’s consolidated financial statements

Recognition exemption for:

leases of low -value assets (1,389)
short-term leases (516)
41,676
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at January 1, 2019 41,065
Lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 41,065
(Continued)

-129 -



(4)

(b)

(©)

CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto the Consolidated Financial Statements

The impact of IFRS endorsed by FSC but not yet effective

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 in accordance with Ruling No.
1080323028 issued by the FSC on July 29, 2019:

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and | nter pr etations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS39 and IFRS7 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material” January 1, 2020

The Group assesses that the adoption of the abovementioned standards would not have any material
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

As of the date, the following IFRSs that have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), but have yet to be endorsed by the FSC:

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and | nter pr etations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between Effective date to
an Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture” be determined

by IASB
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021
Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”  January 1, 2022

The Group is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its consolidated financial position and consolidated financial performance. The
results thereof will be disclosed when the Group completes its evaluation.

Summary of significant accounting policies:

The significant accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are summarized
below. Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies were applied consistently
throughout the periods presented in the consolidated financial report.

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, the related rules
of Preparing Financial Reports of Futures Enterprises, the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Firms and with the IFRSs, IASs, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of China.
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(b) Basis of preparation

(1)

(i)

Basis of measurement

Except for the following significant account, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis:

1)  Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value (including derivative instruments);

2)  Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value;

3) The defined benefit liability is recognized as the fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Group is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in New Taiwan Dollar, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in New Taiwan Dollar has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(¢c) Basis of consolidation

(1)

Principle of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

Consolidation of subsidiaries begins from the date the Group obtains control of the
subsidiaries and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non controlling interests even if this
results in the non controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Inter company transactions, balances and any unrealized gains or losses on transactions
between companies within the Group are eliminated.
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(i) List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements

Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial report are as follows:

Ratio of Equity

Ownership
Name of the December December
investor Subsidiaries  Businesstype 31, 2019 31, 2018 Note
The Company CSC Futures Futures dealing 9727 % 97.27 % The  corporation  established in
(HK) Ltd. business December, 1998. The Company
acquired 100% of the equity on
November 1, 2012, disposed 5% of the
equity on April 2, 2014, acquired 5% of
the equity on December 23, 2014,
disposed 5% of the equity on April 30,
2015 and acquired 2.27% of the equity
when the corporation raised its capital
by  HKS$100,000  thousands on
December 12, 2016. As of December
31, 2019, the paid in capitals amounted
to HK$220,000 thousands.
The Company Capital Management 100.00 % 100.00 % The  corporation  established in
International consulting and December, 2014. As of December 31,
Technology information 2019, the paid in capitals amounted to
Corp. service $50,000 thousands.
business.
Capital International Capital True Management 51.00 % 51.00 % The corporation established in August
Technology Corp. Partner consulting and 20, 2008. The Company acquired 51%
Technology information of the equity on February 9, 2015 and
Co., Ltd. service held controlling interest. As of
business. December 31, 2019, the paid in
capitals amounted to CNY$1,000
thousands.
Capital International Capital Futures Management, 100.00 % 100.00 % The corporation established in October,
Technology Corp. Technology consulting and 2016. As of December 31, 2019, the
(Shanghai) Co., information paid in capitals amounted to
Ltd. service CNY$4,000 thousands.
business.

(d) Foreign currency

(1)

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of
Group entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
subsequent reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the
functional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Non monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences
relating to the investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other
comprehensive income, which are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to the reporting currency at exchange rates at the reporting
date. The income and expenses of foreign operations, excluding foreign operations in
hyperinflationary economies, are translated at the average exchange rate. Translation
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign
currency translation reserve in equity.

When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign currency gains and losses arising from
such a monetary items are considered to form part of a net investment in the foreign operation
and are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non current.

(1)

(i)
(111)
(iv)

Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized, or intended to be sold
or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;

Assets held for the trading purposes;
Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

Cash and cash equivalent, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to
be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non current.

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:

(1)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

Liabilities arising from operating activities that are expected to be settled in the normal
operating cycle;

Liabilities incurred for the trading purposes;
Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalent comprises time deposit with
maturity within one year, excess future margin, and commercial paper, short-term and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subjected to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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(g) Financial instruments

Trade receivables issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(1)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment; FVOCI — equity investment;
or FVTPL. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

)

2)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, amortized costs,
trade receivables, other receivable, guarantee deposit paid and other financial assets),
debt investments measured at FVOCI and contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss
(ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).
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The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking
information.

The Company considers a debt security to have a low credit risk when the credit risk
rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if
it is overdue more than 30 days or within 30 days but breached the contract. The Group
considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is overdue more than
90 days or the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
¢ credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
assets is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charge to profit or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the asset.
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The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
For debtors, the Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The
Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of
the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement
of balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

(i) Financial liabilities

1)

2)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.
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3)  Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(iii) Non-hedging derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and transaction costs are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value,
and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control.

A holding of 20% or more of the voting power (directly or through subsidiaries) will indicate
significant unless it can be clearly demonstrated otherwise. Investments in associates are accounted
for using equity method and are recognized initially at cost. The carrying amount of the investment
in associates includes goodwill which is arising from the acquisition.

On initial recognition, the investor’ s share of the investee’ s profit or loss is recognized in the
investor’s profit or loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the
investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be required arising from changes in the
investee’s other comprehensive income.

Any change in ownership interest of the subsidiaries, not resulting in loss of control, is treated as
equity transaction.

The investor’s share of the changes from foreign exchange translation differences is recognized in
net assets/equity of the investor.

Securities under agreements

The Group engages in securities under resell agreements trading and the nature of transaction
substance is financing. When entering securities under resell agreements transactions, the Group
establishes an account “Investment in Bonds with resell agreements” with the actual amount of
lending and recognizes financing interest revenue by the interest period of resell agreements and no
profit and loss is recognized.

Securities borrowing transactions

The Group engages in securities lending transactions, the amount of the sale of securities borrowing
recognized liability, and to distinguish hedging and non-hedging purposes, in accordance with stocks
and bonds. The amount paid to redeem shares or bonds borrowed, as a deduction of the subjects, the
collateral paid in cash recorded as security borrowing margin, short sales delivered for securities
market financing recorded as security borrowing collateral price.
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(k) Customers margin accounts and future traders’ equity

M

The customers’ margin refers to the guarantee deposits and premiums collected from futures
customers and also the spread calculated based on the market prices everyday. It is reflected under
current assets of the balance sheet. Futures traders’ equity refers to futures customers’ deposit the
guarantee deposits and option premiums and also the spread calculated based on the market prices
everyday. It is reflected under current liabilities. The loss is offset only against the balance of the
same customers’ own margin accounts. If a customer incurs a loss in excess of the margin account
balance, the excess is recognized a receivable.

Property and equipment

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributed to the
acquisition of the asset.

Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately, unless the useful life and the depreciation
method of a significant part of an item of property and equipment are the same as the useful
life and depreciation method of another significant part of that same item.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property and equipment shall be
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item, and it shall be recognized as other income and expenses.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. The carrying amount of those
parts that are replaced is derecognized. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual values, and it
shall be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. Items of property and equipment
with the same useful life may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge. The
remainder of the items may be depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each period
shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property and equipment are as follows:

1)  Office equipment 3 ~ 5 years

2)  Leasehold improvement is depreciated equally over the shorter period of estimated useful
life or the lease term.
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Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. If
expectations differ from the previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change in
an accounting estimate.

(m) Leases

Applicable from January 1, 2019

(1)

(i)

Identifying a lease

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of
a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset
is not identified; and

— the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset throughout the period of use; and

— the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset throughout the period of use only if
either:

1) the customer has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset is used
throughout the period of use; or

2) the relevant decisions about how and for what purpose the asset is used are
predetermined and:

- the customer has the right to operate the asset throughout the period of use, without the
supplier having the right to change those operating instructions; or

- the customer designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose
it will be used throughout the period of use.

As a leasee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

(Continued)

-140-



CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto the Consolidated Financial Statements

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
— payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

— there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

— there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee; or

— there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether it
will exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset, or

— there is a change of its assessment on whether it will exercise a extension or termination
option; or

— there is any lease modifications

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and lease
liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position.

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases of office equipment and transportation equipment etc. that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Applicable before January 1, 2019

Operating leases are not recognized in the Group’s statement of balance sheet. Payments made under
operating lease (excluding insurance and maintenance expenses) are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part of
the total lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease payments under
operating lease shall be recognized in renting expenses and disclosed in financial report.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Group are the requirements for transacting business on an exchange. The
seats are regarded as intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and measured at cost while
originally recognized. After initial recognition, an intangible asset shall be carried at its cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. As for computer software, it was amortized on a straight-line basis
over estimated useful life of three years, and in the meanwhile, the amortization would be recognized
in gains or losses. The residual value, amortization period and amortization method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each financial year-end. The change is accounted for as
a change in an accounting estimate.

Revenue recognition
The main revenue is commission income - brokerage and is recognized based on an accrual basis.
Impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than deferred tax assets and employee benefits) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.
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(q) Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service
is provided.

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
the plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. The Group determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
then-net defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognizes costs for a restructuring. If benefits are
not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are
discounted.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Share-based payment

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employee is recognized as
employee expenses with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period which the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards which the related service and non-market performance conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number
of award that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between
expected and actual outcomes.

Income tax

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are
recognized except for the following:

(i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses) at
the time of the transaction;

(il) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

(iii) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

(i) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(i1) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1)  the same taxable entity; or

2) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

The Company’s 10% surtax on unappropriated earnings is recorded as current expense after the date
of the resolution of stockholders’ meeting for declaring the distribution of earnings.

Income tax of overseas subsidiaries is estimated in accordance with local regulation. Income tax of
the Group is the sum of the income tax of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements.

(t) Earnings per share (“EPS”)

The Group presents its basic and dilutive earnings per share attributable to the Company’s ordinary
equity holders. The basic earnings per share of the Group is calculated by dividing profit or loss
attributable to the Company’s ordinary equity holders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by the weighted-average
number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The dilutive potential ordinary shares of the Group include the estimation of
employee remuneration.

(u) Segment information

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed
by the Group’s CEO who allocates resources and assesses segment performance. Each operating
segment consists of standalone financial information.

Major sources of accounting judgments, estimation and assumptions uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants , the related rules of Preparing Financial Reports for
Futures Enterprises, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms and
the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the following period.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year is as follows:

Impairment of goodwill

The assessment of impairment of goodwill requires the Group to make subjective judgments to identify
CGUss, allocate the goodwill to relevant CGUs, and estimate the recoverable amount of relevant CGUs.
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(6) Explanation of significant accounts:

(a)

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Cash $ 129 159
Demand deposits 552,573 752,120
Time deposits 2,973,498 2,665,551
Futures margin-excess margin 594,777 517,628
Commercial paper 10,992 22,497
Total $ 4,131,969 3,957,955
Financial assets and liabilities
(1)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Open-ended funds and money-market instruments $ 112,948 187,344
Open-ended funds and money-market instruments 1,492 (896)
valuation adjustment
Trading securities - proprietary trading 152,933 116,292
Trading securities - proprietary trading valuation 6,350 (8,404)
adjustment
Securities invested by securities broker 146,849 74,553
Securities invested by securities broker valuation (1,589) (7,283)
adjustment
Call options - non-hedging 3,482 11,580
Futures margin-proprietary fund - non-hedging 51,316 75,717
Non-hedging foreign exchange rate derivatives 39,066 46,967
Total $ 512,847 495,870

If there is an increase in the securities price of 1% on the reporting date (assume that all other
variables remain the same), the impact on after-tax comprehensive income for 2019 and 2018

will increase $4,190 and $3,616, respectively. Conversely, if there is an decrease in the
securities price of 1% on the reporting date based on all other variables remain the same, there

will be the same amount but opposite direction of influence.
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(i1)) Bonds purchased under resale agreements

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Bonds purchased under resale agreements $ 46,000 198,000
Resale price under the agreements $ 46,007 198,034
Date of repurchase 2020.1.6 2019.1.2~2019.1.14
Interest rates 0.47% 0.45% ~0.48%

(iii) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Owner ship Ownership
I nvestee Company ratio Amount ratio Amount
Taiwan Futures Exchange Co., Ltd 0.0042 % $ 1,375 0.0042 % 1,055

The Group holds shares of Taiwan Futures Exchange for long-term strategic purposes and not
for trading, therefore, the Group had classified these equity instruments as FVOCI.

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the dividends of $51 and $49,
respectively, related to equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
held on the years then ended, were recognized. No strategic investments were disposed in 2019
and 2018, and there were no transfers of any cumulative gain or loss within equity relating to
these investments.

(iv) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss-current

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Put options - non-hedging $ 11,897 15,837
Liabilities on sale of borrowed securities - non-hedging 2,257 -
Liabilities on sale of borrowed securities valuation 1,108 -
adjustment - non-hedging

Non-hedging foreign exchange rate derivatives 7,574 9,063

$ 22,836 24,900

(¢) Investments under Equity Method

Investments under equity method on the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Associate $ 47.860 45,719
(Continued)
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Associate

The Group acquired 49% of True Partner Capital Advisor Co., Ltd. shares with US $1,123 on
October 2, 2015, which indicate significant. Below is the relevant information:

Principal place

of business Owner ship equity
/Register and % of right to vote
Name of country of December  December
associate Relationship with the Company company 31, 2019 31, 2018
True Partner Capital Its main business is assests Hong Kong 49.00 % 49.00 %

Advisor Co., Ltd. management, and it's the
Company's strategic alliances to
expand assets managing business.

The insignificant associate uses equity method and its financial information is summarized as
follows. The information is included in the consolidated financial statement of the Group:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Summerized ending balance of the insignificant $ 47,860 45,719

associate

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Shares belong to the Group:
Net gains from continuing operations $ 2,469 3,818
Other comprehensive income (losses) (262) 366
Total comprehensive income $ 2,207 4,184

Collateral and pledge

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group did not provide any investment accounted for
using equity method as collaterals for its loans.

(d) Property and equipment

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the cost and accumulated depreciation of the
property and equipment of the Group were as follows:

Cost:

Office L easehold
equipment improvements Total
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 107,380 20,501 127,881
Additions 45,766 1,747 47,513
Disposal (17,793) - (17,793)
Effect of exchange rate changes (740) (62) (802)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 134,613 22,186 156,799
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Office L easehold
equipment improvements Total
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 90,655 14,156 104,811
Additions 16,488 6,258 22,746
Effect of exchange rate changes 237 87 324
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 107,380 20,501 127,881
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 70,156 9,273 79,429
Depreciation 24,262 4,708 28,970
Disposal (17,793) - (17,793)
Effect of exchange rate changes (574) (62) (636)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 76,051 13,919 89,970
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 52,260 4,379 56,639
Depreciation 17,752 4,853 22,605
Effect of exchange rate changes 144 41 185
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 70,156 9,273 79,429
Carrying amounts:
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 58,562 8,267 66,829
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 37,224 11,228 48,452

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group did not provide any property and equipment as
collateral and pledge.

Right-of-use assets

The Group leases buildings and equipment. Information about leases for which the Group as a lessee
was presented below:

Buildings Equipment Total
Cost:

Balance at January 1, 2019 $ - - -
Effects of retrospective application 37,696 3,369 41,065
Additions 23,525 5,608 29,133
Derecognition (77) - (77)
Effect of exchange rate changes (509) - (509)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 60,635 8,977 69,612
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Buildings Equipment Total

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at January 1, 2019 $ - - -

Effects of retrospective application - - -

Depreciation 27,360 2,916 30,276

Effect of exchange rate changes (145) - (145)

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 27,215 2,916 30,131
Carrying amounts:

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 33,420 6,061 39,481

Customers margin accounts/futures traders' equity

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the difference between customers’ margin accounts and futures

traders' equity were reconciled as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Customers margin accounts
Cash in bank $ 26,981,210 26,014,805
Balance of the futures clearing house 4,874,988 2,579,464
Balance of other futures commission merchants 3,635,783 6,309,528
Marketable securities 185 250
Balance of customers margin accounts 35,492,166 34,904,047
Plus adjustment items:

Commision cost 1,248 5,035

Others (66) 52
Deduction adjustment items:

Commision income (7,426) (17,259)

Futures transaction tax (1,342) (1,426)

Interest income (5,699) (3,726)

Temporary credits (1,817) (669)

Remittance amount of the customers after the market (9,235) (7,179)

closed

Other receivables (31,851) (91,632)

Balance of futures traders' equity $ 35,435,978 34,787,243
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Receivable - futures margin

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Receivable - futures margin - current $ 386 422
Less: Loss allowance 384 421
Subtotal 2 1
Receivable - futures margin - non-current 30,597 32,949
Less: Loss allowance 30,597 32,949
Subtotal - -

Total $ 2 1

The movement in the allowance for receivable - futures margin was as follows:

2019 2018
Balance on January 1 $ 33,370 -
Impairment losses recognized (reversed) (2,389) 33,370
Balance on December 31 $ 30,981 33,370

Intangible assets

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the costs, amortization, and impairment loss of
intangible assets were as follows:

The seats of
foreign futures
exchanges Computer
Goodwill (Note) software Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 22,088 50,550 25,491 98,129
Additions - - 12,646 12,646
Scrap - - (9,621) (9,621)
Effect of exchange rate changes - (114) (154) (268)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 22,088 50,436 28,362 100,886
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 22,088 52,257 24,929 99,274
Additions - - 3,912 3,912
Scrap - - (3,2606) (3,266)
Disposal - (1,932) - (1,932)
Effect of exchange rate changes - 225 (84) 141
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 22,088 50,550 25,491 98,129
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IES

The seats of
foreign futures
exchanges Computer
Goodwill (Note) software Total

Amortization and impair ment

loss:

Balance at 1 January 1, 2019 $ - 4,280 15,817 20,097

Amortization - - 8,354 8,354

Scrap - - (9,621) (9,621)

Effect of exchange rate changes - (79) (100) (179)

Balance at December 31,2019 $ - 4,201 14,450 18,651

Balance at January 1, 2018 $ - 4,155 11,180 15,335

Amortization - - 7,953 7,953

Scrap - - (3,2606) (3,2606)

Effect of exchange rate changes - 125 (50) 75

Balance at December 31, 2018  $ - 4,280 15,817 20,097
Carrying value:

Balance at December 31,2019 $ 22,088 46,235 13,912 82,235

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 22,088 46,270 9,674 78,032

Note: The Group obtained the seats of foreign futures Exchanges - NYMEX, COMEX, CBOT,
HKEX and CME for business development. In accordance with IAS No. 38 “ Intangible
Assets” endorsed by the FSC, the seats are regarded as intangible assets with an indefinite

useful life.
Lease liabilities

The Group’s lease liabilities are as follows:

Current

Non-current

The maturity analysis please refer to note 6(p) financial instruments.

The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows -

Interest on lease liabilities
Expenses relating to short-term leases

Expenses relating to leases of low-value, excluding short-term leases of low-
value assets

-152 -

December 31,
2019
$ 27,546
$ 11,882

For theyears

ended December

31,2019
$ 796
$ 3,175
$ 303
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The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the Group was as follows :

For theyears
ended December
31, 2019
Total cash outflow for leases $ 34,164

(i) Real estate leases

The Group leases buildings for its office space. The leases of office space typically run for 1 to
5 years.

(i1) Other leases
The Group leases equipment with contract terms of 1 to 5 years.
Operating lease

Lessee's non-cancellable operating lease payables are as follows:

December 31,
2018
Within 1 year $ 24,407
1-5 years 19.174
$ 43,581

The Group rents several offices and equipment under operating lease, the lease terms are within 1 to
5 years. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the operating lease expenses recognized in profit or

loss $26,890.
Employee benefits
(i)  Defined benefit plans

The reconciliation in the present value of the defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan
assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Present value of defined benefit obligations $ (24,6106) (26,128)
Fair value of plan assets 17.897 18,216
Recognized liabilities for defined benefit obligations $ (6,719) (7,912)

The Company made defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account at Bank of
Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. The plans (covered by the
Labor Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive an annual payment based on years
of service and average salary for the six months prior to retirement.
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Composition of plan assets

The Company set aside the pension funds in accordance with Labor Standards Act, are
put under the management of the Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee. In regards
to the utilization of the fund under the * Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures,
Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund”, the minimum earnings for the
annual distribution shall not be less than the accrued earnings attainable from the interest
rates of two year time deposit offered by the local banks.

The balance of the Company’s labor pension preparatory special account in Bank of

Taiwan amounted to $17,897 at the reporting date. The utilization of the labor pension
fund includes the assets allocation and yield of the fund. Please refer to the information
published on the website under Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee of the
Council of Labor Affairs Executive Yuan.

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

The Change in the present value of defined benefit obligation of the Company in 2019
and 2018 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Defined benefit obligation at January 1 $ 26,128 29,511
Current service costs and interest 607 669
Benefits paid (3,444) (4,943)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation

- Experience gain or loss 963 699

- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from changes in 362 192

financial assumptions

Defined benefit obligation at December 31 $ 24,616 26,128

Movements in fair value of defined benefit plan assets

The movements in fair value of defined benefit plan assets of the Company in 2019 and
2018 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $ 18,216 17,656
Interest revenue 172 188
Benefits paid (1,590) (630)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation
- Return on plan assets (except net interests of 661 519
period)
Contributions to the plan assets 438 483
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 17,897 18,216
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Expense recognized in profit or loss

The expenses recognized in profit or loss of the Company in 2019 and 2018 were as
follows:

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
Current service cost $ 363 359
Net interest of net defined benfit obligation 72 122
$ 435 481

Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation recognized in other comprehensive
income

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the accumulated remeasurement of net
defined benefit obligation recognized in other comprehensive income was as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Accumulated amount on January 1 $ (11,466) (11,094)
Recognized during the period (664) (372)
Accumulated amount on December 31 $ (12,130) (11,466)

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Discount rate 0.67 % 0.93 %
Future salary growth rate 2.50 % 2.50 %

The expected contribution to the defined benefit plan for the next year is $435. The
weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 2 years.

Sensitivity Analysis

When calculating the present value of the defined benefit obligations, the Company uses
judgments and estimations to determine the actuarial assumptions, including discount
rate and future salary increases. Any changes in the actuarial assumptions may
significantly impact the amount of the defined benefit obligations.
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For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the effects of adopting significant
actuarial assumptions to defined benefit obligations were as follows:

Effectsto defined benefit
obligations
Increase 0.5% Decr ease 0.5%

December 31, 2019
Discount reate $ (582) 606
Future salary increasing rate 470 (457)

December 31, 2018
Discount reate (674) 703
Future salary increasing rate 559 (543)

The sensitivity analysis presented above is based on the condition that other variables are
unchanged. In practice, the changes of many assumptions are correlated. The method that
the sensitivity analysis adopted is in accordance with the method of calculating net
pension liability.

The assumptions and methods adopted for current period sensitivity analysis are identical
with the previous period.

(i) Defined contribution plans

In accordance with the Labor Pension Act of R.O.C, the Company contributes 6% of the
employee’s monthly wages to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance. Therefore, the Company has
no further legal or constructive obligations to make any additional contribution once the
contributions have been paid.

The Company contributed $12,059 and $11,802 under defined contribution plan to the Bureau
of the Labor Insurance in the year 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(ii1) For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 the pension costs contributed by overseas

subsidiaries in compliance with local ordinance were$3,031 and $2,714, respectively.

Income taxes

(i)

The Group’s tax rate interpretation was as follow:

The Company and its subsidiary Capital International Technology Corp. are founded in
Taiwan. The corporate income tax rate are both 20% for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018.

The subsidiary CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. is founded in Hong Kong. The corporate income tax
rate are both 16.5% for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

The tax rate of reinvestment business of subsidiaries including Capital True Partner
Technology Co., Ltd. and Capital Futures Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. which founded in
Mainland are both 25% for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.
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Income tax expense

1)

2)

The amount of income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018 were as follows:

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
Current income tax expense $ 147,727 111,671
Deferrd income tax expense (789) 5,195
Total $ 146,938 116,866

The amount of income tax benefit (expense) recognized in other comprehensive income
of the Group in 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Foreign exchange difference from translating $ 66 (9,222)

financial reports of foreign operations

Reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) and profit before tax of the Group for
2019 and 2018 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Profit excluding income tax $ 746,614 954.976
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 148,744 190,999
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdiction (not - 978
applicable for separate financial statements)
Adjustment in tax rate - 770
Tax exempt income 603 (78,403)
Unrecognized deferred tax assets for current-year 54 272
losses
Unrecognized temporary differences for current (220) (256)
year
Adjustments to prior year's income tax (4,074) (2,817)
Alternative minimum tax - 6,510
10% surtax on undistributed earnings 4 42
Others 1,827 (1.229)
Total $ 146,938 116,866
(Continued)
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(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

1))

2)

Unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the details of the Group’s unrecognized deferred tax
liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Aggregate amount of temporary differences $ 14,845 29,063

related to investments in subsidiaries

The dividend policies of the Group’s subsidiaries, CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. and Capital
Futures Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, were prescribed not to appropriate the retain
earning until December 31, 2019. Also, the Group does not plan to dispose of the
investees in foreseeable future. Thus, the temporary differences related to investments in
subsidiaries for the portion of not to intend to dispose or to appropriate are not
recognized under deferred tax liabilities.

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the details of the Group’s unrecognized deferred tax
assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Unrealized losses on foreign investments under  $ 275 269
Equity Method
Tax loss carried forward 874 779
$ 1,149 1,048

The R.O.C. Income Tax Act allows net losses, as assessed by the tax authorities, to offset
taxable income over a period of ten years for local tax reporting purposes. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilize the benefits
therefrom.

As of December 31, 2019, the information of the Group’s unused tax losses for which no
deferred tax assets were recognized are as follows:

Year of loss Unused tax loss Expiry date
2016 (Declared) $ 874 2026
2017 (Declared) 1,661 2027
2018 (Declared) 1,564 2028
2019 (Estimated) 269 2029
Total $ 4,368
(Continued)
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3)  Recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the details of the Group’s recognized deferred tax
assets and liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Recognized deferred tax assets:
Foreign exchange difference from translating  $ 236 170
financial reports of foreign operations
Recognized deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gains on foreign investments under $ 2,469 1,975
Equity Method
Unrealized gains on derivative financial 6,298 7,581
instruments
Total $ 8,767 9,556

(iv) Income tax assessment status
The Company’s income tax returns through 2017 were assessed by the Tax Authority.

The subsidiary Capital International Technology Corp.’s income tax returns through 2018 were
assessed by the Tax Authority.

(m) Capital and other equity
(i) Common stock

According to the resolution of shareholders’ meeting on May 24, 2018, the Company issued
share dividends 16,040 thousand shares with par value of $10 dollars per share from capital

surplus. The paid-in capital became $1,764,376 after the capital increase. The capital increase
was agreed and was immediately effective on July 4, 2018. The based-capital increased date
was on August 11, 2018 under the resolution of board meeting on July 10, 2018.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had authorized capital both of $2,500,000,
with par value of $10 dollars per share; the issued common stock were both 176,438 thousand
shares.

(Continued)
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(i) Capital surplus

(iii)

The detail of the capital surplus of the Company is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Share premium
Capital addition-Share premium $ 1,019,733 1,019,733
Capital addition-Employee stock option 24,134 24,134
Difference arising from disposal the subsidiaries' share 2,476 2,476
price and its carry value
Changes in ownershop interests in subsidiaries 995 995
$ 1,047,338 1,047,338

In accordance with the ROC Company Act, realized capital surplus can only be used to cover
accumulated deficit or to issue new shares or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share
ownership, provided that the Company has no accumulated deficit. The aforementioned capital
surplus includes share premiums and donation gains. In accordance with the Securities
Offering and Issuance Guidelines, the amount of capital surplus to be capitalized shall not
exceed 10 percent of the paid-in capital each year.

Retained earnings

1)

2)

Legal reverse

When companies incur no loss, they are able to distribute new shares or cash dividends
through legal reserve under the resolution of stockholders' meeting but companies can
only distributed the part that the reserve exceeds 25% of the paid in capital.

Special reserve

In accordance with Article 41 of the Securities and Exchange Law, 20 percent of the
current year’ s earnings after tax should be set aside as special reserve. Ruling No.
1010048029 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission on November 1, 2012, an
equivalent amount of special reserve should be set aside from earnings after tax of the
current year and the undistributed earnings of the prior period based on the decreased
amount of stockholders’ equity. For the cumulative deduction in stockholders’ equity of
the prior period, the equal amount of special reserve set aside based on undistributed
earnings should not be distributed. If there is any reversal of the deduction in
stockholders’ equity, the earnings may be distributed based on the reversal proportion.

In accordance with Ruling No. 10500278285 issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission on August 5, 2016, 0.5% to 1.0% of the current year’s earnings after tax
should be set aside as special reserve for year 2016 to 2018. From year 2017, the
aforementioned special reserve can be reversed within an amount equal to the
expenditures stemming from employee re training, re assignments, or relocations made
necessary by the introduction of financial technology.
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In accordance with Ruling No. 1080321644 issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission on July 10, 2019, from year 2019, a special reserve can not to be set aside,
but an certain amount of budget should be designated for the current year to pay for
employee transformation and training to protect employee’s right and interest. From year
2019, the special reserve can be reversed within an amount equal to special reserve for
year 2016 to 2018 when the aforementioned fees being expended.

3)  Undistributed earnings

According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, after-tax earnings should first
offset accumulated deficit, and then 10% of the remainder should be appropriated as
legal reserve. However, when the legal reserve has reached the paid-up capital, is not
within this limit. And then 20% of the remainder should be appropriated as special
reserve due to the need of Company’s operation and the law, if there’ s earning plus
undistributed earnings of beginning of the year, the Company’s earnings distribution was
proposed by board of directors and is subject to the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting.

According to the resolution of shareholders’ meeting on May 30, 2019 and May 24,
2018, the Company’s 2018 and 2017 earnings distribution for owners were as follows:

For the yearsended December 31,
2018 2017

Dividends for owners of common stock
Cash $ 599,888 460,342

The relevant information on earnings distribution approved by the stockholders’ meeting
can be accessed through the Market Observation Post System or other sites.

(n) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share and dilutive earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018 were calculated as follows:

(1)

Basic earnings per share

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Net income attributable to common shareholders of the $ 600,009 835,205
Company
Weighted-average number of common stock shares 176,438 176,438
outstanding (thousands of shares)
Basic earnings per share (dollar) $ 3.40 4.73
(Continued)
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(i) Dilutive earnings per share

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Net income attributable to common shareholders of the $ 600,009 835,205
Company

Weighted-average number of common stock shares 176,438 176,438
outstanding (thousands of shares)

Influence from stock dividends for employee 202 268
(thousands of shares)

Weighted-average outstanding shares of dilutived 176,640 176,706
earnings per share (thousands of shares)

Dilutive earnings per share (dollar) $ 3.40 4.73

(o) Items of the statements of comprehensive income

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Commission income - brokerage

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
Brokerage commission - Domestic futures $ 793,127 978,958
Brokerage commission - Foreign futures 784,108 879.433
$ 1,577,235 1,858,391

Futures commission revenue

For the years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Futures commission revenues - CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. $ 209,879 453,195

Future commission revenues is the commission revenue from future trading by the subsidiary
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd, which is reflected under “Brokerage Commission Income”. The Group
recognized the commission from CSC Futures (HK) Ltd as “Futures commission revenues” in
the consolidated financial statements.

Net gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Non-hedging
Net gains (losses) on futures contracts
Gains on futures contracts $ 83,421 712,241
Losses on futures contracts (79.563) (965.617)
$ 3,858 (253,376)
(Continued)
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For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
Net gains (losses) on option contracts
Gains on option contracts $ 23,460 938,971
Losses on option contracts (32,539) (271,226)
$ (9,079) 667,745
Net gains (losses) on foreign exchange rate
derivatives
Gains on foreign exchange rate derivatives $ 203,064 280,261
Losses on foreign exchange rate derivatives (166,640) (207,918)
$ 36,424 72,343
Net gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments $ (10,795) 51,416
- overseas subsidiaries
Non-hedging
Total Gains on derivative financial instruments $ 309,945 1,931,473
Total Losses on derivative financial instruments (278,742) (1,444,761)
Net gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments (10,795) 51,416
- overseas subsidiaries
$ 20,408 538,128

(iv) Futures commission expenses

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Re-consigned futures trading $ 246,008 273,044
Futures introducing broker business 131,039 168,627
Commission expenses - CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 55,032 192,904
$ 432,079 634,575
(Continued)
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Employee benefit, depreciation and amortization expenses

Employee benefit expenses
Salary
Labor and health insurance
Pension
Director remuneration
Others

Depreciation

Amortization

Other operating expenses

Postage expenses

Taxes

Rental

Information technology service
Professional service fees
Others

(vii) Other income and expenses

Interest revenue
Dividend revenue

Net gain (loss) on non-operating financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain (loss) on foreign exchange
Net gain (loss) on disposal of investments
Other non-operating revenue - other

Other non-operating expense - other

- 164 -

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018

$ 389,244 401,351
22,823 22,861

15,525 14,997

21,559 36,026

8,195 8,221

59,246 22,605

8,354 7.953

$ 524,946 514,014

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
$ 55,304 42,936
48,327 75,345
3,478 26,890
139,799 134,990
6,418 225,466
92,033 95.165
$ 345,359 600,792

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018

$ 541,224 379,425

356 49

8,080 11,807

(5,327) 17,821

6,954 158

16,465 15,252
(1,269) (885)

$ 566,483 423,627
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(viii) Remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors

According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the Company should aside 0.6%-2.0%
of annual profit to be distributed as employees’ bonus, and aside not higher than 3% of annual
profit to be distributed as remuneration to directors and supervisors. However, the Company's
accumulated losses should first be covered. People to receive shares or cash include the
employees of subsidiaries meeting certain specific requirements.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the estimated amounts of remuneration to
employee were $8,714 and $12,083, and to directors and supervisors by the Company were
$8,714 and $12,083, respectively, which were calculated based on the Company’s net profit
before income tax and remuneration to employees and directors and supervisors multiple the
earnings allocation percentage as specified in the Company’ s articles. It is recognized as
operating expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. If the Board of Directors
resolved to distribute the employees’ remuneration in the form of shares, the number of shares
of the distribution is based on the closing price of the day before the Board of Directors’
meeting date.

The estimated amounts of remuneration to employee and director and supervisors by the

Company for 2018 were both $12,083. There was no difference between accounting estimates
and actual distribution. Related information would be available at the Market Observation Post
System website.

(p) Financial Instruments
(i) Creditrisk
1)  Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 the maximum credit exposure amounted to $40,915,762
and $40,197,588, respectively.

2)  Concentration of credit risk

The main counterparties which the Group transacts with regarding cash and cash
equivalents, bonds purchased under resale agreements and customer margin deposit are
domestic and overseas financial institutions.

The exposure area of credit risk in December 31, 2019 as shown in below, focusing on
Taiwan (proportion 85.65%), secondly was Asia (proportion 13.89% excluded Taiwan),
thirdly was North America (proportion 0.38%), and then Europe (proportion 0.04%) and
Oceania (proportion 0.04%). The proportion of investment area did not change
significantly compared to the same period last year.
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December 31, December 31,
Area 2019 2018

Taiwan $ 33,979,742 30,943,716
Asia (excluded Taiwan) 5,510,080 7,904,845
North America 150,403 128,822
Europe 14,983 -

Oceania 14,927 82,619
Total $ 39,670,135 39,060,002

Impairment loss

The Group’s ageing analysis of receivables at reporting date is as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Total Total
amount | mpairment amount I mpair ment
Not past due $ 107,352 8,537 103,830 8,376
Past due 0~30 days - - - -
Past due 31~120 days - - - -
Past due 121~360 days - - 25,146 25,146
Past due more than 360 days 22,444 22,444 - -
$ 129,796 30,981 128,976 33,522

Allowance for doubtful debts under receivables is recorded for the bad debt expense or
impairment loss. Where a claim becomes definitely uncollectible, the allowance for
doubtful debts should be written off to financial assets account. As of December 31,
2019 and 2018, the loss allowance of accrued receivables were recognized $30,981 and
$33,522, respectively.

Credit risk of receivables

Regarding how the financial instruments are considered to have low credit risk, please
refer to note 4(g). The Group regards a financial asset as a default when the client of
brokerage business is unable to fulfill the margin call or settlement obligation or accrued
receivables past due, as well as other receivable of stock default that the company as
securities interactive business, which the counterparty is unable to pay the Group. Thus,
the Group regarded the financial assets as default and recognized impairment losses. The
movement of loss allowance for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was as
follows:

(Continued)
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For the years ended December 31, 2019

Lifetime Lifetime ECL - credit impaired
ECL-not Receivable-
12-month credit Accounts futures Other
ECL impaired receivable margin receivables Total
Balance on January 1 - - - 33,370 152 33,522
Provision or reversal of - - - (2,389) 152 (2,237)
Impairment loss
Amounts written off - - - - (304) (304)
Balance on December 31 - - - 30,981 - 30,981
For the years ended December 31, 2018
Lifetime Lifetime ECL - credit impaired
ECL-not Receivable-
12-month credit Accounts futures Other
ECL impaired receivable margin receivables Total
Balance on January 1 per - - - - - -
1AS39
Adjustment on initial - - - - - -
application of I[FRS9
Balance on January 1 per - - - - - -
IFRS 9
Provision of Impairment loss - - 1,806 33,370 152 35,328
Amounts written off - - (1,806) - - (1,806)
Balance on December 31 - - - 33,370 152 33,5622

Liquidity risk

The following table shows the effect of contract maturity on financial liabilities. The Group
predicts the cash flow occurring point or the actual amount of this maturity analysis will not be
significantly earlier or different.

December 31, 2019

Financial liabilities at fair value through $

profit or loss

Futures traders' equity

Leverage contract trading- customers'

equity
Accounts payable
Receipts under custody
Other payable
Lease liabilities

December 31, 2018

Financial liabilities at fair value through $

profit or loss

Futures traders' equity

Leverage contract trading- customers'

equity
Accounts payable
Receipts under custody

Other payable

Carrying Contract Within 6-12 Morethan
amount cash flow 6 months months 1-2 year 2-5year 5 year
22,836 22,836 22,836 - - - -
35,435978  35,435978 35,435,978 - - - -
308,590 308,590 308,590 - - - -
54,726 54,726 54,726 - - - -
3,856 3,856 3,856 - - - -
132,967 132,967 132,967 - - - -
39,428 40,117 17,924 10,147 9,520 2,526 -
$ 35,998,381 35,999,070 35,976,877 10,147 9,520 2,526 -
24,900 24,900 24,900 - - - -
34,787,243 34,787,243 34,787,243 - - - -
225,899 225,899 225,899 - - - -
47,840 47,840 47,840 - - - -
3,985 3,985 3,985 - - - -
146,105 146,105 146,105 - - - -
$ 35235972 35235972 35,235,972 - - - -
(Continued)
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(i) Currency risk
1)  Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group’ s significant exposure to foreign currency risk of financial assets and
liabilities were as follows:

December 31, 2019

Foreign Currency New Taiwan
(dollar) Exchangerate Dollars
Financial assets

Monetary items
USD $ 588,514,556.92 29.9800 17,643,666
EUR 6,829,880.85 33.5900 229,416
GBP 3,088,904.16 39.3600 121,579
JPY 783,993,334.00 0.2760 216,382
HKD 112,564,168.71 3.8490 433,259
AUD 1,707,065.83 21.0100 35,865
CHF 62,191.27 30.9300 1,924
SGD 253,894.15 22.2800 5,657
KRW 327,068,503.00 0.0262 8,569
CNY 36,372,495.76 4.3050 156,584
MYR 26,959.54 7.0330 190
THB 3,513,779.81 1.0098 3,548
NZD 62,939.96 20.1900 1,271
CAD 74,905.50 22.9900 1,722

Non-monetary items
USD 4,203,877.55 29.9800 126,032
JPY 1,408,881.00 0.2760 389
AUD 4,538.28 21.0100 95
CNY 4,699,184.91 4.3050 20,230
NZD 7,544.96 20.1900 152
CAD 21.90 22.9900 1

| nvestments under

equity method

HKD 12,434,330.74 3.8490 47,860
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December 31, 2019

Foreign Currency New Taiwan
(dollar) Exchangerate Dollars
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD $ 564,365,654.36 29.9800 16,919,682
EUR 6,798,658.00 33.5900 228,367
GBP 3,020,578.48 39.3600 118,890
JPY 846,895,131.00 0.2760 233,743
HKD 153,308,836.36 3.8490 590,086
AUD 1,737,739.71 21.0100 36,510
CHF 62,129.83 30.9300 1,922
SGD 279,407.99 22.2800 6,225
KRW 172,660,349.98 0.0262 4,524
CNY 27,420,049.66 4.3050 118,043
MYR 25,963.00 7.0330 183
THB 1,766,250.00 1.0098 1,784
Non-monetary items
USD 175,268.09 29.9800 5,254
CNY 538,827.12 4.3050 2,320
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December 31, 2018

Foreign Currency New Taiwan
(dollar) Exchangerate Dollars
Financial assets

Monetary items
USD $ 535,108,073.50 30.7150 16,435,844
EUR 9,245,081.82 35.2000 325,427
GBP 3,655,388.21 38.8800 142,121
JPY 897,927,184.32 0.2782 249,803
HKD 94,673,998.68 3.9210 371,217
AUD 3,101,759.03 21.6700 67,215
CHF 49,563.86 31.1900 1,546
SGD 161,724.11 22.4800 3,636
KRW 347,903,128.00 0.0278 9,672
CNY 42,675,055.12 4.4720 190,843
MYR 248.44 7.1120 2
THB 5,447,232.27 0.9532 5,192
NZD 50,761.30 20.6200 1,047
CAD 231,506.17 22.5800 5,227

Non-monetary items
USD 9,389,934.61 30.7150 288,412
JPY 8,392,500.00 0.2782 2,335
HKD 82,672.00 3.9210 324
GBP 2,024.62 38.8800 79

[ nvestments under

equity method

HKD 11,659,965.31 3.9210 45,719
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December 31, 2018

Foreign Currency New Taiwan
(dollar) Exchangerate Dollars
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD $ 517,790,682.84 30.7150 15,903,941
EUR 8,547,919.47 35.2000 300,887
GBP 3,552,592.53 38.8800 138,125
JPY 877,063,512.32 0.2782 243,999
HKD 88,926,530.78 3.9210 348,681
AUD 3,160,808.66 21.6700 68,495
CHF 49,558.86 31.1900 1,546
SGD 171,496.56 22.4800 3,855
KRW 168,065,533.74 0.0278 4,672
CNY 36,793,155.89 4.4720 164,539
THB 4,727,360.00 0.9532 4,506
NZD 1,273.64 20.6200 26
CAD 7,224.19 22.5800 163
Non-monetary items
USD 178,910.18 30.7150 5,495
JPY 9,729,960.00 0.2782 2,707
CNY 112,732.03 4.4720 504
CAD 13,566.14 22.5800 306
NZD 192.03 20.6200 4
AUD 2,150.07 21.6700 47

Due to the variety of currencies, the Group disclosed the summarized information on
exchange gain or loss. The realized and unrealized exchange gain (loss) amounted to
$(7,023) and $21,258 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The currency risk of the Group arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents, customers’
margin accounts, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and futures traders’
equity, which are denominated in foreign currency. Foreign exchange gain or loss occurs
as foreign currency was translated to TWD currency. For the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018, with all other variable factors that remain constant, when TWD currency
increases or decreases 1% contrary to other currency, the Group’ s after-tax
comprehensive income will increase or decrease $6,295 and $7,626, respectively. The
analytical basis was the same in both years.

(Continued)
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(iv) Analysis in interest rates

V)

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, with all other variable factors remain
constant, when the interest rate increases or decreases by 100 basis points, the Group’s after-
tax comprehensive income will increase or decrease by $6,948 and $6,856. This is mainly due
to the Group’s time deposits and guaranty deposited for business operations in variable rates
and settlement fund in variable rate.

Fair value and hierarchy information

1)  Fair value information

a)

b)

General description

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction among market participants at the measurement

date.

Definition of fair value hierarchy

)

iii)

Level 1

The input of Level 1 is the public quote of the same financial instrument in an
active market. An active market is a market that meets all the conditions
listed below: Products traded in the market is of homogeneity; it is able to
reach buyer and seller anytime in the market and the price information can be
accessed by the public. Listed stock, OTC stock, beneficiary certificates, as
well as equity and derivative instruments with public quote in an active
market possessed by the Company belong to Level 1.

Level 2

The input of Level 2 refers to observable price except public quote in an
active market, including direct observable input parameters (such as price) or
indirect observable input parameters (derivation from price).

Level 3

The input of Level 3 is not based on observable market data or obtained from
the counterparty.

(Continued)
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2)  Based on fair value measurement
a)  Hierarchy information of fair value

The Group’ s financial instruments measured at fair value are evaluated on a
recurring basis. The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value were as

follows:
December 31, 2019
Public quote of
the same Observableprice Based neither on
financial except public direct market
instrument in an quotein an data nor from
active market active market the counter
Assetsand Liabilitiesitems Total (Level 1) (Level 2) party (Level 3)
Fair value evaluated on arecurring basis
Non derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Beneficiary certificate N 264,548 264,548 - -
Stock investment 154,435 154,435 - -
Financial assets at fair value through other 1,375 - - 1,375

comprehensive income
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through 3,365 3,365 - -
profit or loss

Derivative assets and liabilities

Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit § 93,864 54,798 39,066 -
or loss
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through rofit 19,471 11,897 7,574 -
or loss
December 31, 2018
Public quote of
the same Observableprice Based neither on
financial except public direct market
instrument in an quotein an data nor from
active market active market the counter
Assetsand Liabilitiesitems Total (Level 1) (Level 2) party (Level 3)
Fair value evaluated on arecurring basis
Non derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Beneficiary certificate N 285,658 285,658 - -
Stock investment 75,948 75,948 - -
Financial assets at fair value through other 1,055 - - 1,055
comprehensive income
Derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit § 134,264 87,297 46,967 -
or loss
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through rofit 24,900 15,837 9,063 -
or loss
(Continued)
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Valuation techniques

)

iii)

Non-derivative financial instruments

The wvaluation of non-derivative financial instruments are based on
transparent offer price as fair value if there is existence of active market, i.e.
TSE, OTC and investment Trust and investment Adviser. The equity of non-
transparent offer price shall be evaluated by valuation techniques by using the
Market approach-public company comparable with the discount of lack
equity-liquidity.

Derivative financial instruments

The valuation of derivative financial instruments in the active market are
mainly measured settlement price of exchange institution as fair value. The
fair value of the remaining financial instruments are obtained by financial
valuation models or referencing counterparty quotes. Fair value obtained
through the calculations of financial valuation models include, but are not
limited to, fair value references of substantive factors and characteristics from
similar financial instruments, those obtained from the cash flow discounting
method or those obtained by other financial valuation techniques. Fair values
obtained through financial valuation techniques are derived from market
information on the reporting date, and utilizes the fair values derived from the
calculations of financial valuation models.

Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2

There is no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Movements of financial assets at fair value classified into Level 3

(In Thousands Dollars)

For the yearsended December 31, 2019

Beginning
Item Balance

Gains and losses on valuation Addition Reduction
Amount
recognized in
comprehensive
income

Amount
recognized in
profit or loss

Purchased or
issued

Transferred to
Level 3

Transferred
from Level 3

Sold, disposed
or settled

Ending
Balance

Financial assets at fair value ~ $

1,055 320 1375

through other
comprehensive income

For the yearsended December 31, 2018

Beginning
Item Balance

Gains and |osses on valuation
Amount
recognized in
comprehensive
income

Addition Reduction

Amount
recognized in
profit or loss

Purchased or
issued

Transferred
from Level 3

Transferred to
Level 3

Sold, disposed
or settled

Ending
Balance

Financial assets at fair value ~ $

1,014 41 1,055

through other
comprehensive income

(Continued)
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Item

Quantified information of fair value measurement for significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The Group’s Level 3 fair value measurements are financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income — equity instruments investment.

The Group’s equity instruments investment without active market include
multiple significant unobservable inputs. Those unobservable inputs of equity
instrument without active market are independent from each other, thus, they
are not correlative. Since the correlation between significant unobservable
inputs and fair value cannot be fully measured in practical, the quantified
information is not disclosed.

Correlation
Valuation Significant between inputs and
technique unobservableinputs fair value

Financial assets at Market = Price-to-Book Ratio = The higher price
fair value through approach to-book-ratio 1is,

other comprehensive
income equity

= Discount for lack of

marketability the higher fair

value is.

instruments without

an active market

vi)

= The higher
discount for lack
of  marketability
1s, the lower the
fair value is.

Fair value measurement to Level 3, and the sensitivity analysis of the
substitutable appropriate assumption made on fair value

The fair value measurement that the Group made for the financial instruments
is deemed reasonable; however, different valuation models or inputs could
result in different valuation results. Specifically, if the valuation input of
financial instruments classified in the Level 3 changes by 1%, the effects on
other comprehensive income are as follows:

Changein fair valuerecognized in
other comprehensiveincom
Favorable Unfavorable

December 31, 2019

Financial assets fair value through $ 14 (14)
other comprehensive income

December 31, 2018

Financial assets fair value through $ 11 (11)
other comprehensive income

(Continued)
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Favorable and unfavorable movements of the Group refer to the fluctuation of
fair value, and the fair value is calculated through the valuation technique
according to the unobservable inputs to different extent. If the fair value of a
financial instrument is affected by more than one input, the above table only
illustrates the effect as a result of one single input, and the correlation and

variance among multiple inputs are not listed here.
¢) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

For financial instruments not measured at fair value, such as cash and cash
equivalents, customers’ margin accounts, accounts receivables, deposits, future
traders’ equity, leverage contract traders’ equity and account payables. The
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of the fair value. Therefore, the
Group does not disclose the fair value.

(q9) Financial risk management

(1)

(i)

General description

The Group is exposed to risks below due to the application of financial instruments
1)  Credit risk

2)  Liquidity risk

3)  Market risk

The note expresses the exposure, measurement and management target, policy and procedure
of the aforementioned risks. Detailed information about the financial instruments has been
disclosed as each note to the consolidated financial statements.

Risk management structure

To effectively control risks, a management procedure is to build up from top to bottom that
includes the Board of Directors, managers of all departments and the employees to participate.
From the macroscopic perspective of the Group, qualitative and quantitative approaches are
taken to recognize, evaluate, monitor and respond to various potential risks. As a result, the
Group may make reasonable risky asset allocation and maximize returns for shareholders
within a bearable risk range. On September 21, 2007, the Company deliberated this institution
of risk management based on the “ Principles of Futures Commission Merchant’ s Risk
Management Practices” and the “ Futures Commission Merchant’ s Self Checklist for the
Establishment of Risk Management Mechanism” as promulgated in the letter ref. No. (Taiwan-
Futures-Audit) 0940024340 of the Taiwan Futures Exchange. The Board of Directors has
overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.
The Board of Directors has established the Risk Management Committee, attributable to
General Manager’ Office and responsible for developing and monitoring Company’ s risk
management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its
activities

(Continued)
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(ii1) Credit risk

(iv)

Credit risk is the risk that the Group engaged in financial trading exposed, including issuers
credit issue, traders credit issue and the subject assets credit risk. And the risk of financial loss
to the Group if a customer of brokerage business fails to meet its contractual obligations of
margin calls or settlement. According to futures trading practices, futures commission
merchant can close position in accordance with the prior agreement of both parties due to the
system designed such as advance customers margin, intraday in-time clearing and when
customers fail to meet its contractual obligations of margin calls. Therefore, the influence is
not significant to the credit risk of the Group. Moreover, most brokerage customers are the
general investors and professional institutions. The object sources of investors and the amount
of investment are widely dispersed, and thus, there is no situation such as concentration of
credit risk.

Approaches taken to manage credit risk at current stage are as follows:

1) Credit inquiry and assessment before trade: inquire client’ s credit and ascertain the
legality before transaction

2)  Credit rating management: treat trades with special credit particularly.

3)  Credit supervision after transaction: regularly inspect client’s profit and loss of positions.
Evaluate and monitor credit enhancement (including collaterals) on a regular basis.

4)  Other effective risk reduction measures: collaterals, guarantee, credit risk netting and
offset agreement.

Summarize information on expected credit loss (credit risk exposure amount, counterparty
default probability and return rate) and unexpected credit loss, as well as quantify the credit
VaR.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risks are market liquidity risk and capital liquidity risk
1)  Market liquidity risk:

Market liquidity risk is the risk which the Group cannot immediately cover or offset the
risk of derivative positions. When the condition of insufficient market depth or an
unexpected event occurs, it’s not easy to obtain trading opportunities or significant
spread risk. Due to small trading volume, some domestic futures contracts have this
liquidity risk. Therefore, when the proprietary segment of the Group engages in arbitrage
trading, it should consider the liquidity risk of goods. Futures commodity liquidity can
depend on daily trading volume and open interest (OI) to measure. The more the daily
trading volume and open interest as well as the greater liquidity are, the relatively lower
the liquidity risk is.

(Continued)
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Capital liquidity risk:

Capital liquidity risk is the one that the Group fails to meet its contractual obligations
when increasing margins is required by settlement or trading. Therefore, the Group
should control and manage the allocation of capital in order to avoid the risk of capital
liquidity and financial losses of the Group when proprietary segment of the Group
engages in futures trading.

Liquidity risk management of the Group includes :

1)

2)

Market liquidity risk management: To avoid loss caused by market liquidity risk, the
Group stipulates capital amount budgeted for proprietary trade department in the annual
operating plan. Also, a daily report on the Adjusted Net Capital (ANC) ratio is filed to
the competent authority. As for other departments and proprietary trade, the risk control
office supervises daily trade by comparing actual cash flow and the authorized amount.

Capital liquidity risk management - The finance department is independent from other
units in transferring financial resources. To control capital liquidity risk and to consider
capital needs of various products for domestic and foreign markets, the finance
department composes daily reports, such as the “Margin Withdrawal/Deposit List”,
“ Securities Transaction Applications”, and other management report forms. After
reviewing and approving by the management, these reports will be implemented and
filed.

Market risk

Market risk is the possibility of loss resulting from trading due to futures price reversal of the
Group’ s proprietary business. It means that the market price or fluctuation trend is not
beneficial to the Group’s profitability, which results in risky events happen.

The Group’s market risk management comprises trading strategy monitoring, loss up limit
control, trading margin up limit control, remaining position up limit and open-delta value
control, margins ratio control for domestic and foreign remaining positions and the implied
volatility inspection of option price.

Quantitative Measurement on Market Risk was as follows:

1)

Statistic-based measurement: the Value at Risk (VaR) of linear products (stocks) is
measured by the Variance Co-Variance (Risk Metrics Approach--EWMA), which
calculates the maximal probable risk of portfolio under a certain confidence level for the
next business day. The Value at Risk of non-linear products (options) is measured by the
Delta-Gamma Approximations (the “ Greeks” ). After offsetting the risks of trade
contracts, the measurement vehicle calculates the maximal probable risk of portfolio
under a certain confidence level for the next business day. To test the accuracy, back
testing approach is taken to try finding out the violations within one year under pre-
calculated VaR using the actual valued profit and loss of inventory positions for the
previous day (P&L for T-1 day)

(Continued)
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2)  Sensitivity analysis measures the sensitivity of the positions to individual risk factors
(such as interest rate and exchange rate). The sensitivity analysis on exchange rate
variation includes evaluation and analysis on the proprietary overseas capital and service
fee revenue from foreign futures products

3)  Stress test emulates and measures the impacts on portfolio value at unusual market
change, from which responding actions can be made. The portfolio stress test at current
stage aims at the weighted index or targeted stock price within £15% change.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the capacity to continue to operate and
achieve the Group’ s operating principles, to continue to provide a return on shareholders, to
maintain the interest of other related parties, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to the shareholders, reduce the capital for redistribution to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group adopts a risk-adjusted return on capital to allocate the Group’s capital
reasonably and effectively.

As of December 31, 2019, the Group didn’t change the method of capital management.
Financing activities not affecting current cash flow

The Group’s financing activities which did not affect the current cash flow for the year ended
December 31, 2019, were as follows:

(i) For Right-of-use assets, please refer to note 6(i).

Non-cash changes

Foreign
January 1, Cash exchange Fair value December
2019 flows Other movement changes 31, 2019
Lease liabilities $ 41,065 (30,686) 29,737 (688) - 39,428
Total liabilities from  $ 41,065 (30,686) 29,737 (688) - 39,428

financing activities

(7) Related-party transactions:

(a)

Parent company and ultimate controlling party

Capital Securities Corporation is the parent company and the ultimate controlling party of the Group.
It owns 56.21% of all shares outstanding of the Company, and has issued the consolidated financial
statements available for public use.

(Continued)
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Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered
in the consolidated financial statements.

Name of related party Relationship with the Group
Capital Securities Corporation The parent company
CSC Securities (HK) Ltd. An Associate
Capital Investment Trust Corp. (Note) An Associate

Note: The Corporation has become an associate of the Group from February 9, 2018.
Key management personnel compensation

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Short-term employee benefits $ 72,512 95,741
Post-employment benefits 1,080 1,171
Total $ 73,592 96,912

Significant transactions with related parties

(i) The amounts of futures trading between the Group and related parties for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Commission income-brokerage
Capital Securities Corporation $ 9,441 21,562
Capital Investment Trust Corp. 1,148 856
Total $ 10,589 22,418
Management Fee income
Capital Securities Corporation $ - 1117
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Futures traders' equity
Capital Securities Corporation $ 688,447 1,628,417
Capital Investment Trust Corp. 142,376 287,357
$ 830,823 1,915,774
(Continued)
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Transaction terms are the same as those with general clients.

Capital Securities Corporation deposits margins to the Group for futures proprietary trading,
and the Group paid the interest of excess margin annually. In 2019 and 2018, interest expense

amounted to $422 and $436, respectively.

Capital Investment Trust Corp. deposits margins to the Group for futures proprietary trading,
and the Group paid the interest of excess margin annually. In 2019 and 2018, interest expense

amounted to $92 and $78, respectively.

Accounts payable and receivable:

Accountsreceivable

Capital Securities Corporation
CSC Securities (HK) Ltd.

Accounts payable

Capital Securities Corporation

Other receivables (Note 1)

Capital Securities Corporation
CSC Securities (HK) Ltd.

Other payables

Capital Securities Corporation (Note 2)
CSC Securities (HK) Ltd. (Note 3)

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

$ 374 228
348 106

$ 722 334
$ 10,914 10,922
$ 4,052 19,981
16 17

$ 4,068 19,998
$ 789 444
82 81

$ 871 525

(Note 1) Receivables from future interactive brokers, Receivables for information service fee,
and interest from bonds investment under resell agreements.

(Note 2) Payables for allocated expenses and interests to the parent company.

(Note 3) Payables for routine expenses to the associate.

Futures commission expenses

The Group delegated Capital Securities Corporation for introducing brokers. In 2019 and 2018,
futures commission expenses amounted to $130,341 and $166,348, respectively.
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Leases

The Group signed three-year lease contracts and rented the office and parking spaces from
Capital Securities Corporation. The total value of contracts before modification was $49,557
and the total value of contracts after modification was $49,989. Rental expenses for the year
ended December 31, 2018 amounted to $16,601. The Group applied IFRS 16, with a date of
initial application on January 1, 2019. This lease transaction recognized an additional amounts
of $26,404 of right-of-use assets and $26,404 of lease liabilities. For the year ended December
31, 2019, the Group recognized the amount of $254 as interest expense. As of December 31,
2019, the balance of lease liabilities amounted to $10,170.

The Group signed two-year lease contracts and rented the office from CSC Securities (HK)
Ltd. The total value of contracts was $23,341 (HKD$6,112). This lease transaction recognized
an additional amounts of $23,018 (HKD$5,925) of right-of-use assets and $23,018
(HKD$5,925) of lease liabilities. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group recognized
the amount of $354 as interest expense. As of December 31, 2019, the balance of lease
liabilities amounted to $16,167.

Information technology service

Computer information system service contract was signed between the Group and Capital
Securities Corporation. In 2019 and 2018, the service fee amounted to $46,378 and $41,637,
respectively.

Securities commission income

The Group was delegated by Capital Securities Corporation and CSC Securities (HK) Ltd. for
securities introducing brokers. In 2019 and 2018, the commission income amounted to $4,622
and $7,102, respectively.

Stock service fee

In 2019 and 2018, the Group paid the stock service fee to Capital Securities Corporation
amounted to $448 and $406, respectively.

(viii) Human resource and legal service fees

(ix)

In 2019 and 2018, the Group paid the human resource and legal service fee to Capital
Securities Corporation amounted to $345 and $360, respectively.

Securities brokerage charge

In 2019 and 2018, the Group paid the securities brokerage charge to Capital Securities
Corporation amounted to $10 and $436, respectively.

(Continued)
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(x) Bonds under resell agreement

The Group conducted investments with the Capital Securities Corporation for bonds purchased
under resell agreements. In 2019 and 2018, the interest income amounted to $461 and $321,
respectively. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the remaining investment amounted to
$46,000 and $198,000, respectively. The maturity dates are January 6, 2020 and from January
2 to January 14, 2019, respectively. The agreed interest rate is 0.47% and 0.45% to 0.48%,
respectively.

(xi) Management service fees

In 2019 and 2018, the Group paid the management service fees to CSC Securities (HK) Ltd.
amounted to $9,096 and $16,692, respectively.

(8) Pledged assets:None
(9) Significant contingent liability and unrecognized contract commitment:

The Group purchased software and hardware systems for business development. The price amounted to
NT$2,520, as of December 31, 2019, the Group had outstanding balance NT$1,452.

(10) Significant catastrophic losses:None
(11) Significant subsequent events:

The Board of Directors of the Company approved to raise new cash capital on November 28, 2019 for
$340,000, and issue new common stock of 34,000 thousand shares with $10 dollars face value per share.
On February 25, 2020, the Board of Directors approved to issue the stock at $34.4 dollars per share. The
capital increase plan got the approval by the FSC No.1090300222 on January 30, 2020 and the capital
increase date is set to be March 26, 2020.
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(12) Disclosure of information asrelated to derivative financial instruments:

(a) As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the open positions of futures and option contracts were as
follows:
December 31, 2019
Open positions
Number | Contract sizeor
Long/ of paid for (received
Item Trading category Short | contracts| from) premium Fair value Note

Futures

contract:
TAIEX Futures Short 112 |$ (268,932) (268,6606)
Mini Taiex Futures Short 10 (5,998) (5,997)
Electronic Sector Index Futures Short 2 (4,258) (4,218)
Stock Futures Long 62 6,873 6,969
Stock Futures Short 18 (727) (723)
JPY Dollar Futures Short 5 (17,355) (17,324)
10-Year U.S. Treasury Note Futures Short (19,421) (19,250)
Ultra U.S. Treasury Bond Futures Short (16,889) (16,338)
Subtotal (326,707)

Options

contract:
Stock Options (Call) Long 10 |$ 1 1
Stock Options (Call) Short 10 (96) (127)
Stock Options (Put) Short 1 3) (1)
Stock Options (Put) Long 14 1 1
TAIEX Options (Call) Long 377 454 357
TAIEX Options (Call) Short 588 (2,298) (1,728)
TAIEX Options (put) Long 160 284 332
TAIEX Options (put) Short 556 (2,332) (2,779)
TAIEX Weekly Options (Call) Long 2,487 621 221
TAIEX Weekly Options (Call) Short 1,148 (1,109) (680)
TAIEX Weekly Options (put) Long 2,494 1,943 2,548
TAIEX Weekly Options (put) Short 2,714 (3,813) (6,527)
Electronic Sector Index Options(Call) Long 10 51 22
Electronic Sector Index Options(put) Short 20 (76) (33)
Finance Sector Index Options(Call) Short 20 (10) 3)
Gold Option (Call) Short 10 (20) (19)
Gold Option (put) Long 2 3 -
Subtotal (6,399)

Total $ (333,106)
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December 31, 2018

Open positions
Number | Contract sizeor
Long/ of paid for (received
Item Trading category Short | contracts| from) premium Fair value Note

Futures

contract:
TAIEX Futures Long 219 |8 419,425 423,418
TAIEX Futures Short 95 (183,069) (183,350)
Mini Taiex Futures Short 264 (126,317) (127,524)
Electronic Sector Index Futures Long 23 35,333 35,397
Finance Sector Index Futures Short 30 (35,369) (35,358)
USD/JPY FX Futures Long 53 32,509 32,120
USD/JPY FX Futures Short 213 (130,851) (130,068)
Nifty 50 Index Futures Long 48 26,045 26,189
Nifty 50 Index Futures Short 4 (2,193) (2,192)
EUR/USD FX Futures Long 113 79,609 80,110
US Dollar Index Futures Short 1 (2,946) (2,940)
Euro Dollar Futures Short 18 (79,280) (79,631)
DJIA Index Futures Short 58 (26,931) (26,880)
MSCI India Index Futures Short 36 (24,058) (24,155)
JPY Dollar Futures Short 28 (97,593) (98,591)
Mini Hang Seng Index Futures Long 4 4,067 4,055
2-Year U.S. T-Note Futures Short 1 (6,495) (6,521)
Mini-Dow Futures Long 5 17,770 17,867
Mini-Dow Futures Short 2 (7,113) (7,151)
Mini-S&P 500 Futures Long 16 60,226 61,558
Mini-S&P 500 Futures Short 6 (22,746) (23,115)
S&P 500 Futures (TAIFEX) Long 18 9,008 9,005
S&P 500 Futures (TAIFEX) Short 12 (6,009) (5,993)
MSCI Taiwan Index Futures Short 70 (76,977) (76,654)
Hang Seng China Enterprises Index Long 7 13,704 13,757

Futures

FTSE China A50 Index Futures Short 42 (13,227) (13,325)
S&P 500 Futures (CME) Long 24 89,463 91,597
Subtotal (54,015)

Options

contract:
Stock Options (Call) Long 113 98 30
Stock Options (Call) Short 1,151 (3,776) (2,063)
Stock Options (Put) Short 172 (2,263) (2,749)
Stock Options (Put) Long 54 184 127
TAIEX Options (Call) Short 538 (4,898) (3,805)
TAIEX Options (Call) Long 572 1,584 1,183
TAIEX Options (put) Long 1,475 8,648 9,788
TAIEX Options (put) Short 385 (3,753) (3,161)
S&P 500 Options (call) Short 24 (1,684) (4,059)
S&P 500 Options (put) Long 24 654 427
TAIEX Weekly Options (Put) Long 240 72 25
Subtotal (5,134)

Total $ (59,149)
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(b) As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the nominal amount of open positions of foreign exchange rate
derivatives contracts were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
[tem 2019 2018
Foreign exchange rate derivatives - buyer $ 2,700,301 1,568,749
Foreign exchange rate derivatives - seller $ 2,448,322 1,510,240

(13) Restrictions and enforcement of the Company’svariousfinancial ratiosunder futurestrading law:

(a) The restrictions and enforcement of each financial ratio was calculated in accordance with
Regulations Governing Futures Commission Merchants as follow:

Current Period L ast Period
Art. Calculation formula Calculation Ratio Calculation Ratio | Standard ]| Enfor cement
Stockholders' equity
(Total liabilities —futures 5,012,996 7.68 5,032,092 10.34 =1 Satisfactory to
17 traders' equity) 652,322 486,790 requirement
Current Assets 38,683,882 38,113,857
17 Current Liabilities 35,119,902 1.10] 34,567,504 1.10 =1 ’
Stockholders’ equity 5,012,996 5,032,092 =60%
22 [""Minimum paid-in capital 1,115,000 | 449.60 % 1,115,000 | 45131 % =40% 4
Post-adjustment net capital
22 Total customer margin 3,630,546 55.49 % 3,659,697 57.92 % =20% ”
deposits requiredfor open 6,542,582 6,318,099 =15%
positions of customers

(14) Uniquerisksto specific futures commission merchant services:

Transactions in futures and options carry a high degree of risk because of the amount of initial margin is
small relative to the value of the futures contract, meaning that transactions are heavily leveraged, the
fluctuation of underlying markets is unpredictable, and the variance risk of the exchange rate is high.
Futures industry thus bears higher operation risk than other industries. If the customers can’t exercise the
contract or maintain the proper margin, in order to dealing with such abrupt condition, the Group needs
sufficient liquidity to cover the transactions and suffer the loss may occur.

(15) Other:None
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Information on significant transactions:

(i)

Loans to other parties:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Collateral
Purposes
Actual | Range of | of fund | Transaction
usage interest | financing | amount for | Reasons Maximum
Maximum amount rates for the business for Individual | limit of
Number | Name of | Name of | Account | Related [Balance of|] Ending | during the | during the | borrower | between two | short-term [ Allowance funding fund
(Note 1) lender | borrower name party | the Period| balance period period | (Note 2) parties financing [for bad debt| Item Value |loan limits | financing
1 ICSC Klaw |Account No 41,639 41,639 17,845 5% 2 - [Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
Futures  [Trading eceivables
(HK) Ltd. |Limited  [Customer
1 CSC AAA Account No 83,278 83,278 37,177 15.09% 2 - Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
Futures  [Fintech  [receivables
(HK) Ltd. |Limited  [Customer
1 CSC Future Account No 83,278 83,278 - 5% 2 - Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
Futures Leading eceivables
(HK) Ltd. [Investment [Customer
IPte. Ltd.
1 CSC Alpha Rnd [Account No 83,278 83,278 - 5.09% 2 - Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
[Futures  [Singapore [receivables
(HK) Ltd. |Pte Ltd |-Customer
1 CSC [DerivativesfAccount No 83,278 83,278 - 15.09% 2 - [Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
Futures  [China receivables
(HK) Ltd. [Alpha |-Customer
[Fund
IRemark: Each loan limit by an individual is 10% amount of the net assets of CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. on the Financial Statements. The loan limit of total credit lines is calculated by net value of CS(|
Futures (HK) Led. and in line with the rules of liquid capital of Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong.

Note 1: Type of Numbering

(1) 0 represents Parent company

(2) Invested company is being numbered by company type from 1, same company should have same number.

Note 2: Type of Loans

(1) Business transactions

(2) Necessaries of short-term financing

(ii)
(iif)
(iv)
v)
(vi)

Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:None

(vii) Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions:

Service charge discounts on transactions with related parties in an aggregate amount of NT$5 million or more:None

Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock:None

Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock:None

Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of the capital stock:None

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
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Nature of Intercompany transactions
. . . i Percentage of the consolidated
No. |Name of company | Name of counter-party relationship Account name Amount Trading terms net revenue or total assets
1 CSC Futures (HK) [Capital True 3 Information 245 |General transaction 0.02%
Ltd. PartnerTechnology Co., technology expense|
Ltd.
1 CSC Futures (HK) |Capital True 3 IProfessional 21,117 |General transaction 1.10%
Ltd. PartnerTechnology Co., service fees
Ltd.
1 CSC Futures (HK) [Capital True 3 (Other expense 187 |General transaction -%
Ltd. PartnerTechnology Co.,
Ltd.
2 Capital True ICSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 3 Other operating 21,549 |General transaction 1.12%
PartnerTechnology revenue
Co., Ltd.
1 CSC Futures (HK) [Capital True 3 (Other payables 185 %
Ltd. PartnerTechnology Co.,
Ltd.
2 Capital True (CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 3 IAccounts 185 %
PartnerTechnology receivable
Co., Ltd.
0 Capital Futures ICSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 1 (Customers' margin 215,941 0.52%
Corp. laccount
1 (CSC Futures (HK) [Capital Futures Corp. 2 [Futures traders' 215,941 0.52%
Ltd. lequity
(Continued)




CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto the Consolidated Financial Statements

Nature of Intercompany transactions
. . . Percentage of the consolidated
No. |Name of company| Name of counter-party relationship Account name Amount Trading terms net revenue or total assets
1 (CSC Futures (HK) [Capital Futures Corp. 2 (Customers' margin 4,010,621 9.74%
Ltd. laccount
0 Capital Futures ICSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 1 (Customers' margin 365,233 0.89%
Corp. laccount
0 Capital Futures (CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 1 IFutures traders' 4,375,854 10.63%
Corp. lequity
0 Capital Futures (CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 1 IFutures 8,345 |General transaction 0.44%
Corp. lcommission
lexpense
1 (CSC Futures (HK) [Capital Futures Corp. 2 [Futures 8,345 |General transaction 0.44%
Ltd. lcommission
revenue
0 Capital Futures CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 1 Brokerage 61,245 |General transaction 3.20%
Corp. lcommissions
revenue
1 CSC Futures (HK) [Capital Futures Corp. 2 [Futures 61,245 |General transaction 3.20%
Ltd. commission
lexpense
0 Capital Futures (CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 1 IFinancial costs 7,702 |General transaction 0.40%
Corp.
1 ICSC Futures (HK) |Capital Futures Corp. 2 Interests revenue 7,702 |General transaction 0.40%
Ltd.
0 Capital Futures CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 1 (Other payables 2,909 0.01%
Corp.
1 CSC Futures (HK) [Capital Futures Corp. 2 Other receivables 2,909 0.01%
Ltd.
Note 1: The numbers in the Ref No. column represent as follows:

Note 2:

(b)

(1) 0 stands for the parent company.

(2) Subsidiaries are coded from No. I per respective companies.

Transaction relationship with the counterparties are as follows:

(1) Parent company to subsidiaries.

(2) Subsidiaries to parent company.

(3) Subsidiaries to subsidiaries.

Information on investees: (excluding information on investees in Mainland China)

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Main Original investment amount Highest Balance as of December 31, 2019 Net income Share of
Name of | Name of Date of FSC businesses and [ December 31, | December 31, | Percentage of| ~ Shares | Percentage of [ Carrying | Revenue | (losses) | profits/losses of | Cash
investor | investee | Location |establishment Rule No. products 2019 2018 ownership | (thousands) | wnership value | ofinvestee | of investee investee | dividend | Note
ICapital ICSC Futures|Hong Kong  [1998.12.9 IGin Guan Zheng  |Futures brokerage 862,631 862,631 97.27 % 214,000 97.27 % 940,119 249,672 (50,944) (49,554 - ubsidiar
[Futures HK) Ltd. IZhi No. and other
|Corporation| 1010027412 letter [businesses
permitted by local
law of Hong Kong
“apital “apital [Taiwan 2014.12.29  (Gin Guan Zheng ~ [Consultancy, 50,000 50,000 100 % 5,000 100.00 %| 42,249 - (3,224) (3,224 - [Subsidiary]
[Futures International [Zhi No. Information
|Corporation|information 1030038387 letter [software service
[Technology
ICo.. Ltd.
apital [True Partner [Hong Kong  [2010.5.31 (Gin Guan Zheng ~ |Assets 36,701 36,701 49 % 245 49.00 % 47,860 129,089 5,038 2,469 - |Associate
[Futures Capitaladvis [Zhi No. [Manangement
“orporationjor Co., Ltd. 1040027513 letter
(c) Information on overseas branches and representative offices:None
(Continued)
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CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notesto the Consolidated Financial Statements

(d) Information on investment in mainland China:

(i)

(i)

Investment in mainland china and related information:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Accumulated Accumulated Net
Main Total Method outflow of Investment flows outflow of income Highest Investment Accumulated
businesses amount of investment from investment from | (losses) | Percentage | percentage income remittance of
Name of and of paid-in | investment [ Taiwan as of Taiwan as of of the of of (losses) Book earnings in
investee products capital (Note 1) | January 1, 2019 | Outflow Inflow |December 31, 2019 investee | ownership | ownership (Note 2) value current period
Capital Management, 5,013 (3) 24,372 - - 24,372 2,159 51.00% 51.00% 1,101 24,068 -
True consulting B(2)
Partner land
Technology |information
Co., Ltd.  [service
business
Capital IManagement, 18,863 (3) 18,863 - - 18,8631 (4,057)] 100.00% 100.00% (4,057) 17,792 -
[Futures consulting B(2)
[Technology [and
(Shanghai) [information
Co., Ltd.  [service
business

Note 1:  Investment methods are classified into the following three categories:

A. Directly invest in a Company in Mainland China.

B. Through investing in an existing Company in the third area, which then invested in the investee in Mainland China (Please indicate the investee name of the third area).

C. Through a subsidiary to invest in a Company in Mainland China.

Note 2:  Investment gains and losses recognized during the period

A. It should be indicated if the investee was still in the incorporation arrangements and had not yet any profit during this period.

B. Indicate the basis for investment gains and losses recognition in the number of one of the following three categories:

(1) The recognition of investment gains or losses is based on the financial statements audited by international certified public accountant cooperated with certified public accountant of
the Republic of China.

(2) The recognition of investment gains or losses is based on the financial statements audited by certified public accountant of the Company.

(3) The recognition of investment gains or losses is based on the financial statements provided by the investee without audited by certified public account.

Note 3:  Above information is expressed in New Taiwan Dollars.

Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

Company Name

as of December 31, 2019

Accumulated Investment in Mainland China| Investment Amounts Authorized by

Investment Commission, MOEA

Upper Limit on Investment

Capital
International
Technology
Corp.

43,235

43,235

80,000

Note: The Company invests through a subsidiary, Capital International Technology Co., Ltd., to invest in Mainland China.
According to the relevant rules to small and medium enterprises, the upper limit for investment in China is $80,000.
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CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto the Consolidated Financial Statements

(17) Segment information:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

General information

The Group has one reportable segment: the brokerage segment. This segment is mainly involved in
futures brokerage business. The Group’s other operating segments are mainly involved in futures
and securities business on a proprietary basis and advisory business, etc. For the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the above segments did not meet the quantitative thresholds.

Information about reportable segments and their measurement and reconciliations

The Group does not allocate the income tax expense or extraordinary gain/loss to the reportable
segment. The reported information of operating segments are consistent with the internal reports
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. All of the Group’s operating segments’ accounting
policies are no material difference from the ones described in Note 4 “significant accounting
policies”. The Group evaluates segment performance based on the net profit before tax but not
including any extraordinary activity and foreign exchange gain/loss. The Group does not evaluate
segment’s performance based on its assets and liabilities so that there was no disclosure of assets and
liabilities of the operating segment.

For the years ended December 31, 2019

Adjustment
Brokerage and
business Others elimination Total
Segment Revenue $ 2,095,368 324,639 (503,229) 1,916,778
Segment profit or loss $ 682,987 63,627 - 746,614
For the years ended December 31, 2018
Adjustment
Brokerage and
business Others elimination Total
Segment Revenue $ 2,566,313 621,805 (338,626) 2,849,492
Segment profit or loss $ 840,629 114,347 - 954,976

Information about regions
Since the revenue from foreign customers were not significant and there was no disclosure.
Information about major customers

There was no disclosure because no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenues for the current periods.
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Independent Auditors Report

To the Board of Directors of Capital Futures Corporation
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Capital Futures Corporation(“‘the Company’’), which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Futures Commission Merchants, the related rules of Preparing Financial Reports of Futures Enterprises and the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the Code™), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. Key audit matters of the Company’s financial statements are stated as follows:

Commission income — brokerage recognized:

Related accounting policies of commission income — brokerage recognized, please refer to the financial report
note 4(o) revenue recognized. Explaination of commission income — brokerage, please refer to the financial
report note 6(0)(i). Comprehensive income statement commission income — brokerage.
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Explaination of key audit matters:

The Company’s main income is commission income — brokerage from entrusted futures dealing. The existence
and accuracy of commission income — brokerage have major affect on the financial report. Therefore,
commission income — brokerage recognized is one of the important evaluation matters of the Company’ s
financial report.

Audit procedures in response:

According to the key audit matters main audit procedures, we perform the sampling test on brokerage business
dealing internal control and commission income — brokerage recorded amount, then compare with the entrusted
data from brokerage business and evaluate the revenue recognized policies are managed by the related bulletin.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Char ged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, the
related rules of Preparing Financial Reports of Futures Enterprises and the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.
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3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in other
entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are LEE, FENG HUI and
CHUNG, TAN TAN.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 26, 2020

Notesto Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the statement of financial position, financial performance and its cash
flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other
jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the
Republic of China.

The auditors’ report and the accompanying financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version prepared and used in

the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English and Chinese language
auditors’ report and financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the yearsended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Incomes:
401000 Commission income - brokerage (Note 6(0))
410000 Net gains (losses) on sale of trading securities
421300 Dividend revenue
421500 Net gains (losses) on measurement of trading securities at fair value through profit or loss
421600 Losses on covering of borrowed securities and bonds with resale agreements short sales
421610 Net losses on borrowed securities and bonds with resale agreements short sales at fair value
through profit or loss
424200 Securities commission revenue
424400 Net gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments (Note 6(0))
424500 Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments Taipei Exchange (Note 6(0))
424800 Management fee revenue
424900 Consulting fee revenue
428000 Other operating revenue
Expenses:
501000 Brokerage fees
502000 Brokerage fees proprietary trading
521200 Financial costs
521640 Loss from securities borrowing transactions
425300 (Reversal of) expected credit impairment loss (Note 6(p))
524100 Futures commission expenses (Note 6(0))
524300 Clearing and settlement expenses
528000 Other operating expenditure
531000 Employee benefit expenses (Note 6(0))
532000 Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 6(0))
533000 Other operating expenses (Note 6(0))
Non-oper ating income and expenses:
601100 Share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures under equity method
(Note 6(c))
602000 Other gains and losses (Note 6(0))
902001  Net income before income tax
701000 Less: Incometax expenses(Note 6(1))
Net income
805000 Other comprehensive income:
805500 Componentsthat may not bereclassified to profit or lossin subsequent periods:
805510 Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit plans (Note 6(k))
805540 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
805599 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Subtotal of componentsthat may not be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss
805600 Componentsthat may bereclassified to profit or lossin subsequent periods:
805610 Foreign exchange difference from translating financial reports of foreign operations
805660 Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures - Items that
may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
805699 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss(Note 6(1))
Subtotal of componentsthat may be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss
805000 Other comprehensiveincome
902006 Total comprehensive income
975000 Basic earnings per share (Dollar) (Note 6(n))
985000 Diluted earnings per share (Dollar) (Note 6(n))

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
$ 1,638,480 94 1,926,768 81
36,165 2 (81,713)  (3)
1,101 - 5,842 -
13,966 1 (1,803) -
(1,144) - - -
(1,108) - - -
3,492 - 4,721 -
(5,221) - 414,369 18
36,424 2 72,343 3
204 - 1,379 -
15,076 1 29,057 1
(1,800) _ - 2,342 -
1,735,635 100 2,373,305 _100
219,170 13 251,847 11
1,325 - 4,919 -
26,592 2 12,410 1
193 - - -
(2,237) - 33,522 1
385,391 22 451,960 19
149,055 9 173,218 7
2,129 - 5,964 -
384,246 22 414,995 18
55,275 3 26,505 1
275,576 16 485,689 20
1,496,715 87 1,861,029 78
(50,309) (3) 60,171 2
558.336 32 377,809 16
508,027 29 437,980 18
746,947 42 950,256 40
146,938 8 115,051 5
600,009 34 835,205 35
(664) (372)
320 - 41 -
(344) _ - (331) _ -
(18,129) (1) 28,630 1
810) - 475) -
(66) _ - 9222 -
(18.873) __ (1) 18,933 1
(19,217) _ (1) 18,602 1
$ 580,792 33 853,807 36
$ 340 173
$ 3.40 473
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(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION

Statements of Cash Flows
For the yearsended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Net income befor e income tax
Adjustments:

Adjustmentsto reconcile:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit loss (gain)

Net loss (gain) on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest expense
Interest income (including financial income)
Dividend income
Share of loss (profit) of associates and joint ventures under equity method
Total adjustmentsto reconcile profit (loss)
Changesin operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease (increase) in bond purchased under resale agreements
Increase in customer margin accounts
Decrease (increase) in receivable-futures margin
Increase in leverage contract trading - customer's margin accounts
Increase in security borrowing margin
Decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable to related parties
Decrease (increase) in prepayments
Decrease (increase) in other receivable
Decrease (increase) in other receivable to related parties
Increase in other current assets
Decrease (increase) in clearing and settlement fund
(Increase) decrease in refundable deposits
Increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Increase in futures traders' equity
Increase in leverage contract trading - customer's equity
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Decrease in accounts payable to related parties
(Decrease) increase in advance receipts
Decrease in receipts under custody
Decrease in other payable
Increase in other payable to related parties
Increase in provisions for liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
(Decrease) increase in non-current liabilities
Total changesin operating assets and liabilities
Total adjustments
Cash inflow generated from operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Payment of lease liabilities
Cash dividends paid
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2019 2018
746,947 950,256
47,206 18,844
8,069 7,661
(2,237) 33,522
(20,238) 9,341
26,592 12,410
(529,587) (363,732)
(1,457) (5,891)
50,309 (60.171)
(421,343) (348.016)
(221,525) 486,135
152,000 (186,499)
(389,728) (7,215,225)
2,388 (33,370)
(79,979) (77,024)
(3,874) -
607 17,330
(146) 466
6,970 (5,655)
18,544 (19,065)
15,761 (19,766)
- (1
2,954 (5,924)
(100) 144
12,665 (113,913)
391,651 7,203,341
82,691 73,059
7,476 (59,531)
®) (3,766)
(695) 736
(135) (405)
(1,504) (22,706)
1,086 375
5,952 -
2,182 (4,315)
(1.857) 4,784
3,376 19.205
(417.967) (328.811)
328,980 621,445
530,050 357,997
1,349 5,891
(25,652) (12,168)
(113.773) (110,395)
720,954 862.770
(38,619) (19,400)
(12.646) (3.774)
(51.265) (23.174)
(21,986) -
(599.888) (460.342)
(621.874) (460.342)
47815 379,254
3211143 2,831,889
3,258,958 3.211.143




(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION

Notesto the Financial Statements
For theyearsended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

Capital Futures Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated on February 26, 1997 and registered under
the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. The address of the Company’s registered office is 32nd and B1
FlL. No. 97, Tun Hwa South Rd., Sec. 2, Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C. The Company established the Taichung
branch. The Company’s common shares were listed at Taipei Exchange (TPEx) officially on April 27,
2009, then transferred to Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE) on October 16, 2017. The Company is
authorized to conduct the following businesses:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
()
(8

Futures business.

Futures advisory business.

Securities introducing brokerage.

Futures management business.

Securities business on a proprietary basis.
Securities investment consulting

Lever Exchange Agency

(2) Approval date and procedures of the financial statements:

The financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on March 26, 2020.

(3) New standards, amendments and inter pretations adopted:

(a)

The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (“FSC”) which have already been adopted.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and I nter pretations per IASB
IFRS 16 “Leases” January 1, 2019
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment features with negative compensation” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures” January 1, 2019
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019
(Continued)
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Except for the following items, the Company believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would
not have any material impact on its financial statements. The extent and impact of signification
changes are as follows:

(1)

IFRS 16“Leases”

IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The Company applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the
cumulative effect of initial application is recognized in opening balance on January 1, 2019.
The details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below,

1)

2)

Definition of a lease

Previously, the Company determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or
contains a lease under IFRIC 4. Under IFRS 16, the Company assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a lease, as explained in Note
4(m)

On transition to IFRS 16, the Company elected to apply the practical expedient to
grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. The Company applied IFRS
16 only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not
identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a
lease. Therefore, the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 was applied only to contracts
entered into or changed on or after January 1, 2019.

As a lessee

As a lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating or finance leases
based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Company. Under IFRS 16,
the Company recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on-balance sheet.

The Company decided to apply recognition exemptions to short term leases of office
equipment, etc.

e  Leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate as at
January 1, 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at either:

—  their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the
commencement date, discounted using the lessee’ s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application — the Company applied this approach to
its largest property leases; or

(Continued)
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— an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments — the Company applied this approach to all other
lease.

In addition, the Company used the following practical expedients when applying
IFRS 16 to leases.

— Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

—  Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of IAS 37 onerous contract
provision immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative
to an impairment review.

—  Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for
leases with less than 12 months of lease term.

—  Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application.

— Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

Impacts on financial statements

On transition to IFRS 16, the Company recognised additional $37,672 thousands of right-
of-use assets and $37,672 thousands of lease liabilities. When measuring lease liabilities,
the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at January
1,2019. The weighted-average rate applied is 1.35%.

The explanation of differences between operating lease commitments disclosed at the
end of the annual reporting period immediately preceding the date of initial application,
and lease liabilities recognized in the statement of financial position at the date of initial
application disclosed as follows:

January 1, 2019
Operating lease commitment at December 31, 2018 as disclosed in $ 39,672
the Company’s financial statements

Recognition exemption for:

leases of low-value assets (1,389)
short-term leases 173)
38,110
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at January 1, 2019 37,672
Lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 37,672
(Continued)
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(b) The impact of IFRS endorsed by FSC but not yet effective

(©)

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 in accordance with Ruling No.
1080323028 issued by the FSC on July 29, 2019:

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and | nter pr etations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS39 and IFRS7 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material” January 1, 2020

The Company assesses that the adoption of the abovementioned standards would not have any
material impact on its financial statements.

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

As of the date, the following IFRSs that have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), but have yet to be endorsed by the FSC:

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and | nter pr etations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between Effective date to
an Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture” be determined

by IASB
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021
Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”  January 1, 2022

The Company is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its financial position and financial performance. The results thereof will be
disclosed when the Company completes its evaluation.

Summary of significant accounting policies:

The significant accounting policies presented in the financial statements are summarized below. Except
for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies were applied consistently throughout the
periods presented in the financial report.

(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, the related rules of Preparing
Financial Reports of Futures Enterprises and the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Firms.

(Continued)
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(b) Basis of preparation

(1)

(i)

Basis of measurement

Except for the following significant account, the financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis:

1)  Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value (including derivative instruments);

2)  Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value;

3) The defined benefit liability is recognized as the fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in New
Taiwan Dollar, which is the Company’ s functional currency. All financial information
presented in New Taiwan Dollar has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(¢) Foreign currency

(1)

(i)

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each subsequent reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currencies
using the exchange rate at that date. Non monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
that are measured at fair value are translated into the functional currencies using the exchange
rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences
relating to the investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other
comprehensive income, which are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to the reporting currency at exchange rates at the reporting
date. The income and expenses of foreign operations, excluding foreign operations in
hyperinflationary economies, are translated at the average exchange rate. Translation
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign
currency translation reserve in equity.

(Continued)
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When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign currency gains and losses arising from
such a monetary items are considered to form part of a net investment in the foreign operation
and are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(d) Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

(e)

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non current.

(1)

(i1)
(iii)
(iv)

Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized, or intended to be sold
or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;

Assets held for the trading purposes;
Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

Cash and cash equivalent, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to
be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non current.

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:

(1)

(i1)
(iii)
(iv)

Liabilities arising from operating activities that are expected to be settled in the normal
operating cycle;

Liabilities incurred for the trading purposes;
Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalent comprises time deposit with
maturity within one year, excess future margin, and commercial paper, short term and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subjected to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

(Continued)
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Financial instruments

Trade receivables issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(1)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment; FVOCI — equity investment;
or FVTPL. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following
the change in the business model.

)

2)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(Continued)
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On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right
to receive payment is established.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which meets the requirements to
be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, amortized costs,
trade receivables, other receivable, guarantee deposit paid and other financial assets),
debt investments measured at FVOCI and contract assets.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
loss (ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

(Continued)
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12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Company’ s historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-
looking information.

The Company considers a debt security to have a low credit risk when the credit risk
rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is overdue more than 30 days or within 30 days but breached the contract. The
Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is overdue
more than 90 days or the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Company in full.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects
to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
¢ credit-impaired’” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
assets is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charge to profit or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the asset.

(Continued)
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The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
For debtors, the Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing
and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery.
The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

(i1) Financial liabilities

)

2)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

(Continued)
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3)  Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(iii) Non-hedging derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and transaction costs are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value,
and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control.

A holding of 20% or more of the voting power (directly or through subsidiaries) will indicate
significant unless it can be clearly demonstrated otherwise. Investments in associates are accounted
for using equity method and are recognized initially at cost. The carrying amount of the investment
in associates includes goodwill which is arising from the acquisition.

On initial recognition, the investor’ s share of the investee’ s profit or loss is recognized in the
investor’s profit or loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the
investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be required arising from changes in the
investee’s other comprehensive income.

Any change in ownership interest of the subsidiaries, not resulting in loss of control, is treated as
equity transaction.

The investor’s share of the changes from foreign exchange translation differences is recognized in
net assets/equity of the investor.

Investments in subsidiaries

When preparing parent-Company-only financial report, the Company uses equity method in
evaluating the control of an investee. Under equity method, the net income or loss for the period of
parent-Company-only financial report and other comprehensive income of parent-Company-only
financial report are the same as net income or loss for the period attributed to owners of parents of
consolidated report and other comprehensive income attributed to owners of parents of consolidated
report, respectively. The equity of the parent-Company-only financial statements are the same as the
equity attributable to the owners of parents of the consolidated report.

Any change in ownership interest of the subsidiaries, not resulting in loss of control, is treated as
equity transaction between the owners.

(Continued)
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Securities under agreements

The Company engages in securities under resell agreements trading and the nature of transaction
substance is financing. When entering securities under resell agreements transactions, the Company
establishes an account “Investment in Bonds with resell agreements” with the actual amount of
lending and recognizes financing interest revenue by the interest period of resell agreements and no
profit and loss is recognized.

Securities borrowing transactions

The Company engages in securities lending transactions, the amount of the sale of securities
borrowing recognized liability, and to distinguish hedging and non-hedging purposes, in accordance
with stocks and bonds. The amount paid to redeem shares or bonds borrowed, as a deduction of the
subjects, the collateral paid in cash recorded as security borrowing margin, short sales delivered for
securities market financing recorded as security borrowing collateral price.

Customers margin accounts and future traders’ equity

The customers’ margin refers to the guarantee deposits and premiums collected from futures
customers and also the spread calculated based on the market prices everyday. It is reflected under
current assets of the balance sheet. Futures traders’ equity refers to futures customers’ deposit the
guarantee deposits and option premiums and also the spread calculated based on the market prices
everyday. It is reflected under current liabilities. The loss is offset only against the balance of the
same customers’ own margin accounts. If a customer incurs a loss in excess of the margin account
balance, the excess is recognized a receivable.

Property and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributed to the
acquisition of the asset.

Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately, unless the useful life and the depreciation
method of a significant part of an item of property and equipment are the same as the useful
life and depreciation method of another significant part of that same item.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property and equipment shall be
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item, and it shall be recognized as other income and expenses.

(i1) Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. The carrying amount of
those parts that are replaced is derecognized. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.
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(iii)) Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual values, and it
shall be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. Items of property and equipment
with the same useful life may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge. The
remainder of the items may be depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each period
shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property and equipment are as follows:

1)  Office equipment 3 ~ 5 years

2)  Leasehold improvement is depreciated equally over the shorter period of estimated useful
life or the lease term.

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. If
expectations differ from the previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change in
an accounting estimate.

(m) Leases

Applicable from January 1, 2019

(1)

Identifying a lease

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity
of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the
asset is not identified; and

— the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset throughout the period of use; and

— the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset throughout the period of use only
if either:

1)  the customer has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset is used
throughout the period of use; or
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2)  the relevant decisions about how and for what purpose the asset is used are
predetermined and:

- the customer has the right to operate the asset throughout the period of use,
without the supplier having the right to change those operating instructions;
or

- the customer designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what
purpose it will be?used throughout the period of use.

As a leasee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
—  payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

— there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

— there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee; or

— there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether it
will exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset, or
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— there is a change of its assessment on whether it will exercise an extension or termination
option; or

— there is any lease modifications

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease.

The Company presents rightofuse assets that do not meet the definition of investment and lease
liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position.

The Company has elected not to recognize rightofuse assets and lease liabilities for shortterm
leases of office equipment and transportation equipment etc. that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of lowvalue assets. The Company recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straightline basis over the lease term.

Applicable before January 1, 2019

Operating leases are not recognized in the Company’s statement of balance sheet. Payments made
under operating lease (excluding insurance and maintenance expenses) are recognized as an expense
on a straightline basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral
part of the total lease expense on a straightline basis over the term of the lease. Lease payments
under operating lease shall be recognized in renting expenses and disclosed in financial report.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Company are the requirements for transacting business on an exchange. The
seats are regarded as intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and measured at cost while
originally recognized. After initial recognition, an intangible asset shall be carried at its cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. As for computer software, it was amortized on a straight-line basis
over estimated useful life of three years, and in the meanwhile, the amortization would be recognized
in gains or losses. The residual value, amortization period and amortization method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each financial year-end. The change is accounted for as
a change in an accounting estimate.

Revenue recognition

The main revenue is commission income - brokerage and is recognized based on an accrual basis.
Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service
is provided.
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Defined benefit plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for
each the plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the thennet defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Company recognizes costs for a restructuring. If
benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they
are discounted.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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(q) Share-based payment

(1)

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employee is recognized as
employee expenses with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period which the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards which the related service and non-market performance conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number
of award that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between
expected and actual outcomes.

Income tax

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are
recognized except for the following:

(i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses) at
the time of the transaction;

(il) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

(iii) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

(i) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(i1) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1)  the same taxable entity; or

2) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

The Company’s 10% surtax on unappropriated earnings is recorded as current expense after the date
of the resolution of stockholders’ meeting for declaring the distribution of earnings.

(s) Earnings per share (“EPS”)

The Company presents its basic and dilutive earnings per share attributable to the Company’ s
ordinary equity holders. The basic earnings per share of the Company is calculated by dividing profit
or loss attributable to the Company’s ordinary equity holders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by the weighted-average
number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The dilutive potential ordinary shares of the Company include the estimation of
employee remuneration.

(t) Segment information

The Company has disclosed the segment information in the consolidated financial report, thus, the
Company does not disclose it in the financial statement.

Major sources of accounting judgments, estimation and assumptions uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, the related rules of Preparing Financial Reports for
Futures Enterprises and Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the following period.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year is as follows:

The impairment of investments accounted for using equity method: the Company performed the
impairment test of investments accounted for using equity method annually. The recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit was based on the calculation of the value in use that choosing the appropriate
discount rate and estimating the expected cash flows of the cash-generating unit.
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(6) Explanation of significant accounts:

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Cash $ 60 60
Demand deposits 314,751 621,489
Time deposits 2,723,900 2,337,230
Futures margin-excess margin 209,255 229,867
Commercial paper 10,992 22,497
Total $ 3,258,958 3,211,143

(b) Financial assets and liabilities

(1)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Open-ended funds and money-market instruments $ 112,948 35,000
Open-ended funds and money-market instruments 1,492 (195)
valuation adjustment
Trading securities - proprietary trading 152,674 87,054
Trading securities - proprietary trading valuation 6,478 (7,488)
adjustment
Securities invested by securities broker 146,849 74,553
Securities invested by securities broker valuation (1,589) (7,283)
adjustment
Call options - non-hedging 3,482 25
Futures margin-proprietary fund - non-hedging 51,316 41,212
Non-hedging foreign exchange rate derivatives 39,066 46,967
Total $ 512,716 269,845

If there is an increase in the securities price of 1% on the reporting date (assume that all other
variables remain the same), the impact on after-tax comprehensive income for 2019 and 2018

will increase $4,189 and $1,816, respectively. Conversely, if there is an decrease in the

securities price of 1% on the reporting date based on all other variables remain the same, there
will be the same amount but opposite direction of influence.
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Bonds purchased under resale agreements

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Bonds purchased under resale agreements $ 46,000 198,000
Resale price under the agreements $ 46,007 198,034
Date of repurchase 2020.1.6 2019.1.2~2019.1.14
Interest rates 0.47% 0.45% ~0.48%

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Owner ship Ownership
I nvestee Company ratio Amount ratio Amount
Taiwan Futures Exchange Co., Ltd 0.0042 % $ 1,375 0.0042 % 1,055

The Company holds shares of Taiwan Futures Exchange for long-term strategic purposes and
not for trading, therefore, the Company had classified these equity instruments as FVOCI.

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the dividends of $51 and $49,
respectively, related to equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
held on the years then ended, were recognized. No strategic investments were disposed in 2019
and 2018, and there were no transfers of any cumulative gain or loss within equity relating to
these investments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss-current

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Put options - non-hedging $ 11,897 -
Liabilities on sale of borrowed securities - non-hedging 2,257 -
Liabilities on sale of borrowed securities valuation 1,108 -
adjustment - non-hedging

Non-hedging foreign exchange rate derivatives 7,574 9,063

$ 22,836 9,063

Investments under Equity Method

Investments under Equity Method on the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Subsidiaries $ 982,368 1,053,757
Associates 47.860 45,719
$ 1,030,228 1,099,476
(Continued)
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Subsidiaries

The accounting figures of investee, which is controlled by the Company, are combined into the
consolidated financial statements; please refer to the consolidated financial report of 2019.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s share of gains or losses of
the subsidiaries were as follows:

For the yearsended December 31,
2019 2018
Audited by the certified public accountants $ (52,778) 56,353

Associates

The Company acquired 49% of True Partner Capital Advisor Co., Ltd. shares with US $1,123
on October 2, 2015, which indicate significant. Below is the relevant information:

Principal place

of business Owner ship equity
/Register and % of right to vote
Name of country of December  December
associate Relationship with the Company company 31, 2019 31, 2018
True Partner Capital Its main business is assests Hong Kong 49.00 % 49.00 %

Advisor Co., Ltd. management, and it's the
Company's strategic alliances to
expand assets managing business.

The insignificant associate uses equity method and its financial information is summarized as
follows. The information is included in the financial statement of the Company:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Summerized ending balance of the insignificant $ 47,860 45,719
associate

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Shares belong to the Company:
Net gains from continuing business units $ 2,469 3,818
Other comprehensive income (losses) (262) 366
Total comprehensive income $ 2,207 4184

Collateral and pledge

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company did not provide any investment accounted
for using equity method as collaterals for its loans.
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(d) Property and equipment

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the cost and accumulated depreciation of the
property and equipment of the Company were as follows:

Office L easehold
equipment improvements Total

Cost:

Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 82,528 17,283 99,811

Additions 36,872 1,747 38,619

Disposal (17,793) - (17,793)

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 101,607 19,030 120,637

Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 69,386 11,025 80,411

Additions 13,142 6,258 19,400

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 82,528 17,283 99,811
Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 49,082 6,607 55,689

Depreciation 20,864 4,156 25,020

Disposal (17.793) - (17.793)

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 52,153 10,763 62,916

Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 33,773 3,072 36,845

Depreciation 15,309 3,535 18.844

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 49,082 6,607 55,689
Carrying amounts:

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 49,454 8,267 57,721

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 33,446 10,676 44,122

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company did not provide any property and equipment as
collateral and pledge.
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Right of use assets

The Company leases buildings and equipment. Information about leases for which the Company as a
lessee was presented below:

Buildings Equipment Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ - - -
Effects of retrospective application 34,303 3,369 37,672
Additions 508 5,608 6,116
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 34,811 8,977 43,788
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ - - -
Effects of retrospective application - - -
Depreciation 19.270 2916 22,186
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 19,270 2,916 22,186
Carrying amounts:
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 15,541 6,061 21,602
(Continued)
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Customers margin accounts/ futures traders' equity

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018 the difference between customers’ margin accounts and futures

traders' equity were reconciled as follows:

Customers margin accounts
Cash in bank
Balance of the futures clearing house
Balance of other futures commission merchants
Marketable securities
Balance of customers margin accounts
Plus adjustment items:
Commision cost
Others
Deduction adjustment items:
Commision income
Futures transaction tax
Interest income
Temporary credits

Remittance amount of the customers after the market
closed

Balance of futures traders' equity

Receivable - futures margin

Receivable - futures margin - current
Less: Loss allowance

Subtotal

Receivable - futures margin - non - current
Less: Loss allowance

Subtotal

Total

-221-

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

$ 26,413,775 25,603,099

4,544,421 2,339,834

3,554,299 6,179,769

185 250

34,512,680 34,122,952

1,248 4,288

59 52

(7,123) (16,348)

(1,342) (1,426)

(5,699) (3,726)

(755) (431)

(9,235) (7,179)

$ 34,489,833 34,098,182

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

$ 386 422

384 421

2 1

30,597 32,949

30,597 32.949

$ 2 1
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The movement in the allowance for receivable - futures margin was as follows:

2019 2018
Balance on January 1 $ 33,370 -
Impairment losses recognized (reversed) (2.389) 33.370
Balance on December 31 $ 30,981 33,370

Intangible assets

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the costs, amortization, and impairment loss of
intangible assets were as follows:

The seats of
foreign futures
exchanges Computer
(Note) software Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 44,325 21,410 65,735
Additions - 12,646 12,646
Scrap - (9.621) (9.621)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 44,325 24,435 68,760
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 44,325 20,902 65,227
Additions - 3,774 3,774
Scrap - (3.266) (3.266)
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 44,325 21,410 65,735
Amortization and impairment loss:
Balance at 1 January 1, 2019 $ - 13,330 13,330
Amortization - 8,069 8,069
Scrap - (9,621) (9,621)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ - 11,778 11,778
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ - 8,935 8,935
Amortization - 7,661 7,661
Scrap - (3,266) (3,266)
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ - 13,330 13,330
Carrying value:
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 44,325 12,657 56,982
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 44,325 8,080 52,405
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Note : The Company obtained the seats of foreign futures Exchanges - NYMEX, COMEX, CBOT,
HKEX and CME for business development. In accordance with IAS No. 38 “Intangible
Assets” endorsed by the FSC, the seats are regarded as intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life.

Lease liabilities

The Company’s lease liabilities were as follows:

December 31,
2019
Current $ 14,920
Non-current $ 6,767

The maturity analysis please refer to note 6(p) financial instruments.
The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows :

For theyears
ended December

31
2019
Interest on lease liabilities $ 329
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 2,047
Expenses relating to leases of low-value, excluding short-term leases of low- $ 303

value assets

The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the Company was as follows :

For theyears
ended December
31, 2019
Total cash outflow for leases $ 24,665

(i) Real estate leases

The Company leases buildings for its office space. The leases of office space typically run for
1 to 5 years.

(i) Other leases

The Company leases equipment with contract terms of 1 to 5 years.
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Operating lease
Lessee's non-cancellable operating lease payables are as follows:

December 31,
2018
Within 1 year $ 22,251
1-5 years 17.421

$ 39,672

The Company rents several offices and equipment under operating lease, the lease terms are within 1
to 5 years. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the operating lease expenses recognized in profit
or loss $24,254.

Employee benefits
(i)  Defined benefit plans

The reconciliation in the present value of the defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan
assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Present value of defined benefit obligations $ (24,6106) (26,128)
Fair value of plan assets 17.897 18,216
Recognized liabilities for defined benefit obligations ~ $ (6,719) (7,912)

The Company made defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account at Bank of
Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. The plans (covered by the
Labor Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive an annual payment based on years
of service and average salary for the six months prior to retirement.

1)  Composition of plan assets

The Company set aside the pension funds in accordance with Labor Standards Act, are
put under the management of the Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee. In regards
to the utilization of the fund under the “ Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures,
Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund”, the minimum earnings for the
annual distribution shall not be less than the accrued earnings attainable from the interest
rates of two year time deposit offered by the local banks.

The balance of the Company’ s labor pension preparatory special account in Bank of
Taiwan amounted to $17,897 at the reporting date. The utilization of the labor pension
fund includes the assets allocation and yield of the fund. Please refer to the information
published on the website under Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee of the
Council of Labor Affairs Executive Yuan.
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Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

The Change in the present value of defined benefit obligation of the Company in 2019
and 2018 were as follows:

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018

Defined benefit obligation at January 1 $ 26,128 29,511
Current service costs and interest 607 669
Benefits paid (3,444) (4,943)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation

- Experience gain or loss 963 699

- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from changes in 362 192

financial assumptions

Defined benefit obligation at December 31 $ 24,616 26,128

Movements in fair value of defined benefit plan assets

The movements in fair value of defined benefit plan assets of the Company in 2019 and
2018 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $ 18,216 17,656
Interest revenue 172 188
Benefits paid (1,590) (630)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation

- Return on plan assets (except net interests of 661 519

period)

Contributions to the plan assets 438 483
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 17,897 18,216

Expense recognized in profit or loss

The expenses recognized in profit or loss of the Company in 2019 and 2018 were as
follows:

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
Current service cost $ 363 359
Net interest of net defined benfit obligation 72 122
$ 435 481
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Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation recognized in other comprehensive
income

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the accumulated remeasurement of net
defined benefit obligation recognized in other comprehensive income was as follows:

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
Accumulated amount on January 1 $ (11,4606) (11,094)
Recognized during the period (664) (372)
Accumulated amount on December 31 $ (12,130) (11,466)

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Discount rate 0.67 % 0.93 %
Future salary growth rate 2.50 % 2.50 %

The expected contribution to the defined benefit plan for the next year is $435. The
weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 2 years.

Sensitivity Analysis

When calculating the present value of the defined benefit obligations, the Company uses
judgments and estimations to determine the actuarial assumptions, including discount
rate and future salary increases. Any changes in the actuarial assumptions may
significantly impact the amount of the defined benefit obligations.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the effects of adopting significant
actuarial assumptions to defined benefit obligations were as follows:

Effectsto defined benefit
obligations
Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5%

December 31, 2019
Discount reate $ (582) 606
Future salary increasing rate 470 (457)

December 31, 2018

Discount reate (674) 703
Future salary increasing rate 559 (543)
(Continued)
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The sensitivity analysis presented above is based on the condition that other variables are
unchanged. In practice, the changes of many assumptions are correlated. The method that
the sensitivity analysis adopted is in accordance with the method of calculating net
pension liability

The assumptions and methods adopted for current period sensitivity analysis are identical
with the previous period.

(i1)) Defined contribution plans

In accordance with the Labor Pension Act of R.O.C, the Company contributes 6% of the
employee’s monthly wages to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance. Therefore, the Company has
no further legal or constructive obligations to make any additional contribution once the
contributions have been paid.

The Company contributed $12,059 and $11,712 under defined contribution plan to the Bureau
of the Labor Insurance in the year 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(I)  Income taxes
(i) Income tax expense

1)  The amount of income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Current income tax expense $ 147,727 109,856
Deferrd income tax expense (789) 5,195
Total $ 146,938 115,051

2)  The amount of income tax benefit (expense) recognized in other comprehensive income
of the Company in 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
Foreign exchange difference from translating financial $ 66 (9,222)
reports of foreign operations
(Continued)
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Reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) and profit before tax of the Company for 2019
and 2018 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Profit excluding income tax $ 746,947 950,256
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 149,389 190,051
Adjustment in tax rate - 770
Tax exempt income 603 (78,403)
Adjustments to prior year's income tax (4,074) (2,817)
Alternative minimum tax - 6,510
10% surtax on undistributed earnings 4 42
Others 1.016 (1.102)
Total $ 146,938 115,051

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

1)  Unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the details of the Company’s unrecognized deferred
tax liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Aggregate amount of temporary differences $ 14,845 28,316

related to investments in subsidiaries

The dividend policies of the Company’ s subsidiary, CSC Futures (HK) Ltd., were
prescribed not to appropriate the retain earning until December 31, 2019. Also, the
Company does not plan to dispose of the investee in foreseeable future. Thus, the
temporary differences related to investments in subsidiary for the portion of not to intend

to dispose or to appropriate are not recognized under deferred tax liabilities.

(Continued)
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2)  Recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the details of the Company’s recognized deferred
tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Recognized deferred tax assets:
Foreign exchange difference from translating  $ 236 170
financial reports of foreign operations
Recognized deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gains on foreign investments under $ 2,469 1,975
Equity Method
Unrealized gains on derivative financial 6,298 7,581
instruments
Total $ 8,767 9,556

(iii)) Income tax assessment status
The Company’s income tax returns through 2017 were assessed by the Tax Authority.
(m) Capital and other equity
(i) Common stock

According to the resolution of shareholders’ meeting on May 24, 2018, the Company issued
share dividends 16,040 thousand shares with par value of $10 dollars per share from capital

surplus. The paid-in capital became $1,764,376 after the capital increase. The capital increase
was agreed and was immediately effective on July 4, 2018. The based-capital increased date
was on August 11, 2018 under the resolution of board meeting on July 10, 2018.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had authorized capital both of $2,500,000,
with par value of $10 dollars per share; the issued common stock were both 176,438 thousand
shares.

(Continued)
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(i) Capital surplus

The detail of the capital surplus of the Company is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Share premium
Capital addition-Share premium $ 1,019,733 1,019,733
Capital addition-Employee stock option 24,134 24,134
Difference arising from disposal the subsidiaries' share 2,476 2,476
price and its carry value
Changes in ownershop interests in subsidiaries 995 995
$ 1,047,338 1,047,338

In accordance with the ROC Company Act, realized capital surplus can only be used to cover
accumulated deficit or to issue new shares or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share
ownership, provided that the Company has no accumulated deficit. The aforementioned capital
surplus includes share premiums and donation gains. In accordance with the Securities
Offering and Issuance Guidelines, the amount of capital surplus to be capitalized shall not
exceed 10 percent of the paid-in capital each year.

(i) Retained earnings
1) Legal reverse

When companies incur no loss, they are able to distribute new shares or cash dividends
through legal reserve under the resolution of stockholders' meeting but companies can
only distributed the part that the reserve exceeds 25% of the paid in capital.

2)  Special reserve

In accordance with Article 41 of the Securities and Exchange Law, 20 percent of the
current year’ s earnings after tax should be set aside as special reserve. Ruling No.
1010048029 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission on November 1, 2012, an
equivalent amount of special reserve should be set aside from earnings after tax of the
current year and the undistributed earnings of the prior period based on the decreased
amount of stockholders’ equity. For the cumulative deduction in stockholders’ equity of
the prior period, the equal amount of special reserve set aside based on undistributed
earnings should not be distributed. If there is any reversal of the deduction in
stockholders’ equity, the earnings may be distributed based on the reversal proportion.

In accordance with Ruling No. 10500278285 issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission on August 5, 2016, 0.5% to 1.0% of the current year’s earnings after tax
should be set aside as special reserve for year 2016 to 2018. From year 2017, the
aforementioned special reserve can be reversed within an amount equal to the
expenditures stemming from employee re training, re assignments, or relocations made
necessary by the introduction of financial technology.

(Continued)
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In accordance with Ruling No. 1080321644 issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission on July 10, 2019, from year 2019, a special reserve can not to be set aside,
but an certain amount of budget should be designated for the current year to pay for
employee transformation and training to protect employee’s right and interest. From year
2019, the special reserve can be reversed within an amount equal to special reserve for
year 2016 to 2018 when the aforementioned fees being expended.

3)  Undistributed earnings

According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, after-tax earnings should first
offset accumulated deficit, and then 10% of the remainder should be appropriated as
legal reserve .However, when the legal reserve has reached the paid-up capital, is not
within this limit. And then 20% of the remainder should be appropriated as special
reserve due to the need of the Company’s operation and the law, if there’s earning plus
undistributed earnings of beginning of the year, the Company’s earnings distribution was
proposed by board of directors and is subject to the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting.

According to the resolution of shareholders’ meeting on May 30, 2019 and May 24,
2018, the Company’s 2018 and 2017 earnings distribution for owners were as follows:

For the yearsended December 31,
2018 2017

Dividends for owners of common stock
Cash $ 599,888 460,342

The relevant information on earnings distribution approved by the stockholders’ meeting
can be accessed through the Market Observation Post System or other sites.

(n) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share and dilutive earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018 were calculated as follows:

(1)

Basic earnings per share

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Net income attributable to common shareholders of the $ 600,009 835,205
Company
Weighted-average number of common stock shares 176,438 176,438
outstanding (thousands of shares)
Basic earnings per share (dollar) $ 3.40 4.73
(Continued)
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(i) Dilutive earnings per share

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Net income attributable to common shareholders of the $ 600,009 835,205
Company

Weighted-average number of common stock shares 176,438 176,438
outstanding (thousands of shares)

Influence from stock dividends for employee 202 268
(thousands of shares)

Weighted-average outstanding shares of dilutived 176,640 176,706
earnings per share (thousands of shares)

Dilutived earnings per share (dollar) $ 3.40 4.73

(o) Items of the statements of comprehensive income

(i) Commission income - brokerage

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Brokerage commission-Domestic futures $ 843,573 1,021,406
Brokerage commission-Foreign futures 794,907 905,362
$ 1,638,480 1,926,768

(il)) Net gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Non hedging
Net gains (losses) on futures contracts
Gains on futures contracts $ 83,421 712,241
Losses on futures contracts (79.563) (965.617)
$ 3,858 (253,376)
Non hedging
Net gains (losses) on option contracts
Gains on option contracts $ 23,460 938,971
Losses on option contracts (32,539) (271,226)
$ (9,079) 667,745
(Continued)
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Non hedging

Net gains (losses) on foreign exchange rate
derivatives

Gains on foreign exchange rate derivatives

Losses on foreign exchange rate derivatives
Non hedging

Total Gains on derivative financial instruments

Total Losses on derivative financial instruments

(ii1) Futures commission expenses

Re-consigned futures trading

Futures introducing broker business

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
$ 203,064 280,261
(166.640) (207.918)
$ 36,424 72,343
$ 309,945 1,931,473
(278.742) (1.444.761)
$ 31,203 486,712

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
$ 254,352 283,333
131,039 168,627
$ 385,391 451,960

(iv) Employee benefit, depreciation and amortization expenses

Employee benefit expenses
Salary
Labor and health insurance
Pension
Director remuneration
Others

Depreciation

Amortization
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For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018

$ 326,398 342,332
21,708 21,807

12,494 12,193

16,897 31,389

6,749 7,274

47,206 18,844

8,069 7,661

$ 439,521 441,500
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Other operating expenses

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018

Postage expenses $ 40,072 27,661
Taxes 48,322 75,332
Rental 2,350 24,254
Information technology service 114,239 109,140
Professional service fees 3,460 186,564
Others 67,133 62,738

$ 275,576 485,689

Other income and expenses

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Interest revenue $ 529,587 363,732
Dividend revenue 356 49
Net gain (loss) on non-operating financial instruments 7,380 (7,538)
at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain (loss) on foreign exchange (1,460) 18,815
Net gain (loss) on disposal of investments 10,746 (8,366)
Other non-operating revenue - other 12,996 12,002
Other non-operating expense - other (1,269) (885)

$ 558,336 377,809

Remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors

According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the Company should aside 0.6%-2.0%
of annual profit to be distributed as employees’ bonus, and aside not higher than 3% of annual
profit to be distributed as remuneration to directors and supervisors. However, the Company's
accumulated losses should first be covered. People to receive shares or cash include the
employees of subsidiaries meeting certain specific requirements.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the estimated amounts of remuneration to
employee were $8,714 and $12,083, and to directors and supervisors by the Company were
$8,714 and $12,083, respectively, which were calculated based on the Company’s net profit
before income tax and remuneration to employees and directors and supervisors multiple the
earnings allocation percentage as specified in the Company’ s articles. It is recognized as
operating expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. If the Board of Directors
resolved to distribute the employees’ remuneration in the form of shares, the number of shares
of the distribution is based on the closing price of the day before the Board of Directors’
meeting date.
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The estimated amounts of remuneration to employee and director and supervisors by the
Company for 2018 were both $12,083. There was no difference between accounting estimates
and actual distribution. Related information would be available at the Market Observation Post
System website.

(p) Financial Instruments

(1)  Credit risk

1)

2)

3)

Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 the maximum credit exposure amounted to $38,984,425
and $38,409,964, respectively.

Concentration of credit risk

The main counterparties which the Company transacts with regarding cash and cash
equivalents, bonds purchased under resale agreements and customer margin deposit are
both domestic and overseas financial institutions.

The exposure area of credit risk in December 31, 2019 as shown in below, focusing on
Taiwan (proportion 90.52%), secondly was Asia (proportion 9.24% excluded Taiwan),
thirdly was North America (proportion 0.20%), and then Oceania (proportion 0.04%).
The proportion of investment area did not change significantly compared to the same
period last year.

December 31, December 31,
Area 2019 2018
Taiwan $ 34,233,319 31,214,655
Asia (excluded Taiwan) 3,494,763 6,229,925
North America 74,629 4,896
Oceania 14,927 82,619
Total $ 37,817,638 37,532,095

Impairment loss

The Company’s ageing analysis of receivables at reporting date is as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Total Total
amount | mpairment amount I mpair ment
Not past due $ 45,691 8,537 80,802 8,376
Past due 0~30 days - - - -
Past due 31~120 days - - - -
Past due 121~360 days - - 25,146 25,146
Past due more than 360 days 22.444 22,444 - -
$ 68,135 30,981 105,948 33,522
(Continued)

-235-



CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notesto the Financial Statements

Allowance for doubtful debts under receivables is recorded for the bad debt expense or
impairment loss. Where a claim becomes definitely uncollectible, the allowance for
doubtful debts should be written off to financial assets account. As of December 31,
2019 and 2018, the loss allowance of accrued receivables were recognized $30,981 and
$33,522, respectively.

4)  Credit risk of receivables
Regarding how the financial instruments are considered to have low credit risk, please
refer to note 4(f). The Company regards a financial asset as a default when the client of
brokerage business is unable to fulfill the margin call or settlement obligation or accrued
receivables past due, as well as other receivable of stock default that the company as
securities interactive business, which the counterparty is unable to pay the Company.
Thus, the Company regarded the financial assets as default and recognized impairment
losses. The movement of loss allowance for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018 was as follows:
For theyear ended December 31, 2019
Lifetime ECL - credit
Lifetime impaired
ECL-not Receivable-
12-month credit futures Other
ECL impaired margin receivables Total
Balance on January 1 $ - - 33,370 152 33,522
Provision or reversal of Impairment loss - - (2,389) 152 (2,237)
Amounts written off - - - (304) (304)
Balance on December 31 $ - - 30,981 - 30,981
For theyear ended December 31, 2018
Lifetime ECL - credit
Lifetime impaired
ECL-not Receivable-
12-month credit futures Other
ECL impaired margin receivables Total
Balance on January 1 per IAS39 $ - - - - -
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 - - - - -
Balance on January 1 per IFRS 9 - - - - -
Provision of Impairment loss - - 33,370 152 33,522
Balance on December 31 $ - - 33,370 152 33,622
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(i) Liquidity risk

The following table shows the effect of contract maturity on financial liabilities. The Company
predicts the cash flow occurring point or the actual amount of this maturity analysis will not be
significantly earlier or different.

Carrying Contract Within 6-12 Morethan
amount cash flow 6 months months 1-2 year 2-5year 5 year
December 31, 2019
Financial liabilities at fair value through § 22,836 22,836 22,836 - - - -
profit or loss
Futures traders' equity 34,489,833 34,489,833 34,489,833 - - - -
Leverage contract trading- customers' 308,590 308,590 308,590 - - - -
equity
Accounts payable 52,565 52,565 52,565 - - - -
Receipts under custody 3,811 3,811 3,811 - - - -
Other payable 121,931 121,931 121,931 - - - -
Lease liabilities 21,687 21,954 11,425 3,666 4,337 2,526 -
$ 35,021,253 35,021,520 35,010,991 3,666 4,337 2,526 -
December 31, 2018
Financial liabilities at fair value through § 9,063 9,063 9,063 - - - -
profit or loss
Futures traders' equity 34,098,182 34,098,182 34,098,182 - - - -
Leverage contract trading- customers' 225,899 225,899 225,899 - - - -
equity
Accounts payable 45,097 45,097 45,097 - - - -
Receipts under custody 3,946 3,946 3,946 - - - -
Other payable 121,294 121,294 121,294 - - - -

$ 34,503,481 34,503,481 34,503,481 - - - -
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(i) Currency risk
1)  Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Company’ s significant exposure to foreign currency risk of financial assets and
liabilities were as follows:

December 31, 2019

Foreign Currency New Taiwan
(dollar) Exchangerate Dollars
Financial assets

Monetary items
UsSD $ 551,690,117.58 29.9800 16,539,670
EUR 6,699,078.78 33.5900 225,022
GBP 3,088,904.16 39.3600 121,579
JPY 779,730,412.00 0.2760 215,206
HKD 174,042,499.51 3.8490 669,890
AUD 1,707,065.83 21.0100 35,865
CHF 62,191.27 30.9300 1,924
SGD 193,628.01 22.2800 4314
CNY 9,570,071.52 4.3050 41,199
NZD 62,939.96 20.1900 1,271
CAD 74,905.50 22.9900 1,722

Non-monetary items
USD 4,203,877.55 29.9800 126,032
JPY 1,408,881.00 0.2760 389
AUD 4,538.28 21.0100 95
CNY 4,699,184.91 4.3050 20,230
NZD 7,544.96 20.1900 152
CAD 21.90 22.9900 1

I nvestments under

equity method

HKD 256,684,610.03 3.8490 987,979
(Continued)
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Financial liabilities
Monetary items

USD
EUR
GBP
JPY

HKD
AUD
CHF
SGD
CNY

Non-monetary items

December 31, 2019

USD
CNY

Financial assets
Monetary items

USD
JPY

HKD
GBP
EUR
AUD
SGD
CHF
CNY
NZD
CAD
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Foreign Currency New Taiwan
(dollar) Exchangerate Dollars
$  544,153,710.05 29.9800 16,313,728
6,700,142.02 33.5900 225,058
3,020,884.73 39.3600 118,902
844,794,946.00 0.2760 233,163
170,987,237.21 3.8490 658,130
1,737,739.71 21.0100 36,510
62,129.83 30.9300 1,922
215,388.39 22.2800 4,799
5,561,659.00 4.3050 23,943
175,268.09 29.9800 5,254
538,827.12 4.3050 2,320
December 31, 2018
Foreign Currency New Taiwan
(daollar) Exchangerate Dollars
$ 508,608,787.98 30.7150 15,621,919
886,599,094.00 0.2782 246,652
168,930,402.87 3.9210 662,376
3,655,300.68 38.8800 142,118
8,575,803.51 35.2000 301,868
3,101,759.03 21.6700 67,215
160,061.50 22.4800 3,598
49,563.86 31.1900 1,546
21,841,083.04 4.4720 97,673
50,761.30 20.6200 1,047
231,506.17 22.5800 5,227
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December 31, 2018

Foreign Currency New Taiwan
(dollar) Exchangerate Dollars
Non-monetary items
USD $ 4,412,934.61 30.7150 135,543
HKD 82,672.00 3.9210 324
GBP 2,024.62 38.8800 79
JPY 8,392,500.00 0.2782 2,335
I nvestments under
equity method
HKD 268,602,885.23 3.9210 1,053,193
December 31, 2018
Foreign Currency New Taiwan
(dollar) Exchangerate Dollars
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD $ 500,037,837.54 30.7150 15,358,662
HKD 165,005,037.99 3.9210 646,985
GBP 3,552,856.78 38.8800 138,135
AUD 3,160,808.66 21.6700 68,495
CAD 7,224.19 22.5800 163
SGD 168,666.16 22.4800 3,792
CHF 49,558.86 31.1900 1,546
JPY 869,904,919.00 0.2782 242,008
NZD 1,273.64 20.6200 26
EUR 8,298,223.03 35.2000 292,097
CNY 18,659,311.38 4.4720 83,444
Non-monetary items
USD 178,910.18 30.7150 5,495
JPY 9,729,960.00 0.2782 2,707
CAD 13,566.14 22.5800 306
AUD 2,150.07 21.6700 47
CNY 112,732.03 4.4720 504
NZD 192.03 20.6200 4

Due to the variety of currencies, the Company disclosed the summarized information on
exchange gain or loss. The realized and unrealized exchange gain (loss) amounted to
$(3,156) and $22,252 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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2)  Sensitivity analysis

The currency risk of the Company arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents,
customers’ margin accounts, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale financial assets and futures traders’ equity, which are denominated in
foreign currency. Foreign exchange gain or loss occurs as foreign currency was
translated to TWD currency. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, with all
other variable factors that remain constant, when TWD currency increases or decreases
1% contrary to other currency, the Company’ s after-tax comprehensive income will
increase or decrease $10,950 and $11,986, respectively. The analytical basis was the
same in both years.

(iv) Analysis in interest rates

™)

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, with all other variable factors remain
constant, when the interest rate increases or decreases by 100 basis points, the Company’s
after-tax comprehensive income will increase or decrease by $6,945 and $6,856. This is mainly
due to the Company’s time deposits and guaranty deposited for business operations in variable
rates and settlement fund in variable rate.

Fair value and hierarchy information

1)  Fair value information

a)

b)

General description

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction among market participants at the measurement
date.

Definition of fair value hierarchy

)

iii)

Level 1

The input of Level 1 is the public quote of the same financial instrument in an
active market. An active market is a market that meets all the conditions
listed below: Products traded in the market is of homogeneity; it is able to
reach buyer and seller anytime in the market and the price information can be
accessed by the public. Listed stock, OTC stock, beneficiary certificates, as
well as equity and derivative instruments with public quote in an active
market possessed by the Company belong to Level 1.

Level 2

The input of Level 2 refers to observable price except public quote in an
active market, including direct observable input parameters (such as price) or
indirect observable input parameters (derivation from price).

Level 3

The input of Level 3 is not based on observable market data or obtained from
the counterparty.
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2)  Based on fair value measurement
a)  Hierarchy information of fair value

The Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value are evaluated on a
recurring basis. The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value were as

follows:
December 31, 2019
Public quote of
the same Observableprice Based neither on
financial except public direct market
instrument in an quotein an data nor from
active market active market the counter
Assetsand Liabilitiesitems Total (Level 1) (Level 2) party (Level 3)
Fair value evaluated on arecurring basis
Non derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Beneficiary certificate N 264,548 264,548 - -
Stock investment 154,304 154,304 - -
Financial assets at fair value through other 1,375 - - 1,375

comprehensive income
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through 3,365 3,365 - -
profit or loss

Derivative assets and liabilities

Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit § 93,864 54,798 39,066 -
or loss
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through rofit 19,471 11,897 7,574 -
or loss
December 31, 2018
Public quote of
the same Observableprice Based neither on
financial except public direct market
instrument in an quotein an data nor from
active market active market the counter
Assetsand Liabilitiesitems Total (Level 1) (Level 2) party (Level 3)
Fair value evaluated on arecurring basis
Non derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Beneficiary certificate N 106,368 106,368 - -
Stock investment 75,273 75,273 - -
Financial assets at fair value through other 1,055 - - 1,055
comprehensive income
Derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit § 88,204 41,237 46,967 -
or loss
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through rofit 9,063 - 9,063 -
or loss
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b)  Valuation techniques
1)  Non-derivative financial instruments

The wvaluation of non-derivative financial instruments are based on
transparent offer price as fair value if there is existence of active market, i.e.
TSE, OTC and investment Trust and investment Adviser. The equity of non-
transparent offer price shall be evaluated by valuation techniques by using the
Market approach-public company comparable with the discount of lack
equity-liquidity.

ii)  Derivative financial instruments

The valuation of derivative financial instruments in the active market are
mainly measured settlement price of exchange institution as fair value. The
fair value of the remaining financial instruments are obtained by financial
valuation models or referencing counterparty quotes. Fair value obtained
through the calculations of financial valuation models include, but are not
limited to, fair value references of substantive factors and characteristics from
similar financial instruments, those obtained from the cash flow discounting
method or those obtained by other financial valuation techniques. Fair values
obtained through financial valuation techniques are derived from market
information on the reporting date, and utilizes the fair values derived from the
calculations of financial valuation models.

iii)  Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2

There is no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

iv) Movements of financial assets at fair value classified into Level 3

(In Thousands Dollars)
For the years ended December 31, 2019
Gains and losses on valuation Addition Reduction
Amount
Amount recognized in
Beginning recognized in  comprehensive  Purchased or Transferredto  Sold, disposed Transferred Ending
Item Balance profit or loss income issued Level 3 or settled from Level 3 Balance
Financial assets at fair value $ 1,055 - 320 - - - - 1,375
through other
comprehensive income
For theyears ended December 31, 2018
Gains and losses on valuation Addition Reduction
Amount
Amount recognized in
Beginning recognized in  comprehensive  Purchased or Transferredto  Sold, disposed Transferred Ending
Item Balance profit or loss income issued Level 3 or settled from Level 3 Balance
Financial assets at fair value $ 1,014 - 41 - - - - 1,055
through other
comprehensive income
(Continued)
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Quantified information of fair value measurement for significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The Company’s Level 3 fair value measurements are financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income — equity instruments investment.

The Company’s equity instruments investment without active market include
multiple significant unobservable inputs. Those unobservable inputs of equity
instrument without active market are independent from each other, thus, they
are not correlative. Since the correlation between significant unobservable
inputs and fair value cannot be fully measured in practical, the quantified
information is not disclosed.

Correlation
Valuation Significant between inputs and
technique unobservableinputs fair value

Financial assets at Market = Price to Book Ratio = The higher price
fair value through approach to book ratio is,

other comprehensive
income equity

= Discount for lack of

marketability the higher fair

value is.

instruments without

an active market

vi)

= The higher
discount for lack
of  marketability
1s, the lower the
fair value is.

Fair value measurement to Level 3, and the sensitivity analysis of the
substitutable appropriate assumption made on fair value

The fair value measurement that the Company made for the financial
instruments is deemed reasonable; however, different valuation models or
inputs could result in different valuation results. Specifically, if the valuation
input of financial instruments classified in the Level 3 changes by 1%, the
effects on other comprehensive income are as follows:

Changein fair valuerecognized in
other comprehensiveincom
Favorable Unfavorable

December 31, 2019

Financial assets fair value through $ 14 (14)
other comprehensive income

December 31, 2018

Financial assets fair value through $ 11 (11)
other comprehensive income
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Favorable and unfavorable movements of the Company refer to the
fluctuation of fair value, and the fair value is calculated through the valuation
technique according to the unobservable inputs to different extent. If the fair
value of a financial instrument is affected by more than one input, the above
table only illustrates the effect as a result of one single input, and the

correlation and variance among multiple inputs are not listed here.
¢) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

For financial instruments not measured at fair value, such as cash and cash
equivalents, customers’ margin accounts, accounts receivables, deposits, future
traders’ equity, leverage contract traders’ equity and account payables. The
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of the fair value. Therefore, the
Company does not disclose the fair value.

(q9) Financial risk management

(1)

(ii)

General description

The Company is exposed to risks below due to the application of financial instruments
1)  Credit risk

2)  Liquidity risk

3)  Market risk

The note expresses the exposure, measurement and management target, policy and procedure
of the aforementioned risks. Detailed information about the financial instruments has been
disclosed as each note to the financial statements.

Risk management structure

To effectively control risks, a management procedure is to build up from top to bottom that
includes the Board of Directors, managers of all departments and the employees to participate.
From the macroscopic perspective of the Company, qualitative and quantitative approaches are
taken to recognize, evaluate, monitor and respond to various potential risks. As a result, the
Company may make reasonable risky asset allocation and maximize returns for shareholders
within a bearable risk range. On September 21, 2007, the Company deliberated this institution
of risk management based on the “ Principles of Futures Commission Merchant’ s Risk
Management Practices” and the “ Futures Commission Merchant’ s Self Checklist for the
Establishment of Risk Management Mechanism” as promulgated in the letter ref. No. (Taiwan-
Futures-Audit) 0940024340 of the Taiwan Futures Exchange. The Board of Directors has
overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.
The Board of Directors has established the Risk Management Committee, attributable to
General Manager’ Office and responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk
management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its
activities
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(ii1) Credit risk

(iv)

Credit risk is the risk that the Company engaged in financial trading exposed, including issuers
credit issue, traders credit issue and the subject assets credit risk. And the risk of financial loss
to the Company if a customer of brokerage business fails to meet its contractual obligations of
margin calls or settlement. According to futures trading practices, futures commission
merchant can close position in accordance with the prior agreement of both parties due to the
system designed such as advance customers margin, intraday in-time clearing and when
customers fail to meet its contractual obligations of margin calls. Therefore, the influence is
not significant to the credit risk of the Company. Moreover, most brokerage customers are the
general investors and professional institutions. The object sources of investors and the amount
of investment are widely dispersed, and thus, there is no situation such as concentration of
credit risk.

Approaches taken to manage credit risk at current stage are as follows:

1) Credit inquiry and assessment before trade: inquire client’ s credit and ascertain the
legality before transaction

2)  Credit rating management: treat trades with special credit particularly.

3)  Credit supervision after transaction: regularly inspect client’s profit and loss of positions.
Evaluate and monitor credit enhancement (including collaterals) on a regular basis.

4)  Other effective risk reduction measures: collaterals, guarantee, credit risk netting and
offset agreement.

Summarize information on expected credit loss (credit risk exposure amount, counterparty
default probability and return rate) and unexpected credit loss, as well as quantify the credit
VaR.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risks are market liquidity risk and capital liquidity risk
1)  Market liquidity risk:

Market liquidity risk is the risk which the Company cannot immediately cover or offset
the risk of derivative positions. When the condition of insufficient market depth or an
unexpected event occurs, it’ s not easy to obtain trading opportunities or significant
spread risk. Due to small trading volume, some domestic futures contracts have this
liquidity risk. Therefore, when the proprietary segment of the Company engages in
arbitrage trading, it should consider the liquidity risk of goods. Futures commodity
liquidity can depend on daily trading volume and open interest (OI) to measure. The
more the daily trading volume and open interest as well as the greater liquidity are, the
relatively lower the liquidity risk is.

(Continued)
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Capital liquidity risk:

Capital liquidity risk is the one that the Company fails to meet its contractual obligations
when increasing margins is required by settlement or trading. Therefore, the Company
should control and manage the allocation of capital in order to avoid the risk of capital
liquidity and financial losses of the Company when proprietary segment of the Company
engages in futures trading.

Liquidity risk management of the Company includes :

1)

2)

Market liquidity risk management: To avoid loss caused by market liquidity risk, the
Company stipulates capital amount budgeted for proprietary trade department in the
annual operating plan. Also, a daily report on the Adjusted Net Capital (ANC) ratio is
filed to the competent authority. As for other departments and proprietary trade, the risk
control office supervises daily trade by comparing actual cash flow and the authorized
amount.

Capital liquidity risk management : The finance department is independent from other
units in transferring financial resources. To control capital liquidity risk and to consider
capital needs of various products for domestic and foreign markets, the finance
department composes daily reports, such as the “Margin Withdrawal/Deposit List”,
“ Securities Transaction Applications”, and other management report forms. After

reviewing and approving by the management, these reports will be implemented and
filed.

Market risk

Market risk is the possibility of loss resulting from trading due to futures price reversal of the
Company’ s proprietary business. It means that the market price or fluctuation trend is not
beneficial to the Company’s profitability, which results in risky events happen.

The Company’s market risk management comprises trading strategy monitoring, loss up limit
control, trading margin up limit control, remaining position up limit and open-delta value
control, margins ratio control for domestic and foreign remaining positions and the implied
volatility inspection of option price.

Quantitative Measurement on Market Risk was as follows:

1)

Statistic-based measurement: the Value at Risk (VaR) of linear products (stocks) is
measured by the Variance Co-Variance (Risk Metrics Approach--EWMA), which
calculates the maximal probable risk of portfolio under a certain confidence level for the
next business day. The Value at Risk of non-linear products (options) is measured by the
Delta-Gamma Approximations (the * Greeks” ). After offsetting the risks of trade
contracts, the measurement vehicle calculates the maximal probable risk of portfolio
under a certain confidence level for the next business day. To test the accuracy, back
testing approach is taken to try finding out the violations within one year under pre-
calculated VaR using the actual valued profit and loss of inventory positions for the
previous day (P&L for T-1 day)
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2)  Sensitivity analysis measures the sensitivity of the positions to individual risk factors
(such as interest rate and exchange rate). The sensitivity analysis on exchange rate
variation includes evaluation and analysis on the proprietary overseas capital and service
fee revenue from foreign futures products

3)  Stress test emulates and measures the impacts on portfolio value at unusual market
change, from which responding actions can be made. The portfolio stress test at current
stage aims at the weighted index or targeted stock price within £15% change.

Capital management

The Company’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the capacity to continue to operate
and achieve the Company’s operating principles, to continue to provide a return on shareholders, to
maintain the interest of other related parties, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to the shareholders, reduce the capital for redistribution to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company adopts a risk-adjusted return on capital to allocate the Company's capital
reasonably and effectively.

As of December 31, 2019, the Company didn’t change the method of capital management.
Financing activities not affecting current cash flow

The Company's financing activities which did not affect the current cash flow for the year ended
December 31, 2019, were as follows:

(i) For Right of use assets, please refer to note 6(i).

Non cash changes

Foreign
January 1, Cash exchange Fair value December
2019 flows Other  movement changes 31, 2019
Lease liabilities $ 37,672 (21,986) 6,001 - - 21,687
Total liabilities from $_ 37,672 (21,986) 6,001 - - 21,687

financing activities
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(7) Related-party transactions:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Relationships between parents and subsidiaries
The Company's subsidiaries were as follows:

Owners' equity (share)
December 31, December 31,

L ocation 2019 2018
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. Hong Kong 97.27 % 97.27 %
Capital Interntional Technology Corp. Taiwan 100.00 % 100.00 %
Capital True Partner Technology Co., Ltd. China 51.00 % 51.00 %
Capital Futures Technology (Shanghai) China 100.00 % 100.00 %

Co., Ltd.

Parent Company and ultimate controlling party

Capital Securities Corporation is both the Parent Company of the Company and the ultimate
controlling party of the consolidated entity. It owns 56.21% of all shares outstanding of the
Company, and has issued the consolidated financial statements available for public use.

Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered
in the consolidated financial statements.

Name of related party Relationship with the Company
Capital Securities Corporation The parent company
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. A Subsidiary
Capital International Technology Co., Ltd. A Subsidiary
CSC Securities (HK) Ltd. An Associate
Capital Investment Trust Corp. (Note) An Associate

Note: The Corporation has become an associate of the Company from February 9, 2018.

Key management personnel compensation

For the years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Short-term employee benefits $ 58,991 77,779
Post-employment benefits 1,010 1,012
Total $ 60,001 78,791
(Continued)
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(e) Significant transactions with related parties

(i) The amounts of futures trading between the Company and related parties for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

For the yearsended December 31,

2019 2018
Commission income-brokerage
Capital Securities Corporation $ 9,441 21,562
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. 61,245 68,377
Capital Investment Trust Corp. 1,148 856
Total $ 71,834 90,795
Management Fee income
Capital Securities Corporation $ - 1117
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Futures traders' equity
Capital Securities Corporation $ 688,447 1,628,417
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd 4,375,854 2,987,172
Capital Investment Trust Corp. 142,376 287,357
Total $ 5,206,677 4,902,946
Customers margin accounts-other futures commission
merchants
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd $ 215,941 252,079
Futures margin
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd $ - 4,179

Transaction terms are the same as those with general clients.

Capital Securities Corporation deposits margins to the Company for futures proprietary
trading, and the Company paid the interest of excess margin annually. In 2019 and 2018,
interest expense amounted to $422 and $436, respectively.

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. deposits margins to the Company for futures proprietary trading, and
the Company paid the interest of excess margin annually. In 2019 and 2018, interest expense
amounted to $7,702 and $2,482, respectively.

Capital Investment Trust Corp. deposits margins to the Company for futures proprietary
trading, and the Company paid the interest of excess margin annually. In 2019 and 2018,
interest expense amounted to $92 and $78, respectively.
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(i) Accounts payable and receivable:

(iii)

(iv)

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Accounts receivable
Capital Securities Corporation $ 374 228
Accounts payable
Capital Securities Corporation $ 10,914 10,922
Other receivables (Note 1)
Capital Securities Corporation $ 4,052 19,981
Other payables

Capital Securities Corporation (Note 2) $ 789 444
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. (Note 3) 2,909 1,951

$ 3,698 2,395

(Note 1) Receivables for information service fee, receivables from future interactive brokers
and interest from bonds investment under resell agreements.

(Note 2) Payables for allocated expense and interest.
(Note 3) Payables for commission-brokerage allowance and interest.
Futures commission expenses

The Company delegated Capital Securities Corporation for introducing brokers. In 2019 and
2018, futures commission expenses amounted to $130,341 and $166,348, respectively.

The Company delegated CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. for recon-signing foreign futures trading. In
2019 and 2018, futures commission expenses amounted to $8,345 and $10,289, respectively.

Lease

The Company signed three year lease contracts and rented the office and parking spaces from
Capital Securities Corporation. The total value of contracts before modification was $49,119
and the total value of contracts after modification was $49,629. Rental expenses for the year
ended December 31, 2018 amounted to 16,455. The Company applied IFRS 16, with a date of
initial application on January 1, 2019. This lease transaction recognized an additional amounts
of $26,176 of right of use assets and $26,176 of lease liabilities. For the year ended December
31, 2019 the Company recognized the amount of $252 as interest expense. As of December 31,
2019, the balance of lease liabilities amounted to $10,145.
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(v) Information technology service

Computer information system service contract was signed between the Company and Capital
Securities Corporation. In 2019 and 2018, the service fee amounted to $46,378 and $41,637,
respectively.

(vi) Securities commission income

The Company was delegated by Capital Securities Corporation for securities introducing
brokers. In 2019 and 2018, the commission income amounted to $3,492 and $4,721,
respectively.

(vii) Stock service fee

In 2019 and 2018, the Company paid the stock service fee to Capital Securities Corporation
amounted to $448 and $406, respectively.

(viii) Human resource and legal service fees

In 2019 and 2018, the Company paid the human resource and legal service fee to Capital
Securities Corporation both amounted to $300.

(ix) Securities brokerage charge

In 2019 and 2018, the Company paid the securities brokerage charge to Capital Securities
Corporation amounted to $10 and $436, respectively.

(x) Bonds under resell agreement

The Company conducted investments with the Capital Securities Corporation for bonds
purchased under resell agreements. In 2019 and 2018, the interest income amounted to $461
and $321, respectively. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the remaining investment
amounted to $46,000 and $198,000, respectively. The maturity dates from January 6, 2020 and
from January 2 to January 14, 2019, respectively. The agreed interest rates were 0.47% and
0.45% to 0.48%, respectively.

(xi) Professional service fees

The Company delegated Capital International Technology Co., Ltd. for developing systems. In
2018, the professional service fee amounted to $1,400.

(8) Pledged assets.None
(9) Significant contingent liability and unrecognized contract commitment:

The Company purchased software and hardware systems for business development. The price amounted to
NT$2,520, as of December 31, 2019, the Company had outstanding balance NT$1,452.

(10) Significant catastrophic losses:None
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(11) Significant subsequent events:

The Board of Directors of the Company approved to raise new cash capital on November 28, 2019 for
$340,000, and issue new common stock of 340,000 thousand shares with $10 dollars face value per share.
On February 25, 2020, the Board of Directors approved to issue the stock at $34.4 dollars per share. The
capital increase plan got the approval by the FSC No0.1090300222 on January 30, 2020 and the capital
increase date is set to be March 26, 2020.

(12) Disclosure of information asrelated to derivative financial instruments:

(a) As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the open positions of futures and option contracts were as

follows:
December 31, 2019
Open positions
Number | Contract sizeor
Long/ of paid for (received
Item Trading category Short | contracts| from) premium Fair value Note

Futures contract
TAIEX Futures Short 112 |8 (268,932) (268,660)
Mini Taiex Futures Short 10 (5,998) (5,997)
Electronic Sector Index Futures Short 2 (4,258) (4,218)
Stock Futures Long 62 6,873 6,969
Stock Futures Short 18 (727) (723)
JPY Dollar Futures Short 5 (17,355) (17,324)
10 Year U.S. Treasury Note Futures Short 5 (19,421) (19,250)
Ultra U.S. Treasury Bond Futures Short 3 (16.889) (16,338)
Subtotal (326,707)

Options

contract:
Stock Options (Call) Long 10 |$ 1 1
Stock Options (Call) Short 10 (96) (127)
Stock Options (Put) Short 1 3) (1)
Stock Options (Put) Long 14 1 1
TAIEX Options (Call) Long 377 454 357
TAIEX Options (Call) Short 588 (2,298) (1,728)
TAIEX Options (put) Long 160 284 332
TAIEX Options (put) Short 556 (2,332) (2,779)
TAIEX Weekly Options (Call) Long 2,487 621 221
TAIEX Weekly Options (Call) Short 1,148 (1,109) (680)
TAIEX Weekly Options (put) Long 2,494 1,943 2,548
TAIEX Weekly Options (put) Short 2,714 (3,813) (6,527)
Electronic Sector Index Options(Call) Long 10 51 22
Electronic Sector Index Options(put) Short 20 (76) (33)
Finance Sector Index Options(Call) Short 20 (10) 3)
Gold Option (Call) Short 10 (20) (19)
Gold Option (put) Long 2 3 -
Subtotal (6,399)

Total $ (333,106)
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December 31, 2018

Open positions
Number | Contract sizeor
Long/ of paid for (received
Item Trading category Short | contracts| from) premium Fair value Note

Futures contract
TAIEX Futures Long 131 {$ 252,299 253,244
TAIEX Futures Short 95 (183,069) (183,350)
Mini Taiex Futures Short 264 (126,317) (127,524)
Electronic Sector Index Futures Long 23 35,333 35,397
Finance Sector Index Futures Short 30 (35,369) (35,358)
USD/JPY FX Futures Long 53 32,509 32,120
USD/JPY FX Futures Short 213 (130,851) (130,068)
Nifty 50 Index Futures Long 48 26,045 26,189
Nifty 50 Index Futures Short 4 (2,193) (2,192)
EUR/USD FX Futures Long 113 79,609 80,110
US Dollar Index Futures Short 1 (2,946) (2,940)
Euro Dollar Futures Short 18 (79,280) (79,631)
DIJIA Index Futures Short 58 (26,931) (26,880)
MSCI India Index Futures Short 36 (24,058) (24,155)
JPY Dollar Futures Short 28 (97,593) (98,591)
Mini Hang Seng Index Futures Long 4 4,067 4,055
2 Year U.S. T Note Futures Short 1 (6,495) (6,521)
Mini Dow Futures Long 5 17,770 17,867
Mini Dow Futures Short 2 (7,113) (7,151)
Mini S&P 500 Futures Long 16 60,226 61,558
Mini S&P 500 Futures Short 6 (22,746) (23,115)
S&P 500 Futures (TAIFEX) Long 18 9,008 9,005
S&P 500 Futures (TAIFEX) Short 12 (6,008) (5,993)
Subtotal (234.,103)

Options

contract:
TAIEX Weekly Options (Put) Long 240 |8 72 25
Subtotal 72

Total $ (234,031)

(b) As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the nominal amount of open positions of foreign exchange rate

derivatives contracts were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
[tem 2019 2018
Foreign exchange rate derivatives - buyer $ 2,700,301 1,568,749
Foreign exchange rate derivatives - seller $ 2,448,322 1,510,240
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- 254 -



CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notesto the Financial Statements

(13) Restrictions and enforcement of the Company’svariousfinancial ratios under futurestrading law:

(a) The restrictions and enforcement of each financial ratio was calculated in accordance with
Regulations Governing Futures Commission Merchants as follow:
Current Period L ast Period
Art. Calculation formula Calculation Ratio Calculation Ratio [ Standard | Enfor cement
Stockholders' equity
(Total liabilities —futures 5,012,996 7.68 5,032,092 10.34 =1 Satisfactory to
17 traders' equity) 652,322 486,790 requirement
Current Assets 38,683,882 38,113,857
17 Current Liabilities 35,119,902 1.10 | 34,567,504 1.10] =1 ’
Stockholders’ equity 5,012,996 5,032,092 =60%
22 | Minimum paid-in capital 1,115,000 | 449.60 % 1,115,000 | 451.31 % =40% i
Post-adjustment net capital
22 Total customer margin 3,630,546 55.49 % 3,659,697 57.92 % =20% 7
deposits requiredfor open 6,542,582 6,318,099 =15%
positions of customers

(14) Uniquerisksto specific futures commission merchant services:

Transactions in futures and options carry a high degree of risk because of the amount of initial margin is
small relative to the value of the futures contract, meaning that transactions are heavily leveraged, the
fluctuation of underlying markets is unpredictable, and the variance risk of the exchange rate is high.
Futures industry thus bears higher operation risk than other industries. If the customers can’t exercise the
contract or maintain the proper margin, in order to dealing with such abrupt condition, the Company needs
sufficient liquidity to cover the transactions and suffer the loss may occur.

(15) Other:None

- 255 -

(Continued)



(16) Other disclosures:

CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notesto the Financial Statements

(a) Information on significant transactions:

(1)  Loans to other parties:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Collateral
Actual | Range of | Purposes | Transaction
usage interest | of fund | amount for | Reasons Maximum
Maximum amount rates financing | business for Individual | limit of
Name of | Name of | Account | Related [Balance off Ending |during the [during the| forthe |between two |short-term | Allowance funding fund
Number | lender | borrower | name party |the period | balance period period | borrower parties financing |for bad debt| Item Value |loan limits | financing
(Note 2)

1 CSC Klaw |Account No 41,639 41,639 17,845 15% 2 - Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
[Futures  [Trading  feceivables
(HK) Ltd. |Limited _ |Customer

1 e IAAA |Account No 83,278 83,278 37,177 [5.09% 2 - [Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
[Futures Fintech  feceivables
(HK) Ltd. |Limited _ |Customer

1 ICSC [Future |Account No 83,278 83,278 5% 2 - [Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
[Futures  [Leading feceivables
(HK) Ltd. [Investment [Customer

Pte. Ltd.

1 CSC |Alpha Rnd |Account No 83,278 83,278 5.09% 2 - Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
[Futures  |Singapore feceivables
(HK) Ltd. [Pte Ltd ICustomer

1 ICSC IDerivatives|Account No 83,278 83,278 15.09% 2 - [Tradings - - 193,301 | 966,505
Futures  [China eceivables
(HK) Ltd. |Alpha ICustomer

[Fund

Remark: Each loan limit by an individual is 10% amount of the net assets of CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. on the Financial Statements. The loan limit of total credit lines is calculated by net value of CSC
Futures (HK) Led. and in line with the rules of liquid capital of Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong.

Note 1: Type of Numbering

(1) 0 represents Parent company

)

Note 2: Type of Loans

(1) Business transactions

(2) Necessaries of short term financing

(i) Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:None

Invested company is being numbered by company type from 1, same company should have same number.

(iii) Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock:None

(iv) Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock:None

(v)  Service charge discounts on transactions with related parties in an aggregate amount of NT$5 million or more:None

(vi) Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of the capital stock:None

(b) Information on investees:(excluding information on investees in Mainland China)

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Main Original investment amount Balance as of December 31, 2019 Net income Share of
Name of | Name of Date of FSC businesses and | December 31, | December 31, | Shares | Percentage of| Carrying Revenue (losses) | profits/losses of | Cash
investor investee Location _[establishment Rule No. products 2019 2018 (thousands) wnership value of investee of investee investee dividend | Note
(Capital ICSC Futures[Hong Kong ~ [1998.12.9 3in Guan Zheng  |Futures brokerage 862,631 862,631 214,000 97.27 % 940,119 249,672 (50,944)| (49,554 - ubsidiar
Futures (HK) Ltd. |Zhi No. ind other
|Corporation| 1010027412 letter [businesses
[permitted by local
law of Hong Kong
(Capital (Capital Taiwan 2014.12.29  [Gin Guan Zheng  |Consultancy, 50,000 50,000 5,000 100.00 % 42,249 - (3.224) (3,224 - ubsidiar
Futures  [International [Zhi No. information
ICorporation(Information 1030038387 letter [software service
[Technology
ICo.. Ltd
(Capital [True Partner [Hong Kong ~ [2010.5.31 5in Guan Zheng  |Assets 36,701 36,701 245 49.00 % 47,860 129,089 5,038 2,469 - [Associate
Futures (Capital |Zhi No. IManangement
(Corporationadvisor Co., 1040027513 letter
Ltd.
(¢) Information on overseas branches and representative offices:None
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(d) Information on investment in mainland China:

(i)

(i)

Financial Statements

Investment in mainland china and related information:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Accumulated Accumulated Net
Main Total outflow of Investment flows outflow of income Highest Accumulated
businesses amount Method | investment from investment from | (losses) | Percentage | percentage | Investment remittance of
Name of and of paid-in of Taiwan as of Taiwan as of of the of of income Book earnings in
investee products capital investment | January 1, 2019 | Outflow Inflow  [December 31, 2019] investee | ownership | ownership (losses) value current period
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Capital True [Management 5,013 (3) 24,372 - - 24,372 2,159 51.00% 51.00% 1,101 24,068 -
IPartner , consulting B(2)
[Technology fand
Co., Ltd. information
Iservice
business
Capital IManagement 18,863 (3) 18,863 - - 18,863 (4,057)( 100.00% 100.00% (4,057) 17,792 -
[Futures , consulting B(2)
[Technology fand
(Shanghai)  [information
Co., Ltd. service
business
Note 1:  Investment methods are classified into the following three categories:

A. Directly invest in a Company in Mainland China.

B. Through investing in an existing Company in the third area, which then invested in the investee in Mainland China (Please indicate the investee name of the third area).

C. Through a subsidiary to invest in a Company in Mainland China.

Note 2:  Investment gains and losses recognized during the period

A. It should be indicated if the investee was still in the incorporation arrangements and had not yet any profit during this period.

B. Indicate the basis for investment gains and losses recognition in the number of one of the following three categories:

(1) The recognition of investment gains or losses is based on the financial statements audited by international certified public accountant cooperated with certified public accountant of

the Republic of China.

(2) The recognition of investment gains or losses is based on the financial statements audited by certified public accountant of the Company.

(3) The recognition of investment gains or losses is based on the financial statements provided by the investee without audited by certified public account.

Note 3: Above information is expressed in New Taiwan Dollars.

Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

Accumulated Investment in Mainland China as
of December 31, 2019

Investment Amounts Authorized by
Investment Commission, MOEA

Upper Limit on Investment

43,235

43,235

80,000

Note: The Company invests through a subsidiary, Capital International Technology Co., Ltd., to invest in Mainland China.
According to the relevant rules to small and medium enterprises, the upper limit for investment in China is $ 80,000.
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CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notesto the Financial Statements

(17) Segment information:

(a) Please refer to the consolidated financial report for the year ended December 31, 2019.
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VI1. Review of Financial Position, Business Performance and Risk Issues

7.1 Financial position

The financial position analysisin the last 2 years (standal one)

Unit: NTD Thousand

- ] AT s

2019 2018 Amount %
Current assets 38,683,882 38,113,857 570,025 1.50
Property and equipment 57,721 44,122 13,599| 30.82
Other non-current assets 1,413,548 1,459,085 (45,537)| (3.12)
Current Before distribution 35,119,902 34,567,504 552,398 1.60
ligbilities After distribution Note2| 35,167,392 - -
Non-current liabilities 22,253 17,468 4,785 27.39
Capital stock 1,764,376 1,764,376 0 0.00
Retained | Lo oredistribution 2,246,703 2,247,246 (543)| (0.02)
earnings After distribution Note2| 1,647,358 - -
Total Assets 40,155,151 39,617,064 538,087 1.36
Tota Before distribution 35,142,155| 34,584,972 557,183| 161
liabilities After distribution Note2| 35,184,860 - -
Tod | Beforedistribution 5,012,996 5,032,002 (19,096)| (0.38)
shar ;hj'tsef S | After distribution Note2| 4432204 ] ]

Note1 All financial information has been audited.

Note2 Appropriation of 2019 earnings had yet to be resolved in a shareholders meeting.

7.2 Financial performance
The financial performance analysisin the last 2 years (standalone)

Unit: NTD Thousand

Y ear 2019 2018 Difference

Item Amount %

Income $1,735,635 $2,373,305|  (637,670) (0.27)
Operating expense 1,496,715 1,861,029|  (364,314) (0.20)
Operating profits 238,920 512,276|  (273,356) (0.53)
Other income and xpenses 508,027 437,980 70,047 0.16
Income before tax 746,947 950,256 (203,309) (0.21)
Tax 146,938 115,051 31,887 0.28
ot orations $600,009 $835205|  (235,196) (0.28)
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Explanation to major variations:

1. Current liabilities and assets: The Current liabilities and assets was increased from
previous year, due to the customer’s trading margin and trader’s equity has
increased which related to the trading volume of |everage transaction business
raised.

2. Capital: The capital increased due to the cash issue.

3. Retained earnings. Retained earnings increased due to the profit increased.

7.3 Cash flow

7.3.1 Liquidity andysisfor thelast 2 years
Unit: NTD Thousand

Year 2019 2018 Variation (%)
Item
Current ratio (%) 2.05 2.5 (18.00)
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 115.2 112.41 2.48
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 2.37 7.88 (69.92)

7.3.2 Cash flow anaysisfor the coming year
Unit: NTD Thousand

Opening cash fNet cashflow | oo outflow Cash surplus Financing of cash deficits
balance romoperating | o the year (deficit)
activitiesfor the
1) year (2) ©) D+(2-3) Investment | Financing
plans plans
3,258,958 841,440 699,853 3,400,545 - -

v

v

A.

4 Impacts of major capital expendituresin the last year to financial
performance: None.

.5 Causes of profit or lossincurred on investments in the last year, and any
Improvements or investments planned for the next year:

The Company’s investment policy:

The Company's investments were planned and executed according to its internal control

system and it’s “ Procedures for the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”. As part of its
administration over invested businesses, the Accounting Department analyzes investees
financial statements on aregular basis for insightsinto their individual business
operations.

. The major causes for profits or losses incurred by invested businesses, and any corrective

actions:

» CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. suffered aloss this year due to a decline in brokerage business
income. At present, in addition to actively develop overseas emerging market
customers, and continue to develop a better trading environment for enhancing the
market advantages.

Due to the poor performance of overseas reinvestment operations compared to the
previous year, Capital International Technology Corp. suffered alossin the current
period. In addition to strengthen the resource integration between groups, it is actively
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developing information systems to increase business income and reduce daily
operating costs.
» The operating of other reinvestment companies is stable and the profitability statusis
well.
C. Investment plan for the coming year: None.

7.6 Analysis of Risk Management

The Company's operation risk (such as market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
operational risk, legal risk, model risk, reputation risk and other risks related to
the operation of futures dealers) isto be established a* Risk Management Policy”
under an effective risk management situation and also create a procedure which
obeyed by all employees. Each business units should perform risk management
operations and activities, and the risk management office supervises the
implementation of risk control affairs.

Also, the risk management and other related reports should be submitted by risk
management office, internal audit office and financial & accounting office on
Boarding meeting, it will affect the financial and sales related rules with regards
to the capital distribution of the Company. Within the scope of the Company’s
acceptablerisk, it makes the allocation of risky assets of the Company more
reasonable and fully consider about the effects after integrating every risky factor
with the changes from subjective and objective environment to decide the coping
strategies.

In order to manage effectively the Company's operational risks, the Company has
established arisk management policy whose content does reflect the Company's
operational strategy objectives, risk preferences and the characteristics of current
risk of the Company. Moreover, the Company establish a consistent management
process as the norms and basis for the Company's daily execution risk
management operations and it is also supported by the Board of Directors,
management personnel at all levels and employees. The risk management policy
not only rationalize the Company's risky asset allocation and maximize the
shareholder returns within the scope of acceptable risk. Besides, the Company
should regularly review the appropriateness of the risk management policy and
adjust it in atimely manner to cope with changes in the subjective and objective
environment.

The management personnel and employees of each business unit of the Company
perform jointly all business and trading activities. The supervisors are responsible
for all risk management matters such as analyzing, controlling and reporting risky
matters, and are responsible for meeting the requirements of legal regulations and
corporate risk management policies for operational risk management of the
Company. The Company devel ops a contingency plan and take countermeasures
when it necessary, and deliver the relevant information to the management to
ensure that the risk control mechanism and procedures are implemented
effectively.
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High-level management, risk management office, and legal compliance
department implement risk monitoring, management, and emergency response
measures according to their responsibilities. The functional risk-based approach
has been adopted for auditing assessment of overall business and operations level
to ensure that every risky factor of the Company is under effective control. Also,
through the application of risk management information system, it conducts
real-time monitoring and after-hour summary anaysis, detects and checks the
usage of risk limits of each business unit, assesses exposure and concentration of
risk, and presents risk management related reports timely and completely.

Internal auditing department is responsible for the compliance and operational
risk management of the Company's regulations and internal control system, and
also responsible for supervising and ensuring the effective implementation of the
Company's operational risk management procedures. The Company follows the
internal control system issued by the competent authority, employs experienced
personnel to conduct auditing operations for the business activities, and
cooperates with the competent authorities, Taiwan Futures Exchange or Chinese
National Futures Association to amend the relevant specifications or change and
adjust operational risk management procedures for business needs.

Legal compliance department is responsible for reviewing the legality of
transaction contract documents of the Company such as commodity contracts and
transaction behaviors to provide the professional suggestions which would
implement legal compliance work with internal auditing department jointly.

7.6.1 Impact of interest rate, exchange rate, and inflation on the Company's
earnings, and responsive measures in the last year:
A. Impacts of interest rate variations to the Company's profit and loss, and responsive
measures in the future
1. The Company has sound financial structure and stable cash flow, there is no
borrowing rate risk due to without outside loan. Otherwise, FED cut interest rates a
total of three timesin 2019, it is expected that Federal Reserve Board will maintain a
stable market interest rate in 2020. However, it does not rule out a short-term deflation
caused by new coronaviruses by means of cutting interest rate. The interest revenue of
the Company was from NT$ 363,732 thousand dollars increased to NT$ 529,587
thousand dollars which increased by 45.6% from the previous year, due to the amount
of customer margin increased and the interest rate of foreign currency raised in 2019.
2. Except for the sound financial structure, the Company keeps close contact with
banking institutions for controlling the financial market situation.

B. Impacts of exchange rate variations to The Company's profit and loss, and responsive
measures in the future
The revenue of the Company is mainly from the commission revenues of futures
services which includes the commission revenues denominated in foreign currencies.
The Company recognizes them as income in accordance with its Customers Margin
Policy. In 2019, changes in the exchange rate resulted in a net income of NT$3,156
thousand dollars.
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C. Impacts of inflation to The Company's profit and loss, and responsive measures in the

future:

Inflation triggers changes in interest rates, exchange rates, unemployment rates and other
economic uncertainties, and therefore considered a materia factor to the overall economy
and financial activities. After the expansion policies and the introduction of liquidity from
central banks of each country in 2019, the market was expected to exhibit moderate inflation
in 2020. However, due to the impact of new coronaviruses at the beginning of the year, the
market worried that short-term deflation will occur in 2020, but it is still expected that The
United States will offset this negative effect through an effective monetary policy. The rise
in market volatility due to uncertain factors will help the development of futures hedging
business.

7.6.2 Policies on high-risk and highly leveraged investments, loans to third
parties, endorsements / guarantees, and trading of derivatives,; describe the
main causes of any profits or losses incurred and future responsive
measures.

The Company trades high-risk and high leveraged investments and derivatives only within
the scope and regulations permitted by the authority. As for loans to third parties, the
Company does not establish any regulations and also incurred above related affairs.

7.6.3 Future research and devel opment plans and projected expenses:

The current configuration of develop department is around 10~20 research professionals,
and it expected to expand in the future. In the next years, the Company will take 1%~2%
of consolidated sales to continuously recruit related professionals. The predicted research
expense will be around NT$30~45 million dollars.

The Company actively develop the domestic/foreign financia products that would relate
to futures and options with high-gross profit, high-adding value and overall solutions
ability. The future research plan is including overseas futures market analysis, trading
strategy development, and the risk management of derivative products, for constructing
the research integrated platform and cloud strategy platform.

7.6.4 The effect of major changes in policies and legal practices, whether
domestic or foreign, to the company’s financial and business performance,
and the responsive actions:

For domestic and foreign important changes in policies and legislation, each relevant
department of the company should perform an analysis and evaluation for the significant
changes of information and regulations from foreign and domestic markets to each
business items beforehand, and then adjust related operational strategies and procedures
to respond changes in relevant policies and legislations.

7.6.5 Effects of technological and industrial changes to the company's financial
and business performance, and the responsive actions:
The Securities and Futures market develop quickly and connect with the international
market; therefore, the Company is going to focus on two key points: recruit constantly
the financial professionals and develop Information Technology. For enhancing the
global transaction platform (smart trader) to provide speedy and safe investment
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environment and maintaining the lead of innovation, the Company connects with social
medium and devel ops platform subscription economy for providing global financial
information and professional research suggestions which towards to member
management and community business. The Company’s T department leads the group’s
technological strategy development. It has independent system research and development
and customization capabilities, and can assist in rapid business development and provide
differentiated and high value-added services in order to create leading core
competitiveness. And also, the team works towards to enhancing its capacities, creating
leading core competitive advantages in order to lay a solid foundation and to provide
clients with safe, stable, and speedy services.

The Company sets “ Statement of Information Security Policy” that upholds the
information security concept of maintaining the Company's operating environment. It
should provide comprehensive protection and prevention of the information which was
stored or transmitted by the Company and prevent some accidental |oss such as: damage,
theft, leakage, tampering, abuse and infringement. The information security policy will be
revised and implemented on aregular basis to improve all operations continuously for the
confidentiality, integrity and availability in the information services system.

According to the letter from the Financial Supervisory Committee, the overall
implementation status of information security will be reported to the Board of Directors
within three months after the end of the fiscal year. The chief executive officer of
information security and Chairman, president and internal auditing supervisor will jointly
issue the statement of overall implementation status for information security. Moreover,
this statement will be disclosed to Market Observation Post System.

The Company sets information security personnel to conduct regular security
inspections on adaily, monthly and annual basis, including the protection for
denial-of-service attack (DDoS) and data leakage, system review for user authority, drills
for remote backup and evacuation, scan of system vulnerability, intrusion penetration
tests, communication security, personal security education, e-mail socia engineering
exercises and regular inspection and evaluation of key information systems. The
Company strengthen the security protection according to Financial Information Sharing
and Analysis Center (FISAC) share the information. And internal auditor of the Company
would strengthen the integrity of the overall information security through regularly
authorizing the external auditing of 1SO and BSI standards.

7.6.6 Impacts of changes in corporate image to the company's crisis
management, and the responsive measures.

For the resolution of the Company’ s reputation risk due to corporate image changes, the
auditing and legal compliance department will provide professional consulting to
potential crisis. On top of which was a strong proprietary trading team that delivered
top-notch performance and profitability in the futures industry. The Company's
professional reputation image has long been recognized in the market. In the future, the
Company will take the “public interest” asthe first priority, and provide the service to
public constantly.

7.6.7 The expected benefits from mergers and acquisitions, the potential risks
associated, and the responsive measures. None
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7.6.8 The expected benefits from plant expansion, the potential risks associated,
and the responsive measures. None.

7.6.9 Risks of concentrated purchases or sales, and responsive measures to such
risks:
The Company actively expand domestic/foreign broker service and
continue enhancing the integration between subsidies for risk
diversification.

7.6.10 The risks and impacts of significant shareholding transfers by directors,
supervisors, or major shareholders with more than 10% ownership interest,
and the responsive measures to such risks:

The Company’ s directors, supervisors, or major shareholders with more than 10%
ownership interest shall not have any significant shareholding transferring since its
establishment, in addition, the directors, supervisors, or major shareholders reported the
changes in the shareholding in accordance with Securities Exchange Act. on aregular
basis. The largest shareholder is Capital Securities with shareholding for 56%, and there
isno significant transfer since the Company was founded, therefore, the shareholder’s
equity is stable relatively.

7.6.11The effects, risks and responsive measures associated with changesin
management:
On top of which was a strong proprietary trading team that delivered top-notch
performance and profitability in the futures industry. The Company's professional
reputation has long been recognized in the market. In the future, the Company will take
the “public interest” asthe first priority, and make contributions to capital market.

7.6.12 Magjor litigation and non-contentious cases.
The major institutional shareholder of the Company is Capital Securities Co., which has
the major litigation cases by the end of 2019.12.31 as following:

Litigation Vaue of
Event Brief of Facts Litigants Current progress Start Date Claim
(Unit: dollars)

The Plaintiff claimsthat the |Plaintiff: Securities |The caseisbeing
prospectus prepared by ABIT |and Futures reviewed by Taiwan
Computer Corporation for the|lnvestors Protection [Shilin District Court.
2002 cash issue contained Center According the
false information that misled |Defendant: ABIT  |judgement on NT$2,003.697

Civil investors and caused them to |Computer 2019.12.26, the 2006.11.23 |dol] ar,s '
suffer losses. The Company, |Corporation Company did not T
being the underwriter of that |Capital Securities |liable for
cash issue, was being held Corp.and others compensation. (This
jointly responsible under event has not
Article 32 of the Securities confirmed yet)
and Exchange Act.
When the customer who Plaintiff: Capital This case has
traded at shi-Song branch: Securities Corp. mentioned criminal
-Ping Yu, inspected the Defendant: notices as forged

_ transaction documents, -Ping Chian documents and fraud

Criminal Capital Securities Corp. d d and it is under 2018.12.18

discovered that -Ping investigation.
Chiang forged the inexistent
documents of
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Principal-Guaranteed Notes,
thevictimsincluding -Ping
Y u weretotal 15 customers.

Civil

The customer -Yen Fan
who traded at Wanhua branch
of Capital Securities Corp.
accused that the sales  -Ling
Jan unauthorized privately
solicited investment for fraud
and suffered loss. Therefore,
the prosecution request has
been submitted that -Ling
Jan and Capital Securities
Corp. areliablefor joint
indemnity for NTD
2,798,313.

Plaintiff:
Fan
Defendant:
-Ling Jan, Capital
Securities Corp.

-Yen

The caseis being
reviewed by Taiwan

Taipel District Court.

2019.04.08

NT$2,798,313
dollars

Civil

The plaintiff claimed that a
provisional attachment to
detain the shares of Art Glory
Investment Ltd. under the
account of Pamirs Capital
H.K. limited which wasthe
client of the Company's
custody business. The
Company reply that thereis
no shares under the client’s
account and the plaintiff
considered not the truth.
Therefore, the prosecution
request has been submitted

Plaintiff: Tatung
Company.

Defendant:
Capital Securities
Corp.

The caseisbeing
reviewed by Taiwan

Taipel District Court.

2019.11.26

7.6.13 Risk management framework and responsibilities
Article 1: Establishment Basis

This institution of risk management is based on the “Principles of Futures
Commission Merchant’s Risk Management Practices’ and the “Futures Commission
Merchant’s Self Checklist for the Establishment of Risk Management Mechanism”.

Article 2: Purpose

To effectively control risks, a management procedure is built up from top to bottom
that includes the Board of Directors, managers of all departments and the employees
to participate. Qualitative and quantitative approaches are taken to recognize,
evaluate, monitor and respond to various potential risks. As a result, the company
may make reasonable asset allocation and maximize returns for shareholders within

abearable risk range.
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Article 3: Risk Management Organization Structure

Section

Responsibilities

I. Chairman
(Board of Directors)

1. Make policies and establish qualitative and quantitative criteria
of risk control. Report timely to the Board of Directors the
implementation of risk management and advice necessary
measures.

2. Assess operational strategies and make decisions.

3. Approve operational application and authorize trading.

4. Ensure the effectiveness of risk management and undertake the
ultimate responsibility of risk management.

[1. General Manager

1. Report to the Board of Directors the risk evaluation of positions,
trading performance and execution percentage of the target.
2. Report to the Board of Directors immediately if any abnormal
situation happens (e.g. positions exceeding total stop-loss limits),
and demand the subordinates to take necessary approaches.

[11. Risk Management
Department

1. Assist in risk management system making.

2. Assist departments set up risk limits and assignment methods.

3. Ensure the execution of the risk management system determined
by the Board of Directors.

4. Present timely and completely risk management related reports
to the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and General Manager.

5. Be familiarized with the content of each trade before it takes
place and monitor the positions of completed trade.

6. Upgrade risk assessment capabilities over the quantifiable
financial products.

7. Be familiarized with the risk limits of each business department
and how they are used.

8. Assess the company’ s risk exposure and risk concentration.

9. Develop and apply stress-testing and back-testing methods.

10. Inspect the variation between the actual and forecasted P & L of
the portfolio.

11. Review product pricing models and valuation system used by
business departments.

12. Monitor other risk control associated issues.

V.
Business Department
(subsidiary)

middle-level directors’ function (risk control personnel)

1. Ensure the delivery of risk management information in a timely

and correct manner.

2. Ensure effective enforcement of risk limits associated
regulations by the business department (subsidiary).

3. Supervise risk exposure and report on the over limit situation,
including approaches taken by the business department
(subsidiary).

4. Ensure effective internal control in the business department
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(subsidiary) to meet regulations and risk management system.

Business department manager(Responsible person of the
subsidiary)

1. Undertake al risk management associated issues of the business
department (subsidiary). Supervise operationa risk and take
necessary approaches.

2. Supervise the delivery of risk management information.

V.
Audit Department

1. Inspect regularly the appropriateness of the internal control of
product trading in business departments.

2. Oversee the implementation of risk management system and
record in auditor's report. Follow up on faults and abnormal
issues and make notes of improvements.

3. Oversee the compliance of rules and regulations.

VI.
Finance Department

1. Process accounts and transfer capital according to authorized
contracts and trade documents.

2. Make a memorandum for off-balance sheet trade contract.

3. Acquire price information from quotation system of trading
department to re-valuate positions.

4. Make timely entry of completed transaction and recognize profit
and loss.

5. Make promulgations in accordance with the competent
authorities.

VII. Clearing and
Settlement Department

1. Inquirefor client’s credits at account opening before trade.

2. Safeguard opening account contracts and trade contracts.

3. Make product clearing and settlement.

4. Execute margin call and counter transaction under insufficient
margin.

5. Report to the competent authorities on trade contracts.

6. Confirm trade contents.

7. Monitor specia clients' credit after transaction.

VIII.
Compliance and Legal
Division

1. Consult with legal professionals of related management policies.

2. Review the obligatory relationship, appropriateness and legal

documents of each trade contract before signing.

3. Scrutinize each application that requires the official signatures.

4. Supervises legal and compliance affairs.

5. Supervises business units in assessing impact of new regulations
on the company’ s businesses.

6. Before the launch of any new product, service or business
segment, the compliance officer is required to issue a signed

opinion regarding compliance with laws and internal policies.
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Article 4: Risk Management Flow
The risk management flow includes risk recognition, risk measurement, risk
supervision, risk report and its responding approaches.

Risk Management Flowchart

. | Communication and | Risk Management Policy |
" | Policy Making Authorized Limit h
B Risk Load

I [ [ |
Risk Identification [~ | Risk Measurement [ | Risk Monitoring —P| Risk Report

A 4

A A A A
Market Risk  [[| Valueat Risk Calculation [ |Risk Limitunder [ |Regular/ Random
*VaR Surveillance Reports
CreditRisc | CreditVeR
Overload ]
P& L Anaysis M t Disclosure of Key [ |
Operational Risk [ y . anagemen
*Market Valuation — I ssues
Liguidity Risk | *Theoretical Price All Risksunder
iquidity Ri i
ey Valuation Surveillance
Legal and Other Risks Stress Test Performance Risk Management
Evaluation after Meetings
Adjustment

A. Risk Recognition
Due to the characteristics of futures industry, the company may encounter mainly
market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk and other risks.

Market risk is resulted from unstable market prices during some period of time.
For example, interest rate, exchange rate, equity securities and product price change
may cause losses on and off-balance sheet.

Credit risk may happen when trading counterpart (including the issuer, contract
counterpart or debtor) fails to perform the agreement, which will provoke risk in
financial lossesto our issuer.

Liquidity risk happens when the company is unable to liquidize assets or acquire
enough capital to fulfill responsibilities at due time (also called “capita liquidity
risk”). Also, when market is under scale or disordered, the risk (called “market
liquidity risk”) exists when handling positions or offsetting positions with massively
varying market prices.

Operational risk occurs either when internal personnel or system operates
improperly or when external events cause direct or indirect |osses.

- 269 -



Lega risk means the potential loss as a result of failure to comply with relevant
laws and regulations, and a voidance of the contract caused by illegality of the
contract, overstepping powers, neglect of clauses or incompletion of standards.

Other risksinclude strategy risk and reputation risk.
Risk Measurement
1. Quantitative Measurement on Market Risk

Statistic-based Measurement: The Value at Risk (VaR) of linear products (stocks) is
measured by the Variance Co-Variance (Risk Metrics Approach--EWMA), which
calculates the maximal probable risk of portfolio under a certain confidence level
for the next business day. The Vaue a Risk of non-linear products (options) is
measured by the Delta-Gamma Approximations (the “ Greeks’). Following the risks
of trade contracts offset, the measurement vehicle calculates the maximal probable
risk of portfolio under a certain confidence level for the next business day. To test
the accuracy, Backtesting approach is taken to try out the violations within one year
under pre-calculated VaR using the actual valuated profit and loss of inventory
positions for the previousday (P & L for T-1 day).

Sengitivity analysis measures the sensitivity of the positions to individual risk
factors (such as interest rate, exchange rate). The sensitivity analysis on exchange
rate variation includes evaluation and analysis on the proprietary overseas capital
and service fee revenue from foreign futures products.

Stress test emulates and measures the impacts on portfolio value at unusual market
change, from which responding actions can be made. The portfolio stress test at
current stage aims at the weighted index or targeted stock price within £15%
change.

Other risk control issues for proprietary trading position:

(1) Loss limit control: based on each trader’s trading strategy and trading amount,
establish monthly, quarterly and annual loss limits, and departmental monthly,
quarterly and annual loss limits.

(2) Trading margin control: mandate position limits during trading session and
remaining position limits.

(3) Remaining position limits and open-delta position control: calculate the
open-delta value limit of the remaining positions of each individual trader and
asawhole.

(4) Margins ratio control for open interest of domestic and foreign futures trades
(The amount of the original margin required for the futures contract, option
contract and futures option contract of which the underlying asset are domestic
securities, securities portfolio or stock price index, adding the premium paid by
option contract, deducting the premium received from option contract) - the
amount that isin the domestic futures market shall be greater than 200 percent of
the amount that is in overseas futures markets.
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(5) Options trading price ingpection: use options trade inquiry to check if the
implied volatility rates between positions offset in each transaction and daily
settlement price are normal.

2. Measurement on Credit Risk

Summarize information on expected credit loss (credit risk exposure amount, client
default rate and return rate) and unexpected credit loss, and quantify the credit VaR.

Approaches taken to manage credit risk:

(1) Credit inquiry and assessment before trade: inquire client’s credit and ascertain
the legality before transaction.

(2) Credit rating management: treat clients with special credit particularly.

(3) Credit supervision after transaction: regularly inspect client’s profit and loss of
positions. Evaluate and monitor credit enhancement (including collaterals) on a
regular basis.

(4) Other effective risk reduction measures: collaterals, guarantee, credit risk netting
and offset agreement.

3. Liquidity Risk Measurement

Market Liquidity Risk Management:

To avoid losses caused by market liquidity risk, the company considered
concentration and market trading volume of its positions held by proprietary trade
and the funds not required for business operation, so as to proceed with the
guantitative management on liquidity risk. In addition, the company established
position limits of the securities issued by any domestic or foreign company to
effectively control market liquidity risk.

Capital Liquidity Risk Management:

The Finance Department is an independent from others in transfer of financial
resources. To control capital liquidity risk and to consider capital needs of various
products for domestic and foreign markets, the Finance Department composes daily
reports, such as the “Margin Withdrawal/Deposit List”, “Securities Transaction
Applications’, “Margin and Premium Accounts of Futures Clients’, etc. After
reviewed and approved, these reports will be implemented and filed.

4. Measurement on Operational Risk

Operational risk includes both direct and indirect losses caused by internal
personnel, operational process, information system and external events. It is as
important as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Any operational risk related
data (including occurring time, type of events, documentation and the scale of
losses) shall be collected and consolidated in order to make appropriate quantitative
measurement.

As the interna control system is established, the Audit Department conducted a

routine or special inspection according to the operational procedures and critical
control points as required by its internal control systems. This suitable monitoring
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and controlling mechanism is implemented against operational risks occurring in
the course of business and trading process.

5. As for unquantifiable risks such as legal risk, strategy risk and reputation risk,
there should be tactics to tackle risks and to make qualitative assessment.

C. Risk Supervision
To monitor how risk limits are used and if any over limit occurs so that an
immediate response is taken and further evaluation is made, it is the responsibilities
of the Risk Management Department, managers from business departments and
subsidiaries and middle-level directors (risk control staff) to supervise and control
the risks together.

Risk Management Department, based on the annual operational plan and risk
management regulations, shall monitor the risk limits for the company and for each
department, and for market risk, credit risk and capital liquidity risk of each product.
The exceeding part shall be reported to Audit Department and immediate
improvement is required from the related department (or subsidiary). Risk
Management Department shall be responsible for calculating how many times the
proprietary departments exceed limits. The rest departments shall be calculated by
Audit Department and the records shall be evaluated as the KPI performance for the
month.

D. Risk Report
Business Department manager (or subsidiary responsible person) shall ensure the
correctness and effectiveness of transaction report. All transactions should be
recorded and reported in accordance with regulations of the company and the
authorities.

Our risk report mechanism includes:

1. “Risk Management Log” generated dailly by Risk Management Department,
describing positions of each product exposed to market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk, and comparing them with the regulated limits. The report is
presented to Chairman, General Manager, and related department heads.

2. General Manager’s weekly meeting with the proprietary trade to review equity
positionsand P & L in each individual case.

3. A bi-weekly meeting participated by all managers and a monthly operational
meeting, in which all departments make business reports and examine abnormal
situations.

E. Risk Response Approaches

After assessing and summarizing risks, risk response approaches taken include:

1. Risk avoidance: taking measuresto avoid risks.

2. Risk reduction: taking measures to reduce the impact and (or) the possibility of
the occurrence.

3. Risk Diversification: transferring part or all of risksto others.

4. Risk undertaking: undertake the impact and the possibility of occurrence by
not taking any measures.
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5. For risks with low occurring rate but possible threats to company’s existence,
they shall be treated with prudence. The goa of risk management is to
maximize returns for shareholders within a bearable risk range.

Article 5: Risk-based Performance Management
Currently, commonly used RAPM indicators include RAROC, SVA, Sharpe Ratio,
etc.

RAPM = Profit / Economic Capital

Economic Capital is the cash reserve for the company’ s sustainable operation.

The risk-adjusted performance of each department is measured currently by the
concept of RAROC considering the risks exposed to economic capital (risk capital)
and the need to quantify risks. The performance returns shall subtract the cost of the
capital, transfer costs between internal departments and risk associated reserves
such as a proportional reserve for possible losses in the proprietary trade. A
proportional reserve from brokerage fee revenue is appropriated for default to reveal
the actual management performance of each business department and to pursue the
maximal profit within a bearable risk scope.

The goal of risk-adjusted performance management isto evaluate each department’s
performance in a consistent way by taking risk types into account, and to allocate
capital accordingly.

Also, a daily report on the Adjusted Net Capital (ANC) ratio is filed to the
competent authority.

ANC ratio = ANC/ total margin required for open positions

Article 6: Information System of Risk Management
We have signed an information service agreement with the parent company and
joined their Information Safety Committee. The risk management information
system, set up by the Information Department, involves 3 major services in
application, data and technology providing.

Application framework : The information system may apply to financial products
like securities, futures and options. Its function is to manage market risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and part of operational risk, capital alocation, asset and liability, and
performance evaluation.

The risk control information system is developed and maintained by a specialized
in-house team under the Information Department of the parent company. A new
program is developed at the request of the needing department, and is completed
and utilized in business after users test and confirmation of its functions. The
Information Department meets with business departments on a regular basis to
discuss about the utilization of the information system.

Data framework : The evaluation models used in the risk management
information system and in each business department is same. The risk management

-273-



office writes a new program with financial engineering software which will be
consolidated into the risk control information system by the Information
Department. The options evaluation models are mainly Black-Scholes, Binomial
and Monte Carlo Evaluation.

Verifying risk information sources and Confirmation Procedure:

1. User must key in their ID first. Its entry shall be allowed when assessed and
approved by risk control staff and/or associated manager.

2. Information transmitted into transaction system comes into force when data
verified.

3. The system compares information characteristics and the source automatically.
Provided any abnormality, the system shall notify the information staff.

Inquiring risk management information:

The system determines applicable programs and permitted information range
according to user’s business field and authorization. The applicable functions
define how much information can be inquired.

Technology framework: The risk management information system only accepts
Intranet users entry and blocks all external connection by firewalls to barricade
hackers and other Internet connection. CA’s Brightstor software backs up al
programs and information, and TNG monitors backup execution. Provided that any
abnormal situation happens, the system shall notify the information staff by sending
E-mail and messages.

Retrieval procedures involve file retrieval and databank retrieval. Standardized
procedure to handle damaged execution files: cease network service, back up the
file in network server, and resume network service. Microsoft SQL Server is used
as backup facility for our risk management information system. In the case of
system abnormality caused by damaged databank, standardized procedure includes
discontinuing the databank function, backing up the damaged databank, retrieving
backup data of previous day to databank server, and resuming databank service. A
different location backup support system is established in Taoyuan site.

Article 7: Disclosure of Risk Information
Qualitative and quantitative risk-related information shall be disclosed in the annual
report and on company website in compliance with authority’s stipulation.

Article 8: The system shall take effect after the approval of the Board of Directors and so
shall the amendment.

7.7 Other material issues: None.
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Declaration

The Company’s 2019 Affiliation Report (for the period from January 1 to December 31,
2019) has been prepared in accordance with the “ Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises’. No material discrepancies were found between the information disclosed in the
above report and the notes to financial statements for the corresponding period.

Declared by:

Company Capital Futures Corp.

Chairman Sun, Tien-Shan

Date : March 26, 2020
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2019 Affiliation Report

I. Group organization chart and shareholding structure
Date Dec. 31%, 2019

[ Capital Securities Corp. J
p
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( ) Ltd. .
.| Capital Futures Corp. | | Y 100% | Capital Futures
g Tl > Technology (Shanghai)
\ J Capital International _Co.. Ltd.
p N Technology Corp. P
100%| Capital Investment \_ Capital TruePartner
> Management Corp. > Technology Co., Ltd.
\_ J 51% \_
100%( . )
f Capital Insurance
Advisory Corp.
. J
( \
1000/2 Capital Insurance
Agency Corp.
. J
4 N\
100(yf CSC Venture Capital
Corp. - . .
P J ,ﬂ CSC Securities (HK) | °( capital Securities

Ltd. Nominee Ltd.

p
100%] CSC International
”| Holdings Ltd.

.

J |100% [ CSC International

99.92% L—— | Holdings Ltd. Shanghai
. - N Rep. Office
Taiwan International
»| Securities Investment
Consulting Corp.
|\ J
100% (Tai | ional ) 100% 100% Taiwan International
~ Sj;fjvj;;‘ieggga}'?g " TIS Securities (HK) W | é
> Vel : Limited Capital (HK) Ltd.
|\ J
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VI1. Disclosure of magjor transactions:

1. The Company earned the brokerage commission revenue NT$ 9,441 thousand
dollars from Capital Securities Co. in 2019, besides, the amount to its futures
trader’ s equity was NT$688,447 thousand dollars and the interest expense of
deposits received from futures transactions was NT$422 thousand dollars on Dec.
31%, 2019.

2. The payment situation to Capital Securities Co. on Dec. 31%, 2019: Account
receivable is NT$374 thousand dollars, account payable is NT$10,914 thousand
dollars, other account receivable is NT$4,052 thousand dollars and other account
payable is NT$789 thousand dollars.

3. The Company appointed Capital Securities Co. to Futures Introducing Broker, the
commission payment was NT$ 130,341 thousand dollarsin 2019.

4. The Company rented office space from Capital Securities Co., and it isthefirst
adoption of IFRS No.16 to recognize right-of-use asset NT$ 26,176 thousand
dollars and lease liabilities NT$ 26,176 thousand dollars in 2019. The recognized
interest payment was NT$ 252 thousand dollars in 2019 and the balance of lease
ligbilities was NT$10,145 thousand dollars as of the end of Dec. 31%, 2019.

5. The Company signed the “Computer information system management service
contract” with Capital Securities Co. for the computer information system
management services. The service expense in 2019 was NT$ 46,378 thousand
dollars.

6. The Company was appointed by Capital Securities Co. to Securities Introducing
Broker, the commission revenue was NT$ 3,492 thousand dollars in 2019.

7. The Company paid NT$ 448 thousand dollars for agent services of stock affairsto
Capital Securities Co. in 2019.

8. The Company paid NT$ 300 thousand dollars for human resource and legal
service expense to Capital Securities Co. in 2019.

9. The Company paid NT$ 10 thousand dollars for securities brokerage fee to Capital
Securities Co. in 2019.

10. The Company earned the interest revenue NT$461 thousand dollars from the
Reverse repurchase agreement bonds which traded through Capital Securities Co.
as of Dec. 31%, 2019. The revenue of trading Reverse repurchase agreement bonds
was NT$46,000 thousand dollars, the expiration date is Jan 6, 2020, and contract
interest rateis 0.47%.

VII1. Guarantees and endorsements. Not applicable.

IX. Disclosure of other financial or business items with material impact: None.
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Capital Futures Corp.

Chairman Sun, Tien-Shan





